FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Jet’s America, Inc.

37501 Mound Road
Sterling Heights, Michigan 48310
586-268-5870
Sales@jetspizza.com
wWww.jetspizza.com

The franchise being offered is for a restaurant serving pizza calzones, salads and other food,
primarily for carry-out and delivery under the name “Jet’s Pizza®.” The total investment
necessary to begin operation of a single Jet’s Pizza franchise ranges from $572,500 to $786,000.
This includes $30,000 (or $15,000 if you qualify for the 50% military discount) that must be paid
to the franchisor or affiliate.

The total investment necessary for an Area Development Agreement, assuming it allows for
development of three stores, is $75,000 (or $37,500 if you qualify for the 50% military discount),
which is in addition to the cost of each single franchise to be developed, which amount must be
paid to the franchisor or affiliate.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other
information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements
carefully. You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a
binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with
the proposed franchise sale or grant. Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified
the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for
you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact our Sales Department
at 37501 Mound Road, Sterling Heights, Michigan 48310, (586) 268-5870,
Sales@jetspizza.com.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Do not rely on the disclosure
document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your
contract and this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can
help you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to

Buying a Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is
available from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or
by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also
visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or
visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: April 269, 20245
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you might be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to

find more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can | earn?

Item 19 may give you information about
outlet sales, costs, profits or losses. You
should also try to obtain this information
from others, like current and former
franchisees. You can find their names and
contact information in Item 20 or Exhibits
D and E.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying
to the franchisor or at the franchisor’s
direction. Item 7 lists the initial investment
to open. Item 8 describes the suppliers you
must use.

Does the franchisor have the financial
ability to provide support to my
business?

Item 21 or Exhibit B includes financial
statements. Review these statements
carefully.

Is the franchise system stable, growing
or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of
the number of company-owned and
franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only Jet’s Pizza
business in my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in
the franchise agreement describe whether
the franchisor and other franchisees can
compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a troubled
legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the
franchisor or its management have been
involved in material litigation or
bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a Jet’s Pizza
franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibits D and E lists current
and former franchisees. You can contact
them to ask about their experiences.

What else should | know?

These questions are only a few things you
should look for. Review all 23 Items and
all Exhibits in this disclosure document to
better understand this franchise
opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees
even if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to
change its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require
you to make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your
franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a
limited group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive
than similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions.
Some examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what
you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you
may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to
continue to operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your
landlord or other creditors.

Some States Require Reqistration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register
before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state
recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if
your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency
information in Exhibit H.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to

your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the
Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to
resolve disputes with us by litigation only in the judicial district in which we have our
principal place of business at the time the action is commenced, which is currently
Michigan. Out-of-state litigation may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for
disputes. It may also cost you more to sue us in Michigan or a state other than in your
own state.

2. Minimum Royalty. You must make minimum royalty and other payments,
regardless of your sales levels. Your inability to make the payments may result in
termination of your franchise and loss of your investment.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific
Addenda” (if any) for your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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The information in this disclosure document, including any Exhibits, is the confidential property
of Jet’s America, Inc. This disclosure document is being provided to you for your use in
considering the purchase of a Jet’s Pizza restaurant franchise and for no other reason. Any other
use, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited.
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Item 1: The Franchisor and any Parents, Predecessors, and Affiliates

Franchisor and Principal Business Address:

Jet’s America, Inc.
37501 Mound Road
Sterling Heights, Michigan 48310

To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, “Jet’s” means Jet’s America, Inc., the
franchisor. Jet’s may also be referred to as the “Franchisor,” “we” or “us,” or with similar pronouns.
“You” means the person who buys the franchise. If you are a corporation, partnership, limited
liability company, or other entity, your “Owners” means all of your stockholders, partners,
members or other owners.

Jet’s is a Michigan corporation and was incorporated on June 8, 1990. Jet’s conducts business as
“Jet’s America, Inc.” and as “Jet’s Pizza.”

Our affiliate is JAI Productions, Inc. Its principal business address is 37501 Mound Road, Sterling
Heights, Michigan 48310. JAI Productions, Inc. has been in business since 2018 and collects
rebates and processes payment for all of our franchise system items including the loyalty program,
the advertising retainer fee, and the database.

Our registered agents for service of process are disclosed in Exhibit O to this Disclosure
Document.

Jet’s grants franchises certain rights to own and operate restaurants under the trade name “Jet’s
Pizza,” selling pizza, calzones, salads and other food to the public, primarily for carry-out and
delivery. A typical Jet’s Pizza restaurant is about 1,200 - 1,500 square feet, and is located in a strip
shopping center in a heavily populated urban or suburban area. Your competition will include a
variety of pizza and fast food restaurants, including national and regional chains, independent
restaurants, and some convenience stores.

If we approve you for a single Jet’s Pizza restaurant franchise, you will have the opportunity to
sign a franchise agreement (“Franchise Agreement”) with us. Our current form of Franchise
Agreement is attached as Exhibit A to this Disclosure Document. Under the Franchise
Agreement, we grant you the right to operate a single Jet’s Pizza restaurant (“Restaurant”) at a
location that we approve (“Location”).

We own certain trademarks, services marks, trade names, domain names, logos, emblems and
other commercial symbols (collectively, the “Marks”). See Item 13 for further information
regarding the Marks.

You must operate your Restaurant using our franchise system (“Franchise System”), which is
described in the Franchise Agreement and the Jet’s Operations Manual (“Operations Manual”).
We may periodically change, improve, or further develop the Franchise System.

Jet’s also offers multi-unit development rights to qualified franchisees to develop a certain
number of Jet’s Pizza restaurants within a defined area according to a pre-determined
development schedule, as outlined in the terms of an Area Development Agreement. The Area
Development Agreement is found in Exhibit Q. You do not have to enter into any Franchise
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Agreements at the time you enter into an Area Development Agreement. However, for each
Restaurant you develop under the Area Development Agreement, you must sign our then-current form
of Franchise Agreement that we offer to new franchisees, the terms, and conditions of which may be
substantially different from those contained in the Franchise Agreement attached to this disclosure
document (including, for example, with respect to higher fees, shorter term, or other factors more
burdensome to you).

The market for our products, and fast food restaurants in general, is very well developed and very
competitive. You will compete with other pizza restaurants, as well as other franchised, chain, or
independent restaurants offering similar items as Jet’s Pizza as well as a wide variety of other
foods.

You must comply with all local, state, and federal laws that apply to your Restaurant operations,
including health, sanitation, smoking, United States Department of Agriculture, Equal
Employment Opportunity Commission, and Occupational Safety and Health Administration
regulations, Food and Drug Administration regulations on nutrition labeling of standard menu
items, other food and safety regulations, and anti-discrimination, employment, and sexual
harassment laws. The Americans with Disabilities Act requires readily accessible
accommodations for people with disabilities and therefore may affect some of your operations.
You should consult with your attorney concerning these and other laws and ordinances that may
affect your Restaurant operations.

You are responsible for all employment decisions of the Restaurant, including those related to
recruiting, hiring, firing, scheduling, training (other than the brand training required by the
Franchise Agreement), pay, benefits, personnel policies, record keeping, supervision, safety,
security, and discipline of all workers. Any information we provide about employment matters,
whether voluntarily or in response to your request, and whether provided directly or by means of
any technology tools, is a recommendation only and not intended to exercise control over your
employees, their wages, hours or working conditions, or the means and manner by which they
carry out their duties. You must clearly inform all workers, before hiring and periodically
thereafter, that you, and not Jet’s, is their employer and that Jet’s does not assume and will not
accept any employer, co-employer or joint employer obligations. You must indemnify us against
any claim that we are the employer, co-employer, or joint employer of any of your owners or
workers.

Jet’s began offering Jet’s Pizza franchises in 1990. It has not and does not offer franchises in
any other line of business, or engage in any other business, but reserves the right to do so in the
future.

Jet’s has no parents, has no affiliates that offer franchises in any line of business, and has no
predecessors. Jet’s has no affiliates that provide products or services to the franchisees of
Franchisor.

Although it does not operate any locations or franchises directly, Jet’s has several affiliates that,
as of December 31, 20234, operate 546 Jet’s Pizza franchises similar to the franchised
restaurants being offered.

Apart from these franchises, neither we nor our affiliates do business under any name other than
“Jet’s America, Inc.,” or “Jet’s Pizza.” Neither we nor our affiliates offer, or have ever offered, any
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other type of franchise.

Other than statutes and regulations applicable to food service establishments generally, there are no
special regulations for the preparation and sale of pizza in your state. Under the general
regulations governing food service establishments, your employees may have to become certified
food handlers. To obtain certification, your employees may be required to attend instructional
courses, pass tests and pay a fee. You should check with city, township, and county regulatory
agencies to determine if certification will be required.

You must comply with all local, state, and federal laws that apply to your restaurant operations,
including health, sanitation, smoking, United States Department of Agriculture, Equal
Employment Opportunity Commission, and Occupational Safety and Health Administration
regulations, other food and safety regulations, discrimination, employment, and sexual
harassment laws.  The Americans with Disabilities Act requires readily accessible
accommodations for people with disabilities and therefore may affect some of your operations.
You should consult with your attorney concerning these and other laws and ordinances that may
affect your restaurant operations.

Item 2: Business Experience

President: John Jetts

2014-Present

John Jetts was vice president and a director of Jet’s since its incorporation in 1990, before
becoming president on December 5, 2014. After completing high school, he assisted Eugene Jetts
in the opening of Jetts Party Shop & Pizzeria in Sterling Heights, Michigan, in August 1978. He
has actively assisted in developing the Jet’s Pizza system. He has also been an officer and director of
each affiliate since its date of incorporation.

Secretary and Treasurer: Amanda Romeo

2014-Present

Amanda Romeo has been working with Jet’s since 2007. From 2011 to 2019, she was the
Accounting Manager for Jet’s. She was elected as Secretary and Treasurer of Jet’s on December
5, 2014, and has been serving as the Legal Secretary for Jet’s since 2019.

Vice President — Franchise Sales: James W. Galloway, Jr.

1994-Present

James W. Galloway, Jr. has worked on a part-time and occasional basis for Jetts Party Shop &
Pizzeria and various affiliates since 1978. In October 1986, he became an officer and director of
our affiliate, J.S. Investments, Inc., and has since become an officer and director of several other
affiliates. Jim has been a vice president of Jet’s since December 1993. Since March of 1994, Jim has
devoted his full time efforts to Jet’s.

Vice President — Store Operations: Jeffrey Galloway
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1994-Present

Jeffrey Galloway has been a vice president of Jet’s since December 1993. He began working on a
part-time basis for Jetts Party Shop & Pizzeria, Inc. in 1982. In October of 1986, he became an
officer and director of our affiliate, J.S. Investments, Inc., and has since become an officer and
director of several other affiliates.

Item 3:_L.itigation

Gregory Joseph Fekin v. Members of Kentucky #3, LLC., et al. (Macomb County Circuit Court,
Case No. 2021-001643-CB). On May 4, 2022, plaintiff brought a claim against Jet’s, two
Franchisor-owned franchises, as well as John Jetts, James Galloway, and Amanda Romeo in
their capacity as members or managers of the Franchisor-owned franchises, claiming willfully
unfair and oppressive conduct under § 450.4515 of the Michigan Limited Liability Company
Act, breach of contract, and breach of fiduciary obligations in relation to plaintiff’s ownership in
the Franchisor-owned franchises. Jet’s was solely brought into the lawsuit on a breach of
contract claim related to the promissory note plaintiff had committed himself to paying in return
for his ownership in the Franchisor-owned franchises. Without an admission of wrongdoing, on
November 21, 2022 the parties entered into a confidential settlement agreement, which provided
in pertinent part that Jet’s would pay plaintiff $222,250.00 in exchange for a release of claims.
The case was dismissed on December 30, 2022.

Robert McDonald v. Jet’s America, Inc. (Case No. 2021 CH 00658, Circuit Court of Cook
County, lllinois). On February 10, 2021, plaintiff, on his own behalf and on behalf of other
similarly situated, filed a putative class action complaint against Jet’s, alleging violations of the
Illinois Biometric Information Privacy Act, 740 ILCS 14/1 et seq. and seeking monetary
damages, including an award of attorneys’ fees, and injunctive and other equitable relief. The
lawsuit was premised principally upon Jet’s alleged use of biometric identifiers (thumbprints) for
employee timekeeping purposes. The parties reached a settlement in principle in February 2022.
Under the settlement, Jet’s agreed to pay a total of $9,500, inclusive of all costs.

Item 4:_Bankruptcy

No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item.

Item 5: Initial Fees

The initial franchise fee is $30,000; except for certain franchises established pursuant to an Area
Development Agreement as described above and for those franchisees which qualify for a
military discount. If a franchisee is at least 20% owned by a person who is in active duty or has
served in the military, naval or air service and was not dishonorably discharged, then the Initial
Franchise Fee will be $15,000, reflecting a 50% military discount. The initial franchise fee is due
when you sign the Franchise Agreement and is not refundable under any circumstances. The
initial franchisee fee may be waived at Jet’s discretion for certain affiliate stores.
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If you acquire area development rights, you must pay an area development fee when you sign the
Area Development Agreement. The amount of the area development fee depends upon the
number of franchises that you will have the right to develop under the Area Development
Agreement and whether you qualify for 50% the military discount. Jet’s requires a $30,000 fee for
the first franchise location, a $25,000 fee for the second location, a $20,000 fee for the third
location, and a $15,000 fee for any additional location. If you qualify for the military discount,
Jet’s will require a $15,000 fee for the first franchise location, a $12,500 fee for the second
location, a $10,000 fee for the third location, and a $7,500 fee for any additional location. Jet’s
will grant the right to acquire a minimum of three franchises under an Area Development
Agreement, and the area development fee in this circumstance is $75,000, or $37,500 for
franchisees with the military discount. The area development fee must be paid in full, and is
fully earned, at the time the Area Development Agreement is signed. In general, the area
development fee includes the initial franchise fee for the franchises opened under the Area
Development Agreement, unless a franchisee is opening additional franchises. The area
development fees are not refundable under any circumstances.

Item 6: Other Fees

The following chart summarizes other fees imposed by us under the Franchise Agreement.

Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Royalty Fee - 12% of Acquired Inventory; 15th day of | (Notes 1 and 2) Royalty
All franchisees minimum of $1,200 per month | each month | percentages are lower for
corporate-owned affiliate
locations. Jet’s
corporate-owned affiliates pay
royalty rates ranging from 1%
to 12%. Certain franchises
operating under a prior version
of the franchise agreement may
pay a lower fee.
Fees to the General | Up to 10% of Acquired 15th day of | Up to 10% of Acquired
Advertising Fund Inventory when added to the each month | Inventory when added to the
Technology Fee Technology Fee (Note 1 and 2).
Fees to the Formula to be determined by Weekly Jet’s currently has several
Regional Jet’s; currently regional advertising funds, one
Advertising 25¢ per box purchased for of which you would be
Fund ordinary expenses (for some required to join; each fund
regions) or a weekly flat fee establishes contribution rates,
ranging from $0 to $1,000.00. which are determined by Jet’s
Any additional amounts that and have no maximum; the
Jet’s requires for regional amount you contribute will
advertising initiatives (e.g., tv, count toward the total
social media, digital or radio minimum amount you must
ads). spend on advertising monthly.
| Technology Fee Up to 210% of Acquired 15th day of | Up to 210% of Acquired

| Jet’s Pizza Franchise Disclosure Document 20245

Page 5




Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Inventory when added to the | each month | Inventory when added to the
Fees to the General Fees to the General
Advertising Fund, when Advertising Fund; currently
established by Jet’s not imposed, but can be
imposed on 90 days notice.
(Notes 1, 2 and 8)
Gift Card Program | Currently $2530 - $99 Monthly Subject to increase or decrease
and Loyalty by the outside vendors which
Program administer the Programs. (Note
Administration Fees 9
Audit Cost of audit When billed | Payable only if an audit shows
an underpayment of royalties,
contribution required for
advertising, or any other fees,
of at least 5% of the correct
amount.
Training Fee for $1,000 per person, not Before The initial training of two
Additional Training | including training apparel training persons is included in the initial
(estimated cost of apparel is franchise fee; the training fee
between $100-$200) applies to each additional
person to be trained; the fee is
subject to change at Jet’s
discretion.
Additional Support | $30 per hour plus out-of-pocket | Estimated Jet’s hourly fee is subject to
expenses costs due change at Jet’s discretion.
before
support;
balance due
upon
submission
of invoice
Meetings, (Note 3) Before
Seminars, meeting,
Webinars, and seminar,
Training Programs webinar, or
program
Evaluation Fee $1,000, plus out-of-pocket Fee plus Jet’s will evaluate proposed
(Approval of New | expenses estimated new suppliers. The fee may be
Supplier) costs due paid by you or the proposed
before Jet’s | new supplier. The fee is subject
begins to change periodically by Jet’s.
evaluation;
balance due
upon
submission
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Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
of invoice
Transfer Fee Up to $6,000 Before orat | The fee may be lower
time of depending on the complexity of
transfer the transfer.
Renewal Fee $4,000 Upon Certain franchises operating
renewal under a prior version of the
franchise agreement may pay a
lower fee.
Interest on Late Lower of 1.5% per month or Same as late | If you are an individual, you
Payments maximum rate fee or must sign a business purpose
allowed by law payment on | affidavit. A copy of the current
which it form of affidavit used by Jet’s
accrues is attached as Exhibit |
Administrative Fees | Up to $1,000 for minor Upon certain | (Note 4)
for Certain Defaults | defaults, but up to $30,000 for | defaults
other defaults
Liquidated $43,20.000 Upon (Note 5)
Damages termination
of Franchise
due to your
default
Late Payment Fee 1.5% of the original amount Due Compensates Franchisor for
due, but not paid on time. immediately | increased costs due to the late
upon payment. (Note 4)
missing a
payment due
date.
Indemnification Will vary with circumstances As incurred | (Note 6)
Reimbursement of | Will vary with circumstances Within 15 (Note 7)
Monies Paid on days of
Behalf of request by
Franchisee Jet’s
Notes:
Unless otherwise noted, all fees or its formula is uniformly imposed.
1. “Acquired Inventory” means your cost for all inventory and supplies (including but not

limited to food ingredients, beverages, packages, cups, boxes, napkins, plastic ware, and cleaning
supplies) paid for during the reporting period. Jet’s uses a monthly reporting period but reserves
the right to require payment via pre-authorized electronic bank debit.

2. Except as otherwise noted, all fees are non-refundable and payable to us.

3. To date we have not charged any fees, but we reserve the right to charge a fee for certain
meetings, seminars, webinars, or training programs, and you would be responsible for your own
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costs of attendance at such meetings, including but not limited to travel, meals, and lodging.

4. We may impose reasonable administrative fees of up to $1,000 for certain minor defaults
under the Franchise Agreement. For some more serious defaults, we may impose higher fees: such
as $35,000 for failure to comply timely with renewal conditions, $20,000 for a Disparagement Fee,
and $25,000 in the event of a credit card breach. You must notify Jet’s immediately upon
knowledge of any activity that may trigger the Disparagement Fee. The current schedule of
administrative fees is attached as Schedule 5 to the Franchise Agreement. We may also impose a
10% late payment fee. If you make more than two late payments to us in any 6-month period, we
may require you to deposit with us an amount equal to six times the last overdue payment.

5. If you default and we terminate your franchise, you must pay us within 30 days after the
termination effective date, liquidated damages of $43,200 to us for lost royalties that would have
been paid if the franchise had not been terminated (unless there are less than 36 months remaining
in the term of the Franchise Agreement, in which case the number of months multiplied by $1,200
will equal the liquidated damages). Any liquidated damages we are entitled to only cover damages
from the loss of royalties, and do not cover other damages to which we may be entitled to pursue
from your other actions or inactions.

6. You must indemnify, defend, and hold harmless us, our employees, agents and attorneys,
and other franchisees, their employees, agents and attorneys, against any and all claims, liabilities,
losses, costs, or expenses (including reasonable attorney fees) arising out of your operations or
activities related to the franchise, its ownership of its assets, or its occupation of its premises.

7. You must pay to Jet’s, within 15 days of any written request by Jet’s which is accompanied
by substantiating material, any monies which Jet’s has paid, or has become obligated to pay, on
your behalf.

8. Currently, no Technology Fee is imposed, but Jet’s may institute a Technology Fee upon 90
days written notice to you in an amount up to 2:10% of your Acquired Inventory when added to the

Fees to the General Advertising Fund. (Section 6.8) The Technology Fee shall be used to fund
technology expenditures as determined by Jet’s and may include but are not limited to providing
the Franchise System with general assistance and guidance on Technology Systems,
technology-related matters, researching and developing new technologies such as hardware,
software and cloud-based services, network maintenance and upgrading, website internet/intranet
capabilities and internal and external data storage and archiving.

9. The monthly fees may be increased or decreased in the future to cover administrative costs,
at Jet’s discretion. These fees are currently counted towards your minimum monthly advertising
spending requirements, but Jet’s reserves the right to separate these fees from the minimum
monthly advertising spending requirements and charge the fees in addition to any other fee or
spending requirement.

Iltem 7: Estimated Initial Investment

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
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Item Amount Method of When Due To Whom Paid
Payment
Initial Franchise Fee* $15,000 or Lump sum At signing of Jet’s
$30,000 Franchise
Agreement
Travel and living $9,000 to As incurred During training | Airlines, hotels,
expenses while training $15,000 restaurants, car
rental, etc.
Security deposit (Note 1) | $4,000 to Lump sum Upon signing Landlord
$10,000 lease
Rent - 3 months (Note 1) | $7,500 to Monthly Monthly or Landlord
$20,000 according to
lease
Blueprints $10,000 to Lump sum Before opening | Architect
$15,000
Leasehold improvements | $300,000 to As incurred Before opening | Suppliers,
(Note 2) $400,000 contractors, etc.
Fixtures and equipment $175,000 to Lump sum Before opening | Vendors
$225,000
POS System $20,000 to Lump sum Before opening | Vendors
$30,000
Computer maintenance $1,500 to Lump sum Before opening | Vendors, who
costs $2,000 are not affiliates
Miscellaneous opening $3,000 to As incurred Before opening | Suppliers,
costs (Note 3) $6,000 utility
companies
Opening inventory (Note | $12,000 to Lump sum Before opening | Suppliers and
4) $14,000 including
mandatory
beverages
Insurance (Note 5) $10,000 to Lump sum Before opening Insurance
$16,000 company
Working $60,000 As incurred As incurred Employees,
Capital/Additional funds - Jet’s
3 months (Note 6)
TOTAL (Notes 7,8, &9) | $572,500 to
$786,000

* If the franchisee is at least 20% owned by a person in active duty or who has served in the
military, naval or air service and was not dishonorably discharged, then the Initial Franchise Fee
will be $15,000, reflecting a 50% military discount. Otherwise, the Initial Franchise Fee will be
$30,000.

If you are renewing your franchise, you will not incur most of these costs because your Jet’s
Pizza Franchise is already open. You must, however, make certain modifications and
improvements to your Jet’s Pizza Franchise to meet our current standards. The costs associated

Jet’s Pizza Franchise Disclosure Document 20245 Page 9



will depend on the condition of your Jet’s Pizza Franchise.

Other Notes:

1. This table assumes you will lease space for your Jet’s Pizza franchise. A new Jet’s Pizza
restaurant typically has 1,200 - 1,500 square feet and is located in a strip shopping center in a
heavily populated urban or suburban area. Rent varies widely depending upon local market conditions.
Rent is estimated to be $30,000 to $60,000 per year depending upon factors like the amount of space,
condition, and location of the leased premises, and whether you or your landlord will construct the
interior of the premises. The security deposit is estimated to be one or two months’ rent. Although we
anticipate you will lease space for your Jet’s Pizza franchise, it is possible that you may decide to
buy real estate on which a building suitable for the Jet’s Pizza franchise is already constructed or
could be constructed. Real estate costs depend on several factors, including location, size,
visibility, economic and market conditions, and the type of ownership interest being purchased. As
such, this initial investment table does not reflect the purchase of costs of real estate or of
constructing a building suitable for the Jet’s Pizza franchise.

2. Includes normal costs of installation of utilities and fees for building permits and inspections for
a typical commercial space. This does not include extraordinary costs that may be necessary due to
the age or condition of the building, or for water or sewer taps, which may be necessary in rare
instances. This also does not include fees that may be charged by local government departments
and agencies, which may vary greatly from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. If you, as opposed to
your landlord, bear the cost of your leasehold improvements, the cost will tend toward the
higher end of the range in the table but your rent will tend toward the lower end of the range in the
table; and vice versa if your landlord bears the cost of your leasehold improvements.

3. Includes utility deposits and utility costs during improvements, the cost of organizing your
business, sales tax license and health department certification.

4. Opening inventory includes all of your opening inventory and supplies, including food
ingredients, beverages, packages, cups, boxes, napkins, plastic ware and cleaning supplies.

5. Includes worker’s compensation, personal property and public liability insurance, and
delivery and non-owned automobile insurance to cover employee vehicles used to pick up supplies
and deliver food. This figure represents the estimated cost for three months of coverage.

6. This includes estimated payroll costs, royalty fees, advertising, and assumes a typical
level of income, for the initial three months of business. These figures are estimates and Jet’s
cannot guarantee that you will not have additional expenses or a lower level of income in starting
the business. Your costs will depend on factors like how much you follow Jet’s methods and
procedures, your management skill, experience and business acumen, local economic conditions, the
local market for our product, the prevailing wage rate, the level of competition, and the sales level
reached during the initial period. We relied upon our previous experience with our affiliated
Restaurants as well as those franchisees who informed us of their experiences. These estimates
involve Restaurants which follow our grand opening and marketing plans.

Item 8: Restrictions on Sources of Products and Services

You must purchase all of your leasehold improvements, furniture, furnishings, fixtures, and
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equipment (including pizza ovens, mixer, walk-in coolers, electronic cash register, computer
hardware and software, preparation tables and utensils, and signs), inventory (food ingredients as well
as packaging and paper products) and supplies (including advertising materials) according to
specifications set by Jet’s and from approved suppliers. See Item 11 for more detail regarding
required computer hardware and software. We have total discretion to limit the suppliers with
whom you deal with respect to your Jet’s Pizza Franchise. We restrict your sources to protect our
trade secrets, assure quality and a reliable source of products meeting our standards. You must
purchase the signs that you will need for your Restaurant from an approved supplier.

Currently, Jet’s sole supplier for soda and other drinks available for purchase in stores or online is
PepsiCo (“Pepsi”). Jet’s also utilizes Zimmerman Advertising LLC (“Zimmerman”), a marketing
agency, as its provider of nationwide marketing and advertising services. Jet’s reserves the right to
change either of these suppliers for any reason at any time.

Jet’s gift card program is exclusively administered and processed by Valuetec Card Solutions, LLC.

We will require you to purchase certain items in the Technology System (defined in Item 11) from
supplier(s) approved or designated by us. This designation may include the manufacturer or
developer as well as the model number or other similar designation. If we name a designated
supplier(s) for certain Technology System items, alternate suppliers will not be acceptable. We
require you to use our approved suppliers for a Technology System which provides online ordering
services to customers.

Neither Jet’s nor any of its affiliates is currently an approved supplier of any items, but Jet’s
reserves the right to do so in the future. No officer of Jet’s owns any interest in an approved
supplier.

Franchisees may only utilize suppliers that have been approved by Jet’s, in Jet’s sole discretion.

Franchisor will only consider approving additional or new suppliers in unusual circumstances, at the
sole cost of the requesting franchisee, regardless of whether or not the proposed supplier is approved.
In order to petition Jet’s for approval of a new supplier, you and the proposed new supplier must
execute an Application for Approval of Supplier, which lists general standards for suppliers.
Depending upon the goods or services for which approval is requested, there may be additional
criteria or specifications which will be made available to the proposed new supplier. The proposed
new supplier will have to execute a confidentiality agreement and provide Jet’s with appropriate
information and samples for testing. You or the proposed new supplier will have to pay an evaluation
fee (see Item 6) to Jet’s and reimburse Jet’s for any out-of-pocket costs. Jet’s current evaluation fee
is $1,000, but is subject to change. Jet’s review will typically take no more than 60 days. Supplier
approval depends on a number of factors, including product or service quality, reliability, standards,
financial capability, and customer relations. Moreover, approval of a new supplier may be conditioned
upon its agreement to pay rebates (see below regarding usage of supplier rebates), and its execution of a
supply agreement with terms and conditions required by Jet’s. Upon approval of a new supplier as to
specified goods or services, you may immediately begin to purchase the goods or services from the
new supplier. A supplier’s approved status may be revoked for any breach or failure to fulfill our
supplier standards or criteria or our specifications for particular goods or services. We have no
obligation to approve any request for a new supplier or service. Jet’s supplier standards, supplier
approval and its criteria and specifications for goods and services may be changed from time to time
by Jet’s, subject to its sole discretion. Such changes may result in additional cost to you.
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As described in Item 6, Jet’s charges royalty fees to franchisees based on the percentage of
Acquired Inventory (inventory and supplies) that the franchisees purchased from suppliers.
According to our audited financial statements, in 20234, Jet’s total revenue was
$27.831:28830,792,504.00 which included $13,172,9528,047.00 of royalty revenue (based on
Acquired Inventory purchases) and $579;213445,334.00 of franchise fees and other revenue.
Accordingly, 428643y of Jet’s total revenues was derived from franchisees’ purchases of Acquired
Inventory.

Jet’s earns rebates from suppliers based on the volume of purchases by franchised locations. In
20234, Jet’s earned $4,670,6437.3:483 through rebates, which represents approximately 15-7+%
Jet’s total revenues in 20234.

Jet’s negotiates with some suppliers to obtain the lowest possible cost for purchases by franchisees
and may negotiate to receive rebates from suppliers. Supplier rebates will in all cases be applied to
benefit franchisees generally. Supplier rebates are currently being allocated to JAI Productions, Inc.
for advertising and marketing purposes that promote the Franchise System. Jet’s reserves the right
to change how supplier rebates are handled.

Within 10 days after your location has been selected, approved, and secured by lease or purchase,
Jet’s will provide you with its specifications and list of approved suppliers. These required
purchases will represent about 100% of the costs you will incur to open the restaurant for business,
and about 45% of your expenses on an ongoing basis. There are no purchasing or distribution
cooperatives. We do not provide material benefits to a franchisee based on its purchase of
particular products or services, or the use of particular suppliers.

If you occupy the Location under a lease, you must ensure that Schedule 4 to the Franchise
Agreement, the Standard Lease Rider, has been entered into by all parties, and a new Standard
Lease Rider is executed upon any changes to, or assignments of, the lease. Jet’s may require that
you provide Jet’s with a copy of the lease agreement for its written approval. Our approval is not an
endorsement of the legal or business terms of the lease. We can require, as a condition of our
approval, that the lease contain certain terms and conditions.

You must maintain a competent and conscientious staff who have been trained in product
preparation and general business operations in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Jet’s
Operations Manual, and who meet required governmental health and employment standards.

You must participate in any promotional programs (including physical or electronic gift card
programs and/or loyalty programs) implemented by us, at your sole cost and expense, from time to
time. This may include offering rebates, giveaways, delivery services, products and other
promotional items related to such programs. In addition, it includes your obligation, at your sole
cost and expense, to lease or otherwise procure any software, hardware or other items needed to
participate in such promotional programs, and in compliance with the requirements as may be set
forth in the Operations Manual and from our designated supplier(s). The Operations Manual will
establish any and all rules, guidelines, standards and specifications for these programs. However,
you must not create or participate in any loyalty programs not authorized by us in writing.

Currently, we operate a customer loyalty program called Jet’s Rewards. Under the Jet’s Rewards
Program, customers can earn points each time they make a purchase. The accrued points can then
be redeemed by the customer for free items or delivery service for subsequent purchases, which
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items and delivery services you will be required to provide at your sole cost and expense.

You must also comply with the restrictions imposed on your advertising as set forth in Section 7 of
the Franchise Agreement, including online advertising as set forth in Section 7.6 of the Franchise
Agreement.

Item 9: Franchisee’s Obligations

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will
help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in
other items of this Disclosure Document.

Section(s) of Section(s) of Disclosure
Obligation Franchise Area Document
Agreement Development Item(s)
Agreement
a.  Site selection and acquisition/lease 2.2 2.2 2.1, 3
b.  Pre-opening purchases/leases 5 Not Applicable | 7, 8
c. Site development and other pre-opening |5 2.2,2.7,2.8 6,7,8, 11
requirements
d. Initial and ongoing training 5.4,6.4 N/A 6, 11
e.  Opening 5.7,5.8 N/A 11
f.  Fees 4,5.1,5.4, 23,24 5,6
6.5,6.7,7,
8.4,13.2,
14.2, 15.3,
15.4,
Schedule 1,
Schedule 5
g. Compliance with standards and 2.2,5,6,8 2.7,3,4 11
policies/operating manual
h.  Trademarks and proprietary information | 6, 10, 11 4 13,14
i.  Restrictions on products/services offered | 6.5 2.7,4.2,5 16
J.  Warranty and customer service 6.1, 6.5 Not Applicable | Not Applicable
requirements
k.  Territorial development and sales quotas | N/A 2.2 Not Applicable
I.  Ongoing product/service purchases 6.5, 6.7 Not Applicable | 8
m. Maintenance, appearance and 6.1, 6.5, 6.7 Not Applicable | 11
remodeling requirements
n. Insurance 9 Not Applicable | 7
0. Advertising 6.6, 7 Not Applicable | 6, 11
p. Indemnification 9.5 Not Applicable | Not Applicable
g. Owner’s participation/management/ 54,9 Not Applicable | 11, 15
staffing
r.  Records and reports 54,6.4,8 Not Applicable | 11
s.  Inspections and audits 8 Not Applicable | 6
t.  Transfer 8.7-9, 13, 6.2 17
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Section(s) of Section(s) of Disclosure
. . Area
Obligation Franchise Document
Development
Agreement Item(s)
Agreement
15.7
u. Renewal 3 Not Applicable | 17
v.  Post-termination obligations 15.2, 15.6, 5 17
15.7
w. Non-competition covenants 12 5 17
X.  Dispute resolution 18.3-8 8.3 17
y.  Promotional Programs 6.5,6.7, 7.8 Not Applicable | 8,9, 11
z.  Reimbursement of Monies paid on 4.6 Not Applicable | 6,9
behalf of Franchisee
aa. Employee Policy 6.3 Not Applicable | 8, 9
bb. Websites; Domain Names; Electronic 6.6 Not Applicable | 8,9, 11
Marketing

Item 10:_Financing
We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your note, lease or obligation.

Item 11: Franchisor’s Assistance, Advertising, Computer Systems, and Training

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

The following applies with respect to each Franchise Agreement, whether signed as a
“stand-alone” agreement or under an Area Development Agreement.

Pre-Opening Obligations

We will provide you with our site selection criteria for your Jet’s Pizza Franchise, and upon your
finding a suitable location which meets the site selection criteria to our satisfaction, approve your
location. Jet’s does not engage in the practice of owning premises and leasing them to franchisees.
Jet’s does not provide assistance with conforming the premises to local ordinances and building
codes and obtaining any required permits. If requested, we may use reasonable efforts to help you
analyze potential sites and determine site feasibility. It is your responsibility to locate a Jet’s Pizza
Franchise site that satisfies our site selection criteria. Factors Jet’s would typically consider in
approving a site include demographic information, pedestrian and automobile traffic patterns, the
presence of competitive or complementary businesses in the area, conditions of the local economy,
viability of the store, availability of parking and zoning requirements. You are encouraged to
engage your own expert to assist in site selection. Jet’s has 21 days after request for approval by a
franchisee to approve or disapprove a proposed location in its sole discretion. (Section 2.2(a)) Once
your location has been determined, your territory and advertising territory will encompass an area
with a radius of one and one-half (1%2) miles from the location, except that in New York City, New
York, ane-Chicago, lllinois, or any other city having a population of over one million people, the
radius of the territory is one-quarter (¥2) of a mile. (Sections 2.2(d) and 7.1) You are encouraged to
engage your own expert, such as a lawyer, to assist in lease negotiations. (Section 2.2(c)) If you are
unable to locate a site that is acceptable to us and secure it with a lease within 90 days, or if your
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restaurant is not ready to open for business within twelve months, after the Franchise Agreement is
signed, Jet’s may cancel the Franchise Agreement by written notice to you. (Section 5.5)

We will provide you with specifications for leasehold improvements, fixtures, equipment,
furniture, furnishings, and sample layouts of the design of the restaurant, and a list of approved
suppliers for these items. (Sections 5.2, 5.3, 6.5) Jet’s must approve the blueprints for the
construction or remodeling of your restaurant, and once construction or remodeling is complete,
Jet’s must inspect and approve your restaurant for conformance with the blueprints and Jet’s
specifications. (Section 5.3). Jet’s does not provide assistance with constructing, remodeling, or
decorating the premises.

We will specify approved and mandatory menu items, and will provide you with instructions for
their preparation. (Section 6.5)

We will provide you with an electronic copy of the Jet’s Pizza Operations Manual. (Section 5.6)

Jet’s does not provide assistance with hiring. We will train two restaurant managers. (Section 5.4)
There is no fee for two persons to participate in the initial training program; this is included in the
initial franchise fee. However, training apparel is not included and will not be provided, and any
additional training requirements will be subject to fees. You must also pay and arrange for lodging,
food, and transportation.

The above-listed services may be provided by a third-party agent appointed by us.

We estimate it will be eight to twelve months after you sign the Franchise Agreement and pay the
initial franchise fee before you open the Restaurant, but the timeframe could be longer depending
on your diligence in the site selection and leasing processes and factors such as the existing market
conditions, securing building permits and zoning approvals, and construction delays.

Continuing Obligations

Jet’s will provide a representative to assist you at your restaurant — at a minimum — approximately
eight hours per day for three days at a time scheduled by you and Jet’s, but not later than the grand
opening of your restaurant. Jet’s marketing and support program for out-of- state franchises in new
market areas is under constant review and development.

Jet’s may, in its sole discretion, provide ongoing support and consultation concerning the
operations of the restaurant, via personal visits, telephone, mail, computer or other means of
communication. (Section 6.4)

Upon request, Jet’s will train a replacement manager if one of your trained managers quits or is
terminated. You must pay Jet’s the current fee for the training program. (Section 5.4)

Subject to the availability of qualified personnel, Jet’s may provide, in its sole discretion,
additional support and training for an hourly fee plus reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses.
The current hourly fee is $30 per hour, but is subject to change. Two persons must be trained at all
times at each location. (Section 6.4)

Jet’s may hold meetings, seminars, webinars, or training programs for franchisees, may designate
certain meetings, seminars, webinars, or programs as mandatory, and although it has never done so
to date, may charge a fee for any meetings, seminar, webinar, or program. (Section 6.4) You must
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pay for your own costs of attending any meeting, seminar, webinar or program, including travel,
meals and lodging.

In the State of Tennessee, the above-listed services may be provided by a third-party agent
appointed by us.

Jet’s Advertising Program

You must spend a minimum per month of $3,800 on your own local advertising initiatives and for
contributions required by any regional advertising fund. In addition, you are required to pay the
General Advertising Fee. (Section 7.2, Schedule 7.3 and Schedule 1)

All advertising materials, whether written or electronic, are subject to the prior written approval of
Jet’s. Advertising materials includes, but is not limited to, video, applications, email, or any other
form of media intended for the general public. All forms of advertising must be submitted to Jet’s
for approval via email to approvals@jetspizza.com. We request up to three business days to review
and provide feedback and/or approval. If you advertise with a new vendor, that vendor must
complete and sign a Limited License Agreement in order to use our trademarks, logos, etc.

You may advertise only in your own advertising territory, subject to restrictions and guidelines we
may impose periodically. If another franchisee is in close proximity, you must use reasonable
efforts to coordinate the advertising with the other franchisee, or to conduct joint advertising. We
may prescribe measures to limit any adverse impact upon other franchisees or the franchise system
as a whole, such as requiring a prominent notice on printed material to the following effect:
“GOOD ONLY AT XYZ LOCATION.”

We are not obligated to spend any amounts on advertising in your area or territory, or to make
expenditures for franchisees which are equivalent or proportionate to the franchisee’s contribution,
or to ensure that any particular franchisee benefits directly or pro rata from the advertising or
promotion conducted by us, or to conduct any other advertising for the franchise system.

The Franchise Agreement appoints the Franchisor to make advertising decisions for your benefit
with respect to monies allocated to the General Advertising Fund, including the power to negotiate
arrangements with advertising agencies and to authorize the expenditure of funds held by the
General Advertising Fund to pay for third party advertising services and marketing campaigns. The
amounts contributed to the General Advertising Fund are made for advertising services and
marketing campaigns that benefit you; the General Advertising Fund holds the funds received and
serves as a conduit to pay the Franchisor and other third parties who will provide the actual
services that benefit franchisees. There currently is no advertising council composed of franchisees
that advises us on advertising policies.

General Advertising Fund. Although not currently required of franchisees, you may be required in
the future to contribute to the General Advertising Fund. (Section 7.3)

Under your Franchise Agreement, you are required to contribute an amount, when combined with

the Technology Fee, of up to 10% of your Acquired Inventory to the General Advertising Fund.
Our affiliates who operate Jet’s Pizza franchises are also required to contribute on the same basis
as all other Restaurants.

Jet’s may use monies in the General Advertising Fund only for advertising and promotional
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expenses, including production, administrative costs, social media, advertising agency fees, and IT
programs and enhancements facilitating ordering, sales and promotions. Jet’s may also use the
General Advertising Fund for media costs only if reasonably intended to benefit Jet’s Pizza
restaurants and the Franchise System generally, such as a national radio or television advertising
program.

The General Advertising Fund must be used for advertising and promotional expenditures directed
primarily at customers of one or more Jet’s Pizza restaurants. Jet’s may not use the General
Advertising Fund for any advertising activities directed primarily at prospective franchisees.

We maintain the General Advertising Fund monies in an account separate from our monies and
will not use them to defray our expenses, except for such reasonable costs and overhead as we may
incur in activities reasonably related to the administration of the General Advertising Fund and
direction of advertising programs, including costs of personnel (inhouse or third parties) for
creating and/or implementing advertising, promotional, and marketing programs, and as described
in this disclosure document. Any monies collected by the General Advertising Fund, and any
earnings on them, will not otherwise inure to our benefit. We anticipate spending all the General
Advertising Fund monies during the year within which the contributions are made. If, however,
excess amounts remain at the end of the year, we anticipate that all expenditures in the following
year will be made first out of accumulated earnings from the previous year, next out of earnings in
the current year, and, finally, from current contributions. If there is a deficit at the end of the year,
we will apply receipts in the following year to the deficit until it has been eliminated.

We prepare an annual financial statement of the General Advertising Fund using generally
accepted accounting principles and will make it available to you. The General Advertising Fund’s
books and records are audited annually and we will also make the audit report available to you.
You may review a copy of the financial statement and/or the audit report at our office upon
reasonable request.

In 20234, the General Advertising Fund’s expenses were as follows: 61-089.8% fer-media costs;-
335, 8.2% for production costs;, £0.17% Ssponsorship;, 1.73%%-fer- administrative costs;-ane-less-
a a 0 9 A ‘ala i i i el vEalsala an alaya a Q 1 aYal 1 Q

Regional Advertising Funds. Jet’s may, from time to time, in its discretion, establish a regional
advertising program in a geographical region established by Jet’s, which may be a designated
marketing area (“DMA”) or other area when it determines there are enough Jet’s Pizza restaurants
in an area to realize economies of scale for marketing and advertising or other purposes. (Section
7.4)

Jet’s currently has nineteen regional funds. Jet’s has the discretion to determine the boundaries of
the region, and may change the boundaries periodically, merge two or more regions into a single
region, or split a region into multiple regions. All Restaurants located in a region for which a
regional advertising fund is established, including those owned by affiliates who operate Jet’s
Pizza franchises, must participate in and contribute to the applicable regional advertising
fund. Jet’s establishes a contribution formula for each regional advertising fund, which shall apply
uniformly to all Jet’s Pizza restaurants in the region.

Your payments to a regional advertising fund will apply toward your obligation to spend a
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minimum of $3,800 per month on advertising. Jet’s currently engages Zimmerman to provide
advertising and marketing services, and Zimmerman is paid through the regional fund
contributions. Currently, the contribution formula in each regional advertising fund is 25¢ per box
sold or a weekly contribution ranging from $0 to $1,000.00. The contribution for each advertising
region is set forth in Schedule 1 (Fees).

The legal structure of a regional advertising funds is at the discretion of Jet’s, and may include a
corporation, cooperative or unincorporated association. Currently, the regional advertising funds
are unincorporated nonprofit associations. Each of the regional advertising funds is governed by a
board of directors appointed by Jet’s, and Jet’s administers each regional advertising fund. Each
regional advertising fund conducts its operations based on its written governing document or
bylaws, which are available for you to review. Regardless of the type of entity or future changes in
the structure of a regional advertising fund, the structure would contemplate an opportunity to
participate in decision-making by franchisee representatives regarding advertising matters and the
expenditure of funds.

All funds from the regional advertising funds are used for advertising intended for the primary
benefit of Jet’s Pizza restaurants located in the contributing regions. Jet’s may not use any regional
advertising funds for any advertising activities directed primarily at prospective franchisees. Upon
request, Jet’s or the regional advertising program will provide financial statements to its
franchisees at least annually, which are available for you to review. These statements are not

required to be audited. —During—the—mest—recent—Fiscalyear—funds—nJet’s utilizes multiple
advertising channels to drive sales at the regional advertising—funds—were-spent-as—foHeows:level

including digital, print, and linear television.

=pensettens Heccentace
: Mail Advert] 200
TV-Advertisements 39%
Digital 21%
100%

uses an advertlsmg agency to help
develop its advertising materlals Jet’s reserves the right to change the advertising agency or to stop
using an agency. Jet’s also uses an agency for internet advertising and electronic marketing
mediums. You may not utilize any such electronic marketing mediums, or engage or hire any
advertising agency or social media company, without Jet’s prior written authorization.
Authorization is subject to change per Jet’s discretion. Jet’s has the right to require you to
participate in any such electronic marketing mediums. (Section 6.6)

Jet’s may implement certain promotional programs (including gift card programs and/or loyalty
programs) for its franchisees. You must participate in and act in accordance with any such policies
or procedures prescribed by Jet’s for such promotional programs. (Section 7.8)

Jet’s negotiates for rebates from its suppliers. All rebates are collected by JAI Productions, Inc. and
used for marketing and advertising purposes to promote the Franchise System. Jet’s reserves the
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right to change the use of the rebates.

Gift Card Program

You are also required to participate in the gift card program administered by the Franchisor under
an exclusive services agreement with Valutec Card Solutions, LLC, a third-party gift card issuer.
The "Gift Card" is an electronic cash card available for purchase and redemption at any Jet’s Pizza
Restaurant, including yours, for use as a gift certificate or other purchase credit purposes for food
and beverage purchases. Customers may also increase or replenish balances available on the Gift
Card. Customers may redeem the balance (or any portion thereof) on the Gift Card for food and
beverage purchases. To defray the expenses of administering the Gift Card program, your
Restaurant may be charged a setup fee of $99, a monthly flat fee of $2530 plus additional
transaction-based fees, which fees may be increased or decreased in the future, at the Franchisor’s
discretion. This fee is currently counted towards your minimum monthly advertising spending
requirements, but Franchisor reserves the right to separate this fee from the advertising spending
requirement and charge the fee in addition to any other fee or spending requirement. The funds
collected by the Franchisor for the Gift Card program, and any earnings, are not and will not be, an
asset of us or any franchisee. All assets and earnings of the Gift Card program will be applied to
administer the Gift Card program, including production and distribution of the Gift Cards,
promoting the program to consumers and processing transactions. The Operations Manual will
establish any and all rules, guidelines, standards and specifications for this program.

Technology Requirements

We have the right to specify or require that you purchase, lease and use certain vendors, brands,
types, makes, and/or models of commercial grade communications equipment, routers, computer
systems, Internet-connected devices, and other hardware, including: (a) a point of sale (“POS”)
computer system; (b) video or security system; (c) other electronic system, device, product or
service, (d) computers, equipment, hardware, software, cloud-based services; (€) communication
devices and tablets; (f) internet service providers and connections, (g) online ordering systems or
services (which permits customers to place, track or pay for orders using the Internet or other
electronic media) payment processing systems; (g) high speed broadband connectivity, high speed
broadband monitoring, methods and means of encryption and access to Franchisor’s network
resources, and (h) other brand technology and peripheral devices as Franchisor may specify, update
or modify from time to time in the Operations Manual (collectively, the “Technology System”).
Upon your request we will provide you with current information regarding our approved providers.

The initial cost to purchase a POS computer system ranges from $20,000 to $30,000 per
Restaurant. You will be required to install the POS System we designate. The currently designated
POS system includes various computer hardware and software components and programs,
including terminals, communication software, monitors, printers, and payment processing software
which records and reports all sales, payments, discounts, inventories, purchases, and accounting
data. You must also have a functioning email address so that we can send you notices and other
electronic communications. It is your responsibility to ensure you have proper security applications
and controls in place that include but are not limited to anti-virus software and complex passwords
for logon accounts. Due to rapidly advancing technology, there may be additional costs to update
or replace such POS computer system going forward, as may be determined by Jet’s or the
franchisee. Jet’s reserves the right to require you to replace your POS computer system as
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frequently as every three years and update your POS computer system as often as needed, in Jet’s
sole discretion.

Jet’s may require a franchisee to purchase new equipment or otherwise remodel its Restaurant to
comply with changes in the franchise system, which may include requirements to upgrade or
update your computer system. There is no contractual limitation on the frequency or cost of doing
so, but in no event will you be required to comply with any changes more than once per year.
(Section 6.5(c)(ii))

It is mandatory for you to keep your Technology System in good maintenance and repair, and to
purchase support or maintenance contracts on your system. A typical support contract with supplier
for maintenance, updating, support and software upgrades can range in cost from $1,500 to $4,500
per year.

We also have the right at any time to independently retrieve and/or remove and use data and
information that we deem necessary or desirable from your Technology System. There are no
contractual limitations on our right to access the information and data. All data provided by you,
uploaded to our system from your system, and/or downloaded from your system to our system, is
owned exclusively by the Franchisor, and we will have the right to use the data in any manner that
we deem appropriate without compensating you. In addition, all other data that you create or
collect in connection with the Technology System, or in connection with operation of the
Restaurant (including consumer and transaction data), is and will be owned exclusively by the
Franchisor during the term of, and following termination or expiration of, the Franchise
Agreement. You must provide copies and/or originals of such data to us upon request. We may
license use of such data back to you solely for the term of the Franchise Agreement and solely for
your use in connection with the establishment and operation of the Restaurant. You are responsible
for safeguarding any and all data licensed back to you.

You must abide by all privacy and data protection laws pertaining to the collection, use,
processing, integrity, security, transfer of, consumer access to, correction of, and deletion of
personally identifiable information. You must ensure that any personally identifiable information is
collected only with express or implied consent of the data subject and that all data to be shared
with or transferred to the Franchisor has been collected in compliance with a privacy policy that
allows such sharing or transfer.

We specifically require that you implement the most recent security requirements that the PCI
Security Standards Council, LLC or its successor requires of a merchant that accepts payment by
credit and/or debit cards or other mobile payment methods (the Payment Card Industry Data
Security Standards or “PCI/DSS”). The PCI/DSS may require you to purchase a firewall or other
new hardware and to have an independent third party conduct a PCI/DSS audit as and when
required by the standards. You must use our approved vendors for PCI/DSS audits. The PCI
Security Standards Council, LLC or its successor may revise the PCI/DSS standards at any time;
we do not have control over the timing or substance of any changes. Compliance with PCI/DSS is a
minimum requirement of your franchise and does not guarantee that no security breach will occur.

You must upgrade the POS System or other Technology System item as designated by us from
time to time. We may require you to replace the POS System or other Technology System every 3
years. We will require you to update or replace software or cloud-based services used by the POS
System or other Technology System as directed by us, which may be on a more frequent basis than
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every 3 years. Although we cannot estimate the future costs of any Technology System item or
required service or support, you must incur the costs of obtaining such Technology System item
(and additions and modifications) and required service or support. Within 90 days after we deliver
notice to you, you must obtain Technology System components we designate and ensure that your
Technology System, as modified, is functioning properly.

In the event that Jet’s requires you to obtain, install, and operate a video or security camera system
in your restaurant, Jet’s reserves the right to access such footage if it should so decide.

Technology Fee. Jet’s may institute a Technology Fee upon 90 days written notice to you in an
amount up to 2:10% of your Acquired Inventory when added to the Fees to the General Advertising

Fund. (Section 6.8) The Technology Fee shall be used to fund technology expenditures as
determined by Jet’s and may include but are not limited to providing the Franchise System with
general assistance and guidance on Technology Systems, technology-related matters, researching
and developing new technologies such as hardware, software and cloud-based services, network
maintenance and upgrading, website internet/intranet capabilities and internal and external data
storage and archiving. Whether or not we collect the Technology Fee from you, you are required
(and the Technology Fee does not cover) the amounts you will need to spend on Technology
Systems, which are in addition to the Technology Fee. Jet’s shall have complete discretion as to the
use and allocation of the amounts collected from Technology Fee payments, which may be used for
payment of salaries, wages and benefits, direct program costs and/or overhead expenses related to
the above-described activities. With respect to the collection, use or expenditure of the Technology
Fee, Jet’s has no obligation to: (i) do so from you or any other franchisee; (ii) ensure equivalent or
proportionate collection, use or expenditures; (iii) ensure that you or your Restaurant benefits
directly, pro rata or at all from the Technology Fee; or (iv) provide an accounting to you or any
franchisee.

Operations Manual.

Jet’s will provide you with an electronic copy of the Jet’s Pizza Operations Manual or other
manuals, bulletins, policy statements or similar announcements. (Section 5.6) From time to time,
Jet’s, in its sole discretion, may revise the Operations Manual through written communications sent
to its franchisees. In case there is a dispute over its content, our master copy of the Operations
Manual controls. A copy of the table of contents from the current Jet’s Pizza Operations Manual is
attached as Exhibit C. The Operations Manual contains approximately 217 pages. The number of
pages devoted to each subject is as follows: Preface (1); Jet’s Pizza Mission Statement and
Guiding Principles (1); Terms and Definitions (1); Trademarks (2); Policy Against Disparagement
and Unauthorized Use or Display of Brand and Marks (2); Pre-Opening General Considerations
(2);Insurance (2); Pre-Opening Purchases (2); Inventory (2); Training and Support (2); Advertising
(2); Restaurant Operations (5); Charges and Discounts (2); Cleaning (3); Inspections (2); Customer
Satisfaction (2); Safety and Health Concerns (4); Management (11); Security (3); Default and
Remedies (2); Miscellaneous (1). Appendices, including recipes, food preparation instructions, etc.
(154).

Training Program

The initial training program through Jet’s Pizza University begins with training in a classroom
setting, followed by full-time, hands-on, on-the-job training at one or more Restaurants operated by
Jet’s or an affiliate, as well as online video lessons. Training is conducted six days per week for six
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consecutive weeks, for a total of three hundred hours in the store. We conduct our initial training
program approximately 5 times a year (or more frequently, if needed). Currently, all training
(including training of franchisees located outside of Michigan) will be conducted at one of our
affiliate locations in Michigan, unless Jet’s is able to organize an alternative location in a more
convenient place. Jet’s will select the Restaurants at which training will take place. Training
materials include video lessons, excerpts from the Operations Manual and food preparation cards.
Most of the trainers and business coaches providing training have been with the company for 3 or
more years. A representative of Jet’s is primarily in charge of overseeing the training program. Two
persons must complete the training program satisfactorily to Jet’s by the time your restaurant is
ready to open for business, but no later than within nine (9) months after the date of your Franchise
Agreement, or Jet’s may cancel your franchise. If you wish additional persons to be trained, you
must pay a training fee, which is currently $1,000 per person, as stated in Item 6. You must pay for
all travel, meals, lodging and other expenses you may incur in attending training. We currently do
not require any additional training, yet reserve the right to require such additional training.

TRAINING PROGRAM

Subject Hours of Classroom Hours of On the Location
Training* Job Training*

Dough Counts 2 25 See below
Preparation of dough 2 60 See below
Prep List Inventory 1 10 See below
Prep Work (vegetables, 2 15 See below
cheese, sauce, toppings,
bread, etc.)
POS computer 4 30 See below
(Phones/order taking,
Register position)
Salads 1 15 See below
Make Line (lead, sauce, 3 70 See below
cheese, top, oven time)
Cut Side (cut and box, 2 50 See below
wings, topping products,
etc.)
Scheduling 1 10 See below
Monthly Inventory 1 5 See below
Food Ordering 1 8 See below

*These hours are estimates; actual training time per topic may vary.

Throughout the term of your Franchise Agreement, you or a principal or an individual you
designate, at your expense, are required to attend all meetings, seminars and conferences we may
specify as mandatory, including regional and national meetings, meetings related to new
products or product preparation procedures, new Franchise System programs, new operations
procedures or programs, training, restaurant management, financial management, sales or sales
promotion, or similar topics and annual conferences. We will specify, from time to time, whether
your attendance at such meetings, seminars and conferences must be in person or via
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videoconference or other means.

Item 12:_Territory

The Franchise Agreement grants you the right to operate the Restaurant only at the Location
approved by the Franchisor in its sole discretion (the “Location”). If, at the time of the signing the
Agreement, we have not approved a Location for the Restaurant, you must propose a location for
approval by the Franchisor.

Once your Location has been selected and approved by Jet’s, Jet’s will designate your territory and
your advertising territory in the Franchise Agreement, which will be a one and one-half (1%2) mile
radius from the Location, unless the Location is within any of the five boroughs of the City of New
York, New York, e—Chicago, Illinois, or any other major city having a population of over one

million people, in which case the radius will be one-quarter (¥4) of a mile from the Location.

You may not relocate from the Location without our prior written approval. Any relocation will be
at your sole expense. The decision of the Franchisor as to whether to approve your request to
relocate from your Location is in our sole discretion. In determining whether to consent to a
relocation of your restaurant, we consider the same factors as we would in approving an initial
restaurant location, as well as trying to keep the same territory and not violating other franchisees’
territories. Moreover, except as may be set forth in and Area Development Agreement signed by us
and you (as described below), we have no obligation to approve any additional franchised outlets
for you, and you have no options, rights of first refusal or other rights to acquire any additional
franchises.

You will have limited rights within your defined territory, which include the right to (i) operate in
your defined territory, (ii) advertise in your defined advertising territory, (iii) accept pick-up orders
from inside or outside your territory (except for special events), (iv) accept delivery orders from
inside your territory, and (v) accept delivery orders from outside your territory (subject to
restrictions imposed by Jet’s from time to time).

Your territory is not exclusive, because your territory does not give you any exclusivity with respect
to customers located in the territory or elsewhere, and because we retain rights to Non-Traditional
Restaurants as described below. Because your territory is not exclusive, we are required to include
the following statement: “You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition
from other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or
competitive brands that we control.” We and our affiliates retain the right to own, acquire, establish
and/or operate, and franchise or otherwise license others to establish and operate “Non-Traditional
Restaurants™ inside your territory, which are defined as food trucks and other mobile units and in
arenas, sports stadiums, sports complexes, shopping malls, food courts, department stores, retail
and convenience stores, gas stations, hotels, casinos, amusement parks, arcades, theaters, bowling
centers, festivals, fairs, schools, colleges, national parks, state and local parks, public beaches,
convention centers, conference centers, factories, hospitals, penal institutions, airports, train
stations, public transit stations, cruise ship ports, turnpikes, military bases, government buildings,
school buildings and grounds, office complexes, high-rise apartment buildings, senior living
facilities, Indian reservations, and other premises where the primary activity conducted at the
premises is other than the retail sale of food prepared for immediate consumption. In addition,
Franchisor reserves the right to supply “Special Events” in your territory, which are defined as
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banquets, receptions, picnics, parties, fairs, sporting events, or other events where the volume of the
order may be beyond Franchisee’s normal capacity. Jet’s has no obligation to pay you any
consideration in the event that Jet’s establishes a Non-Traditional Restaurant or handles a Special
Event in your territory.

As long as you are not in default under your Franchise Agreement, we will not operate or grant a
franchise to any other person or entity to operate a Restaurant within your territory, except for
Non-Traditional Restaurants as described above.

Your rights within your territory are not subject to achieving or maintaining a certain sales volume,
market penetration or other performance-based factor, and once determined, Jet’s has no right to
alter the boundaries of your territory during the initial and first renewal term of the Franchise
Agreement.

Jet’s may impose restrictions upon advertising activities, such as to coordinate advertising activities
with other franchisees in nearby territories. Jet’s may also impose restrictions upon accepting
delivery orders from outside your territory, such as to minimize interference with the territories of
other franchisees, or to ensure the quality of the pizza or other food being delivered, which Jet’s
reserves the right to determine and decide in its sole discretion. Other than special events, as
discussed below, there is no restriction on accepting pick-up orders from outside of your territory.

Except as described in this disclosure document, we have not established, and, as of the issuance
date of this disclosure document, do not intend to establish, other franchised or company-owned
Restaurants that provide similar products or services under different proprietary marks, but we
reserve the right to do so in the future.

Under an Area Development Agreement, you would have the right and obligation to develop a
certain number of Jet’s franchise restaurants within a defined Area Development Territory
according to a pre-determined development schedule, as outlined in the terms of an Area
Development Agreement. So long as you satisfy your obligations under the Area Development
Agreement and applicable Franchise Agreement, Jet’s will not establish, operate, or license anyone
else to own or operate, a Jet’s franchise restaurant in the Area Development Territory throughout
the term of the Area Development Agreement. For each franchise acquired under an Area
Development Agreement, you must sign a separate Franchise Agreement and any related
agreements or documents on Franchisor’s then-current standard forms. You may not develop or
operate Jet’s franchise restaurants outside the defined territory. Jet’s may terminate the Area
Development Agreement if you do not satisfy your development obligations as required.

Jet’s reserves all rights not specifically granted to you, including but not limited to: (a) to open,
operate and license others to own and operate restaurants, facilities or outlets operating under one
or more of Jet’s trademarks, but using a design, format or system materially different from your
franchise system; (b) to distribute or sell goods bearing one or more of Jet’s trademarks at
wholesale or retail, such as frozen pizza, canned pizza sauce or other ingredients; and (c) to open,
operate and license others to own and operate restaurants, stores or other facilities operating under
one or more of Jet’s trademarks, in conjunction with one or more other trademarks, service marks
or franchise systems. Jet’s has no immediate plans to do any of these things, but reserves the right
to do so in the future.
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Item 13: Trademarks

You may operate a restaurant under the name “Jet’s Pizza,” using the logo shown on the cover
page, and using the other marks listed below. These are our principal trademarks used to identify
the franchised business, although Jet’s regularly develops additional trademarks. All of the
trademarks shown below are registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office
(“USPTO”):

MARK REG TYPE REG. # REG. DATE STATUS
DELI BOATS PRINCIPAL 2,047,526 03/25/1997 REGISTERED
JET PAC PRINCIPAL 2,047,527 03/25/1997 REGISTERED
BABY PAC PRINCIPAL 2,047,528 03/25/1997 REGISTERED
JET'S BOATS PRINCIPAL 2,096,791 09/16/1997 REGISTERED

JETMAN DESIGN

4
S *n PRINCIPAL 2,133,757 02/03/1998 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 2,150,029 04/14/1998 REGISTERED
JET'S BREAD PRINCIPAL 2,343,006 04/18/2000 REGISTERED

JET'S PIZZA (STYLIZED)

m
Fi M 7l &
PR OO\
ML ) PRINCIPAL 2,712,642 05/06/2003 REGISTERED
-~ 4 — 1 B,
BPR & & B
- -
TURBO CRUST PRINCIPAL 2,787,930 12/02/2003 REGISTERED
JET 10 PRINCIPAL 3,145,297 09/19/2006 REGISTERED
FLAVORIZE YOUR CRUST FOR FREE PRINCIPAL 3,754,367 03/02/2010 REGISTERED
LET'S GET JET'S PRINCIPAL 3,802,330 06/15/2010 REGISTERED
LIFE IS SHORT. EAT BETTER PIZZA. PRINCIPAL 3,825,678 07/27/2010 REGISTERED
TURBO STIX PRINCIPAL 3,884,914 12/07/2010 REGISTERED
JET'S PI1ZZA PRINCIPAL 3,889,969 12/14/2010 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA & JETMAN DESIGN (IN
COLOR)
PRINCIPAL 3,890,313 12/14/2010 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA & JETMAN DESIGN (IN PRINCIPAL 3,890,314 12/14/2010 REGISTERED
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MARK REG TYPE REG. # REG. DATE STATUS

COLOR)

8 CORNER PIZZA & DESIGN

PRINCIPAL 3,933,302 03/22/2011 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 3,934,048 03/22/2011 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA & JETMAN DESIGN

PRINCIPAL 4,035,889 10/04/2011 REGISTERED

8 CORNER PIZZA PRINCIPAL 4,267,021 01/01/2013 REGISTERED

DEEP DISH BREAD SUPPLEMENTAL 4,626,561 10/21/2014 REGISTERED

RESPECT THE CRUNCH PRINCIPAL 4,812,701 09/15/2015 REGISTERED
DEEP DISH DUO PRINCIPAL 4,826,143 10/06/2015 TO BE CANCELLED

EUGENE SUPREME PRINCIPAL 5,012,413 08/02/2016 REGISTERED

4 CORNER PIZZA PRINCIPAL 5,012,749 08/02/2016 REGISTERED

4 CORNER PIZZA & DESIGN
o= ‘oomm
=

g PRINCIPAL 5,032,003 08/30/2016 REGISTERED

== =
ALL MEATY PRINCIPAL 5,129,170 01/24/2017 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 5,236,704 07/04/2017 REGISTERED
BETTER, BECAUSE IT HAS TO BE. PRINCIPAL 5,820,995 07/30/2019 REGISTERED
DEEP DISH BREAD PRINCIPAL 6,203,586 11/24/2020 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 6,585,641 12/14/2021 REGISTERED
RE-PIZZA PRINCIPAL 6,739,825 05/24/2022 REGISTERED

There is no currently effective material determination of the USPTO, the Trademark Trial and
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Appeal Board, or the trademark administrator of any state or any court, there are no pending
infringement, opposition or cancellation proceedings, and there is no pending material federal or
state court litigation regarding Jet’s use or ownership rights in any of these trademarks. There are
no agreements in effect which would significantly limit Jet’s right to use or license the use of these
trademarks in any way material to your franchise. Jet’s has filed all required affidavits and there are
no other superior rights, prior rights, or infringing uses other than that which is set forth herein.

Jet City Pizza Co. of Seattle, Washington was in business prior to registration of the marks listed
above, and is still in business, and therefore has certain prior rights to continue operating under that
name. On December 20, 2005, Jet City Pizza and Jet’s entered into a Trademark Coexistence
Agreement (“Coexistence Agreement”). Pursuant to the Coexistence Agreement, Jet City Pizza has
certain restrictions on its use of its JET CITY PIZZA trademark. For example, it may not use its
JET CITY PIZZA trademark outside of a 100-mile radius of the Seattle metropolitan area unless
such use either includes or is in close proximity to its design mark depicted in U.S. Trademark
Registration No. 2,182,137 or is used in conjunction with a new design. It may, however, use its
JET CITY PIZZA trademark within the 100-mile radius of the Seattle metropolitan area without the
inclusion of a logo. The Coexistence Agreement has no written prohibition on the location of Jet’s
Pizza restaurants within or outside of Seattle, Washington but Jet’s cannot control any decision by
the Jet City Pizza successors in interest to raise such an issue.

You must notify Jet’s promptly of any infringement claim against you by a third party related to
your use of Jet’s trademarks. You must also notify Jet’s promptly of any action by a third party that
may constitute infringement of any of Jet’s trademarks. Jet’s has the exclusive right to defend its
marks against infringement by others, and has sole discretion whether it wishes to defend you
against infringement claims by third parties provided you promptly notify Jet’s of the claim. The
action to be taken by Jet’s is subject to its exclusive discretion, and may include modification or
discontinuance of the use of any mark. In that case, you must immediately modify your use or stop
using the mark. If it is one of the principal marks used in connection with the franchise system, Jet’s
shall provide you with one or more replacement marks.

Under our business judgment, if we decide at any time that we will discontinue using, modify,
replace, or use additional trademarks, you must comply with our directions after receiving our
notice to you. Jet’s shall have no liability for any other loss, damage, cost or expense you may
suffer, such as but not limited to, litigation costs, attorney fees, any loss of revenue, increased
promotion expenses, or the cost of remodeling your store.

You may use our trademarks only as expressly authorized in your Franchise Agreement. If we
discover your unauthorized use of our trademarks, we may require you to immediately stop your
unauthorized use and destroy all offending items reflecting such unauthorized use.

Jet’s will protect your right to use our trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes, or other
commercial symbols we authorize, or indemnify you from any loss, costs or expenses arising out of
any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of Jet’s name, provided that your use has been
consistent with the Franchise Agreement, Operations Manual, and our current standards and you
have promptly notified us of, and comply with our directions in responding to, the proceeding.

Item 14: Patents, Copyrights, and Proprietary Information

No patents are material to the franchise. Jet’s has an unregistered copyright in its Operations
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Manual, and has other proprietary information material to the franchise, such as recipes, food
preparation cards and advertising material, which you will receive under your Franchise
Agreement. This proprietary information is subject to confidentiality agreements contained in your
Franchise Agreement. Jet’s also has the following United States copyright registration:

Copyright 10/21/2016 VA 2-020-763

There is no current material determination of the USPTO, the United States Copyright Office
(USCO) or any court regarding this copyright. There is no agreement that limits the use of the
copyright. Jet’s has no obligations to take any action to protect this copyright or to defend you
against claims arising from your use of the Operations Manual.

Item 15: Obligation to Participate in the Actual Operation of the Franchise Business

You are required, at all times, in good faith, honestly, and diligently, to perform your obligations
under the Franchise Agreement and use best efforts to promote and successfully operate your Jet’s
Pizza Franchise.

Jet’s requires that each store have at least one owner who personally supervises the franchised
business. This “owner-operator” will serve as a manager and must (1) have successfully completed
our training program, and (2) possess the skills necessary to properly fulfill and discharge the
demands and responsibilities required by the Franchise Agreement. The manager and each owner
(as defined below) must sign a confidentiality agreement to protect the proprietary information of
Jet’s, and an agreement not to compete with Jet’s. Copies of the current forms of Confidentiality
Agreement and Agreement Not to Compete are attached as Exhibits G and H. The manager does
not have to have an ownership interest in the franchise. If you are a corporation, limited liability
company or other entity in which the owners have limited liability, each owner must sign a
personal guaranty of your obligations under the Franchise Agreement. A copy of the current form
of personal guaranty is attached as Exhibit F. For the avoidance of doubt, every person or entity
holding a direct or indirect ownership interest in a franchise is considered an “owner.”

Item 16: Restrictions on What the Franchisee May Sell

You must offer all menu items that Jet’s designates as mandatory, and you may not offer or sell any
menu items that have not been approved by Jet’s. Certain items may be offered or test marketed
only in certain regions, and certain items may be designated as mandatory only in certain regions.
We may modify our menu periodically and you must comply with the changes. Jet’s has absolute
discretion whether to make any changes to its menu. As discussed in Item 12, any orders you
receive for special events must be coordinated with Jet’s, and Jet’s may impose a reasonable limit
on your delivery area. Otherwise, there is no restriction on your customers, whether for pick-up or
delivery, and whether the order is placed from inside or outside your territory. During the
approved hours of operation, you must offer delivery from your Restaurant to customers within
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your territory, following the rules we periodically establish. To the extent allowed by applicable
law, we may regulate the minimum, maximum, and other prices for our menu and services your
Jet’s Pizza Franchise offers.

Item 17: Renewal, Termination, Transfer, and Dispute Resolution

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You
should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.

Provision Section in Summary
Franchise or
Other Agreement
a.  Length of the franchise 3 10 years
term
b.  Renewal or extension of 3 After the initial term, one renewal term of 10
the franchise years, but only if all requirements and

conditions of renewal are satisfied. The
execution of a new Franchise Agreement after
the initial term does not entitle you to an any
additional renewal terms.

c. Requirements for 3 No default of the Franchise Agreement, you
franchisee to renew or notify franchisor of desire to renew within 6
extend months of end of initial term, resolve, settle or

release all claims against franchisor, sign new
Franchise Agreement (which may contain
materially different terms than your original
contract), pay renewal fee, not be among the
lowest 10% of franchise restaurants in gross
sales or Acquired Inventory, be on good terms
with franchisor, including having a good
working relationship for day-to-day operations
and not being in litigation or other adversarial
legal proceedings with franchisor, and renovate
restaurant to comply with restaurant
specifications in effect at time of renewal.

d. Termination by Not Applicable
franchisee

e.  Termination by Jet’s 3 You are only entitled to one renewal term;
without cause thereafter, Jet’s may terminate the agreement

with or without cause.

f.  Termination by Jet’s 15.1 Jet’s may terminate if you default, subject to
with cause notice and cure provisions.

g. “Cause” defined - 14,151 You will have between 5 and 30 days to cure a
curable defaults default, depending upon the nature of the

default; for certain types of default you may
have to pay Jet’s a fine or penalty; the current
schedule of fines is attached as Schedule 5 to
the Franchise Agreement. Curable defaults
include failure to conform to the franchise
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Provision

Section in
Franchise or
Other Agreement

Summary

system; failure to pay royalties or other amounts
owed to Jet’s; defaults under lease; failure to
pay suppliers; obtaining your SBA loan in
excess of $350,000.00 without prior approval by
franchisor; fixed monthly cost exceeding
$9,000.00 without prior approval by franchisor.

h.

“Cause” defined —
defaults which cannot
be cured

15.1(a)

Includes material misrepresentations; imminent
danger to public health; bankruptcy; criminal
conduct; abandonment; failure to have location
approved and secured lease or purchase within
90 days of signing; failure to open within 9
months of signing; failure to conclude
mandatory training pre-opening; failure to
obtain required insurance; failure to operate
restaurant for 3 or more consecutive business
days; violation of health or safety laws or
regulations; failure to pay taxes; failure to pay
advertising contributions; failure to comply with
reporting requirements; unauthorized use of
trademarks; unauthorized disclosures;
unauthorized business operations; failure to pay
franchisor; failure to operate under the
franchisor’s name; use of unapproved goods or
equipment; violation of non-compete;
unauthorized transfer.

Franchisee’s obligations
on
termination/non-renewal

12,15.2,15.3,
15.6, 15.7

Obligations include ceasing to use marks; for a
termination following your default, you must
pay $43,200 as liquidated damages for lost
royalties

Assignment of contract
by Jet’s

131

No restriction on Jet’s right to assign

“Transfer” by franchisee
— defined

13.2

Includes 50% or more ownership change

Jet’s approval of
transfer by franchisee

13.2

Jet’s must approve all transfers but will not
withhold consent without good cause

Conditions for Jet’s
approval of transfer

13.2

Conditions include qualified transferee;
completion of training program; payment of all
amounts due; cure of all defaults; payment of
transfer fee; and signing of Agreement for
Consent to Transfer

Jet’s right of first
refusal to acquire
franchisee’s business

13.3

Jet’s has right of first refusal to purchase
franchise or any assets sold outside of ordinary
course of business

Jet’s option to purchase
franchisee’s business

13, 15.6, 15.7

Jet’s has option to purchase your assets after
termination of franchise due to your default

Death or disability of
franchisee

13.4

Franchise must be transferred to surviving
spouse, children or qualified third party within
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Provision Section in Summary
Franchise or
Other Agreement

six months of your death, disability or
incapacity; if franchise is not transferred within
six months, the franchise will automatically

terminate
g. Non-competition 12 No competition within five miles of any Jet’s
covenants during the Pizza restaurant; no competition in sale of
term of the franchise franchises of operation of franchise system

competitive to Jet’s; no solicitation of
employees of other Jet’s Pizza restaurants

r. Non-competition 12 No competition for three years within five miles
covenants after the of any Jet’s Pizza restaurant; no competition in
franchise is terminated sale of franchises of operation of franchise
or expires system competitive to Jet’s; no solicitation of

employees of other Jet’s Pizza restaurants

s.  Maodification of the 18.20 Certain provisions may be modified by court or
agreement tribunal; Jet’s may modify to comply with

change in law or to comply with judgment or
order of court or tribunal
t.  Integration/merger 18.10 Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement are
clause binding (subject to state law). Any
representations or promises outside of this
disclosure document and Franchise Agreement
may not be enforceable. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing in any agreement is intended
to disclaim the express representations made in
the Franchise Disclosure Document, its exhibits
and amendments.
u.  Dispute resolution by 16 All controversies, disputes, or claims between
arbitration or mediation Franchisee and Franchisor shall be submitted for
binding arbitration with the American
Avrbitration Association in Southfield, Michigan.

v.  Choice of forum 18.3 Michigan law governs, except as provided in the
State Law Addenda attached as Exhibit P
w. Choice of law 18.3 Michigan law applies, except as provided in the

State Law Addenda attached as Exhibit P

This table lists certain important provisions of the Area Development Agreement. You
should read these provisions in the agreement attached to this Disclosure Document.

Provision Section in Area Summary
Development
Agreement
a.  Length of term 2.2,2.6,7 Typically 5 years
b. ﬁ]znévrvrf]l or extension of Not Applicable Not Applicable
c. Requirements for Not Applicable Not Applicable

franchisee to renew or
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Provision Section in Area Summary
Development
Agreement
extend
Termination by ] _
franchisee Not Applicable | Not Applicable

Termination by Jet’s
without Cause

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Termination by Jet’s
with Cause

Jet’s may terminate your option to acquire
additional franchises under the Area

7 Development Agreement, and Jet’s may
terminate any existing Franchise Agreements
then in effect

“Cause” defined - 6.3, 6.4 Defaults with applicable cure periods

curable defaults o '
“Cause” defined —

defaults which cannot 6.1, 6'26: ?'5' 6.6, Defaults without applicable cure periods.

be cured '

Franchisee’s obligations Covenant not to compete for a period of three
on 5 years after the expiration or termination of the

termination/non-renewal

Area Development Agreement.

Assignment of contract
by Jet’s

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

“Transfer by

Unless waived by Jet’s, transfer to third party

franchisee” — defined 6.2 prohibited.
Jet’s approval of Jet’s must approve all assignments but will not
transfer by franchisee 8.4 unreasonably withhold consent to an assignment

to an affiliate

Conditions for Jet’s
approval of transfer

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Jet’s right of first
refusal to acquire
franchisee’s business

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Jet’s option to purchase
franchisee’s business

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Death or disability of
franchisee

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Non-competition
covenants during the
term of the franchise

No competition with Jet’s Pizza within the Area
Development Territory or within five miles of
any Jet’s Pizza restaurant or Franchisor; no

5 competition in sale of franchises of operation of
franchise system competitive to Jet’s; no
solicitation of employees or customers of other
Jet’s Pizza restaurants

Non-competition 5 No competition with Jet’s Pizza within the Area

covenants after the
franchise is terminated
or expires

Development Territory or within five miles of
any Jet’s Pizza restaurant or Franchisor; no
competition in sale of franchises of operation of
franchise system competitive to Jet’s; no
solicitation of employees or customers of other
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Provision Section in Area Summary
Development
Agreement

Jet’s Pizza restaurants
s.  Modification of the Certain provisions may be modified by court or
agreement 5.4,8.12 tribunal, or only in writing signed by both
parties.
t.  Integration/merger Agreements and understandings before the
clause signature of Area Development Agreement are

superseded by Area Development Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in any

agreement is intended to disclaim the express

representations made in the Franchise

Disclosure Document, its exhibits and

amendments.

u. Dispute resolution All controversies, disputes, or claims between

Franchisee and Franchisor shall be submitted

8.3 for binding arbitration with the American

Arbitration Association in Southfield,

Michigan.

v.  Choice of forum 8.2 Michigan law governs, except as provided in the
' State Law Addenda attached as Exhibit P

w. Choice of law 8.2 Michigan law applies, except as provided in the
' State Law Addenda attached as Exhibit P

8.11

Item 18: Public Figures

Jet’s reserves the right to promote with public figures.

Item 19: Financial Performance Representations

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or
potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a
reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure
document. Financial performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be
given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are
considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for
example, by providing information about possible performance at a particular location or under
particular circumstances.

We do not make any representations about a franchisee’s future financial performance or the past
financial performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our
employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you
are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that
outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future
income, you should report it to the franchisor’s management by contacting James Galloway,
37501 Mound Road, Sterling Heights, Michigan 48310 (586) 268-5870), the Federal Trade
Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.
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Item 20: Outlets and Franchisee Information

Table 1: System-wide Outlet Summary
For Years 20212 to 20234

Note: The entries 2021, 2022, and 2023 are for the years ended December 31 of each of those
years.

Outlets at Start
Outlet Type Year of Year OUtlet\S(Z‘;rEnd of Net Change
Franchised
2021 341 354 +13
2022 354 360 +6
2023 360 369 +9
2024 369 394 +25
Company or 7;83_]2: jj; j:? j;
Affiliate Owned 2023 47 53 +6
2024 53 56 +3
Total Outlets 2021 382 394 +12
2022 394 407 +13
Total Outlets 2023 407 422 +15
2024 422 450 +28
Table 2: Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to
New Owners (other than Jet’s or its affiliates)
For Years 20212 to 20234
State Year Number of Transfers
2021 0
Alabama 2022 0
2023 2
Arizona 2024 0
2021 0
Arizona 2022 0
2023 0
Colorado 2024 0
2021 0
Colorado 2022 0
2023 0
Florida 2024 0
Florida 2h 4
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State Year Number of Transfers

2022 2

2023 2

Ceorgia 2024 2
2021 0

Georgia 2022 0
2023 0

HHinois 2024 3
2021 3

lllinois 2022 0
2023 1

Indiana 2024 0
2021 0

Indiana 2022 0
2023 3

IKentucky 2024 1
2021 0

Kentucky 2022 2
2023 0

Michigan 2024 1
2021 11

Michigan 2022 9
2023 3

Minnesota 2024 3
2021 0

_ 2022 1
Minnesota 2023 0
2024 0

) _ 20212 0
Missouri 20223 0
20234 0

20212 0

New York 20223 0
20234 0

North Carolina 2021 3
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State Year Number of Transfers

2022 0

2023 0

—e 2024 0
2021 2

2022 0

Ohio 2023 5
2024 0

_ 20212 0
Pennsylvania 20223 0
20234 0

) 20242 0

South Carolina 20225 0
20234 0

2021 ol

Tennessee 2022 6
2023 4

Texas 2024 4
2021 0

Texas 2022 1
2023 0

Mirginia 2024 0
2021 0

Virginia 2022 0
2023 0

\M/isconsin 2024 0
2021 0

Wisconsin 2022 0
2023 1

Fotals 2024 0
2021 23

Totals 2022 21
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State Year Number of Transfers
2023 21
2024 14
Table 3: Status of Franchised Outlets
For Years 20212 to 20234
.| Ceased
Outlets Re-acqui X Outlets
State Year |at Start Outlets Terminated Non- red by Operations at End
Opened Renewals , - Other
of Year Jet’s of Year
Reasons
Alabama 20242 O 0 0 0 0 0 0
20223 O 0 0 0 0 0 0
20234 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 2 o] sl 0 0 0 2
Arizona 2022 2 1 0 0 0 0 3
2023 3 1 0 0 0 0 4
2024 4 2 0 0 0 0 6
2021 2 i 0 0 0 0 3
Colorado 2022 3 2 0 0 0 0 5
2023 5 1 0 0 1 0 5
2024 o) 2 0 0 0 0 7
2021 | 26 i sl 0 0 0 27
Florida 2022 27 0 0 0 +1 0 28
2023 28 2 0 0 1 0 29
2024| 29 4 0 0 0 0 33
Geordia 20242 10 0 0 0 0 0 10
9 20223 10 0 0 0 0 0 10
20234| 10 01 01 0 0 0 10
2021 | 19 i s} 0 0 0 20
Ilinois 2022 20 3 0 0 0 0 23
2023 23 1 0 0 0 0 24
2024| 24 4 0 0 +1 0 29
Indiana
2021 12 o] 2L 0 0 0 11
2022 11 0 0 0 0 0 11
2023 11 1 0 0 0 0 12
2024| 12 3 0 0 0 0 15
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.| Ceased
Outlets Re-acqui X Outlets
State Year |at Start Outlets Terminated Non- red by Operations at End
Opened Renewals , - Other
of Year Jet’s of Year
Reasons
202 8 0 0 0 0 0 8
Kentucky 2022 8 0 0 0 1 0 7
2023 7 0 0 0 0 0 7
2024 7 1 0 1 0 0 7
2021 | 142 0 0 0 0 0 e
Michigan 2022 142 0 0 0 3 0 139
2023 | 139 0 0 0 2 0 137
2024 137 0 0 0 0 0 137
Minnesota 20212 910 1 0 0 0 0 101
20223| 101 10 0 0 0 0 11
20234 11 0 0 0 0 0 11
20212 4 0 0 0 0 0 4
Missouri 20223 4 0 0 0 0 0 4
20234 4 0 0 0 0 0 4
North 2620 7 1 0 0 +2 0 Lo
Carolina 2022| 10 0 1 0 0 0 9
2023 9 1 0 0 0 0 10
2024) 10 0 0 0 0 0 10
Nevada
Nevada 2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
New York 20242| 23 1 0 0 0 0 34
20223 34 1 0 0 0 0 45
20234 45 10 01 0 0 0 54
2021 | 43 1 0 0 0 0 44
Ohio 2022 | 44 1 1 0 0 0 44
2023 | 44 0 0 0 0 0 44
2024| 44 3 0 0 0 0 a7
. 20242 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Pennsylvania o553 0 0 0 0 0 1
20234 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
South
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.| Ceased
Outlets Re-acqui X Outlets
State Year |at Start Outlets Terminated Non- red by Operations at End
Opened Renewals , - Other
of Year Jet’s of Year
Reasons
Carolina 20212 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
20223 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
20234, 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2021 | 32 0 0 0 0 0 32
Tennessee 2022 32 1 0 0 0 0 33
2023 33 0 0 0 0 0 33
2024| 33 1 0 0 0 0 34
2024 11 3 8] 0 0 0 14
Texas 2022 14 1 0 0 1 0 14
2023 14 3 0 0 0 0 17
2024 | 17 2 0 0] 0 0 19
MirginiaUtah [2023| 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
202144 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
\irginia 2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
virginia 2023| 1 1 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 1 0 0 0 0 3
WisconsinW
ashington 20214 70 21 0 0 0 0 91
\Wisconsin 2022 9 0 0 0 0 0 9
————— (2023 9 0 0 0 0 0 19
2024 9 0 0 0 0 0 &
2021 | 341 12 1 s} 2 0 355-
Totals 2022 | 355 12 2 0 5 0 360
2023 | 360 13 0 0 4 0 369
2024 | 369 27 2 1 +1 0 394
Table 4: Status of Affiliate-Owned Outlets
For Years 2020102022 to 2024
Outlets
Outlets at Outlets | Reacquired | Outlets Outlets Outlets at
State Year | Start of Sold to
Opened from Closed . End of Year
Year . Franchisees
Franchisees
Colorado 2001 1 0 0 3
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2022 3 0 0 0 0 3
2023 3 1 1 0 0 5
2024 5 1 0 0 0 6
2021 4 0 0 0 0 4
Florida 2022 4 1 0 0 1 4
2023 4 0 1 0 0 5
2024 5] 0 0 0 0 5
2021 2 0 0 0 0 2
Illinois 2022 2 1 0 0 0 3
2023 3 0 0 0 0 3
2024 3 0 0 0 1 2
2021 6 0 0 0 0 8
Kentucky 2022 6 0 1 0 0 7
2023 7 0 0 0 0 7
2024 7 0 0 0 0 7
2021 21 0 0 0 0 21
Michigan 2022 21 0 3 0 0 24
2023 24 0 2 0 0 26
2024 26 1 0 0 0 27
New York
New York 2022 0 1 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 1
. 20212 64 0 0 0 20 4
North Carolina 20223 4 0 0 0 0 4
20234 4 0 0 0 0 4
South Carolina 2024 0 1 0 0 0 1
Texas
Texas 2022 0 0 1 0 0 1
2023 1 1 0 0 0 2
2024 | 2 1 0 0 0 3
2021 41 1 0 0 2 40
Totals 2022 | 40 3 5 0 1 47
2023 47 2 4 0 0 53
2024 | 53 4 0 0 1 56
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This table includes transfers by reason of a 50% or greater change in the ownership of a
franchisee, and includes multiple transfers of a single franchise

Table 5: Projected Openings as of December 31, 20245

Agrezr;aennctzlg?gne d Proj_ected New _ Projected New Affiliate-
State but Outlet Not Franchlsed_OutIets in Owned_OutIets in Next
Opened the Next Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Alabama 1 10 0
Arizona 2 2 0
California 0 10 0
Colorado 10 10 1
Florida 42 79 1
Georgia 10 15 0
Illinois 21 43 0
Indiana 30 3 0
Kentucky 10 10 0
Michigan 3 10 0
Minnesota 0 0 0
MisseurtMississippi 01 0 0
MontanaMissouri 10 10 0
NevadaMontana 0 0 0
Nevada 1 2 0
New York 1 0 0
North Carolina 0 0 0
Ohio 2 3 0
Pennsylvania 0 0 0
South Carolina 0 0 0
Tennessee 3 02 0
Texas 24 65 42
Utah 0 0 0
Virginia 1 2 0
Washington el 0 0
Wisconsin 0 0 0
Total 25 34 6
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Attached as Exhibit D is a list of all current franchisees and the address and telephone number of
each of their outlets. Exhibit D also reflects franchisees that have signed a Franchise Agreement,
but have not yet opened their stores. Attached as Exhibit E is the name and last known business
or home phone number of all of the franchisees who had a store terminated, canceled, not
renewed, transferred, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the
Franchise Agreement during the most recent fiscal year. There are no franchisees who have
failed to communicate with Jet’s within the last ten weeks. If you buy this franchise, your contact
information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.

In some instances, current and former franchisees sign provisions restricting their ability to speak
openly about their experience with Jet’s. You may wish to speak with current and former
franchisees but be aware that not all of those franchisees will be able to communicate with you.

To the best knowledge of Jet’s, currently there is not a franchisee organization associated with
the franchise system being offered.

Item 21: Financial Statements

Jet’s audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2024-2022, and-2023,
and 2024, are attached as Exhibit B.

Item 22: Contracts

Copies of the following agreements and documents are attached as Exhibits:

Agreement Exhibit

Franchise Agreement, including the following schedules: A
1. Fees, Deposits and Spending Requirements
2. Franchise’s Location, Territory and Business Name
3. Marks
4. Standard Lease Rider
5. Schedule of Fines for Minor Defaults

Personal Guaranty F
Related Party Confidentiality Agreement G
Related Party Agreement Not to Compete H
Business Purpose Affidavit I
Ownership Certificate J
Sample Forms of Transfer Agreements K-1
Royalty Addendum for Transfer — Franchise Agreement K-2
Renewal Addendum — Remodeling Requirements L
General Release Upon Renewal M
Area Development Agreement Q

Item 23:_Receipts

The last two pages of this Disclosure Document (Exhibit R) are identical pages acknowledging
receipt of the entire document (including the Exhibits). Please sign and return to us one copy;
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please keep the other copy along with this Disclosure Document. Jet’s America, Inc. (37501
Mound Road, Sterling Heights, Michigan 48310; (586) 268-5870) is the only entity authorized to
offer or sell Jet’s Pizza franchises in the United States of America.

Jet’s Pizza Franchise Disclosure Document 20245 Page 43



NOTICE REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MICHIGAN

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS
THAT ARE SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE
FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE
PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any documents
related to a franchise:

(A) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(B) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver
or estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in the Michigan
Franchise Investment Law. This section shall not preclude a franchisee, after entering into a
franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

(C) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the
expiration of its term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of a franchisee
to comply with any lawful provisions of a franchise agreement and to cure such failure after
being given written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more
than 30 days, to cure such failure.

(D) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly
compensating a franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of
expiration of a franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures and furnishings.
Personalized materials which have no value to a franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment,
fixtures and furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not
subject to compensation. This section applies only if:

1) The term of a franchise is less than five years; and

@) a franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from
continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark,
trade name, logo-type, advertising or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to
the expiration of the franchise, or a franchisee does not receive at least six months advance
notice of a franchisor’s intent not to renew the franchise.

(E) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms
generally available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances.
This section does not require a renewal provision.

(F) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside the State
of Michigan. This section shall not preclude a franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the
time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a location outside the State of Michigan.

(G) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership
of the franchise, except for good cause. This section does not prevent a franchisor from



exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not
limited to:

1) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet a franchisor’s then-current
reasonable qualifications or standards.

@) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of a franchisor or
subfranchisor.

3) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply
with all lawful obligations.

4) The failure of a franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing
to a franchisee or to cure any default in a franchise agreement existing at the time of the
proposed transfer.

(H) A provision that requires a franchisee to resell to a franchisor items that are not
uniquely identified with the franchisor. This section does not prohibit a provision that grants to
the franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and
conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this
section prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise
for the market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful
provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in
section (C).

0] A provision which permits a franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign or
otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless
provision has been made for providing the required contractual services.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE
MICHIGAN ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL,
RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE MICHIGAN ATTORNEY
GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to the Department of Attorney General,
Consumer Protection Division (Attention: Franchise), P.O. Box 30213, Lansing, Michigan
48909, telephone (517) 373-7117.
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JET’S PIZZA
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made by and between JET’S
AMERICA, INC., a Michigan corporation (“Franchisor”), and the franchisee identified on the signature
page hereto (“Franchisee”). The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date it is signed by an
authorized officer or representative of Franchisor (the “Effective Date”).

RECITALS:

A. As the result of the expenditure of significant time, skill, effort, and money, Franchisor
has developed Jet’s Pizza restaurants, which offer pizza, calzones, salad, and other food to the public,
primarily for carry-out and delivery.

B. The operation of Jet’s Pizza restaurants includes technical information and expertise
relating to the preparation and production of food products; the use of special spices, sauces, and pizza
dough, all of which constitute trade secrets and are identified by the public with Jet’s Pizza products;
special recipes and new menu items; distinctive and prescribed interior and exterior layout, design, décor,
fixtures, and furnishings; standards and specifications for products and supplies; service standards;
standards, specifications, and procedures for operations; training and assistance; and advertising and
promotional programs (collectively, “Operational Plans”); all of which may be changed, improved, and
further developed by Franchisor from time to time, subject only to its good faith business judgment.

C. Franchisee desires to develop, own and operate a Jet’s Pizza restaurant in conformity
with the Franchise System (as hereinafter defined) as established and promulgated from time to time by
the Franchisor. In acquiring the Franchise, Franchisee acknowledges that:

. The essential value of a franchise is public recognition of the franchise and its
products, which depends upon consistency and uniformity from one franchise to the next;

. Consistency and uniformity in the operations of other franchises inures to its
benefit, and vice versa;

° To be successful, the image, design, business concept, marketing strategy,
methods of operation, and other facets of the Franchise System of Jet’s Pizza restaurants must continue to
evolve and change over time, and Franchisee must defer to Franchisor’s business judgment regarding all
aspects of the Franchise System;

. Franchisor shall have the right to act in the best interests of other franchisees and
the Franchise System as a whole, which may not always be in the best interest of Franchisee; and

° Despite the success Franchisor or any other franchisee may have experienced,
there is no guarantee that Franchisee will be successful.

D. Franchisee acknowledges that it would take substantial capital and human resources to
develop a restaurant concept that is similar to a Jet’s Pizza restaurant, and recognizes the benefits to be
derived from identification with Franchisor’s Franchise System, and therefore desires to acquire a
franchise to own and operate a Jet’s Pizza restaurant, subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

E. Franchisee understands and acknowledges the importance of Franchisor’s high standards
of quality, cleanliness, appearance, and service and of Franchisor’s proprietary products and ingredients
1
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(including without limitation spices, sauces, and dough), and the necessity of operating Franchisee’s
Business in conformity with Franchisor’s standards and specifications.

F. This Agreement is entered into in connection with [Check One]:

[ 1 The grant of a new Franchise;
[ 1 The renewal of an existing Franchise; or
[ 1 The transfer of a Franchise.

THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Definitions. In addition to terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, the following terms shall
have the following meanings for purposes of this Agreement.

11 Acquired Inventory. “Acquired Inventory” means Franchisee’s cost of purchase for all
inventory and supplies used in the operation of the Restaurant, including but not limited to food
ingredients, beverages, packaging, cups, boxes, napkins, plastic ware, and cleaning supplies. “Acquired
Inventory” shall also include shipping costs, freight charges, taxes and other charges paid by Franchisee
to obtain such inventory or supplies.

1.2 Commencement Date. “Commencement Date” means the day the Restaurant first opens
for business, whether under current or former ownership.

13 Franchise. “Franchise” means all of the rights and privileges of the Franchisee to own
and operate the Restaurant and learn and use the Franchise System under this Agreement.

14 Franchise System. “Franchise System” means the system licensed by Franchisor to
Franchisee under this Agreement, which includes the Operational Plan, Technology System, Marks,
unique image, design, business concept, marketing strategy, methods of operation, menu, ingredients and
recipes related to the franchised business, as set forth in this Agreement, the Operations Manual or rules,
procedures, policies or announcements issued by Franchisor from time to time.

15 General Advertising Fee. “GevernmentGeneral Advertising Fee” means, if instituted, a
fee egual-to-ro-mere-thanin an amount, when added to the amount of the Technology Fee, that shall not

exceed ten percent (10%) of Franchisee’s Acquired Inventory.

1.6 Initial Franchise Fee. “Initial Franchise Fee” is shown on the attached Schedule 1.

1.7 Location. *“Location” means the authorized location of the Restaurant, as approved by
Franchisor under Section 2.2(a).

1.8 Marks or Trademarks. “Marks or Trademarks” shall mean all Franchisor’s registered or
unregistered trade names, trade dress, service marks and trademarks, whether currently existing,
developed or acquired in the future, together with any other logos, symbols, emblems, signs and insignias
that Franchisor has adopted and designated, or subsequently acquires, adopts, develops or designates, for
use in connection with the Franchise System, including, but not limited to those trademarks and/or
service marks shown in Schedule 3, some or all of which may be registered.

1.9 Operations Manual. “Operations Manual” means any set or compilation of publications,
documents, memoranda, announcements, instructions, notices or written communications in any form,
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including without limitation print or electronic media, issued by Franchisor from time to time which
describes any standards, specifications, policies, procedures, and requirements concerning any aspect of
the Franchise System, the Marks, the operation of the Restaurant including but not limited to such areas
as design, construction, operations, accounting, marketing, requirements to use approved suppliers, and
including the Jet’s Pizza Operations Manual. The Operations Manual may be updated, modified or
revised by Franchisor at any time. The Operations Manual is incorporated into this Agreement by
reference. The content of the Operations Manual is Proprietary Information of Franchisor and is subject
to the restrictions in Section 11 of this Agreement.

1.10 POS System. “POS System” means an electronic point of sale system, whether
physically located at the Restaurant or in a virtual location, which may consist of one or more computer
systems, hardware, software, dedicated telephone, power and data lines, modems, high speed Internet
access (or alternative communications line designated by, or permitted by us), cables, printers and other
computer-related accessories and peripheral equipment and which may provide point of sale information,
customer databases and retention services to Jet’s, and perform accounting, marketing, and inventory
functions as specified by Franchisor in accordance with the Operations Manual.

1.11 Related Party. “Related Party” means (i) an owner, stockholder, director, officer,
member, manager, partner, restaurant manager or other key employee of Franchisee; or (ii) a corporation,
limited liability company, or other entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with
Franchisee.

1.12 Restaurant. “Restaurant” means the Jet’s Pizza restaurant which Franchisee is licensed
to own and operate under this Agreement.

1.13  Standard Lease Rider. “Standard Lease Rider” is attached as Schedule 4.

1.14  Technology Fee. “Technology Fee” means, if instituted, a fee equal-to-ne-merethan-
fwein an amount, when added to the amount of the General Advertising Fee, that shall not exceed ten
percent (210%) of Franchisee’s Acquired Inventory.

1.15 Technology System. “Technology System” shall include, but not be limited to, any POS
System, gift card program, loyalty program, video or security system or other electronic system, device,
product or service, including computers, equipment, hardware, software, cloud-based services,
communication devices, tablets, internet service providers and connections, online ordering systems or
services (which permits customers to place, track or pay for orders using the Internet or other electronic
media) payment processing systems, high speed broadband connectivity, high speed broadband
monitoring, methods and means of encryption and access to Franchisor’s network resources, and other
brand technology and peripheral devices Franchisor may specify from time to time.

2. Grant.

2.1 Franchise Grant. Franchisor hereby grants to Franchisee a non-exclusive license to use
the Franchise System solely in connection with the establishment, ownership and operation of the
Restaurant, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

2.2 Location of Restaurant.

@) Location. The Restaurant shall be operated only at the Location, which must be
approved by Franchisor in its sole discretion. The exact street address of the Location is specified in
Schedule 2 attached hereto. In the event that the Location has not been determined as of the Effective
Date, Franchisee shall submit in writing to Franchisor all relevant information pertaining to a proposed
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location for the Restaurant within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of this Agreement. Franchisor
shall approve or disapprove of such proposed location, in Franchisor’s sole discretion, within twenty-one
(21) business days after Franchisee requests Franchisor’s approval. If Franchisor does not approve the
proposed location in writing within twenty-one (21) business days, Franchisor shall be deemed to have
disapproved of the proposed location. Upon approval by Franchisor, the proposed location shall be
deemed the Location of the Restaurant and shall be specified in an updated Schedule 2 which Franchisor
will initial and send to Franchisee. Franchisee shall have the sole responsibility for selecting a proposed
location, but may request Franchisor’s assistance in such selection subject to the terms of Section 2.2(b)
below. Any site selection assistance or approvals furnished by Franchisor before or after executing this
Agreement shall not be deemed to be a guarantee, assurance, or representation by Franchisor that the
Restaurant will be profitable or successful at the Location.

(b) Location Selection Assistance. If requested by Franchisee, Franchisor or its
designee may use its discretion to assist or arrange for the assistance of Franchisee in analyzing a
prospective site location for the Restaurant, including reviewing the demographics of the surrounding
area. FRANCHISOR IS NOT AN EXPERT IN SITE SELECTION OR DEMOGRAPHIC ANALYSIS.
FRANCHISOR ENCOURAGES FRANCHISEE TO ENGAGE ITS OWN EXPERT(S), SUCH AS A
LAWYER, TO ASSIST IN SITE SELECTION. FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE IN SITE
SELECTION IS NOT A GUARANTEE OF SUCCESS. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that if
Franchisor recommends or gives Franchisee information regarding the site selection that it is not a
representation or warranty of any kind, express or implied, of the site’s suitability for the Restaurant or
any other purpose. Franchisee acknowledges that its acceptance of the site will be based on its
independent investigation of the site’s suitability. If requested to assist in site selection, Franchisee must
pay or reimburse Franchisor for any out-of-pocket expenses incurred by Franchisor, including but not
limited to travel, meals and lodging.

() Lease or Purchase of Location. Once the Location has been approved pursuant
to Section 2.2(a), it is Franchisee’s responsibility to secure the Location, either by lease or purchase.
Franchisee’s lease is subject to the approval of Franchisor, in its sole discretion. The lease must contain
certain required terms and provisions, including but not limited to: (i) a provision reserving to Franchisor
the right to receive an assignment of the lease upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, (ii) a
provision requiring the lessor to give Franchisor all sales and other information Franchisor requests
relating to the operation of the Restaurant, (iii) a provision requiring the lessor to send Franchisor a copy
of any written notice of lease default sent to Franchisee and granting Franchisor the right (but not an
obligation) to cure any lease default within fifteen (15) business days after expiration of Franchisee’s
cure period, (iv) a provision evidencing Franchisee’s right to display Marks of the Restaurant and (v) a
provision allowing Franchisor to enter the premises upon expiration or termination of this Agreement to
remove signs and other items bearing the Marks. In conjunction with the lease, Franchisee and lessor
must execute Franchisor’s Standard Lease Rider in substantially the form of that attached as Schedule 4,
or the lease must contain provisions substantially to the same effect as those contained in the Standard
Lease Rider. Once the lease has been executed, Franchisee shall furnish Franchisor with an executed
copy of the lease for its records. Franchisee shall fulfill its obligations under the lease, and any default
by Franchisee under the lease shall also be a default under Section 14 of this Agreement. FRANCHISOR
ENCOURAGES FRANCHISEE TO ENGAGE ITS OWN EXPERT(S), SUCH AS A LAWYER, TO
ASSIST IN LEASE NEGOTIATIONS.

(d) Territory.

(1 Protection. During the term of this Agreement, unless explicitly stated
otherwise in an addendum to this Agreement and except as otherwise provided in Section 2.2(d)(ii),
Franchisor shall not establishlocate or grant a franchise to others to establishlocate a Jet’s Pizza
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restaurant at any location within the geographical area enclosed within a circle which: (a) is drawn
around the Location; (b) has the Location at its center; and (c) has a radius of one and one-half (1%%)
miles from the Location (the “Territory”); provided, however, that if the Location is within the
boundaries of the City of New York, New York, the City of Chicago, Illinois, or ethermmajereitiesany
other city having a population of over one million people, the radius of the Territory shall be one-quarter
(¥4) mile from the Location.

(i) Exclusions from Territorial ~Protection. Franchisee expressly
acknowledges and agrees that, except as provided in Section 2.2(d)(i), the Franchise is non-exclusive.
Franchisor and any Franchisor affiliate each retain the right, among others, in any manner and on any
terms and conditions Franchisor deems advisable, and without granting Franchisee any rights therein, to
own, acquire, establish, and/or operate, and license others to establish and operate, Jet’s Pizza restaurants
(A) outside the Territory, and (B) inside the Territory on food trucks and other mobile units and in
arenas, sports stadiums, sports complexes, shopping malls, food courts, department stores, retail and
convenience stores, gas stations, hotels, casinos, amusement parks, arcades, theaters, bowling centers,
festivals, fairs, schools, colleges, national parks, state and local parks, public beaches, convention
centers, conference centers, factories, hospitals, penal institutions, airports, train stations, public transit
stations, cruise ship ports, turnpikes, military bases, government buildings, school buildings and grounds,
office complexes, high-rise apartment buildings, senior living facilities, Indian reservations, and other
premises where the primary activity conducted at the premises is other than the retail sale of food
prepared for immediate consumption (“Non-Traditional Restaurants”).

(e) Relocation. Franchisee may not change the Location of the Restaurant without
the prior written consent of Franchisor. Franchisor may change the Territory or Advertising Territory, in
its reasonable discretion, for the new location of the Restaurant. Any relocation will be at Franchisee’s
sole expense.

2.3 No Customer Exclusivity. Franchisee expressly acknowledges that Franchisee has no
exclusive rights with respect to customers located in the Territory or elsewhere. Subject to the Franchise
System standards established by Franchisor from time to time and Section 6.5(g)(ii), all Restaurants
(regardless of ownership) may solicit-and, sell and deliver products to customers without regard to the
customers’ geographic location.

2.4 Modifications to Franchise System. Franchisee acknowledges that the Franchise System
and the products and services offered by the Restaurant may be modified (such as, but not limited to, the
addition, deletion, and modification of menu items, operating procedures, ingredients, recipes, products,
technology, advertising and marketing obligations, and services) from time to time by Franchisor; and
Franchisee agrees to comply, at its expense, with all such modifications, including without limitation, all
requirements needed to implement the modifications, such as replacement, upgrade, installation, or
renovation of equipment, remodeling, redecoration, and modifications to existing improvements,
including structural changes.

3. Term and Renewal.

3.1 Initial Term. Except as otherwise provided herein, the initial term of this Agreement
shall begin on the Effective Date, and shall expire at 11:59 p.m. on the date of the tenth (10th)
anniversary of the Effective Date (the “Initial Term”).

3.2 Renewal Term.

@) Renewal of Initial Franchise Agreement. This Agreement does not automatically
renew upon its expiration. However, Franchisee has an option to renew the Franchise for one additional
5)
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ten (10) year term if, and only if, each and every one of the following conditions has been satisfied (any
of which conditions Franchisor may waive, in its sole discretion):

(1 Notice. Franchisee must notify Franchisor in writing at least six (6)
months prior to the expiration of the Initial Term that it desires to renew the Franchise. Failure to deliver
the written notice required by the previous sentence will be deemed an election by Franchisee not to
renew.

(i) Evaluation. Franchisor shall evaluate whether Franchisee qualifies for
renewal under the terms and conditions of this Agreement and shall provide Franchisee with its consent
or refusal at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term. Franchisor may elect to
grant the renewal, refuse the renewal due to existing non-compliance with the Franchise System,
deficiencies of the Restaurant or in Franchisee’s operation of the Restaurant, or grant the renewal on the
condition that Franchisee correct the existing deficiencies or perform remodeling.

(ili))  Conditional Renewal. In the event Franchisor, in its sole discretion,
grants a conditional renewal, Franchisee shall also be subject to pay certain additional fees for late
compliance of renewal requirements, as set forth in Schedule 5.

(iv) Relocation. If Franchisee wishes to relocate the Franchise to a new
location upon renewal, Franchisee must give Franchisor at least twelve (12) months’ prior written notice
of a request to relocate, which shall include a new equipment layout, and shall deliver to Franchisor a
new lease within nine (9) months of the renewal date. Franchisor, at its sole discretion, may approve or
not approve such request to relocate. If applicable, Franchisor may supply Franchisee with a written
notice describing the remodeling, expansion, improvements, and/or modifications required to bring the
Restaurant into compliance with then applicable standards and specifications for new Jet’s Pizza
restaurants.

(V) No Breach. Franchisee must not be in default, either at the time of
giving notice under Section 3.2(a) or during the remainder of the Initial Term, of any provision of this
Agreement, any amendment or addendum hereof or successor hereto, or any other agreement between
Franchisee and Franchisor or its affiliates, and, in the sole judgment of Franchisor, Franchisee must have
substantially and timely complied with all terms, conditions, and obligations of the agreements during the
terms thereof (including payment obligations, minimum marketing and advertising requirements, and the
Franchise System).

(vi) Release of Claims. Franchisee and all guarantors and owners of
Franchisee shall have executed a general release, in a form satisfactory to Franchisor and subject to
applicable law, of any and all claims which any of them may have against Franchisor, its affiliates, and
their respective shareholders, directors, employees and agents, including without limitation, claims
arising under federal, state, and local laws and regulations.

(vii)  Performance of Franchise. The Franchise must not be among the lowest
ten percent (10%) of Jet’s Pizza restaurants in terms of gross sales or Acquired Inventory.

(viii) Restaurant Renovation. Franchisee must renovate and modernize the
Restaurant to conform to the standards and specifications for new Jet’s Pizza restaurants in effect at the
time of renewal, as set forth in the current version of the Operations Manual or as otherwise announced
or adopted by Franchisor from time to time, including, without limitation, renovation, replacement, or
installation of signs, furnishings, fixtures, equipment, décor, and the computer system.

(ix) Execution of New Franchise Agreement. Franchisee must execute a new
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franchise agreement and any related agreements and documents, which new franchise agreement will
supersede this Agreement in all respects, and the terms and conditions of which may differ from this
Agreement. THE EXECUTION OF A NEW FRANCHISE AGREEMENT SHALL NOT ENTITLE
FRANCHISEE TO ANY ADDITIONAL RENEWAL TERMS.

(€9) Renewal Fee. Franchisee must pay the renewal fee as shown in
Schedule 1.

(xi) Fixed Monthly Costs. There shall be no right to renew the Franchise if
Franchisee’s total fixed monthly costs for rent and third party financing exceeds $9,000.00.

(xii)  Good Standing. Franchisee must be on good terms with Franchisor,
including, but not limited to, having a good working relationship for day-to-day operations and not being
in litigation or other adversarial legal proceedings with Franchisor.

(b) Subsequent Renewals. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein,
Franchisee shall only be entitled to one (1) renewal after the Initial Term in accordance with the original
Franchise Agreement executed by Franchisee and Franchisor, subject to the conditions set forth in this
Section 3.2. If this Agreement is entered into after any term which is not the Initial Term, then
Franchisor, in its sole discretion, shall determine whether or not to grant any renewal of the Franchise.
Franchisee must notify Franchisor in writing at least six (6) months prior to the expiration of the
then-current renewal term that it desires to renew the Franchise. Any such renewal shall be granted in
Franchisor’s sole discretion, which may include some or all of the conditions associated with a renewal
as described in Section 3.2(a) above and other conditions.

4, Fees.

4.1 Initial Franchise Fee.

(@) If this Agreement is entered into in connection with the grant of a new Franchise,
Franchisee shall pay the Initial Franchise Fee in full at the time this Agreement is executed by
Franchisee. The Initial Franchisee Fee shall be deemed fully earned and non-refundable when paid, in
consideration of administrative and other expenses incurred by Franchisor in entering into this
Agreement, and for Franchisor’s lost or deferred opportunity to enter into an agreement with others.

(b) If this Agreement is entered into in connection with the renewal or transfer of a
Franchise, no Initial Franchise Fee shall be due.

4.2 Royalty Fee. During the term of this Agreement, Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor a
continuing royalty fee in the amount equal to twelve percent (12%) of its Acquired Inventory or a
minimum royalty fee of $1,200 per month, whichever is higher, without right of set-off or deduction by
Franchisee.

Franchisee Initial Acknowledging Understanding

4.3 Advertising Contributions. Franchisee shall make advertising contributions as provided
in Section 7.

4.4 Payment Terms.

(@) Royalties and advertising contributions shall be paid monthly, by the 15th day of
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each month, with respect to Acquired Inventory for the preceding month.

(b) Franchisor shall periodically prescribe the manner of payment of royalties,
advertising contributions, and any other payments under this Agreement. Unless Franchisor agrees
otherwise in writing, auto-debit payments, through ACH (Automatic Clearing House), shall be required.

() Franchisor reserves the right to require payment of royalties and advertising
contributions by pre-authorized electronic funds debit transfer. Upon demand by Franchisor, Franchisee
shall make appropriate arrangements with its bank or financial institution to enable Franchisor to debit
Franchisee’s account. As of the due date of each payment, Franchisor shall be authorized to initiate debit
entries based upon reporting by Franchisee or suppliers of Acquired Inventory. If required reports have
not been submitted by the due date, Franchisor may debit Franchisee’s account based upon a reasonable
estimate of Franchisee’s Acquired Inventory. Within five (5) days after debiting Franchisee’s account,
Franchisor shall provide Franchisee with a statement showing the amount debited and how the amount
was computed. Unless Franchisee objects in writing within thirty (30) days, the computation and the
amount debited shall be deemed accepted by Franchisee and shall be final, except as necessary to correct
any under-reporting of Acquired Inventory by Franchisee or suppliers. If Franchisee objects on a timely
basis, the parties shall use good faith efforts to promptly investigate, discuss, negotiate and resolve the
dispute. Following resolution of the dispute, the amount debited to Franchisee’s account for the ensuing
month(s) shall be adjusted to reflect the resolution of the dispute.

(d) Franchisor shall have, in addition to all other rights or remedies it may have
against Franchisee, the right to set-off against or to recoup from any payment or obligation owed to
Franchisee, in whole or in part, any amounts due to Franchisor.

45 Late Payments.

@) Any payment required under this Agreement that is not paid when due shall
accrue interest at the rate of one and one-half (1.5%) percent per month, or the highest rate permitted by
law, whichever is lower. In addition, the Franchisor will have a right to assess a late fee equal to ten
percent (10%) of the original amount due but not paid on time. The late fee is not interest or penalty but
compensates Franchisor for increased administrative and management costs due to the late payment.
Franchisor may debit Franchisee’s bank account automatically for late fees and payments. If Franchisee
is an individual, Franchisee must sign a business purpose affidavit at the time this Agreement is signed.

(b) If Franchisee makes more than two (2) late payments to Franchisor in any six (6)
month period, Franchisor may, in addition to any other rights or remedies it may have, require Franchisee
to deposit with Franchisor an amount equal to six (6) times the last overdue payment. Franchisor may
commingle the deposit with its other funds. Franchisor may draw upon this deposit to pay any amount
that Franchisee fails to pay in a timely fashion. If Franchisor draws on the deposit, Franchisee shall
promptly replenish it. If Franchisee makes all payments in a timely fashion for six (6) months, the
deposit will be returned to Franchisee without interest.

4.6 Reimbursement of Monies Paid on Behalf of Franchisee. Franchisee shall pay to
Franchisor, within fifteen (15) days of any written request by Franchisor which is accompanied by
substantiating material, any monies which Franchisor has paid, or has become obligated to pay, on behalf
of Franchisee, by consent or otherwise under this Agreement.

4.7 No Set-Off; Application of Payments; Refundability. Franchisee’s obligations for the
full and timely payment of the fees described in this Agreement are absolute and unconditional.
Franchisee must not delay or withhold the payment of all or part of those fees based on the alleged
non-performance by Franchisor or for any other reason or put the fees in escrow or setoff against any
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claims Franchisee may allege against Franchisor. Franchisor may apply any payments received from
Franchisee for royalty, advertising contributions, purchases from Franchisor, interest, late charges or any
other obligation of Franchisee to Franchisor to the obligation and in the manner chosen by Franchisor,
regardless of any other designation by Franchisee. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement,
payment of all fees, contributions and other amounts will be deemed fully earned and nonrefundable on
payment.

4.8 Temporary Closures. In the event Franchisee temporarily closes the Restaurant, whether
for redecoration, renovation, repair, or any other reason, Franchisee’s obligations for the full and timely
payment of (i) its contributions to the General Advertising Fund and regional advertising funds, if any,
and (ii) the minimum royalty will continue throughout the entire closure period.

4.9 Additional Information. Additional information regarding the fees, contributions and
other amounts that Franchisee may be obligated to pay in order to operate the Restaurant are set forth in
Schedule 1.

5. Preparation for Opening Restaurant; Opening. The provisions of this Section 5 apply only if this
Agreement is entered into in connection with the grant of a new Franchise.

51 Franchisee’s Costs. Franchisee shall be responsible for all costs and expenses to prepare
the Restaurant to open for business, including but not limited to all financing required to develop and
operate the Restaurant, architect fees, leasehold improvements, fixtures, equipment, furniture and
furnishings, and any necessary licenses and permits.

5.2 Furniture, Fixtures, Equipment, Inventory and Supplies.

@) All leasehold improvements, furniture, furnishings, fixtures, equipment
(including the Technology System (as defined in Section 6.5(j)(i) below)), inventory, supplies, and the
design of the Restaurant must conform with policies, procedures, standards and specifications issued by
Franchisor and/or must be purchased from suppliers approved by Franchisor.

(b) Not later than ten (10) days after the execution of Schedule 2 specifying the
Location, Territory and Advertising Territory, Franchisor shall provide Franchisee with its applicable
policies, procedures, standards and/or specifications, and a list of approved suppliers for these items.

5.3 Restaurant Design and Build-Out. Not later than ten (10) days after the Location for the
Restaurant has been secured by lease or purchase pursuant to Section 2.2(c), Franchisor will provide
Franchisee with design specifications and sample layouts that must be incorporated into the design of the
Restaurant. Franchisee shall hire an architect to prepare plans or blueprints for the construction of the
Restaurant in conformance with Franchisor’s specifications. Once the blueprints have been prepared,
Franchisee must submit them to Franchisor for its written approval before construction may begin.
Franchisor shall not unreasonably withhold its approval. Once Franchisor has approved the blueprints,
Franchisee may proceed with construction of the Restaurant. When construction is complete, the
Restaurant must be inspected and approved in writing by Franchisor for conformity with the plans and
specifications previously approved. Franchisee may not open the Restaurant for business until it has
been approved in writing by Franchisor, in its sole discretion.

54 Training.
@) BEFORE OPENING THE RESTAURANT FOR BUSINESS, TWO (2) OR

MORE PERSONS (i.e., Franchisee, if Franchisee is a natural person, or employees or managers) MUST
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SATISFACTORILY COMPLETE FRANCHISOR’S INITIAL TRAINING PROGRAM.

(b) Franchisor shall have the discretion to decide the location, format and content of
its initial training program, which may change from time to time. Currently, the initial training program
begins with training in a classroom setting, followed by full-time, hands-on, on-the-job training at one or
more Jet’s Pizza restaurants operated by Franchisor, its affiliate, or another franchisee. Training is
conducted six (6) days per week for six (6) consecutive weeks. The training encompasses all aspects of
the operation of the Restaurant. Training materials include video lessons from Jet’s Pizza University,
excerpts from the Operations Manual and food preparation cards. Instructors are employees of
Franchisor or its affiliates with a minimum of three (3) years’ experience. A representative of Franchisor
is primarily in charge of overseeing the training program. Neither Franchisee nor its employees or
managers shall be entitled to compensation for work performed during the training session. Franchisee
shall be responsible for all expenses of attending any training session, including travel, meals, lodging,
and any wages.

(c) Franchisor’s current fee for the initial training program is shown on Schedule 1,
but is subject to change at Franchisor’s discretion. The cost for two (2) people to participate in the initial
training program is included in the Initial Franchisee Fee, which does not include the cost of training
apparel. If Franchisee elects to have more than two (2) people trained, Franchisee must pay Franchisor’s
current standard fee for the initial training program.

(d) Franchisee and other employees designated by Franchisor also shall attend such
additional training programs as Franchisor may require or direct from time to time and at any time, as set
forth in Section 6.4. Franchisee shall be responsible for any and all other expenses incurred by its
trainees in connection with additional training programs, including without limitation, the costs of
transportation, lodging, meals, and any wages. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that no compensation
or other benefits will be paid to Franchisee, its principals, owners, managers or employees for any
services performed by Franchisee or its principals, owners, managers or employees during training at any
Jet’s Pizza restaurant operated by Franchisor or any other person.

5.5 Franchisor’s Right to Cancel.

@) If Franchisee does not select a location, have it approved by Franchisor, and
secure it by lease or purchase within ninety (90) days, or any time thereafter, after this Agreement is
signed by Franchisor, or if the Restaurant is not ready to open for business within twelve (12) months, or
any time thereafter, after this Agreement is signed by Franchisor, FRANCHISOR MAY TERMINATE
THE FRANCHISE IMMEDIATELY upon written notice to Franchisee.

(b) If Franchisee does not have at least two (2) persons who have satisfactorily
completed the initial training program by the time the Restaurant is ready to open for business,
FRANCHISEE SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE IN DEFAULT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, in which
case:

0] FRANCHISOR MAY  TERMINATE THE  FRANCHISE
IMMEDIATELY upon written notice to Franchisee, in which case:

(A) Franchisee shall be entitled to no notice of default or
opportunity to cure prior to termination of the Franchise;

(B) Franchisee shall not be liable for damages due to its failure to
complete the initial training program; and
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© The provisions of Section 15.2, 15.6, and 15.7 shall apply in
connection with the termination of the Franchise; or

(i) Alternatively, Franchisor may elect not to terminate the Franchise, but
may exercise any other rights or remedies available to it by reason of Franchisee’s default.

5.6 Operations Manual. In order to protect the reputation and goodwill of Franchisor, to
maintain the standards of the Operational Plan, and to promote the goodwill of all Jet’s Pizza restaurants
and the Franchise System, Franchisor has prepared a confidential Operations Manual. Prior to opening
for business, Franchisee shall be given a copy of the Operations Manual, which may be provided
electronically. Franchisor may revise, replace, add, supplement, amend or otherwise modify the
Operations Manual from time to time and at any time, in its sole discretion. Franchisor may also revise,
replace, add, supplement, amend or otherwise modify any standard, specification, policy or procedure in
the Operations Manual unilaterally and under any condition, to any extent that Franchisor deems
necessary, advisable or desirable in its sole discretion to meet the competition, protect or enhance the
Marks, the Technology System or the Franchise System, or to alter or amend the Menu Items, products or
services of the Franchise System or the means of advertising, marketing, selling or deploying information
technology functions. Franchisee shall keep a copy of the current version of the Operations Manual at
the Restaurant. In case there is a dispute over its content, Franchisor’s master copy of the Operations
Manual controls. Franchisee agrees to keep the content of the Operations Manual confidential and not
disclose it to any person other than the Restaurant’s employees who need to know its content.

5.7 Opening Assistance. Franchisor shall provide an employee or representative to be
present at the Location for approximately eight (8) hours per day for three (3) days at a time to be
scheduled by the mutual agreement of Franchisor and Franchisee, but not later than the grand opening of
the Restaurant under Section 5.8. The employee or representative of Franchisor shall assist Franchisee
with the opening or grand opening of the Restaurant, including but not limited to advising Franchisee
about advertising and promotion. There is no additional fee or charge for the opening assistance
provided for under this Section 5.7.

5.8 Grand Opening. Franchisee shall hold a “grand opening” for the Restaurant pursuant to
this Section 5.8. With reasonable input from and coordination with Franchisee, Franchisor shall plan a
grand opening for the Restaurant. The format and content of the grand opening shall be determined by
Franchisor. The grand opening shall be held during the first two (2) months after the Commencement
Date, to be scheduled by the mutual agreement of Franchisor and Franchisee.

6. Restaurant Operations.

6.1 Best Efforts.

@) Franchisee covenants that during the term hereof, except as otherwise approved
in writing by Franchisor, Franchisee (or if Franchisee is a corporation or other entity, a principal of
Franchisee) or an individual designated by Franchisee and approved by Franchisor shall devote his or her
full time and best efforts to on-site management and operation of the Restaurant. Franchisor will approve
the individual designated by Franchisee if Franchisor determines, after review of all requested
background information, that the designated individual is qualified to assume the responsibility to
operate and manage the Restaurant. At Franchisor’s option, Franchisor may require that the individual
acquire an equity interest in the Franchise.

(b) Franchisee shall comply with all federal, state and local laws in connection with
its operations of the Restaurant and its occupancy and use of the Location.
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(c) Franchisee shall file all returns and pay all federal, state and local taxes related
to its ownership or operation of the Restaurant or occupancy of the Location.

(d) Franchisee shall pay its suppliers on a timely basis. Any default by Franchisee
in paying its suppliers shall be a default under Section 14 of this Agreement.

(e) Franchisee shall only operate the Restaurant pursuant to the Franchise System at

the Location, and shall operate no other business or produce or sell any other products at the Location.

Any breach of this clause (e) shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement.

6.2 Name and Telephone Numbers.

@) Business Name. If Franchisee is an entity, it CANNOT use the words, “Jet”,
“Jet’s”, “Jett” or “Jet’s Pizza”, nor any of the Marks as part of its name or email address, whether or not
the work or Mark is capitalized, and whether it is used as a separate word or combined with other letters
as part of a word. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor has the right to sublicense the Marks and
that any goodwill relating to Franchisee’s use of the Marks will inure to the benefit of the Franchisor and
Franchisor’s affiliates. Franchisee may not change its name or conduct business under any other name,
without the prior written consent of Franchisor. Franchisee shall not operate any business in connection
with the Marks other than the Restaurant. Upon the termination of this Agreement or the Franchise,
Franchisee shall immediately file a certificate to cancel any assumed names or other equivalent
registrations.

(b) Telephone Numbers. The telephone number or numbers of the Restaurant shall
be listed in any and all telephone directories under the name, “Jet’s Pizza”. Franchisee shall be
responsible for any security deposit that may be required, as well as all telephone charges. As discussed
in Section 15.2, upon the termination or expiration of the Franchise, Franchisor has the right to the
telephone number or numbers, or to have the telephone number or numbers assigned to another
franchisee of Franchisor.

6.3 Franchisee Employee Policy. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that, except as
otherwise provided in this Agreement, Franchisor does not have authority to exercise control over the
means or manners in which Franchisee operates the Restaurant. All Restaurant operations will be
determined by Franchisee in its own judgment, subject only to legal requirements, the terms of this
Agreement, and the standards, procedures and policies Franchisor prescribes for the preservation of the
goodwill associated with the Marks. Franchisee shall maintain a competent and conscientious staff who
have been trained in product preparation and general business operations in accordance with the
procedures set forth in the Operations Manual, and who meet required governmental health and
employment standards. Franchisee shall take such steps as are necessary to ensure that its employees do
not violate Franchisor’s policies relating to the use of any electronic medium (as described in Section 6.6
below), including, but not limited to, prohibiting employees from posting any information relating to
Franchisor, the Franchise System, or the Marks without Franchisor’s prior written approval. Franchisee
shall be solely responsible for all employment decisions of the Restaurant, including, without limitation,
those related to recruiting, hiring, firing, remuneration, personnel policies, benefits, record keeping,
supervision, safety, security, and discipline, and regardless of whether Franchisee received advice or
recommendations from Franchisor on such subjects. Any information Franchisor, or its affiliates,
provides about employment matters, whether voluntarily or in response to Franchisee’s request, and
whether directly or by means of any technology tools, is a recommendation only and not intended to
exercise control over Franchisee’s employees, their wages, hours or working conditions, or the means
and manner by which they carry out their duties. At any location where Franchisee communicates
information to its employees as a group, Franchisee shall display a prominent notice, in a form approved
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by Franchisor, informing employees that Franchisee, not Franchisor, is their employer.

6.4 Ongoing Training and Support.

@) Supervision by Qualified Manager. At all times, the operations of the Restaurant
must be supervised on a day-to-day basis by a person who has satisfactorily completed Franchisor’s
initial training program or who possesses the skills necessary to properly fulfill and discharge the
demands and responsibilities required by the Franchise System or this Agreement.

(b) Replacement of Manager. If a trained manager’s employment with Franchisee
terminates for any reason, Franchisee must, as soon as possible, employ a replacement manager who
either (i) satisfactorily completed Franchisor’s initial training program, or (ii) possesses the skills
necessary to properly fulfill and discharge the demands and responsibilities required by the Franchise
System or this Agreement. If Franchisee requests Franchisor to train a replacement manager, Franchisee
must pay Franchisor’s then current standard fee for the initial training program.

(©) Continuing Support. Once the Restaurant is open for business, Franchisor might
require Franchisee to attend and complete any training courses that Franchisor may periodically choose
to provide during the term of this Agreement. Franchisee agrees that any specific ongoing training,
consultation or advice provided by Franchisor does not create an obligation to continue to provide such
specific training or advice. Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, provide to be available for ongoing
support and consultation concerning the operations of the Restaurant, either at the request of Franchisee
or at the initiation of Franchisor. This support and consultation may be provided through a variety of
means, including visits to the Restaurant by representatives of Franchisor, other personal meetings, or via
telephone, mail, computer or other electronic means. Franchisor shall have no obligation, however, to
visit the Restaurant or meet or consult with Franchisee according to any schedule or any specified
number of times, rate, or frequency, or in equal humber or amount as Franchisor meets or consults with
other franchisees.

(d) Meetings, Seminars, Webinars and Training Programs.  Franchisor may
periodically hold or sponsor meetings of franchisees, seminars, webinars, or training programs.
Franchisor may require Franchisee’s attendance at any meeting, seminar or program. Franchisor shall
provide reasonable prior notice of any mandatory meetings, seminars, or programs. Franchisor reserves
the right to charge a fee for any meeting, seminar or program, and Franchisee shall be responsible for its
own costs of attendance at meetings, seminars, or programs, including but not limited to travel, meals,
and lodging.

(e) Additional Support and Training. If Franchisee desires additional support or
training at any time after the initial training program, beyond what is required under this Agreement,
Franchisor may provide such support or training, subject to the availability of qualified personnel, for an
hourly fee plus reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses. Franchisor’s hourly fees may be announced
from time to time, and shall be subject to change from time to time by Franchisor subject solely to its
discretion.

()] Injuries. Franchisee assumes all responsibility for any injuries sustained by
Franchisee, its principals, owners, managers or employees while attending training.

6.5 Compliance with Franchise System.

(@) Obligation to Conform with Standards, Specifications and Policies. Franchisee
agrees that its Restaurant shall at all times conform, in design, appearance, operation and otherwise, to
the standards, specifications and policies of the Franchise System, as contained in the Operations Manual
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or otherwise announced or adopted by Franchisor from time to time. Franchisor may adopt or announce
new standards, specifications or policies, or update or revise its existing standards, specifications or
policies, at any time. When announcing new or revised standards, specifications or policies, Franchisor
shall also announce the deadline for compliance, which must be reasonable.

(b) Approved Suppliers.

Q) Franchisor requires Franchisee to purchase some or all of its Technology
System, leasehold improvements, furniture, furnishings, fixtures, equipment, food ingredients, paper
products, signs, displays, video and security systems and other supplies used in the operation of the
Restaurant from suppliers approved by Franchisor and/or according to specifications prescribed by
Franchisor. Franchisor’s supplier standards, criteria and specifications for goods and services may be
changed from time to time by Franchisor in its sole discretion. The approved suppliers and/or
Franchisor’s specifications shall be set forth in the Operations Manual, or otherwise announced from
time to time, or provided upon request. Although they are not at present, Franchisor or its affiliates may
become approved suppliers for some or all items.

(i) Franchisee may ask Franchisor to approve a new supplier of certain
goods or services. Franchisee and the proposed new supplier must execute an Application for Approval
of Supplier, which lists general standards for suppliers. Furthermore, the proposed new supplier will
have to execute a confidentiality agreement and provide Franchisor with appropriate information and
samples for testing. Franchisor may prescribe a procedure for the evaluation of the proposed new
supplier and its products, which may include the submission of samples for testing, the submission of
information concerning the supplier and its products, the payment by Franchisee or the supplier of a
testing fee and any other costs or expenses incurred by Franchisor, and the supplier’s agreement to
reasonable terms and conditions. The current evaluation fee is shown in Schedule 1, but is subject to
revision by Franchisor from time to time. Franchisor will, within a reasonable period of time, evaluate
the proposed new supplier and its products or services, and decide whether to approve the proposed
supplier; and, if so, as to which products or services. The approval of a supplier may be conditioned
upon its execution of an agreement to pay rebates and an appropriate supply agreement with reasonable
terms and conditions required by Franchisor. Franchisor may grant or deny its approval in its sole
discretion. A new supplier’s approved status may be revoked for any breach or failure to fulfill
Franchisor’s supplier standards or criteria or Franchisor’s specifications for particular goods or services.

(c) Design and Appearance of Restaurant.

(M Compliance with Lease. Franchisee shall at all times keep the
Restaurant maintained and repaired in accordance with its lease, and in accordance with any standards,
specifications or policies issued from time to time by Franchisor, and shall otherwise fulfill its
obligations under its lease. Franchisee shall refrain from any activity which may jeopardize Franchisee’s
right to remain in possession of or to renew the lease for the Restaurant premises.

(i) Remodeling. Franchisee shall purchase new equipment, new computer
system and/or remodel, modernize, redecorate or renovate its Restaurant as necessary to comply with the
Franchise System, as modified from time to time. In no event shall Franchisee be entitled to more than
one (1) year to comply with any changes.

(d) Signs. All signs, displays, decorations, packaging, bags, and similar items used
in the operation of the Restaurant shall be purchased by Franchisee from approved suppliers and/or shall
conform to specifications prescribed periodically by Franchisor. In no event will Franchisee be entitled
to more than 90 days to comply with any changes.
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(e) Approved Menu. Franchisee must offer all menu items designated as mandatory
by Franchisor, and may not offer or sell any menu items that have not been approved by Franchisor. For
clarification, Franchisee shall not offer, sell, or advertise any alcoholic beverages at the Location without
the prior written consent of Franchisor, which consent shall be at Franchisor’s sole discretion. The
Operations Manual will list all approved menu items as well as their ingredients and recipes for
preparation. Franchisor may disapprove items previously approved, and Franchisee shall stop offering
them, provided that Franchisee shall have a reasonable amount of time to deplete any reasonable volume
of existing inventory. Franchisor reserves the right to authorize or test market certain menu items only in
certain markets; and Franchisor may designate certain menu items as mandatory only in certain
geographical regions.

(f Alcoholic Beverages, Vending Machines, Games, and Sundry Items. Franchisor
does not currently permit the offer, sale, or advertisement of any alcoholic beverages in Jet’s Pizza
restaurants. Franchisee shall not offer, sell or advertise any alcoholic beverages, or permit the sale of
alcoholic beverages at the Restaurant, without the prior written consent of Franchisor, which consent
shall be at Franchisor’s sole discretion. In no case shall the offer, sale, or advertisement of any alcoholic
beverages in Jet’s Pizza restaurant be considered part of the Franchise System. Franchisee shall not
install or allow at the Restaurant any vending machines, video games, pinball machines, other
coin-operated amusement devices, or the sale of cookies, candy, gum, or other sundry items without
Franchisor’s prior written consent. Franchisor shall have exclusive discretion regarding such equipment,
games and sundry items.

(9) Pick Up, Delivery Services.

Q) Except for “Special Events” as discussed in Section 8.6(a), Franchisee
may accept any pick up orders from inside or outside the Territory.

(i) Franchisee may accept delivery orders from inside the Territory, but
Franchisee’s ability to accept delivery orders from outside the Territory is subject to reasonable
restrictions imposed by Franchisor from time to time, such as to minimize interference with the territories
of other franchisees, or to ensure the quality of the pizza or other food being delivered.

(iii)  Subject to limitations set forth in subsection 6.5(g)(ii) above, the
provision of delivery services by Franchisee is mandatory. Franchisee shall ensure that all vehicles used
in making deliveries are in good repair, meet the minimum governmental standards for safety, operated
solely by persons who are properly licensed to operate such vehicles and are covered by adequate
insurance. Delivery service shall be provided throughout Franchisee’s hours of operation unless a lesser
schedule of delivery hours is specified by Franchisor. Franchisee shall offer delivery services to all
customers located within the Franchisee’s delivery area; provided, however, that delivery services may
be limited in areas that might present a danger to employees, but only under limited circumstances, and
only in accordance with the provisions of the Limited Delivery Service Policy as set forth in the
Operations Manual, as may be amended from time to time by Franchisor. All deliveries must be made in
strict compliance with all laws, regulations, rules of the road and due care and caution in the operation of
dellvery vehlcles Franchlsee may offer dellverles to be prowded by thlrd party contractors—heweve#

Hs—ewn—emp#eyees— Franchlsor does not and shall not otherW|se have or exercise any control over any of

Franchisee’s employees or independent contractors, and Franchisor does not otherwise have or exercise
any ownership, possession or control over any delivery vehicles used in Franchisee’s operations.

(h) Pricing. To the extent permitted by applicable law, Franchisor has the right to
establish maximum and/or minimum prices that Franchisee must follow for products and services.
Franchisor may also provide suggested prices that Franchisee is not required to follow. In the case of
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suggested prices, Franchisee is responsible for any additional costs incurred by Franchisee or Franchisor
to produce marketing and promotional materials for Franchisee containing prices deviating from those
suggested by Franchisor.

(M Access to Premises. Franchisor shall be entitled to access to the Restaurant
premises at any time during the Restaurant’s operating hours without notice, to observe the operations of
the Restaurant, inspect or test any of the equipment or products at the Restaurant and to determine
Franchisee’s compliance with this Agreement or the Operations Manual. If any inspection indicates
deficiency or non-compliance with the Agreement or the Operations Manual, Franchisee shall correct or
repair such deficiency or non-compliance within seventy-two (72) hours after Franchisee receives a
written report of deficiency from Franchisor, unless otherwise indicated in such report.

() Technology System; Online Ordering.

Q) Franchisee shall obtain and maintain the required Technology System, as
contained in the Operations Manual or otherwise announced or adopted by Franchisor from time to time.
The required Technology System (or any part thereof) may be revised, from time to time, by Franchisor
in its sole discretion. Franchisor requires that such Technology System (or any parts thereof) be
purchased, leased, licensed, programmed, installed, or reprogrammed or re-installed from or by approved
suppliers.

(i) Franchisee is required to offer an online ordering option for all items in
the approved menu in accordance with the system approved or mandated by Franchisor, which may
include, but is not limited to, digital sales on websites, mobile apps, digital coupons, gift card program,
loyalty programs, remote kiosks, text-to-order, and any other means of digital sales. Prior to the
Commencement Date, Franchisee shall set up an online ordering and credit card payments system in
accordance with the requirements set forth by Franchisor and the Payment Card Industry Data Security
Standards (PCI DSS), including tokenized credit card readers. Franchisee shall comply with all the
updates and required maintenance prescribed by the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards
Council, including purchase of necessary hardware and software. Franchisee shall report any known
vulnerability or breach of the PCI DSS immediately to Franchisor and provide proof of compliance upon
request by Franchisor.

(iii)  Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor may have direct access to
Franchisee’s business data online through the POS System. Franchisee will give Franchisor free and
unfettered access and the right to retrieve any data or information directly from any component of the
Technology System as Franchisor may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate. Franchisor may retrieve
such data or information electronically or manually. Franchisee is responsible for reasonable costs
associated with the conveyance of sales data and analytics to Franchisor. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Franchisee will not be asked to provide Franchisor with any data or information related to employment
practices as part of Franchisor’s ordinary business practices. All data provided by Franchisee, uploaded
to Franchisor’s system from Franchisee’s system, and/or downloaded to Franchisee’s system from
Franchisor’s system, is and will be owned exclusively by Franchisor, and Franchisor will have the right
to use such data in any manner that Franchisor deems appropriate without compensation to Franchisee. In
addition, all other data created or collected by Franchisee in connection with the Franchise System, or in
connection with Franchisee’s operation of the Restaurant (including but not limited to consumer and
transaction data), is and will be owned exclusively by Franchisor during the term of, and following
termination or expiration of, this Agreement. Copies and/or originals of such data must be provided to
Franchisor upon Franchisor’s request. Franchisor hereby grants a non-exclusive license back to
Franchisee to use such data, at no additional cost, solely for the term of this Agreement and solely in
connection with the establishment and operation of the Restaurant pursuant to this Agreement.
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Franchisor may require Franchisee to replace the POS System or other Technology System every 3 years
to update or replace software or cloud -based services used by the POS System or other Technology
System as directed by Franchisor, which may be on a more frequent basis.

(iv) Franchisor may require Franchisee to enter into certain licenses or other
agreements with Franchisor or third parties designated by Franchisor to use proprietary or licensed
software developed by or for Franchisor or for franchisees, in connection with the Technology System.
Franchisee further acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor has the right to charge reasonable fees for
software or systems modifications and enhancements specifically made for Franchisor that are licensed to
Franchisee and other maintenance and support services that Franchisor or Franchisor’s affiliates furnish
to Franchisee related to the Technology System.

(v) Franchisee acknowledges that technology is dynamic and changes are
not predictable within the term of this Agreement. Franchisee has the right to periodically establish, in
writing, new standards, specifications, and components of any Technology System to address new
technologies and to implement those changes into the Technology System. Franchisee shall abide by any
new standards established by us and you shall pay all fees associated with such new standards. Such new
standards, specifications, and components of any Technology System may require Franchisee to
purchase, lease, or license new or modified computer items or to obtain service and support for the
Technology System. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor cannot estimate the future costs of any
Technology System items or required service or support, but that Franchisee shall incur the costs of
obtaining such Technology System items (and additions and modifications) and required service or
support, and to ensure it is functioning properly in the Restaurant, within 90 days after notice thereof.
Franchisor may also, from time-to-time, specify in the Operations Manual (or otherwise in writing) the
information that Franchisee must collect and maintain in the Technology System installed at the
Restaurant. Franchisee shall abide by all applicable privacy and data protection laws pertaining to the
collection, use, processing, integrity, security, and transfer of consumer, employee, transactional, or other
personally identifiable information. Franchisee shall ensure that any personally identifiable information
is collected only with express or implied consent of the data subject and that all data to be shared with or
transferred to Franchisor has been collected in compliance with a privacy policy that allows such sharing
or transfer. Franchisee shall not publish, disseminate, implement, revise, or rescind a data privacy policy
without Franchisor’s prior written consent.

(vi) Should the Franchisee become aware of any flaw, fault or error in the
programming, operation, or functionality of any Technology System, Franchisee shall promptly notify
Franchisor of such flaw, fault, or error.

6.6 Websites; Domain Names; Electronic Marketing.

(@) Websites. Franchisor shall have the right to require that Franchisee have one or
more references or webpage(s), as designated and approved in advance by Franchisor, within
Franchisor’s primary consumer website(s), including, but not limited to, www.jetspizza.com. Except as
approved in advance in writing by Franchisor, Franchisee shall not establish or maintain a separate
website, social media, or internet site (e.g., Facebook page, Twitter account) in connection with the
Restaurant.

(b) Ownership of Domain Names. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that

Franchisor owns all internet domain names, URLS, user names, and internet page names that include any

of the Marks. Franchisee further acknowledges and agrees that if Franchisor grants its approval for

Franchisee’s use of a generic, national, and/or regionalized domain name, Franchisor shall have the right

to own and control said domain name at all times and may license it to Franchisee for the term of this

Agreement on such terms and conditions as Franchisor may require (including, but not limited to, the
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requirement that Franchisee reimburse Franchisor’s costs for doing so). If Franchisee already owns any
domain names, or hereafter registers any domain names, then Franchisee agrees that if shall notify
Franchisor in writing and assign said domain names to Franchisor and/or a designee that Franchisor
specifies in writing.

(c) Electronic Marketing and Electronic Communications. Unless agreed to in
writing by Franchisor, Franchisee shall not use, register, maintain, or sponsor any social networking
channel, blog, messaging system, email account, user name, text address, mobile application, or other
electronic, mobile, or internet presence that uses or displays any of the Marks (or any derivatives thereof)
or that promotes any products or services of the Restaurant. Franchisee acknowledges that the use of any
electronic medium constitutes advertising and promotion subject to Franchisor’s approval under Section
7.5. Franchisee agrees not to transmit or cause any other party to transmit advertisements or solicitations
by telephone, e-mail, text message, instant message, social networking website, VolP, streaming media,
electronic business listings/POI data (google maps, apple maps, bing maps, etc.) or other electronic
media without first obtaining Franchisor’s written consent as to: (a) the content of such advertisements or
solicitations, and (b) the type of media intended to be used. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor is
the sole owner of all customer contact information, including, but not limited to: email addresses, mailing
addresses, telephone numbers, instant messaging usernames, and so on. All telephonic answering
messages, email auto-signatures, and other identifiers of the Restaurant must be in the form prescribed by
Franchisor. If Franchisor approves the use of an electronic medium (which Franchisor is not obligated to
approve, and which approval, if granted, may later be revoked by Franchisor for any reason), such
approval will be conditioned upon Franchisee’s compliance with any standards and procedures issued by
Franchisor with respect to that type of electronic medium, as well as compliance with the following
requirements:

Q) Franchisee shall not substantially modify its use of the approved
electronic medium without first obtaining Franchisor’s written approval of the proposed modifications;

(i) Franchisee’s use of the approved electronic medium shall contain such
disclaimers, warnings, and other statements as Franchisor may periodically prescribe in the Operations
Manual or otherwise in writing, including, but not limited to, a clear and obvious statement that the use
of the electronic medium is for a local restaurant operated by Franchisee and is not operated, sponsored,
or endorsed by Franchisor;

(iii) If required by Franchisor, Franchisee shall establish such hyperlinks to
Franchisor’s website(s) and other websites as Franchisor may request in writing; and

(iv) Franchisee shall not use any electronic medium to post any information
relating to Franchisor, the Franchise System or the Marks without Franchisor’s prior written approval;
and Franchisee shall not make any posting or other contribution that (a) is derogatory, disparaging, or
critical of Franchisor, (b) is offensive, inflammatory, or indecent, or (c) harms the goodwill and public
image of the Franchise System and/or the Marks.

6.7 Changes to Technology.

@) Franchisee acknowledges that changes to technology are dynamic and not
predictable or definable within the term of this Agreement. In order to provide for inevitable but
unpredictable changes to technological needs and opportunities, Franchisor has the right to periodically
establish, in writing, reasonable new standards, specifications, and components of the Technology
System to address new technologies and to implement those changes into the Franchise System.
Franchisee shall abide by any new reasonable standards established by Franchisor and Franchisee shall
pay all fees associated with such new reasonable standards, specifications and components. Such new
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standards, specifications, and components of the Technology System due to technological developments
or events, may require Franchisee to purchase, lease, or license new or modified components of the
Technology System or to obtain service and support for components of Technology System. Franchisor
cannot estimate the future costs of any Technology System or required service or support; Franchisee
must incur the costs of obtaining such Technology System (and additions and modifications) and
required service or support. Unless otherwise specified, within ninety (90) days after Franchisor delivers
written notice to Franchisee, Franchisee must obtain the Technology System components Franchisor has
designated and ensure that the Technology System, as modified, is functioning properly. Franchisee
agrees to abide by and fully adopt and implement those reasonable new standards, specifications, and/or
components established by us as if this Section 6.7 were periodically revised by it for that purpose.

(b) Franchisor may require Franchisee to replace the POS System as frequently as
every three (3) years. Franchisor may require Franchisee to update or replace software or cloud based
services used by the POS System or other Technology System component as directed by Franchisor,
which may be on a more frequent basis than every three (3) years. These replacements or updates must be
completed by Franchisee, at its sole cost and expense, within the time frame designated by Franchisor in
writing. If Franchisee fails to meet this deadline, Franchisor may, at its option, engage the approved
suppliers, contractors or vendors to make the required replacement or upgrade and charge Franchisee the
Franchisor’s costs for such replacement or upgrade plus a reasonable fee for coordinating and overseeing
the replacement. Franchisee shall fully cooperate to ensure that such programming changes or updates
are accomplished and are not altered.

6.8 Technology Fee. Franchisor may institute the Technology Fee upon 90 days written
notice to Franchisee. The Technology Fee shall be used to fund technology expenditures as determined
by Franchisor and may include but are not limited to providing the Franchise System with general
assistance and guidance on Technology Systems, technology-related matters, researching and developing
new technologies such as hardware, software and cloud-based services, network maintenance and
upgrading, website internet/intranet capabilities and internal and external data storage and archiving.
Whether or not the Technology Fee is collected from Franchisee, Franchisee is required (and the
Technology Fee does not cover) the amounts Franchisee will need to spend on Technology Systems in
accordance with the provisions of this Section 6, which are in addition to the Technology Fee. Franchisor
shall have complete discretion as to the use and allocation of the amounts collected from Technology Fee
payments, which may be used for payment of salaries, wages and benefits, direct program costs and/or
overhead expenses related to the above-described activities. With respect to the collection, use or
expenditure of the Technology Fee, Franchisor has no obligation to: (i) do so from Franchisee or any
other franchisee; (ii) ensure equivalent or proportionate collection, use or expenditures; (iii) ensure that
you or the Restaurant benefits directly, pro rata or at all from the Technology Fee; or (iv) provide an
accounting to Franchisee or any franchisee.

6.9 Franchisee as Independent Owner. Franchisee shall identify itself and prominently
exhibit on the premises of the Restaurant (with a decal, sign or other exhibit to be provided by
Franchisor) advising the public that the Restaurant is independently owned, operated and maintained by
Franchisee. All delivery vehicles used in the operation of the Restaurant are owned, operated and
maintained by Franchisee, the driver of the vehicle or a third party delivery company, as the case may be.
All business cards, letterheads and other business materials shall clearly identify that Franchisee is the
owner of the Restaurant in accordance with the rules or policies Franchisor may establish from time to
time in the Operations Manual or otherwise in writing. In addition, subject to rules and policies that may
be established from time to time, all local advertising, shall either indicate that Franchisee is the owner of

the Restaurant in the print material, or that the Restaurant is locally owned and operated.

7. Advertising. Recognizing the value of advertising and promotion, and the importance of the
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standardization of advertising and promotional programs to the furtherance of the goodwill and public
image of the Franchise System, the parties agree as follows:

7.1 Advertising Territory. Effective upon the Effective Date if the Location is specified at
that time in connection with the renewal or transfer of a Franchise, or once the Location has been
selected, approved and secured if this Agreement is entered into in connection with the grant of a new
Franchise, the Franchisee’s advertising territory shall comprise the same area as the Territory (the
“Advertising Territory”), unless the parties expressly agree otherwise in writing on Schedule 2.
Franchisee shall have limited rights to advertise a Jet’s Pizza restaurant in the Advertising Territory
identified by the Marks and using the Franchise System. Other than through a general or regional
advertising fund or otherwise in cooperation with or with the consent of Franchisor, Franchisee may
advertise only in the Advertising Territory, subject to restrictions and guidelines periodically imposed by
Franchisor, including without limitation, requiring a prominent notice on printed materials to the
following effect: “GOOD ONLY AT XYZ LOCATION”. If another franchisee is in close proximity,
Franchisee must use reasonable efforts to coordinate the advertising with the other franchisee, or to
conduct joint advertising. This requirement applies, but is not limited to, internet and/or media
advertising.

7.2 Minimum Advertising Spending Obligation. Franchisee must spend a minimum amount
per month on its own, local advertising as shown in Schedule 1, which minimum amount shall not
include General Advertising Fees, but shall include the amount of Regional Advertising Fees paid as well
as any other advertising activities conducted by Franchisee. For purposes of satisfying this minimum
spending obligation, advertising expenses in excess of the minimum amount required in a particular
month may be counted toward the spending obligation in the immediately preceding or the immediately
following month, but may not be “carried over” or “carried back” more than one (1) month. Franchisor
may allow Franchisee to satisfy its minimum spending obligation by participating in certain campaigns
and franchise system programs. Franchisor may allow Franchisee to defer its minimum spending
obligations, in Franchisor’s its sole discretion. Franchisee’s minimum spending requirement is subject to
audit by Franchisor.

7.3 General Advertising Fund. Franchisee is required to pay the General Advertising Fee to a
general advertising fund administered by Franchisor or its designee (“General Advertising Fund”). The
amount of the required contributions, if any, shall be announced by Franchisor from time to time.
Contributions to the General Advertising Fund shall be reported and paid by Franchisee at the same time
and in the same manner as royalties.

@) Franchisee irrevocably appoints Franchisor to make advertising decisions for the
benefit of Franchisee with respect to monies allocated to the General Advertising Fund, including the
power to negotiate advertising arrangements with advertising agencies and to authorize the expenditure
of funds held by the General Advertising Fund to pay for third party advertising services and marketing
campaigns. Franchisee acknowledges that: (i) the contributions to the General Advertising Fund are
being made for advertising services and marketing campaigns that benefit Franchisee; and (ii) the
General Advertising Fund holds the funds received from Franchisee and serves as a conduit to pay
Franchisor and other third parties who will provide the actual services that benefit Franchisee.

(b) The General Advertising Fund shall be maintained and operated for the benefit
of Jet’s Pizza restaurants and the Franchise System generally. Franchisor may use the General
Advertising Fund only for expenses related to advertising and promotional materials and activities
directed primarily at customers of one or more Jet’s Pizza restaurants, including but not limited
production, administrative costs, social media, advertising agency fees, and information technology
programs and enhancements facilitating ordering, sales and promotions. Franchisor shall have absolute
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discretion in decisions regarding the production of advertising materials, including but not limited to how
the Marks are portrayed. The General Advertising Fund may also be used for media costs if reasonably
intended to benefit Jet’s Pizza restaurants and the Franchise System generally, such as a national radio or
television advertising program. Franchisor may not use the General Advertising Fund for any advertising
activities directed primarily at potential buyers of franchises.

(c) Franchisor shall direct all advertising and promotional programs, with the right
to control the creative concepts, materials, and media used in such programs and the placement and
allocation thereof. Franchisee agrees and acknowledges that one of Franchisor’s objectives is to
maximize general public recognition and acceptance of the Marks for the benefit of the Franchise
System, and that Franchisor is not obligated to make expenditures for Franchisee which are equivalent or
proportionate to Franchisee’s contribution, or to ensure that Franchisee benefits directly or pro rata from
the advertising or promotion conducted by Franchisor.

(d) Franchisor may commingle the General Advertising Fund with its other funds,
but shall keep a separate accounting of them. Franchisees may review a copy of the financial statement
concerning contributions to and expenses of the General Advertising Fund at our office upon reasonable
request. — These statements need not be audited or prepared by independent accountants.

(e) Franchisor may generate funds for the General Advertising Fund from rebates or
other sources and may elect not to require additional contributions from Franchisee, provided that such
election shall not waive Franchisor’s rights under this Agreement or otherwise preclude Franchisor from
requiring such contributions in the future.

U] Franchisor has a sole discretion in making all decisions relating to the amount of
funds spent by the General Advertising Fund on advertising each fiscal year. In case Franchisor elects not
to spend all of the funds of the General Advertising Fund, it may elect to distribute such funds to the
Franchisee on the basis of its contribution.

9) Franchisor retains the right to terminate the General Advertising Fund and/or
replace it with another advertising fund at any time; provided, however, that the General Advertising
Fund shall not be terminated until all monies in it have been expended for purposes authorized by this
Section 7.3 or transferred to the successor advertising fund.

7.4 Regional Advertising. Franchisor may establish a regional advertising fund when it
determines, subject solely to its discretion, that there are enough Jet’s Pizza restaurants located in a
geographical area to realize economies of scale or other advantages. Franchisor shall have the discretion
to decide the boundaries of the region, and may change the boundaries from time to time, may merge two
(2) or more regions into a single region or nationally, and may split a region into multiple regions. All
Jet’s Pizza restaurants in a region must contribute to and participate in the regional advertising fund. If
the Restaurant is located in a region with a regional advertising fund, Franchisee agrees to participate in
and pay the contributions applicable to such regional advertising fund (the “Regional Advertising Fee”).

@) The legal structure of each regional advertising fund shall be subject to
Franchisor’s discretion, and may include a corporation, cooperative, or unincorporated association. Each
regional advertising fund shall be structured to provide each Jet’s Pizza restaurant an opportunity to
participate in the decision-making process, provided that Franchisor shall have absolute discretion in
decisions regarding the production, form, format, display and content of advertising materials, including
but not limited to how the Marks are portrayed.

(b) The amount of the Regional Advertising Fee applicable to each regional
advertising fund shall be specified by Franchisor, and shall apply uniformly to all Jet’s Pizza restaurants
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in a region. The amount of the Regional Advertising Fee may be a percentage of gross sales, a
percentage of Acquired Inventory, or any other formula that is applied uniformly to all Jet’s Pizza
restaurants in the regional advertising fund. The current contribution formula, if any, is shown in
Schedule 1. The Regional Advertising Fee shall be paid to Franchisor together with and in the same
manner as Franchisee’s royalty payment. The regional advertising fund may impose additional
contributions pursuant to the rules and procedure established by such regional advertising fund.

(c) Regional Advertising Fees are intended to be used generally to enhance
recognition of the Marks and patronage of Jet’s Pizza restaurants and enhance and promote the Franchise
System in the applicable geographical area, DMA or other territory in which the Restaurant is located,
such as for expenses relating to broadcast television, outdoor advertising, radio, sponsorships of sports
teams or events, print advertising and the use of any electronic, social media, and other internet based
advertising and promotional materials and activities Franchisor may not use the Regional Advertising
Fees for any advertising activities directed primarily at potential buyers of franchises, except as may
incidentally result from its general advertising activities.

(d) Franchisor shall maintain a separate account for Regional Advertising Fee
contributions, and may not commingle such funds with its other funds. Franchisees may review a copy
of the financial statement concerning the regional advertising fund contributions and expenses at our
office upon reasonable request. These statements need not be audited or prepared by independent
accountants.

(e) Franchisor is not required to spend any amounts on advertising in a region for
the direct benefit of the Restaurant. For the expenditure of the General Advertising Fees or Regional
Advertising Fees, Franchisor has no obligation to: (i) make expenditures which are equivalent or
proportionate to the Restaurant’s contributions or the contributions of any other franchisee; (ii) ensure
that the Restaurant benefits directly or pro rata from the placement of any advertising, marketing or
promotional campaigns or ensure that any such activities directly benefit the Restaurant.

7.5 Advertising Materials.

@) All advertising and advertising materials that Franchisee, the General
Advertising Fund or regional advertising fund desire to use are subject to the prior written approval of
Franchisor, including but not limited to advertising via the internet or a website. Franchisor shall have
absolute discretion in decisions regarding the content of the advertisements and how the Marks are
portrayed.

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, all communication and correspondence with
Jet’s Pizza customers or the general public concerning one or more Jet’s Pizza restaurants or the Jet’s
Pizza Franchise System shall be deemed to be advertising, whether via regular mail, electronic
communication, or otherwise, including but not limited to the Internet, websites, social networking
groups, video, email, weblog, twitter, text message or any other form of media intended for the general
public, and whether or the mode of communication exists today or is developed in the future.

(c) Samples of advertising not prepared by Franchisor shall be submitted to
Franchisor for approval prior to their use by Franchisee. Unless otherwise authorized by Franchisor,
samples shall be submitted by email (approvals@jetspizza.com).

(d) Franchisor shall have the right to disapprove the use of any advertising materials
previously approved, by written notice to Franchisee, provided that Franchisee shall have a reasonable
amount of time to deplete any existing supplies of such advertising.
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(e) Franchisee shall not make any communication or correspondence, whether via
regular mail, electronic communication, or otherwise, including, but not limited to the internet, websites,
social networking groups, video, email, weblog, twitter, text message or any other form of media existing
today or in the future, relating to Franchisor, the Franchise System, the Marks, the Franchise or the
Restaurant (the “Business™) that (i) is derogatory, disparaging, or critical of the Business, (ii) is
offensive, inflammatory, or indecent, or (iii) harms the goodwill or public image of the Business.
Franchisee shall be responsible for the communications and correspondences of its employees, and
Franchisee shall take such steps as are necessary to ensure that its employees do not make
communications or correspondences that negatively impact the Business.

(f If Franchisee desires to advertise with a vendor not previously approved by
Franchisor, prior written approval by Franchisor is required pursuant to Section 6.5(b)(ii), and the vendor
must also complete and sign a Limited License Agreement prior to using any Marks of Franchisor.

7.6 Coordination of Advertising Activities. Franchisor shall have the right to establish
policies and restrictions regarding advertising activities from time to time, including, but not limited to,
policies to coordinate advertising activities with other franchisees in nearby territories, and policies
relating to online advertising.

7.7 Copyrights and Other Rights. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor owns
all copyrights and other rights to and ownership of all existing and future marketing, advertising, and
promotional materials, tangible and intangible, that contain any of the Marks or that otherwise relate to
the Restaurant, regardless of the party that created such materials. Franchisee shall (and shall cause its
employees and agents to) sign all documents required by Franchisor to confirm this ownership.

7.8 Promotional Programs.

@) Franchisee shall participate in promotional programs, including loyalty programs
developed by Franchisor for the Franchise System, in the manner directed by Franchisor in the
Operations Manual or otherwise in writing. At Franchisee’s sole cost and expense, Franchisee may be
required, without limitation, to provide customers who redeem points earned in loyalty programs with
free items or delivery services for subsequent purchases, and to purchase or lease any software, hardware
or other items needed to participate in and accept customer incentives from the loyalty program, as
required by the Operations Manual and from a supplier(s) designated by Franchisor. The Operations
Manual may establish other rules, guidelines, standards and specifications for these programs. Franchisor
reserves the right to institute, modify, cancel or terminate any promotional programs, in its sole
discretion, from time to time. Franchisee shall not participate in or institute any other customer loyalty
programs without Franchisor’s prior written consent.

(b) Additionally, Franchisee shall sell or otherwise issue gift cards (“Gift Cards™)
through the gift card program administered by Franchisor. The Gift Card is an electronic cash card
available for purchase and redemption at any Jet’s Pizza restaurant and customers may redeem the
balance (or any portion thereof) for food and beverage purchases. Franchisee shall fully honor all Gift
Cards regardless of whether a Gift Card was issued directly or indirectly by Franchisee, Franchisor or
another franchisee. Customers may also increase or replenish balances available on Gift Cards.

(c) The monthly fees for participation in the loyalty and gift card programs is set
forth in Schedule 1, which fees may be increased or decreased in the future to cover administrative costs,
at the Franchisor’s discretion. These fees are currently counted towards Franchisee’s minimum monthly
advertising spending requirements, but Franchisor reserves the right to separate these fees from the
minimum monthly advertising spending requirements and charge the fees in addition to any other fee or
spending requirement. The Operations Manual will establish any and all rules, guidelines, standards and
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specifications regarding the loyalty program and Gift Cards.

7.9 Franchisor Advertising. Franchisor may, from time to time in its sole discretion, expend
its own funds and resources to produce and purchase marketing and promotional materials and conduct
such advertising as Franchisor deems necessary or desirable. In any discretionary advertising, marketing,
or promotional effort conducted solely by or on behalf of Franchisor, Franchisor shall have sole
discretion over the content, form, and geographic distribution of such efforts and materials, and
Franchisor shall have no obligation to expend any funds or resources in Franchisee’s Territory or to
provide or sell to Franchisee any advertising, marketing, or promotional materials produced by or on
behalf of Franchisor.

8. Books, Records and Reporting.

8.1 Reporting Requirements. Franchisor shall periodically prescribe the reports required of
Franchisee, and the frequency and manner of reporting. Reporting requirements may encompass
financial and non-financial matters, and the manner of reporting may be via facsimile, computer or other
telecommunications equipment. Franchisor may change the reporting requirements from time to time.
Franchisee shall comply with reporting requirements periodically prescribed by Franchisor, and if
necessary Franchisee shall acquire and maintain a computer or other equipment necessary to fulfill its
reporting requirements.

8.2 Reporting by Suppliers. Franchisor shall be entitled to information from Franchisee’s
suppliers concerning Franchisee’s purchase of Acquired Inventory, and any other dealings between them
concerning Franchisor, the Franchise or the Franchise System. Franchisor shall be entitled to prescribe
the form and content of any such reports, as a condition to any such supplier being approved as an
approved supplier. Franchisee hereby authorizes any such supplier to disclose to Franchisor any such
information requested by Franchisor; and such suppliers shall be third party beneficiaries of this
authorization to release information. Franchisee shall cooperate in executing any other document or
agreement reasonably requested by Franchisor or any supplier to authorize the release of such
information.

8.3 Accounting Methods. Franchisee shall keep its books and records according to
acceptable accounting principles, consistently applied. Franchisee shall at all times employ competent
accountants or bookkeepers (either employees or independent professionals) to assist in complying with
required reporting. If Franchisor reasonably determines any such accountant or bookkeeper to be
incompetent, Franchisee shall replace him or her.

8.4 Right to Inspect. Franchisor or its agents may, at any reasonable time, upon reasonable
prior notice, inspect the books, records, tax returns, and other financial information of Franchisee, and of
its owners, officers, directors, and key employees. Franchisor may, at any time, retain one or more
accountants to audit Franchisee’s books and records for any period of time. If an audit discloses any
underpayment of royalties, contributions required for advertising or any other fees by Franchisee,
Franchisee shall immediately pay the deficiency to Franchisor, and if the deficiency exceeds five percent
(5%) of the correct amount Franchisee shall also immediately pay or reimburse Franchisor for the cost of
the audit.

8.5 Maintenance of Books and Records. Franchisee shall maintain all books and records
related to the Franchise, whether written, in the form of electronic media, or otherwise, for a minimum of
three (3) years after the time period to which they relate. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to
the contrary, Franchisee is responsible for maintaining and preserving records for longer periods if
required by any applicable Federal, State or local laws or regulations.
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8.6 Reservation of Rights. Franchisor reserves all other rights not granted to Franchisee in
this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth below.

@) Franchisor reserves the right to supply “Special Events” in the Territory. For
purposes of this agreement, “Special Events” mean banquets, receptions, picnics, parties, fairs, sporting
events, or other events where the volume of the order may be beyond Franchisee’s normal capacity.
Franchisee shall notify Franchisor of any order it receives for a Special Event in the Territory.
Franchisor shall use its reasonable discretion whether to allow Franchisee to accept the order, to
coordinate with other franchisees to fill the order, to fill the order itself, or to refuse the order.

(b) Franchisor reserves the right to open, operate and license others to own and
operate restaurants, facilities or outlets operating under one or more of the Marks, but using a design,
format or system materially different from the Franchise System, such as but not limited to sit-down
restaurants serving more and different menu items than Jet’s Pizza restaurants using the Franchise
System; Non-Traditional Restaurants; and carts, kiosks and satellite units that may offer a more limited
menu of items.

(c) Franchisor reserves the right to distribute or sell goods bearing one or more of
the Marks at wholesale or retail, such as frozen pizza, canned pizza sauce, or other ingredients.

(d) Franchisor reserves the right to open, operate and license others to own and
operate restaurants, stores or other facilities operating under one or more of the Marks as well as under
one or more other trademarks, service marks or franchise systems.

(e) Franchisor reserves the right to develop, operate and change the Franchise
System in any manner that is not specifically prohibited by this Agreement.

(f Franchisor reserves the right to provide different levels of service to any
franchise owner based upon the peculiarities or factors that Franchisor considers important to that
franchise owner’s successful operation.

8.7 Corporate Franchisee. Except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, if
Franchisee is a corporation, it shall: (a) furnish Franchisor with copies of its articles and bylaws and such
other documents as Franchisor may request, and any amendments thereto; (b) confine its activities, and
its governing documents shall at all times provide that its activities are confined, exclusively to operating
the Restaurant; (c) maintain stop transfer instructions on its records against the transfer of any equity
securities and only issue securities upon the face of which a legend appears, in a form satisfactory to
Franchisor, which references the transfer restrictions imposed by this Agreement; (d) not issue any voting
securities or securities convertible into voting securities other than with Franchisor’s consent and in
compliance with all other applicable provisions of this Agreement; and (e) maintain a current list of all
owners of record and all beneficial owners of Franchisee and furnish the list to Franchisor upon request.

8.8 Partnership Franchisee. If Franchisee is a partnership it shall: (a) furnish Franchisor with
copies of its partnership agreement and such other documents as Franchisor may request, and any
amendments thereto; and (b) prepare and furnish to Franchisor, upon request, a current list of all general
and limited partners in Franchisee.

8.9 Limited Liability Company Franchisee. If Franchisee is a limited liability company, it
shall: (i) furnish Franchisor with copies of its articles of organization and operating agreement, as well as
such other documents as Franchisor may request, and any amendments thereto; (ii) prepare and furnish to
Franchisor, upon request, a current list of all members and managers in Franchisee; and (iii) maintain
stop transfer instructions on its records against the transfer of any membership units and, if such units are
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certificated, ensure that the certificates bear a legend, in a form satisfactory to Franchisor, which
references the transfer restrictions imposed by this Agreement.

9. Liability, Insurance and Indemnification.

9.1 Liability. Franchisee shall be responsible for all losses and damage to persons and

property related to its ownership, occupation or operation of the Restaurant—erthe—oceupation—-ofthe-
premises and Franchisee’s business, including all delivery services.

9.2 Insurance. Franchisee shall procure, prior to the opening of the Restaurant, and
maintain, at all times thereafter, the insurance coverage prescribed by Franchisor in the Operations
Manual, or otherwise. For avoidance of doubt, Franchisee is required to procure each of the insurance
policies required by Franchisor, including, for example, automobile insurance even if Franchisee does
not own, lease or operate any vehicles used for deliveries. In such cases, Franchisee would be required to
procure non-owner automobile insurance that covers bodily injury and property damage caused by
vehicles hired or caused by non-owned vehicles, which is specific coverage added to Franchisee’s
general liability policy. The insurance companies are subject to the approval of Franchisor, which will
not be unreasonably withheld. Each insurance policy shall (a) list Franchisor and its shareholders,
directors, employees, and agents as additional insureds; (b) provide for thirty (30) days’ prior written
notice to Franchisor before cancellation; (c) give Franchisor the right to pay any overdue amounts to
avoid cancellation; and (d) contain a waiver by Franchisee and its insurers of their subrogation rights
against Franchisor and its affiliates and their respective shareholders, directors, employees, and agents.
Franchisee shall immediately reimburse Franchisor upon demand for any amount paid by Franchisor on
Franchisee’s behalf to maintain an insurance policy. Franchisee shall furnish Franchisor with proof of
insurance listing Franchisor and its shareholders, directors, employees, and agents as additional insureds
before the commencement of construction of the Restaurant, if this Agreement is entered into in
connection with the grant of a new Franchise, or upon the Effective Date, if this Agreement is entered
into in connection with the renewal or transfer of a Franchise, as well as at each insurance renewal, and
periodically upon request by Franchisor.

9.3 Franchisor’s Insurance. Franchisee’s obligation to obtain and maintain the foregoing
policy or policies in the amounts specified shall not be limited in any way by reason of any insurance
which may be maintained by Franchisor, nor shall Franchisee’s performance of that obligation relieve it
of liability under the indemnity provisions set forth in Section 9.5 of this Agreement.

94 Additional Required Endorsements. All public liability and property damage policies
shall contain a provision that Franchisor, although named as an additional insured, shall nevertheless be
entitled to recover under such policies on any loss occasioned to Franchisor or its shareholders, directors,
employees, and agents by reason of their negligence.

9.5 Indemnification. Franchisee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Franchisor, its
employees, agents and attorneys, and other franchisees, their employees, agents and attorneys, from and
against any and all claims, liabilities, losses, costs, or expenses (including reasonable attorney fees)
arising out of Franchisee’s construction, maintenance, operation or other activities related to the
Restaurant, its ownership of its assets, its occupation of its premises, its or its affiliates” attendance and
participation in training, its current and past employees, employment and personnel decisions, including
alleged misclassification by the franchisee and wage-and-hour violations, and applicants for employment,
and including related to any claim, lawsuit or proceeding related to the Restaurant. Franchisee shall
promptly notify Franchisor in writing of any claim, action, suit, or proceeding, or the issuance of any
judgment, order or decree of any court, agency or tribunal that may be subject to this indemnity, or may
adversely affect the financial condition of Franchisee, its ability to operate the Restaurant, its ability to
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continue to occupy the premises, or its ability to meet its obligations under this Agreement.

9.6 Certificates of Insurance. At least ten (10) days prior to the time any insurance is first
required to be carried by Franchisee, and thereafter at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of any
policy, Franchisee shall deliver to Franchisor Certificates of Insurance (“Certificates™) evidencing the
proper types and minimum amounts of coverage. All Certificates shall expressly provide that no fewer
than thirty (30) days’ prior written notice shall be given to Franchisor in the event of material alteration
to or cancellation or non-renewal of the coverages evidenced by such Certificates. Certificates
evidencing the insurance required by this Section shall name Franchisor and each of shareholders,
directors, employees, and agents as additional insureds, and shall expressly provide that any interest of
each shall not be affected by any breach by Franchisee of any policy provisions for which such
Certificates evidence coverage.

10. Marks.

10.1  Definition of Marks. Franchisor owns all the Marks. Franchisee acknowledges that it
has no ownership rights with respect to the Marks. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to
convey to Franchisee any right, title or interest in any of the Marks, nor in any goodwill associated with
the Marks.

10.2 Grant of License. Franchisor grants Franchisee the nonexclusive license to use the
Marks in connection with its ownership and operation of the Restaurant, subject to the terms, conditions,
and limitations of this Agreement. Franchisee acknowledges that its right to use the Marks derives solely
from this Agreement. Franchisee acknowledges that its license to the use the Marks is honexclusive and
that Franchisor reserves the right to use the Marks and to grant the right to use the Marks to other
persons. Franchisee may use the Marks only as authorized by Franchisor from time to time. Franchisor
may amend, expand or delete the authorization of any of the Marks by written notice to Franchisee;
provided that Franchisor shall make any such change only for good faith marketing or trademark reasons
on a uniform basis for all franchisees in a particular market, or in connection with or response to an
infringement claim.

10.3  Franchisee Use of the Marks. With respect to Franchisee’s use of the Marks pursuant to
this Agreement:

@) Franchisee shall use only the Marks designated by Franchisor, and shall use
them only in the manner authorized and permitted by Franchisor;

(b) Franchisee shall use the Marks only for the operation of the Restaurant, and only
at the Location or in Franchisor’s approved advertising for the Restaurant;

(c) Franchisee may not use the words, “Jet,” “Jet’s Pizza,” “Jett” and “Jet’s” nor any
of the Marks in or as part of any e-mail address, whether or not the word or Mark is capitalized, and
whether it is used as a separate word or combined with other letters as part of a word;

(d) Unless otherwise authorized or required by Franchisor, Franchisee shall operate
and advertise the Restaurant only under the Marks authorized for use for a Jet’s Pizza restaurant;

(e) Franchisee shall identify itself as an independent franchisee-owner of the
Restaurant in conjunction with any use of the Marks and the operation of the Restaurant, and shall place
a written notice to such effect, in a form approved by Franchisor, in a conspicuous location on the
Restaurant premises;
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U] Franchisee’s right to use the Marks is limited to such uses as are authorized
under this Agreement, and any unauthorized use thereof shall constitute an infringement;

(9) Franchisee shall not use the Marks to incur any obligation or indebtedness on
behalf of Franchisor;

(h) Franchisee shall execute any documents deemed necessary by Franchisor or its
affiliates to obtain protection for the Marks or to maintain their continued validity and enforceability;

(1 Franchisee shall promptly notify Franchisor of any suspected unauthorized use
of, or any challenge to the validity or use of the Marks. Franchisor (or its affiliate) shall have the sole
right to determine whether any action should be taken, and, if any action is taken, Franchisor (or its
affiliate) shall have the right to direct and control any such action, including without limitation the
prosecution, defense or settlement of any administrative proceeding or litigation or other adjudicative
proceeding involving the Marks. Franchisee shall have no right, independent of Franchisor, to make any
demand against any such user or challenger or to prosecute any claim of any kind or nature whatsoever
relating to Franchisor’s Marks;

() Franchisee shall not use as part of its corporate or other legal name, or as an
internet domain name or URL, any of the Marks or any portion or derivative of any Marks, including
without limitation “Jet,” “Jet’s Pizza,” “Jett” and “Jet’s” or any other name that is likely, in the judgment
of Franchisor, to cause third parties to be confused or mistaken with respect to the separate identities of
Franchisor and Franchisee; and

(K) During the term of this Agreement and after its expiration or termination,
Franchisee shall not directly or indirectly contest the validity or ownership of the Marks, nor take any
other action which may tend to derogate or jeopardize Franchisor’s interest therein, or Franchisor’s right
to use and to license others to use, the Marks.

10.4  Agreement Not to Contest. Franchisee agrees not to contest or help anyone else to
contest the validity or ownership of the Marks, either during or after the term of this Agreement, or to
take any other action in derogation of Franchisor’s claimed rights in the Marks.

10.5 Infringement Claims.

@) Franchisor shall have the exclusive right to defend the Marks against
infringement by others. Franchisee shall promptly notify Franchisor of any infringement claim by a third
party, and of any action by a third party which may constitute infringement of any of the Marks.
Provided Franchisor is promptly notified of it, Franchisor shall have sole discretion whether it wishes to
defend Franchisee against any claim, demand, or suit by a third party alleging that Franchisee’s use of the
Marks as authorized under this Agreement infringes a trademark, service mark, logo, commercial symbol
or similar item belonging to the third party. Franchisor shall have no liability or obligation, however, for
any loss, damage, cost or expense suffered by Franchisee, including but not limited to litigation costs,
attorney fees, the cost of remodeling, replacing signs or changing decor, lost profits, damage to good will,
or other damages.

(b) Franchisor shall have the exclusive discretion to decide the action to be taken in
response to or in connection with infringement claims, including but not limited to whether to defend
against or prosecute any litigation, and whether to discontinue the use of any Mark. Franchisee shall
cooperate fully with Franchisor in connection with prosecuting and defending any infringement claims,
and shall not settle or compromise any suit or other proceeding without the prior written consent of
Franchisor. Franchisee agrees to sign any documents and take any reasonable action that in Franchisor’s
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attorneys’ judgment is necessary or advisable to protect and maintain the interest of the Franchisor in any
litigation or intellectual property proceeding, or otherwise to protect the Marks, goodwill or image of the
Franchisor, Franchisee or Franchise System. If Franchisor decides to discontinue the use of any Mark,
Franchisee shall immediately stop using the Mark upon notice from Franchisor. If Franchisee is required
to stop using one of Franchisor’s principal Marks used in connection with the Franchise System,
Franchisor shall provide Franchisee with one or more replacement Marks. Franchisor shall have no
obligation to continue to defend or protect Franchisee against any infringement claim if Franchisee
continues to use any Mark after Franchisor has notified Franchisee to discontinue its use.

(c) Franchisor shall protect Franchisee’s right to use Marks or indemnify Franchisee
from any loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of Jet’s name,
provided that Franchisee’s use has been consistent with the Franchise Agreement, Operations Manual,
and Franchisor’s current standards and Franchisee has promptly notified Franchisor of, and complied
with Franchisor’s directions in responding to, the proceeding.

11. Proprietary Information.

111 Acknowledgment of Ownership. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that “Proprietary
Information,” as defined below, is the exclusive property of Franchisor, and that Proprietary Information
is proprietary to and a valuable trade secret of Franchisor.

11.2  Definition.

@) “Proprietary Information” means information:

(M Concerning Franchisor, its assets, business, franchisees, or the Jet’s
Pizza Franchise System; or

(i) Integrally related to the goodwill attached to the Marks or the goodwill
or going concern value of the Franchise System.

(b) “Proprietary Information” includes information periodically disclosed to
Franchisee, whether via oral, written, electronic, or electromagnetic communication, or in any other way,
and information compiled or developed by Franchisee in the conduct of its Business.

(c) “Proprietary Information” specifically includes but is not limited to the

following:

(1 Information concerning individual ingredients, combinations of
ingredients, recipes and procedures for the preparation of menu items;

(i) Processes or procedures for the operation of a Franchise;
(iii)  Training materials and methods concerning a Franchise;

(iv) The Operations Manual and educational material(s);

(V) The terms of contracts between Franchisor and third parties;
(vi)  Advertising or marketing plans or strategies; and

(vii)  Information concerning Jet’s Pizza customers, including names,
addresses, telephone numbers, e-mail addresses, and information concerning their purchases of Jet’s
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Pizza products.

(viii)  Methods, formats, specifications, standards, systems, procedures, food
preparation techniques, recipes, sales and marketing techniques, knowledge, experience used in
developing the Jet’s Pizza products

(ix) Any computer software or similar technology that is proprietary to
Franchisor

(d) “Proprietary Information” does not include information that is public knowledge
(without unauthorized disclosure by any person), or information that was lawfully obtained by
Franchisee from a third party under no obligation of confidentiality to Franchisor.

11.3  Restrictive Covenants. Franchisee agrees as follows:

@) Any unauthorized disclosure or use of Proprietary Information may cause
irreparable damage to Franchisor;

(b) To use Proprietary Information only for the purpose of owning and operating the
Franchise under the terms and conditions of this Agreement;

(c) To limit dissemination of Proprietary Information to its employees, Related
Parties, accountants, attorneys, and agents who have a reasonable need to know such information;

(d) To require each of its employees, owners, officers, directors, members and
managers to execute a confidentiality agreement in a form prescribed by or satisfactory to Franchisor;

(e) Before disseminating any Proprietary Information to it accountants, attorneys or
any third parties, to notify Franchisor, and if requested by Franchisor, to obtain a confidentiality
agreement from the third party before disclosing any Proprietary Information to it, in a form prescribed
by or satisfactory to Franchisor;

U] To provide Franchisor with fully executed originals of all confidentiality
agreements executed by its employees or third parties;

(9) Upon the termination or expiration of the Franchise, to immediately return and
delete from electronic devices all documents or other media containing Proprietary Information to
Franchisor;

(h) To adopt and implement reasonable procedures to prevent unauthorized use or
disclosure of Proprietary Information; and

Q) To adopt and implement reasonable procedures to prevent unauthorized use or
infringement of the Marks, or otherwise any actions that could damage or disparage the image of
Franchisee, Franchisor or the Franchise System.

12. Agreement Not to Compete.

12.1  Restrictive Covenants. Neither Franchisee, nor any Related Party, nor the spouse of
Franchisee or any Related Party, shall do any of the following, either while this Agreement is in effect or
for a period of three (3) years after the expiration or termination of the Franchise:
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@) Compete with Franchisor or any Jet’s Pizza restaurant;

(b) Advertise in or solicit orders from the territory assigned to any other Jet’s Pizza
restaurant, or otherwise divert or attempt to divert any business or customer of the Restaurant to any
competitor by inducement or otherwise, or do or perform any other act injurious or prejudicial to the
goodwill associated with the Marks and the Franchise System;

(c) Employ or seek to employ, directly or indirectly, any person who is at the time or
was at any time during the prior six (6) months employed by Franchisor or its affiliates at the level of
restaurant general manager or above. A violation of this Section shall entitle Franchisor to liquidated
damages equal to twice the annual salary of the employee (while employed by the prior employer), plus
reimbursement of all costs and attorney fees incurred in enforcing this provision;

(d) Perform services as director, manager, officer, employee or agent of a
Competitive Restaurant (defined below); or

(e) Engage in any activity that might injure the goodwill, the Marks, or the image of
the Franchisor, Franchisee or the Franchise System.

12.2  Definition of Compete. To compete with Franchisor or any Jet’s Pizza restaurant
includes but is not limited to involvement as an owner, stockholder, director, officer, member, manager,
partner, employee, lender or consultant, or the provision of any other type of assistance, with or to a
business:

@) More than fifty percent (50%) of the gross revenue of which is attributable to the
sale of pizza, calzones and other items similar to those offered by Jet’s Pizza restaurants (“Competitive
Restaurants™), and located within five (5) miles of the Territory, or within five (5) miles of any Jet’s
Pizza restaurant, other than at a Jet’s Pizza restaurant licensed by Franchisor; or

(b) Engaged in the sale of franchises for Competitive Restaurants or the ownership
or operation of a system of franchised or licensed Competitive Restaurants.

12.3  Related Parties. Franchisee shall obtain from each Related Party an executed Agreement
Not to Compete, substantially identical to the terms of this Section, in a form prescribed by or
satisfactory to Franchisor, and shall provide Franchisor with a fully executed original Agreement Not to
Compete. For purposes of this Section, the Franchise shall be deemed to have terminated with respect to
a Related Party upon the sale or disposition of his or her entire interest in the Franchise and the
Franchisee, and/or the termination of his or her status or position as an owner, stockholder, director,
officer, member, manager, partner, restaurant manager or key employee of Franchisee. Franchisee is
responsible for ensuring that all personnel of Franchisee, including but not limited to owners, officers,
and crew members, and Franchisee’s vendors, service providers, professional advisors, and other persons
associated with Franchisee keep confidential all Proprietary Information. Any unauthorized use or
disclosure of Proprietary Information by such persons will constitute a default by Franchisee under this
Agreement.

12.4  Judicial Modification. If any court or tribunal determines this agreement not to compete
to be unenforceable because it is too broad, either in terms of the length of time, or geographical area, or
nature of activities covered, or otherwise, its scope shall be deemed to be automatically restricted to the
extent necessary to be enforceable.

125 Employment of Franchisee’s Former Employees. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees
that Franchisor may employee Franchisee’s employees, who had contacted the Franchisor, in any of its
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corporate owned franchises, and such employment shall not constitute solicitation for the purposes of this
Agreement.

12.6  Response to Request for Information. Franchisor may request written information or
explanation from Franchisee in case Franchisor suspects that Franchisee is in violation of this agreement
not to compete. Franchisee shall respond to Franchisor in writing within forty-eight (48) hours of
Franchisor’s request.

12.7  Covenants Reasonable. Franchisee agrees that the covenants contained in Sections 12.1
and 12.2 above are reasonable with respect to the activities covered, duration, and geographic scope, and
that Franchisee shall not raise any issue of the reasonableness of the terms of such covenants in any
proceeding to enforce those covenants. Franchisee agrees and acknowledges that it and each of its
owners possess skills and abilities of a general nature that provide them with other opportunities for
employment and, therefore, Franchisor’s enforcement of the non-competition covenant under Section
12.1 will not deprive Franchisee or any of its owners of their personal goodwill or ability to earn a living
through alternative means.

12.8  Enforceability of Covenants Not Affected by Franchisee Claims. Franchisee expressly
agrees that the existence of any claims it may have against Franchisor, whether or not arising hereunder,
shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement by Franchisor of the covenants in this Section 12.

13. Transfer.

13.1  Transfer by Franchisor. Franchisor shall have the right to transfer or assign all or any
part of its rights or obligations under this Agreement to any person or legal entity. With respect to any
assignment which results in the subsequent performance by the assignee of all of Franchisor’s obligations
under this Agreement, the assignee shall expressly assume and agree to perform such obligations, and
shall become solely responsible for all obligations of Franchisor under this Agreement from the date of
assignment. In addition, and without limitation to the foregoing, Franchisee expressly affirms and agrees
that Franchisor may sell its assets, its Marks, or its Franchise System; may sell its securities in a public
offering or in a private placement; may merge, acquire other corporations, or be acquired by another
corporation; and may undertake a refinancing, recapitalization, leveraged buy-out, or other economic or
financial restructuring.

13.2  Transfer by Franchisee.

@) Franchisee understands and acknowledges that Franchisor has granted this
Franchise in reliance on the business skill, financial capacity, and personal character of Franchisee (or of
the direct and indirect owners of Franchisee, if Franchisee is a corporation or other entity).

(b) Neither Franchisee nor any immediate or remote successor to any part of
Franchisee’s interest in this Agreement, nor any individual, partnership, corporation, or other legal entity
which directly or indirectly owns any interest in Franchisee shall, without the prior written consent of
Franchisor, transfer, pledge or otherwise encumber this Agreement, any of the rights or obligations of
Franchisee under this Agreement, any interest in Franchisee, any assets of Franchisee, or all or
substantially all of the assets of the Restaurant. Franchisee understands that this Section applies to any
transfer of such interests that would occur by any mechanism, including but not limited to family
financial planning, estate planning, corporate reorganization, issuance or offering of securities, employee
ownership plans, divorce, new marriage, bankruptcy, or receivership. Any purported assignment or
transfer, by operation of law or otherwise, not having the written consent of Franchisor required by this
Section 13.2, shall be null and void and shall constitute a material breach hereof, for which Franchisor
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may then terminate without an opportunity to cure.

(c) Franchisor may use reasonable discretion in granting or withholding its consent
to a transfer, and Franchisor shall have the right to require that any or all of the following conditions are
satisfied, as determined by Franchisor in its sole discretion, in addition to any other conditions imposed
by Franchisor:

Q) The proposed transferee must meet Franchisor’s qualifications or
standards for new franchisees, as in effect at the time of the proposed transfer, including but not limited
to necessary business experience and financial resources, and the Franchisor must determine that the
price and payment terms will not adversely affect the transferee’s operation of the Restaurant.

(i) The proposed transferee (and, if the proposed transferee is other than an
individual, such owners of a direct or indirect beneficial interest in the proposed transferee as Franchisor
may request) shall demonstrate to Franchisor’s satisfaction that (A) it meets Franchisor’s educational,
managerial, and business standards; (B) it possesses a good moral character (if an individual), business
reputation, and credit rating; (C) it has the aptitude, ability, and requisite financial resources and capital
to operate the Restaurant, as may be evidenced by prior related business experience or otherwise; and (D)
the terms of the proposed transfer do not place an unreasonable financial or operational burden on the
proposed transferee.

(iii) At the proposed transferee’s expense, at least two (2) of the owners,
managers, or employees of the proposed transferee must have satisfactorily completed the Franchisor’s
initial training program.

(iv) Neither the proposed transferee nor any Related Parties shall be a
competitor of Franchisor or any Jet’s Pizza restaurant; nor shall the proposed transferee be a person who
Franchisor reasonably believes may misuse the Marks or Proprietary Information.

(V) Neither the proposed transferee nor any Related Parties shall be in
breach or default under any contract or agreement with Franchisor or any of its affiliates.

(vi) Franchisee and the proposed transferee must execute appropriate transfer
or assignment forms with terms and conditions satisfactory to Franchisor. The transferee, and its owners
if appropriate, shall execute Franchisor’s then current franchise agreement and related agreements and
documents, which may contain different provisions from this Agreement; provided, however, the
transferee shall not be required to pay the Initial Franchise Fee charged at that time.

(vil)  The Franchisee or the proposed transferee must satisfy all of the
Franchisee’s accrued monetary obligations and all other outstanding obligations to Franchisor and its
affiliates, all obligations to Franchisee’s landlord, suppliers, and other creditors, all taxes, and cure any
other default under this Agreement. Upon doing so, Franchisor shall execute a written release of
Franchisee.

(viii)  In addition to any other amounts, Franchisee or the proposed transferee
shall pay Franchisor a transfer fee to cover training, legal fees, administrative costs and other costs or
expenses incurred by Franchisor in connection with the transfer. Franchisor’s current transfer fee is
shown in Schedule 1, but is subject to change. Franchisor may waive all or part of this fee, such as
where the transfer results in the same beneficial ownership of the Franchise, or where the transferee is
already fully trained.

(ix) The Franchisee must have operated the Restaurant for a period of at least
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six (6) months prior to any transfer. The Franchisee cannot request a transfer within the renewal period,
which is the twelve (12) month period before the expiration of the initial or renewal term of the Franchise
(as applicable).

x) Franchisee, and its owners and/or guarantors, if appropriate, must
execute written releases of all claims and causes of action that they have against Franchisor and its
affiliates, and their respective owners, shareholders, employees and agents, on a form satisfactory to
Franchisor.

(xi) If the transfer of the Franchise involves installment payments by the
proposed transferee to Franchisee or any other security obligations, Franchisee must subordinate its right
to receive any installment to Franchisor’s right to receive any and all amounts due it from the transferee
through the due date of such installment. The subordination agreement shall be in a format and shall
contain terms and conditions satisfactory to Franchisor.

(xii)  The Franchisee’s landlord must consent to the transfer of the lease
agreement, or the lease agreement must be assignable to the proposed transferee without landlord’s
consent. Franchisor shall have a right to review a proposed lease and request revisions to reflect the
above.

(xiii)  Franchisor may require the proposed transferee to commit to or perform
certain activities designated to ensure compliance with the Franchise System, which had not been
completed by the Franchisee prior to the transfer, such as, by way of example, remodeling or a purchase
of new equipment.

The failure to satisfy any of these conditions, or any other reasonable conditions imposed by Franchisor,
shall be deemed to be good cause for Franchisor to withhold its consent to the transfer. Franchisee
acknowledges that Franchisor has legitimate reasons to evaluate the qualifications, creditworthiness and
character and fitness of potential transferees to analyze and critique the terms of the purchase agreements
and any other ancillary agreement relating to the transaction with Franchisee. Franchisee authorizes
Franchisor to investigate any proposed transferee’s qualifications and to communicate with the proposed
transferees regarding the nature or Franchisee’s operation of the Restaurant. It shall be reasonable for
Franchisor to disapprove any proposed transfer if, as a result of the transfer, the beneficial ownership of
Franchisee would be, in Franchisor’s business judgment, so widely held by different persons as to
materially compromise the financial stake and dedication of those persons in whose individual or
collective character, skill, attitude, and business ability Franchisor relies on in granting a franchise.

13.3  Right of First Refusal.

@) Franchisee and its owners shall not, directly or indirectly, enter into any binding
agreement or consummate any transaction relating to the sale or transfer of the Franchise, or all or
substantially all of the assets of the Restaurant with any third party (a “Third-Party Transaction”) except
in compliance with the terms and conditions of this Section.

(b) If, at any time during the term of this Agreement, Franchisee or any of its owners
receive a bona fide written offer or agreement for a Third-Party Transaction that Franchisee and its
owners desire to accept (each, a “Third-Party Offer”), Franchisee shall immediately notify Franchisor in
writing (the “Offer Notice”) of the Third Party Offer and present Franchisor with a true and complete
copy of the Third-Party Offer, including the identity of all proposed parties to such Third-Party
Transaction and their ultimate owners, as well as all the material financial and other terms and conditions
of such Third-Party Offer and any other information reasonably requested by Franchisor relating to the
Third-Party Offer. Each Offer Notice constitutes an offer made by Franchisee and its owners to enter into
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an agreement with to sell the Franchise and its assets on the same material terms of such Third-Party
Offer, as modified in this Section 13.3 (the “ROFR Offer™).

(c) At any time prior to the expiration of the thirty (30) day period following
Franchisor’s receipt of the complete Offer Notice (the “Exercise Period”), Franchisor may accept the
ROFR Offer by delivery to Franchisee of a written notice of acceptance together with a purchase
agreement the material financial terms of the Third-Party Offer and subject to the following, at
Franchisor’s discretion:

(M the inclusion of a right of Franchisor to conduct customary due diligence
on the Franchisee and its assets, as well as other standard and customary buyer conditions of closing
applicable to a transaction of this nature;

(i) Franchisor is not required to accept any non-financial terms in the
Third-Party Offer;

(iii)  Franchisor shall not be liable for any claims or assets arising prior to the
closing and the assets shall be free of any liens;

(iv) the closing shall be no sooner than sixty (60) days following the end of
the Exercise Period,;

(V) the purchase price can be paid by Franchisor in cash at closing or as
otherwise provided in the Third-Party Offer;

(vi) Franchisee and its owners shall be subject to typical non-competition,
non-solicitation, confidentiality and other covenants, as well as typical seller representations, warranties,
indemnification and survival provisions;

(vii)  Franchisee shall assign its lease to Franchisor; and

(viii)  Franchisor may assign its rights under the purchase agreement to a third
party.

(d) If, by the expiration of the Exercise Period, Franchisor has not accepted the
ROFR Offer, and provided that Franchisee and its owners have complied with all of the provisions of this
Section, at any time during the sixty (60) day period following the expiration of the Exercise Period,
Franchisee and its owners may consummate the Third-Party Transaction with the counterparty identified
in the applicable Offer Notice pursuant to the agreement presented in the Third-Party. If such Third-Party
Transaction is not consummated within such sixty (60) day period, the terms and conditions of this
Section will again apply and Franchisee shall not enter into any Third-Party Transaction without
affording Franchisor the right of first refusal on the terms and conditions of this Section.

13.4  Death or Disability of Franchisee. Upon the death or mental or physical incapacity of
Franchisee (if an individual) or of any person with an interest in Franchisee, the executor or administrator
of the estate of such person, or the personal representative of such person, shall transfer within six (6)
months after such death or declaration of mental or physical incapacity, such person’s interest to a third
party approved by Franchisor; provided, that any such transfer is subject to Franchisor’s right of first
refusal pursuant to Section 13.3. Such transfers, including, without limitation, transfers by devise or
inheritance, shall be subject to the same conditions as any inter vivos transfer. However, in the case of a
transfer by devise or inheritance, if the heirs or beneficiaries are unable to meet the conditions in Section
13.2 hereof, Franchisor shall establish a time frame within which the executor, administrator, or trustee
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of the deceased must dispose of the deceased’s interest in Franchisee, which disposition shall be subject
to all the terms and conditions for transfers contained herein. If the interest is not disposed within the
time frame established by Franchisor, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement. If the deceased’s
interest in Franchisee is held in a trust or transferred to a trust by operation of law upon death: (a) the
trust instruments shall not be deemed to modify, eliminate, restrict, or diminish any of Franchisor’s rights
under this Agreement or any of Franchisee’s obligations to Franchisor (including but not limited to the
obligation that all direct and indirect legal and beneficial owners of Franchisee be approved by
Franchisor, and that the Restaurant be overseen by owners of the Franchisee that Franchisor has
approved); and (b) the trustee(s) of the trust shall sign an undertaking for the benefit of Franchisor in
which the trustee(s) acknowledge and agree that: (i) the trustee(s) will not assert any legal defense in
their capacity as trustee(s) against the enforceability of this Agreement; (ii) while the trust may own an
interest in Franchisee or the Restaurant, the trust itself is not the Franchisee under this Agreement and is
not permitted to become the Franchisee; (iii) any future distribution or transfer of legal and/or beneficial
ownership of an interest in Franchisee or the Restaurant pursuant to the trust documents will be subject
to the applicable provisions of this Agreement; and (iv) the trust, jointly and severally with Franchisee,
will indemnify Franchisor and its affiliates and hold them harmless from any claim made by any party
arising out of or related to the establishment, maintenance, and/or operation of the trust, the contribution
of assets to the trust, or the party’s claimed interest in the trust.

13.5  Approval of Transfer Does not Constitute Waiver of Rights. Franchisor’s consent to a
transfer which is the subject of this Section 13 shall not constitute a waiver of any claims it may have
against the transferring party, nor shall it be deemed a waiver of Franchisor’s right to demand exact
compliance with any of the terms hereof by any transferee.

13.6  Publicly-Traded Entity.

@) Neither this Agreement, nor any ownership interest in Franchisee, nor assets of
Franchisee, nor all or substantially all of the assets of the Restaurant shall be transferred to any
Publicly-Traded Entity (as defined below) or to any entity whose direct or indirect parent is a
Publicly-Traded Entity. “Publicly-Traded Entity” means an entity whose securities trade on any
securities exchange or are quoted in any publication or electronic reporting service maintained by the
National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. or its successor.

(b) Neither Franchisee nor any direct or indirect owner of Franchisee shall offer
securities of Franchisee in a public offering or, except as provided in Section 13.7, in a private offering.
If any direct or indirect owner of Franchisee offers its securities in a public offering or, except as
provided in Section 13.7, in a private offering, Franchisor shall have the right to terminate this
Agreement without opportunity to cure.

13.7  Private Sale of Securities. The issuance or sale of securities of Franchisee or of any
direct or indirect owner of Franchisee (including, without limitation, common or preferred stock, bonds,
debentures, general or limited partnership interests, or membership units, whether certificated or
uncertificated), is subject to all of the conditions and prohibitions set out in Section 13.2 hereof. For any
proposed securities offering approved in principle by Franchisor, Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor
for its review all materials required by federal or state law for the offering and/or intended to be used in
any exempt offering. No such materials shall be submitted to a government agency or to prospective
investors unless and until Franchisor has furnished its written approval. No offering materials shall
imply, by use of the Marks or otherwise, that Franchisor is participating as an underwriter, issuer, or
offeror of securities of either Franchisee or Franchisor, or that Franchisor has approved the offering
prospectus or any other aspect of the offering. Any review by Franchisor of the offering materials or the
information included therein shall be conducted solely for Franchisor’s benefit to determine their
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conformance with Franchisor’s internal policies, and not to benefit or protect any other person. No
investor should interpret such review by Franchisor, nor shall Franchisee or anyone acting on
Franchisee’s behalf suggest, that Franchisor’s review constitutes an approval, endorsement, acceptance,
or adoption of any representation, warranty, covenant, or projection contained in the materials reviewed:;
and the offering documents shall include legends and statements, in the form and manner specified by
Franchisor, disclaiming Franchisor’s liability for, or involvement in, the transaction described in the
offering documents. Should Franchisor object to any reference to it or its business in such offering
literature or prospectus, such literature or prospectus shall not be used unless and until Franchisor’s
objections are withdrawn. Franchisee and other participants in the offering must fully indemnify, defend,
and hold harmless Franchisor, its affiliates and their respective directors, officers, employees,
shareholders, and agents from any and all losses and expenses that arise directly or indirectly from, as a
result of, or in connection with the offering. For each proposed offering, Franchisee shall pay to
Franchisor a non-refundable fee of $25,000 at the time Franchisee submits materials for review by
Franchisor and shall pay additional sums to cover Franchisor’s out-of-pocket costs to review the
materials when incurred if greater than $25,000. Franchisee shall give Franchisor written notice at least
forty-five (45) business days prior to the date of commencement of any offering or other transaction
covered by this Section 13.7. Any such offering shall be subject to Franchisor’s right of first refusal as
provided in Section 13.3 hereof.

13.8  Transfer by Franchisee Bankruptcy - Right of First Refusal. If, for any reason, this
Agreement is not terminated pursuant to Section 14 and this Agreement is assumed or assignment of the
same to any person or entity who has made a bona fide offer to accept an assignment of this Agreement is
contemplated, pursuant to the United States Bankruptcy Code, then notice of such proposed assignment
or assumption, setting forth (a) the name and address of the proposed assignee, and (b) all of the terms
and conditions of the proposed assignment and assumption, shall be given to Franchisor within twenty
(20) days after receipt of such proposed assignee’s offer to accept assignment of this Agreement, and, in
any event, within ten (10) days prior to the date that the application is made to a court of competent
jurisdiction for authority and approval to enter into the assignment and assumption, Franchisor shall
thereupon have the prior right and option, to be exercised by notice given at any time prior to the
effective date of the proposed assignment and assumption, to accept an assignment of this Agreement to
Franchisor itself, upon the same terms and conditions and for the same consideration, if any, as in the
bona fide offer made by the proposed assignee, less any brokerage commissions which may be payable
by Franchisee out of the consideration to be paid by the assignee for the assignment of this Agreement.

14. Default. Franchisee shall be deemed to be in default under this Agreement upon the occurrence
of any of the following:

14.1  Material-Misrepresentation. Franchisee makes—aor any of its owners have made any
material misrepresentation in eennection-with-is-acguisition-of-this-Franechise;this Agreement or on any

record or report required by Franchisor under this Agreement or on Franchisee’s application for the
Franchise, or in any other application submitted to Franchisor;

14.2  Failure to Pay. Franchisee fails to pay any royalty, fee or other amount due Franchisor
on or before the due date, regardless of any claim or counter-claim Franchisee may have against
Franchisor;

14.3  Fail to Conform. Franchisee’s Restaurant, or Franchisee’s operation of the Restaurant,
fails to conform to the Franchise System in any material respect;

14.4  Other Material-Breach. Any ether—material-breach of a covenant or any other of the
terms or conditions of this Agreement;
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145 Danger to Public Health. Franchisee engages in conduct that Franchisor reasonably
determines to constitute an imminent danger to public health or safety;

14.6  Default under Lease or to Supplier. Franchisee defaults under its lease for the
Restaurant or in the payment of any amount due any supplier;

14.7  Entry of Judgment. The entry of any judgment against Franchisee, or any judgment
which may adversely affect Franchisee’s ability to operate the Franchise or the Restaurant, that is not
satisfied or indemnified against to the satisfaction of Franchisor within ten (10) days of its entry;

14.8  Insolvency. The insolvency of Franchisee, the commencement of any proceedings under
any federal bankruptcy or state insolvency law, the assignment of assets for the benefit of creditors, or
the appointment of a receiver, trustee, or similar person to oversee the business or affairs of Franchisee or
any of its business assets;

14.9  Criminal Conduct. Franchisee, or any person who owns ten (10%) percent or more of
Franchisee, commits or is convicted of, or pleads guilty to, any felony, or any misdemeanor involving
criminal sexual conduct, drug use or drug trafficking, assault, battery, or physical violence toward any
person, fraud, theft, embezzlement, or any crime involving dishonesty or the taking of money or property
of others, or any other misdemeanor relevant to the operation of the Franchise;

14.10 Abandonment. Franchisee abandons the Franchise or discontinues the business
operations of the Franchise. Franchisee shall be deemed to have abandoned the Franchise or
discontinued the business if it fails to operate the Restaurant for five (5) consecutive days, or a shorter
period of time if the facts and circumstances reasonably indicate that Franchisee does not intend to
continue to operate the Restaurant. The inability to operate the Restaurant due to fire, flood, earthquake,
other casualty, or other cause beyond Franchisee’s control, however, shall not be deemed abandonment
of the Franchise or discontinuance of business operations;

14.11 Default under Other Franchise Agreement. In the event that Franchisee or one or more
of its owners owns a controlling interest in another Jet’s Pizza franchise, any material breach or default
under the Franchise Agreement for the other Jet’s Pizza franchise;

14.12 Violation of Agreement Not to Compete. Franchisee competes with Franchisor in
violation of the terms of this Agreement;

14.13 SBA Financing. Franchisee obtains financing from the United States Small Business
Association in excess of $350,000.00; Franchisee Initial Acknowledging Understanding

14.14 Fixed Monthly Costs. Franchisee’s total fixed monthly costs for rent and third party
financing exceeds $9,000.00. Franchisee Initial Acknowledging Understanding

15. Remedies. In addition to any other rights or remedies Franchisor may have in the event of a
default by Franchisee, Franchisor shall have the rights and remedies set forth below. The exercise of a
particular remedy by Franchisor, or the specification of a particular remedy in the event of a certain type
of default, shall not be deemed an election of remedies by Franchisor, and shall not preclude Franchisor
from exercising any other rights or remedies available to it.

15.1  Termination of Franchise. In addition to any other rights or remedies Franchisor may
have, after a default by Franchisee, Franchisor may terminate this Franchise by written notice to
Franchisee subject to the following provisions.
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(@) Immediate Termination. Franchisor may terminate this Agreement and all rights
granted hereunder, without affording Franchisee any opportunity to cure the default, effective
immediately upon receipt of notice by Franchisee, upon the occurrence of any of the following:

(M Any default which by nature cannot be cured;

(i) A failure to select a location, have it approved by Franchisor, and secure
it by lease or purchase within ninety (90) days after this Agreement is signed,;

(iii) A failure to have the Restaurant ready to open for business within twelve
(12) months after this Agreement is signed,;

(iv) A failure to have at least two (2) persons who have satisfactorily
completed the initial training program by the time the Restaurant is ready to open for business;

(v) Any default described in Section 14.1, 14.5, 14.7, 14.9 or 14.10.
(vi) A failure to obtain and maintain required insurance;

(vii) A failure to actively operate the Restaurant for three (3) or more
consecutive business days unless approved by Franchisor;

(viii)  The Franchisee’s or any of its owner’s conviction by a trial court of, or
pledge or pledge of no contest to, a felony;

(ix)  Any violation of any applicable law or regulation, including health,
safety or sanitation law, ordinances or regulations and operation of the Restaurant in an unsafe manner;

) A failure to pay any state, local, federal or other taxes, Franchisee’s
failure to comply with any provisions of this Agreement;

(xi) A failure to pay any advertising contributions, spend the required funds
or incur the required expenses for advertising;

(xii) A failure to comply with reporting requirements (including the
submission of false or inaccurate reports);

(xiii)  An unauthorized use of the Marks;
(xiv)  Anunauthorized use or disclosure of Proprietary Information;

(xv) A failure to pay any royalty, fee or other amount due Franchisor on or
before the due date;

(xvi)  The operation of the Restaurant under any name other than “Jet’s Pizza,”
or another name specifically authorized by Franchisor;

(xvii) The use of furniture, fixtures, equipment, inventory, food, goods, or
supplies that do not meet the standards or specifications of Franchisor, or that were purchased from a
supplier that was not authorized or approved by Franchisor;

(xviii) Any violation of the agreement not to compete set forth in Section 12; or
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(xix)  The transfer or assignment of, or the attempt to transfer or assign, any
interest in the Restaurant, the Franchise, or any assets related to the Franchise, contrary to the terms of
this Agreement;

(xx)  Any default described in Section 14.8;

(xxi)  Any failure to comply with any federal, state, or local law or regulation
material to the operation of the Restaurant or Franchise;

(xxit) Failure to allow Franchisor to inspect the Restaurant; or

(xxiii) Failure to obtain and maintain required computer system, hardware or
software.

(b) Termination After Cure Period. For any other type of default, Franchiseeor shall

be-entitled-to-notice-of default-and-thirty(30)-days’have the further right to terminate this Agreement
upon delivery of notice to Franchisee and providing Franchisee with an opportunity to cure—H-Franchisee-

4s—n9t—ab+e—te—eupe—the—defaa4¢—\m$hm—sueh—n-me— as set forth below (or such Ionger perlod as appllcable

Q) Franchisee fails to comply with any provision of this Agreement or any
specification, standard or operating procedure or rule prescribed by Franchisor which relates to the safety
and security, or the quality of pizza or other authorized food products or any beverage sold by you or the
cleanliness and sanitation of the Restaurant and Franchisee does not correct this failure within seven (7)
calendar days after written notice is delivered to Franchisee; or

(ii) Franchisee or any of owners fails to comply with any other provision of
this Agreement or any specification, standard or operating procedure and fails to correct this failure
within thirty (30) calendar days after written notice is delivered to Franchisee.

(©) Cross-Default. Any default by Franchisee under any other agreement between
Franchisor or its affiliates as one party, and Franchisee or any of Franchisee’s owners or affiliates as the
other party that is so material as to permit Franchisor to terminate such other agreement, shall be deemed
to be a default of this Agreement, and Franchisor shall have the right, at its option, to terminate this
Agreement, effective immediately upon notice to Franchisee.

(d) Cross-Guarantee. In the event Franchisee or any owner of Franchisee now holds
or later acquires any interest in a Jet’s Pizza restaurant other than the Restaurant franchised under this
Agreement, Franchisee and its owners shall unconditionally guarantee full performance and discharge by
the franchisee of all of the franchisee’s obligations under the franchise agreement for such Jet’s Pizza
restaurant, including without limitation the payment of all royalty fees, advertising fees, and other
obligations.

(e) Extension of Cure Period by Operation of Law. Notwithstanding the termination
provisions set forth above, in the event that any valid, applicable law or regulation of a competent
governmental authority having jurisdiction over this Agreement or the parties hereto limits Franchisor’s
rights of termination hereunder or shall require longer notice or cure periods than those set forth above,
this Agreement shall be deemed amended to conform to the minimum notice or cure periods or
restrictions upon termination required by such laws and regulations. Franchisor shall not, however, be
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precluded from contesting the validity, enforceability, or application of such laws or regulations in any
action, proceeding, hearing, or dispute relating to this Agreement or the termination thereof.

(f Cumulative Remedies. The rights and remedies granted to Franchisor by this
Agreement will not be deemed to prohibit Franchisor from exercising any other right or remedy provided
under this Agreement or permitted by law or equity. Franchisor’s right to terminate this Agreement in
accordance with this Section 15 shall be deemed to permit Franchisor to elect remedies other than
termination.

15.2  Conseguences of Termination.

@) The termination of this Franchise by Franchisor shall in no way limit its right to
recover damages or obtain other legal or equitable relief. Upon the termination or expiration of the
Franchise, in addition to any other rights or remedies Franchisor may have, and in addition to any other
consequences that may result, Franchisee’s license to own and operate a Franchise, to learn and use the
Franchise System, to use the Marks, and to use the Proprietary Information shall terminate.

(b) Franchisee shall immediately cease to operate the Restaurant, and shall not
thereafter, directly or indirectly, represent to the public or hold itself out as a present or former franchisee
of Franchisor.

() Franchisee shall immediately and permanently cease using, in any manner
whatsoever, any Proprietary Information and the Marks or, and any variations which may confuse,
deceive, or mislead the public. Franchisee shall immediately remove or permanently cover all signs or
advertising identifiable in any way with Franchisor, the Marks, or the Franchise System; and if
Franchisee fails to do so within twenty-four (24) hours of the termination of the Franchise, Franchisor or
its agents may enter the premises and do so. Franchisee shall immediately return to Franchisor and delete
from electronic devices any documents or other media containing any Proprietary Information, including
but not limited to the Operations Manual, as well as any other property of Franchisor in Franchisee’s
possession. At Franchisor’s option, any sign bearing the “Jet’s Pizza” name and/or the Marks will be
deemed to be the property of Franchisor even though Franchisee may have paid a third party to make the
sign.

(d) Franchisee shall immediately cease using the telephone number or numbers
identified with the Restaurant under the name “Jet’s Pizza.” Upon the request of Franchisor, Franchisee
shall assign the telephone number or numbers to Franchisor or another of its franchisees.

(e) Franchisee agrees not to use any reproduction, counterfeit copy, or colorable
imitation of the Marks in connection with any other business or the promotion thereof which is likely to
cause confusion, mistake, or deception, or which is likely to dilute the rights of the Franchisor or its
affiliate in and to the Marks. Franchisee further agrees not to use any designation of origin or description
or representation which falsely suggests or represents an association or connection with Franchisor.

()] Franchisee shall promptly pay all sums owing to Franchisor and its affiliates,
which obligation shall give rise to and remain, until paid in full, a lien in favor of Franchisor and its
affiliates against any and all of the personal property, furnishings, equipment, signs, fixtures, and
inventory owned by Franchisee and on the Restaurant premises at the time of default. Franchisee shall
immediately return and delete from electronic devices all materials containing Proprietary Information
and furnish Franchisor with the name and address of all past and current Restaurant suppliers together
with the amount(s) due, if any. Franchisee also shall return, at Franchisor’s request, all unused products
and ingredients which contain trade secrets, and Franchisor shall refund the purchase price thereof plus
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shipping charges.

(9) For three (3) years following the termination or expiration of this Agreement,
Franchisee agrees to advise Franchisor of its current business and residential addresses and phone
numbers.

15.3 Liquidated Damages for Royalties. In the event of the termination of this Franchise
following Franchisee’s default, Franchisee shall be liable to Franchisor for damages suffered. The
parties acknowledge that Franchisor’s damages would include royalties that would be paid if the
Franchise had not been terminated and that this amount may be difficult or impossible to measure.
Therefore, the parties agree that as liquidated damages for royalties due under this Agreement, but not for
any other damages suffered by Franchisor, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor the amount shown in
Schedule 1. If any court or tribunal finds this liquidated damages clause to be unenforceable because it is
unreasonable, Franchisor may recover the greater of actual damages that it is able to prove, or liquidated
damages in an amount that the court or tribunal determines to be reasonable.

15.4  Administrative Fees for Certain Defaults.

(@) Franchisee acknowledges that the integrity of the Marks and the value of being
part of the Franchise System depend upon maintaining consistency and uniformity throughout the system.
The parties further acknowledge that certain types of default by Franchisee may be curable in nature but
nevertheless may be important to maintaining the integrity of the Marks and the value of the Franchise
and Franchise System. These might include defaults such as but not limited to the failure to prepare
menu items according to the Operations Manual or prescribed recipes, the failure to maintain standards
of cleanliness, the failure to purchase equipment, inventory items or supplies from approved sources or
according to prescribed specifications, and the use of advertising materials without getting prior
approval.

(b) upehln the event of the occurrence of any such defaults, Franchisor may—lee

e oote e R f , In its sole discretion;-
Hndemhe—Agteemeht—teWtate#te—Agteement—mpese and in addltlon to |n lieu of any rights or
remedies of Franchisor hereunder, assess an administrative fee er—m#am—f—tem—ansj-aetlenon Franchisee in

order to cover its additional administrative, legal and personnel expenses to address and monitor such
default and/or provide Franchisee with an opportunity to cure such default. The parties agree that

Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, choose to impose reasonable administrative fees for various
defaults of this nature, provided that in no event shaII the amount of the admlnlstratlve fee exceed $1—O@O—

forth m%ehedute%#heeu#enteehedeﬂeeﬁadwmstmtweiee&t&attaehe@ason Schedule 5. Franchisor
may periodically revise the schedule of administrative fees, or impose new administrative fees, by
publishing them in the Operations Manual, or otherwise announcing them to Franchisee. The late fee is
not interest or penalty but compensates Franchisor for increased administrative and management costs
due to Franchisee’s default. The specification or imposition of a fine under this Section does not
preclude Franchisor from exercising any other right or remedy available to it, including specific
enforcement of this Agreement or termination of the Franchise. Similarly, Franchisor’s election not to
impose administrative fees in the past does not waive Franchisor’s rights to impose them in the future.

15,5  Bankruptcy of Franchisee. In the event of the bankruptcy or insolvency of Franchisee, in
addition to any other rights or remedies available to Franchisor, if federal or state law prohibits
Franchisor from terminating this Agreement or the Franchise, and Franchisee or the bankruptcy trustee
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elects to affirm this Agreement, Franchisor shall be entitled to adequate assurance of Franchisee’s
performance of this Agreement. The parties agree that this may include but shall not be limited to the
full payment of all amounts then due or overdue, the cure of any other default under this Agreement, and
Franchisee’s deposit of a cash bond with Franchisor equal to the estimated royalties and other amounts
that would be due under this Agreement during the ensuing six (6) months, with the replenishment of the
bond on a regular basis.

15.6  Right to Possession of Premises.

@) If Franchisee or any affiliate, owner, or officer of Franchisee, or any of their
respective family members, leases the Restaurant premises from a landlord who is not affiliated with
Franchisee, Franchisee or its affiliate, owner or officer shall, at Franchisor’s request, immediately assign
to Franchisor, effective on the date specified by Franchisor, Franchisee’s or its affiliate’s, owner’s or
officer’s interest in the lease for the Restaurant premises. Franchisee must provide a current copy of the
lease for Franchisor’s review in determining whether to request assignment of the lease. Franchisee shall
also provide any landlord consent requested by Franchisor. Franchisor will have the right to further
assign the lease, without recourse, to any affiliate or approved franchisee of Franchisor.

(b) If Franchisee or any affiliate, owner, or officer of Franchisee, or any of their
respective family members, owns the Restaurant premises, that owner shall offer to sell or lease the
premises to Franchisor, at Franchisor’s option. Franchisor will designate a reputable, independent
commercial real estate appraiser to determine the fair market purchase price and fair market rental rate
for the premises based on comparisons with recent sale and lease transactions for similar buildings in the
area. Franchisor will have thirty (30) days after receipt of the appraiser’s determination of the fair market
purchase price and fair market rental rate to accept the offer to purchase the premises, accept the offer to
lease the premises, or decline both offers. If Franchisor elects to purchase or lease, the parties will sign
Franchisor’s then-current form purchase agreement or then-current form lease, as applicable. In the case
of a lease, the initial lease term and the number and length of renewal options must be commercially
reasonable when compared to leases for similar space in buildings in the area. Franchisor will have the
right to assign the purchase agreement or lease, without recourse, to any affiliate or approved franchisee
of Franchisor.

(c) If Franchisor elects to assume Franchisee’s lease or to enter into a purchase
agreement or lease for the premises, Franchisee shall promptly vacate the premises, rendering all
necessary assistance to Franchisor to enable it to take prompt possession thereof.

(d) If Franchisor does not assume Franchisee’s lease or enter into a purchase
agreement or lease for the Restaurant premises, Franchisee shall make such modifications or alterations
to the premises (including but not limited to changing signs, color scheme, configuration, layout, wall
tiles and floor tiles) immediately upon termination or expiration hereof as may be necessary to
distinguish the appearance of the premises from that of a Jet’s Pizza Restaurant. Franchisee shall make
such specific additional changes as Franchisor may request to dissociate the location from the Franchise
System.

15.7  Option to Purchase Assets.

@) In the event of the termination of the Franchise following Franchisee’s default,
Franchisor or its assignee shall have the option to purchase some or all of the assets related to the
Franchise. This option may be exercised without regard to whether Franchisee desires to sell any assets,
to continue to operate the Restaurant, or to occupy the premises, pursuant to Section 15.6. Franchisor
may elect which assets it desires to purchase, if any. The purchase price for the assets shall be their fair
market value based upon their use in a restaurant. No amount shall be payable for goodwill, going
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concern value, or similar intangible assets.

(b) If Franchisor desires to exercise this option, it shall notify Franchisee in writing
of its intent to exercise this option within thirty (30) days after the termination of the Franchise,
specifying the assets it desires to purchase and its estimate of their fair market value. If Franchisor also
desires to assume Franchisee’s lease pursuant to Section 15.6, this thirty (30) day notice period shall run
concurrently with the 30 day notice period in that Section.

(c) If Franchisee disagrees with Franchisor’s estimate of the fair market value of the
assets, and the parties cannot agree upon the fair market value, the fair market value of the assets shall be
determined by an independent professional appraisal of the assets, as follows. Franchisor and Franchisee
shall have thirty (30) days to either agree upon an appraiser or each select an appraiser. If either party
fails to select an appraiser within thirty (30) days, or if later within ten (10) days after written notice of
the other party’s selection of an appraiser, the party shall be deemed to have agreed to the first appraiser.

(d) If two (2) appraisers are selected, they shall each conduct an appraisal. If the
higher appraised value is not more than twenty percent (20%) more than the lower appraised value, the
fair market value of the assets shall be the arithmetic mean of the two (2) appraised values. Otherwise,
the two (2) appraisers shall select a third (3rd) appraiser who shall appraise the fair market value of the
assets.

(e) An independent professional appraiser means one who certifies in writing that:

() He or she is a member of a nationally recognized society of appraisers,
and has prepared his or her appraisal of the assets in accordance with recognized national guidelines;

(i) He or she has no present interest or contemplated future interest, either
legal or equitable, in Franchisor, Franchisee or the assets, and that he or she has no personal interest or
bias with respect to the subject matter nor the parties involved in the appraisal;

(iii) His or her employment and compensation for rendering the appraisal are
not contingent upon any value found by him or her, nor upon anything else other than the delivery of a
report for a predetermined fee; and

(iv) He or she has derived no more than five percent (5%) of his or her gross
revenue during the preceding twelve (12) months from appraisal services performed for either of the
parties or their Related Parties.

()] The fair market value of the assets determined by this appraisal process shall be
final and binding upon the parties, except that Franchisor shall have ten (10) days after completion of the
appraisal to decline to purchase any assets for the value determined by the appraiser. Franchisor and
Franchisee shall each pay the fee and expenses of the appraiser selected by it, and shall each pay one-half
(1/2) of the fee and expenses of any appraiser mutually selected or selected by the two (2) appraisers that
they selected.

(9) In connection with the purchase of any assets pursuant to this Section,
Franchisor may audit the books and records of Franchisee and solicit its creditors to determine the
amount of any balance due them from Franchisee. Franchisor may then advise Franchisee of any
amounts due the creditors. If Franchisee fails to provide satisfactory evidence that such amounts are not
owed or that the creditors have been paid in full, Franchisor may pay the amounts due the creditors and
deduct such amounts from the purchase price for the assets otherwise due the Franchisee under this
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Section. The balance of the purchase price, if any, shall be paid to Franchisee at the closing.

(h) The closing shall take place within ten (10) days after the agreement of the
parties as to the fair market value of the assets; or if the fair market value is determined by an
independent appraiser within ten (10) days after the expiration of the ten (10) day period during which
Franchisor may decline to purchase the assets at their appraised value.

16. Dispute Resolution.

16.1  Equitable Remedies. Franchisee acknowledges that in the event of its breach of Section
10, 11, 12 or 13 of this Agreement, Franchisor’s damages may be irreparable or impossible to measure.
Therefore, in addition to any other rights or remedies Franchisor has or may have, in the event of any
breach or threatened breach of any of these Sections by Franchisee, Franchisor shall be entitled to
equitable relief, including but not limited to an ex parte temporary restraining order, or a temporary or
permanent injunction, to enforce the terms of this Agreement.

16.2  Time Limit on Bringing Claim. The parties agree that any claim by either party against
the other shall be deemed to be waived and abandoned unless an action is commenced pursuant to this
Agreement within one (1) year after the date of discovery or one (1) year after the termination or
expiration of the Franchise, whichever is earlier.

16.3 Limit on Damages. The parties waive any right or claim either may have for any
punitive damages, exemplary damages, pain and suffering, and any other non-economic damages. The
parties agree that any damage award shall be limited to actual economic damages.

16.4  Arbitration. All controversies, disputes, or claims between Franchisee and Franchisor or
any of its affiliates, officers, directors and/or employees shall be submitted for binding arbitration, on
demand of either party, to the American Arbitration Association. The arbitration proceedings are to be
conducted by three (3) arbitrators, all of whom are to be retired judges and are to be conducted according
to then current commercial arbitration rules of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”). All
proceedings will be conducted at the office of AAA located in Southfield, Michigan. All matters relating
to arbitration will be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act. Judgment upon the arbitrators’ award may
be entered into by any court of competent jurisdiction, provided that such award shall not be binding
unless granted pursuant to a written opinion containing findings of fact and conclusions of law. The
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney’s fees.

17. Acknowledgments by Franchisee. The following acknowledgements apply to all franchisees and
franchises except for any franchisees and franchises that are subject to the state franchise
registration/disclosure laws of California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota,
New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin:

17.1  Delivery of Disclosure Document. Franchisee acknowledges that at least fourteen (14)
calendar days before signing this Agreement or any related agreement, it received the Franchise
Disclosure Document for this Franchise, and a copy of this Agreement and all related agreements; and
Franchisee has had an adequate opportunity to review all of these items.

17.2  No Earnings Claims. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor has not in any way
represented, estimated, or projected any level or anticipated range of sales, earnings, costs, or profits for
this Franchise, nor represented the sales, earnings, costs, or profits of any other Jet’s Pizza restaurant.

17.3  Opportunity to Consult with Advisors. Franchisee has consulted or has had adequate
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opportunity to consult with professional advisors with regard to its acquisition of this Franchise.

17.4  Acknowledgment of Risk. Franchisee acknowledges that this is a risky investment, but
that it is financially and otherwise able to accept the risks associated with this investment.

17.5  No Guaranty of Success. FRANCHISEE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT FRANCHISOR’S
ASSISTANCE IN SITE SELECTION, FRANCHISOR’S APPROVAL OF THE FRANCHISE
LOCATION, SIZE, LEASE, PLANS, OR BLUEPRINTS, FRANCHISOR’S TRAINING PROGRAM
OR ONGOING ASSISTANCE, OR OTHER ASSISTANCE OR SERVICES RENDERED BY
FRANCHISOR DO NOT CONSTITUTE A WARRANTY OR GUARANTY THAT THIS WILL BE A
GOOD, SUCCESSFUL OR PROFITABLE INVESTMENT BY FRANCHISEE.

17.6  Adequate Funding. Franchisee has or has secured adequate funds, and has otherwise
made complete and adequate preparations, to commence, open, and operate the Restaurant.

18. Miscellaneous.

18.1  Franchisor’s Reasonable Business Judgment. Whenever Franchisor reserves or is
deemed to have reserved discretion in a particular area or where Franchisor agrees or is deemed to be
required to exercise its rights reasonably or in good faith, Franchisor will satisfy its obligations whenever
it exercises Reasonable Business Judgment in making its decision or exercising its rights. A decision or
action by Franchisor will be deemed to be the result of “Reasonable Business Judgment,” even if other
reasonable or even arguably preferable alternatives are available, if Franchisor’s decision or action is
intended, in whole or significant part, to promote or benefit the Franchise System generally, even if the
decision or action also promotes a financial or other individual interest of Franchisor. Examples of items
that will promote or benefit the Franchise System include, without limitation, enhancing the value of the
Marks, improving customer service and satisfaction, improving product quality, improving uniformity,
enhancing or encouraging modernization, and improving the competitive position of the Franchise
System.

18.2  Electronic Communications. To promote speed and the effectiveness of communication
between Franchisor and its franchisees generally, the parties agrees as follows:

@) Franchisee shall at all times maintain an e-mail address, shall notify Franchisor
of the e-mail address, and shall promptly notify Franchisor of any change in its e-mail address. Any
notice or other communication to Franchisee required or allowed under this Agreement may be sent to
Franchisee via e-mail to its e-mail address on record with Franchisor, and any such notice or
communication shall have the same legal effect as a notice or communication sent in any other manner.

(b) Franchisor may issue policies or announcements, and may otherwise
communicate, with Franchisee and its franchisees generally by posting information to the Jet’s Pizza
website, and any such posting of information shall have the same legal effect as any other mode of
communication.

18.3  Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Venue. FhisExcept as may otherwise be set forth in an

Addendum to this Agreement, this Agreement shall be governed by Michigan law without regard to its
conflict of law principles, except that any Michigan law regulating the sale of franchises or governing the
relationship of a franchisor and its franchisees will not apply unless its jurisdictional requirements are
met independently without reference to this Section 18.3. This Agreement shall be deemed to have been
entered into in Michigan. Any action brought by Franchisor and Franchisee shall be conducted through
arbitration in accordance with Section 16.4. The parties waive all questions of personal jurisdiction or
venue for the purpose of carrying out this provision. Franchisee, its affiliates and principals shall not
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dispute jurisdiction or venue in any forum established under this Section and shall not attempt to change
venue established under this Section based on forum non conveniens or any other reason.

184 WAIVER OF TRIAL BY JURY. FRANCHISOR AND FRANCHISEE, AND THEIR
AFFILIATES AND PRINCIPALS, IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION,
PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR IN EQUITY, BROUGHT BY ANY
OF THEM AGAINST THE OTHER, WHETHER OR NOT THERE ARE OTHER PARTIES IN SUCH
ACTION OR PROCEEDING.

18.5 LIMITATION OF CLAIMS. ALL CLAIMS ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT
OR FROM THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES ARE BARRED UNLESS AN ACTION
IS FILED WITHIN ONE (1) YEAR FROM THE DATE THE PARTY KNEW OR SHOULD HAVE
KNOWN OF THE FACTS CREATING THE CLAIM (AND TIMELY SERVED ON THE OPPOSING
PARTY), OR SUCH SHORTER PERIOD REQUIRED BY ANY APPLICABLE LAW OR STATUTE,
EXCEPT FOR CLAIMS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS OF FRANCHISEE OR
FRANCHISEE’S POST-TERM OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

18.6 WAIVER OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN
THIS AGREEMENT, FRANCHISOR AND FRANCHISEE, AND THEIR AFFILIATES AND
PRINCIPALS, WAIVE IN ANY JUDICIAL ACTION, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY
LAW, ANY RIGHT TO OR CLAIM OF ANY SPECIAL, PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES
AGAINST THE OTHER AND AGREE THAT IN THE EVENT OF A DISPUTE BETWEEN THEM,
EACH WILL BE LIMITED TO THE RECOVERY OF ANY ACTUAL DAMAGES SUSTAINED BY
THAT PARTY.

18.7 NO CLASS ACTIONS. NEITHER FRANCHISEE NOR FRANCHISOR SHALL SEEK
TO LITIGATE AGAINST THE OTHER PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT OR SUCH PARTY’S
AFFILIATES, EITHER AS A REPRESENTATIVE OF, OR ON BEHALF OF, ANY OTHER PERSON,
CLASS, OR ENTITY IN ANY DISPUTE, CONTROVERSY, OR CLAIM OF ANY KIND ARISING
OUT OF, OR RELATING TO, THIS AGREEMENT, THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE
PARTIES, THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE, OR OTHER CLAIMS OR CAUSES OF ACTION
RELATING TO THE PERFORMANCE OF EITHER PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT. NO ACTION
OR PROCEEDING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT SHALL ADD AS A PARTY, BY
CONSOLIDATION, JOINDER, OR IN ANY OTHER MANNER, ANY PERSON OR PARTY OTHER
THAN FRANCHISEE AND FRANCHISOR AND ANY PERSON IN PRIVITY WITH, OR CLAIMING
THROUGH, IN THE RIGHT OF, OR ON BEHALF OF, FRANCHISEE OR FRANCHISOR, UNLESS
BOTH FRANCHISEE AND FRANCHISOR CONSENT IN WRITING. FRANCHISOR HAS THE
ABSOLUTE RIGHT TO REFUSE SUCH CONSENT. FRANCHISEE AGREES AND
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT ANY JUDICIAL PROCEEDING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING
FROM OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES,
OR ANY AGREEMENT OR RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN FRANCHISEE AND ANY AFFILIATE OF
FRANCHISOR WILL BE CONSIDERED UNIQUE ON ITS FACTS AND MAY NOT BE BROUGHT
AS A CLASS OR GROUP ACTION.

18.8  Costs and Legal Fees. In connection with any failure by Franchisee to comply with this
Agreement, regardless of whether there is any legal proceeding to enforce the terms of this Agreement,
Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor, upon demand, for the costs and expenses incurred by Franchisor
as a result of such failure and Franchisor ‘s enforcement of the terms of this Agreement, including,
without limitation, accountants’, attorneys’, attorneys’ assistants and expert witness fees, cost of
investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other litigation expenses and travel expenses. If Franchisee
initiates a legal proceeding against Franchisor, and if Franchisee does not prevail in obtaining the relief
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Franchisee was seeking in such legal proceedings, then Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor for the
costs and expenses incurred by Franchisor as a result of such legal proceedings, including, without
limitation, accountants’, attorneys’, attorneys’ assistants and expert witness fees, cost of investigation
and proof of facts, court costs, other litigation expenses and travel expenses, whether incurred prior to, in
preparation for, in contemplation of, or in connection with such legal proceedings.

18.9  Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of
the parties and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and permitted assigns.

18.10 Integration Clause. This Agreement, including any Addenda (including a Renewal
Addendum), Schedules, represents the entire agreement of the parties with respect to this subject matter,
and supersedes any agreement or understanding of the parties prior to entering into this Agreement,
including but not limited to any franchise agreement previously executed with respect to the Franchise
for a prior term or under prior ownership. This integration clause is not, however, intended to disclaim
any statements or representations made in the Franchise Disclosure Document.

18.11 Notices. Any notice under this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be deemed
sufficient if delivered personally, mailed by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, sent via
facsimile or, in the case of notice to Franchisee, sent via e-mail. Notice shall be deemed to have been
given when personally delivered, two (2) business days after having been mailed by certified or
registered mail, return receipt requested, or one (1) business day after transmission via facsimile or
e-mail. Notice to Franchisee shall be delivered to the Restaurant, if personally delivered or sent by
certified or registered mail, or to the facsimile number or e-mail address on record with Franchisor.
Notice to Franchisor shall be sent to its registered address in the State of Michigan, or its facsimile
number as to which it has notified Franchisee. Either party may change its address, facsimile number or
e-mail address for purposes of receiving notice by proper notice to the other party given pursuant to this
Section.

18.12 Third Party Beneficiaries. Franchisor’s other franchisees are intended to be third party
beneficiaries of Section 12 of this Agreement. Franchisee’s suppliers are intended to be third party
beneficiaries of Section 8.2 of this Agreement.

18.13 Personal Guaranty. If Franchisee is a corporation, limited liability company, limited
partnership, or other entity in which the owners have limited liability, each individual or entity that owns
any direct or indirect interest in Franchisee must jointly and severally personally guarantee Franchisee’s
duties and obligations under this Agreement in writing in a form satisfactory to Franchisor. Any
individual that is or becomes the spouse of any individual required to provide a personal guarantee shall
execute the guarantee jointly and severally with that individual.

18.14 Relationship of the Parties.

@) It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement are
independent contractors and no training, assistance or supervision which Franchisor may give or offer to
Franchisee shall be deemed to negate such independence or create a legal duty on Franchisor’s part.
Furthermore, this Agreement does not create a fiduciary relationship between them:-that-Franchisee-is-an-
independent-contractor—and-that parties hereto and nothing herein is intended to make either party an
agent, legal representative, subsidiary, joint venturer, partner, employee, employer, joint employer,
enterprise, or servant of or with the other, for any purpose.

(b) Franchisee shall conspicuously identify itself and the Restaurant in all dealings
W|th |ts employees, customers, contractors, suppllers publlc off|C|aIs and others as an mdependent
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(©) Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that it is not authorized to make any
contract, agreement, warranty, or representation on Franchisor’s behalf, or to incur any debt or other
obligation in Franchisor’s name; and that Franchisor shall in no event assume liability for, or be deemed
liable hereunder as a result of, any such action; nor shall Franchisor be liable by reason of any act or
omission of Franchisee in its conduct of the Restaurant or for any claim or judgment arising therefrom
against Franchisee or Franchisor.

(d) Neither Franchisor nor any of its affiliates shall be liable for any damages to any
person or property arising directly or indirectly out of the operation of the Restaurant, including but not
limited to those damages which may occur while Franchisee’s employees or contractors are making or
returning from making deliveries, or arising out of Franchisee’s delivery service policies. Nor shall
Franchisor or any of its affiliates have any liability for any taxes levied upon Franchisee, its business, or
the Restaurant. Furthermore, neither Franchisor nor its affiliates have any relationship with Franchisee’s
employees and have no rights, duties, or responsibilities with regard to their employment by Franchisee.
Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisee does not have the authority to act for or on
Franchisor’s behalf or to contractually bind Franchisor or its affiliates to any agreement. No party to this
Agreement shall have any authority to assume any liability for the acts of the other, or to alter the legal
relationships of the other. Only the named parties to this Agreement shall have rights hereunder and
Franchisee shall not have any rights under any other franchise agreement to which Franchisee is not a

party.

18.15 Manufacturer Warranties. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor is not the
manufacturer of most of the items supplied by suppliers of the Franchise System. All claims and actions
based on any manufacturer warranty must be made and prosecuted by Franchisee against the applicable
manufacturer and/or warrantor at Franchisee’s own expense, unless specifically agreed to in writing by
Franchisor. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor has no responsibility or liability with
respect to any warranty from other manufacturers and no obligation to raise or prosecute any claim or
action based on a breached warranty on Franchisee’s behalf. FRANCHISEE ACKNOWLEDGES
AND AGREES THAT FRANCHISOR HAS DISCLAIMED ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS AND
IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THE ITEMS SUPPLIED BY ANY SUPPLIER OF THE
FRANCHISE SYSTEM, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES
OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND
NON-INFRINGEMENT OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS, AND THOSE
WARRANTIES ARISING BY LAW, CUSTOM, USAGE, TRADE PRACTICE, COURSE OF
DEALING, OR COURSE OF PERFORMANCE. FRANCHISOR DOES NOT WARRANT THAT
ANY ITEM SUPPLIED BY A SUPPLIER TO THE FRANCHISE SYSTEM WILL MEET
FRANCHISEE’S EXPECTATIONS OR THAT ANY EQUIPMENT OR SOFTWARE SUPPLIED
WILL OPERATE UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR-FREE. FRANCHISEE ACKNOWLEDGES
AND AGREES THAT THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES BY FRANCHISOR WHICH EXTEND
TO THE ITEMS AND GOODS SUPPLIED TO FRANCHISEE. TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED
BY LAW, FRANCHISEE SPECIFICALLY WAIVES ALL RIGHTS TO MAKE CLAIMS OR
ASSERT DEFENSES AGAINST FRANCHISOR, AND AGREES THAT FRANCHISOR WILL
NOT BE LIABLE TO FRANCHISEE FOR, ANY LOSS, DAMAGE, INJURY, DIMINUTION IN
VALUE, LIABILITY, EXPENSE, OR COST ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO AN ITEM
MANUFACTURED OR WARRANTED BY A THIRD PARTY.

18.16 Attorney Fees. Franchisor shall be entitled to recover from Franchisee any and all
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attorney fees and other costs it incurs in collecting any amounts due under this Agreement or otherwise
enforcing the terms of this Agreement. Likewise, Franchisee shall be entitled to recover from Franchisor
its attorney fees and costs incurred in compelling Franchisor to fulfill its duties and obligations under this
Agreement.

18.17 Severability and Construction. Except as expressly provided to the contrary herein, each
portion, section, part, term, and/or provision hereof shall be considered severable; and if, for any reason,
any portion, section, part, term, and/or provision herein is determined to be invalid and contrary to, or in
conflict with, any existing or future law or regulation by a court or agency having valid jurisdiction, such
shall not impair the operation of, or have any other effect upon, such other portions, sections, parts,
terms, and/or provisions hereof as may remain otherwise intelligible; and the latter shall continue to be
given full force and effect and bind the parties hereto; and said invalid portions, sections, parts, terms,
and/or provisions shall be deemed not to be a part hereof.

18.18 Survival of Modified Covenants. Franchisee expressly agrees to be bound by any
promise or covenant imposing the maximum duty permitted by law which is subsumed within the terms
of any provision hereof, as though it were separately articulated in and made a part hereof, that may
result from striking from any of the provisions hereof any portion or portions which a court may hold to
be unreasonable and unenforceable in a final decision to which Franchisor is a party, or from reducing
the scope of any promise or covenant to the extent required to comply with such a court order.

18.19 Schedules. All Schedules to this Agreement are intended to be part of this Agreement.

18.20 Modifications. Except as provided below, this Agreement may be modified or amended
only by the written agreement of the parties:

@) By a court, under Section 12, concerning Franchisee’s agreement not to compete,
or Section 15.3, concerning liquidated damages for royalties; or

(b) Franchisor reserves the right to modify this Agreement as follows, provided that
the change does not materially change Franchisee’s duties or obligations, or the nature or value of the
Franchise:

(1 To comply with a judgment, order, or directive of a court, tribunal, or
government agency that finds or determines that any term or condition of this Agreement, or any practice
engaged in by Franchisor, violates any franchise law or regulation, or other law or regulation;

(i) To comply with any change in any applicable federal, state or local law,
rule or regulation concerning franchising; or

(iili)  To establish or modify the Operations Manual or other policies,
procedures, standards or specifications from time to time.

(c) Franchisor has the right to unilaterally modify this Agreement if the modification
is approved by a vote or the written consent of a majority of the franchised Restaurants in operation at
that time. If a proposed modification is approved by a majority of the franchised Restaurants, Franchisee
will be given written notice of the modification and the effective date of the modification. The effective
date of the modification will be at least fourteen (14) days after the written notice. Franchisor’s right to
modify this Agreement under the provisions of this Section will be in addition to and will not limit or act
as a condition on Franchisor’s right to unilaterally modify this Agreement and/or the Franchise System as
otherwise permitted in this Agreement.
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18.21 Waivers and Extensions. Franchisor makes no warranties or guarantees upon which
Franchisee may rely, and assumes no liability or obligation to Franchisee by providing any waiver,
approval, consent, or suggestion to Franchisee in connection with this Agreement, or by reason of any
neglect, delay, or denial of any request therefor. No delay, waiver, omission, or forbearance on the part of
Franchisor to exercise any right, option, duty, or power arising out of any breach or default by
Franchisee, or by any other franchisee, of any of the terms, provisions, or covenants thereof, shall
constitute a waiver by Franchisor to enforce any such right, option, or power as against Franchisee, or as
to subsequent breach or default by Franchisee. Subsequent acceptance by Franchisor of any payments
due to it hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver by Franchisor of any preceding or succeeding
breach by Franchisee of any terms, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement. No extension of the time
for performance of any obligation or other act shall be deemed to be an extension of the time for the
performance of any other obligation or any other act.

18.22 Time of the Essence. The parties agree and acknowledge that time is of the essence with
regard to Franchisee’s obligations under this Agreement.

18.23 Section Headings. The Section headings contained in this Agreement are for reference
purposes only and shall not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

18.24 Survival Clause. The provisions of Sections 1, 2, 5, 9.3, 10, 11, 12, 15, 16, 17, 18, and
19 shall survive the termination of the Franchise and this Agreement.

18.25 Multiple Counterparts and Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original Agreement, but all of which shall
constitute only one Agreement. Execution and delivery of an executed party’s signature page of this
Agreement by electronic signature, whether digital or encrypted, is intended to authenticate this writing
and to have the same force and effect as a manual signature.

19. Acknowledgements and Representations. The acknowledgements and representations below
apply to al+Franchisees-and-franchises, except that the acknowledgements #+-in Section 19.1 and 19.3
deshall not apply to anyif fFranchisees and its fFranchises that—areis subject to the state franchise

registration/disclosure laws of California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota,
New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

19.1  Recognition of Business Risks. Franchisee and its principals acknowledge that the
business venture contemplated hereby involves business risks, which could result in the loss of a
significant portion or all of Franchisee’s investment, and that Franchisee’s success will be largely
dependent upon the ability of Franchisee as an independent business person (or the ability of the
principals, if Franchisee is a corporation or other entity). Franchisor expressly disclaims the making of,
and Franchisee and its principals acknowledge that they have not received, any warranty, guarantee, or
representation, express or implied, from any employee or agent of Franchisor, as to the prior, current, or
potential sales, income, profits, cash flows, or success of the business venture contemplated by this
Agreement or of other restaurants, or of the suitability of the Location of the Restaurant.

19.2  Receipt of Franchise Offering Materials. Franchisee acknowledges that it received a
Franchisor Franchise Disclosure Document, as required under federal and applicable state franchise
disclosure law, at least fourteen (14) calendar days before signing this Agreement or any other binding
agreement; or paying any fees to Franchisor or its affiliates. In addition, if Franchisor materially altered
the provisions of this Agreement, any attachments relating thereto, or any related agreements attached to
the Franchisor Franchise Disclosure Document (except as a result of negotiations Franchisee initiated),
Franchisee acknowledges that it received a copy of this Agreement or the related agreement at least seven
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(7) calendar days before signing it.

19.3  Review of Franchise Offering Materials. Franchisee acknowledges that it has read and
understands the Franchise Disclosure Document, this Agreement, and the attachments hereto, and that
Franchisor has accorded Franchisee ample time and opportunity to consult with advisors of Franchisee’s
own choosing about the potential benefits and risks of entering into this Agreement.

19.4  Uniformity of Agreements. Franchisee acknowledges that it is aware that other
franchisees of Franchisor operate under a number of different forms of franchise agreements that were
entered into at different times and for different locations and that, consequently, the obligations and
rights of the parties to such other agreements may differ materially in certain instances from Franchisee’s
rights and obligations under this Agreement.

19.5 No False Statements. Franchisee acknowledges and represents that all information
submitted to Franchisor by Franchisee and its owners, including but not limited to all applications,
financial information, the Ownership Certificate, and all other documents and information, is true,
correct, and complete in all respects and does not omit any material statement or item of fact necessary to
make the statements made therein not false or misleading. Franchisee agrees to promptly advise
Franchisor of any material change in the information or statements submitted to Franchisor. Franchisee
acknowledges and understands that Franchisor has entered into this Agreement in reliance on the
statements and information submitted to Franchisor by Franchisee and its owners, and that any material
breach, inaccuracy, or omission is grounds for Franchisor to terminate this Agreement.

19.6 No Conflicting Agreements. Franchisee acknowledges and represents that neither
Franchisee nor any owner of Franchisee is a party to or is otherwise subject to any other agreement,
promise, representation, warranty, covenant, court order, settlement agreement, or other legal or
equitable obligation that conflicts with this Agreement or prohibits or limits Franchisee or its owners
from entering into this Agreement or from fulfilling all of Franchisee’s obligations under this Agreement.

19.7 No Other Beneficiaries. Franchisor is not obligated or liable, as a result of this
Agreement, to any person or entity that is not a party to this Agreement. Franchisee understands that
Franchisee is not a third party beneficiary of any other franchise agreement between Franchisor and other
franchisees, and that Franchisee has no independent right to enforce the terms of, or require performance
under, any other franchise agreement.

19.8  Terrorist and Money Laundering Activities. Franchisee and its principals, owners,
officers, directors, members, partners and agents represent and warrant to Franchisor that: (a) they are not
identified by name or alias, pseudonym or nickname, on the lists of “Specially Designated Nationals” or
“Blocked Persons” maintained by the U.S. Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign Assets Control (text
is currently available at www.treas.gov/offices/enforcement/ofac) (b) they are not directly or indirectly
owned or controlled by the government of any country that is subject to a United States embargo; (c) they
will not act directly or indirectly on behalf of the government of any country that is subject to a United
States embargo; and (d) they are in full compliance with all laws proscribing money laundering and
corrupt practices. Further, Franchisee and its principals, owners, officers, directors, members, partners
and agents represent and warrant to Franchisor that they have not violated and agree not to violate any
law prohibiting corrupt business practices, money laundering or the aid or support of persons who
conspire to commit acts of terror against any person or government, including acts prohibited by the USA
Patriot Act (text currently available at http://www.epic.org/privacy/terrorism/hr3162.html) U.S.
Executive Order 13244 (text currently available at
http://lwww.treas.gov/offices/enforcement/ofac/sanctions/terrorism.html) or any similar law. The
foregoing constitute continuing representations and warranties, and Franchisee and its principals, owners,
officers, directors, members, partners and agents must immediately notify Franchisor in writing of the
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occurrence of any event or the development of any circumstance that might render any of the foregoing
representations and warranties false, inaccurate or misleading.

19.9 No Waiver or Disclaimer of Reliance in Certain States. The following provision applies

only to franchisees and franchises that are subject to the state franchise registration/disclosure laws in
California, Hawaii, lllinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode
Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, or Wisconsin:

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by Franchisee in

connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i)
waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement,

or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by Franchisor, any franchise seller, or any
other person acting on behalf of Franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any

document executed in connection with the franchise.

[Signatures on the Following Page]
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IN WITNESS OF this Franchise Agreement,

FRANCHISOR:

JET’S AMERICA, INC.

Name: John Jetts
Its: President

Effective Date:

the parties have signed below.

FRANCHISEE:

Name:

Its:

Date:
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Jet’s Pizza Franchise Agreement

SCHEDULE 1
FEES, DEPOSITS AND SPENDING REQUIREMENTS

Initial Franchise Fee $30,000%
Royalty Fee (monthly) 12% of Acquired
Inventory or minimum of

$1,200

General Advertising Fee and Technology Fee (monthly) Combined, up to 10% of
Acquired Inventory

Fechnology-Fee{menthly) 10% of Acguired
It

Initial Training Program (per person)** $1,000 (not including

training apparel;
estimated cost of apparel
is between $100-$200);
plus expenses for lodging
and meals

Evaluation Fee for Approval of New Supplier** $1,000, plus
out-of-pocket expenseg
incurred by Jet’y

Minimum Monthly Expenditure on Advertising (including any $3,800

contributions to General—Advertising—Fund—or—Regional
Advertising Fund)

Loyalty and Gift Card Programs Administrative Monthly| Currently: $2530.00 plus
Fee*** $99.00 (currently part of
Minimum Monthly,
Expenditure on
Advertising

Regional Advertising Fee 25¢ per box or a weekly
contribution, as set forth
on Appendix A

Transfer Fee** Up to $6,000
Renewal Fee $4,000
Liquidated Damages under Section 15.3 Maximum

$43,200.00%***

* If the Franchisee is at least 20% owned by a person who serves in active duty or
who has served in the military, naval or air service and was not dishonorably
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Jet’s Pizza Franchise Agreement

discharged, then the Initial Franchise Fee will be $15,000, reflecting a 50%
discount for military veterans.

** The amount or formula shown above is the current fee or formula, but is subject
to change at the discretion of Franchisor. With respect to the Initial Training
Program, the cost for the first two people participating in the program is included
in the Initial Franchise Fee. If Franchisee elects to have more than two people
trained, then Franchisee must pay Franchisor the standard fee for each additional
person.

***This fee is currently counted towards the Minimum Monthly Expenditure on
Advertising but Franchisor reserves the right to separate this fee from the
minimum advertising spending requirement and charge the fee in addition to any
other fee or spending requirement.

****In case there are less than 36 months remaining in the term of the Franchise

Agreement, the number of months multiplied by $1,200.00 will equal the
liquidated damages.

Acknowledgement by parties that this Schedule is part of the Franchise Agreement:

Schedule 1 — Page 2
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Jet’s Pizza Franchise Agreement

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:

JET'S AMERICA, INC.

John Jetts, President Signature
Date Name of Person Signing
Company

Position of Person Signing

Date

Schedule 1 — Page 3
Jet’s Pizza (20245)



Jet’s Pizza Franchise Agreement

CONTRIBUTION TO REGIONAL ADVERTISING FUNDS

APPENDIX A

Denver DMA Jet's Pizza $426.92/week
Ft. Myers DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Tampa DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
$250/week
Atlanta DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Chicago DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
$200/week
Indianapolis DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Louisville DMA Jet’s Pizza $576.93/week
Lexington DMA Jet’s Pizza $393/week
Michigan Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
$300/week
St. Louis DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Charlotte DMA Jet’s Pizza $576.93/week
Raleigh DMA Jet’s Pizza $576.93/week
Austin DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Cincinnati DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
$175/week
Cleveland DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Columbus DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Nashville DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Green Bay DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box
Milwaukee DMA Jet’s Pizza $.25/box

Jet’s Pizza (20245)

Schedule 1 — Appendix A




Jet’s Pizza Franchise Agreement

SCHEDULE 2

Name and Location

Franchisor’s
Initials

Franchisee’s
Initials

Date

Franchisee’s Business Name:

Location (address):

Jet’s Pizza (20245)




Jet’s Pizza Franchise Agreement

SCHEDULE 3
MARKS

Franchisor's Marks currently include the following:

1. The following logo(s):

2. The following trademarks and/or service marks:

MARK REG TYPE REG. # REG. DATE STATUS
DELI BOATS PRINCIPAL 2,047,526 03/25/1997 REGISTERED
JET PAC PRINCIPAL 2,047,527 03/25/1997 REGISTERED
BABY PAC PRINCIPAL 2,047,528 03/25/1997 REGISTERED
JET'S BOATS PRINCIPAL 2,096,791 09/16/1997 REGISTERED

JETMAN DESIGN

[ = PRINCIPAL 2,133,757 02/03/1998 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 2,150,029 04/14/1998 REGISTERED
JET'S BREAD PRINCIPAL 2,343,006 04/18/2000 REGISTERED

JET'S PIZZA (STYLIZED)

j E i s PRINCIPAL 2,712,642 05/06/2003 REGISTERED

TURBO CRUST PRINCIPAL 2,787,930 12/02/2003 REGISTERED

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



Jet’s Pizza Franchise Agreement

MARK REG TYPE REG. # REG. DATE STATUS
JET 10 PRINCIPAL 3,145,297 09/19/2006 REGISTERED
FLAVORIZE YOUR CRUST FOR FREE PRINCIPAL 3,754,367 03/02/2010 REGISTERED
LET'S GET JET'S PRINCIPAL 3,802,330 06/15/2010 REGISTERED
LIFE IS SHORT. EAT BETTER PIZZA. PRINCIPAL 3,825,678 07/27/2010 REGISTERED
TURBO STIX PRINCIPAL 3,884,914 12/07/2010 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA PRINCIPAL 3,889,969 12/14/2010 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA & JETMAN DESIGN (IN
COLOR)
PRINCIPAL 3,890,313 12/14/2010 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA & JETMAN DESIGN (IN
COLOR)
PRINCIPAL 3,890,314 12/14/2010 REGISTERED
8 CORNER PIZZA & DESIGN
PRINCIPAL 3,933,302 03/22/2011 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 3,934,048 03/22/2011 REGISTERED
JET'S PIZZA & JETMAN DESIGN
PRINCIPAL 4,035,889 10/04/2011 REGISTERED
8 CORNER PIZZA PRINCIPAL 4,267,021 01/01/2013 REGISTERED
DEEP DISH BREAD SUPPLEMENTAL 4,626,561 10/21/2014 REGISTERED
RESPECT THE CRUNCH PRINCIPAL 4,812,701 09/15/2015 REGISTERED
DEEP DISH DUO PRINCIPAL 4,826,143 10/06/2015 | TO BE CANCELLED
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MARK REG TYPE REG. # REG. DATE STATUS
EUGENE SUPREME PRINCIPAL 5,012,413 08/02/2016 REGISTERED
4 CORNER PIZZA PRINCIPAL 5,012,749 08/02/2016 REGISTERED

4 CORNER PIZZA & DESIGN
o= =
=

g PRINCIPAL 5,032,003 08/30/2016 REGISTERED

I==4 o=
ALL MEATY PRINCIPAL 5,129,170 01/24/2017 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 5,236,704 07/04/2017 REGISTERED
BETTER, BECAUSE IT HAS TO BE. PRINCIPAL 5,820,995 07/30/2019 REGISTERED
DEEP DISH BREAD PRINCIPAL 6,203,586 11/24/2020 REGISTERED
JET'S PRINCIPAL 6,585,641 12/14/2021 REGISTERED
RE-PIZZA PRINCIPAL 6,739,825 05/24/2022 REGISTERED

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



Qet’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider

SCHEDULE 4

STANDARD LEASE RIDER

Jet's Pizza

Page 1

THIS RIDER is attached to and part of a lease between the landlord (“Landlord™) and

tenant ("Tenant"), and concerns the premises (the "Premises"), described below:

Landlord

Name

Address

Telephone/FAX
Numbers

Contact Person

Tenant

Name

Address

Telephone/FAX
Numbers

Contact Person

Premises

THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. Construction of Rider.

This Rider is referred to as the "Rider." The lease form in

connection with which this Rider is being executed is referred to as the "Primary Lease Form."
The Rider and the Primary Lease Form, together, constitute the "Lease." To the extent of any

conflict, the provisions of this Rider shall supersede those of the Primary Lease Form.

2. Franchisor is Third Party Beneficiary. Tenant is a franchisee of JET'S AMERICA,

INC., a Michigan corporation (“Franchisor™). The Premises are to be the location of a Jet's Pizza
franchise restaurant. The purpose of this Rider is to grant Franchisor a certain amount of control
over the Premises under certain circumstances, and over Tenant's conduct of the franchise
business at the Premises. Accordingly, Franchisor is a third party beneficiary of this Lease.

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



Jet’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider Page 2

3. Notice to Franchisor._

3.1 Landlord agrees to provide Franchisor with thirty days' prior written notice of
any of the following:

(@ The cancellation or termination of the Lease by either Landlord or
Tenant prior to the expiration date stated in the Lease;

(b) Any assignment or proposed assignment of the Lease by either Landlord
or Tenant;

(c) Anysublease or proposed sublease of the Premises by Tenant;
(d)  Any modification of the Lease; or

() The renewal of the existing Lease by Landlord and Tenant, or the
execution of a new lease.

3.2 Landlord agrees to provide contemporaneous written notice to Franchisor of
any notice of default given to Tenant and allow Franchisor to cure such default within 30 days of
receipt of such notice by Franchisor.

3.3 Landlord must provide written notice to Franchisor within fifteen days after
Landlord commences any legal action against Tenant, including but not limited to an action for
eviction.

4.  Tenant's Right to Assign the Lease. Tenant shall have the right to assign the Lease
to Franchisor or to any other franchisee of Franchisor, provided the assignee assumes all of
Tenant's obligations under the Lease.

5. Franchisor's Right to Assume Lease. Franchisor shall have the right to assume the
Lease within 30 days of receipt of a notice from Landlord of any of the following circumstances:

5.1 Tenant assigns the Lease to Franchisor under Section 4;
5.2 The expiration or termination of Tenant's franchise; or

5.3 The expiration, cancellation or termination of the Lease, or Landlord's eviction
of Tenant from the Premises for any reason.

5.4 The notice of Tenant’s default.

Franchisor's right to assume the Lease is assignable to any of its other franchisees,
provided the assignee assumes all of Tenant's obligations under the Lease.

6.  Signs. Tenant shall have the right to install at the Premises professionally prepared
window banners, promotional banners and posters, window decals, and announcements, on the
inside of the plate glass windows, regardless of any sign criteria previously or subsequently
prescribed by Landlord, within restrictions required by local municipalities.

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



Jet’s Pizza Standard Lease Rider Page 3

7. Franchisor's Marks. Landlord acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to Franchisor's trademarks and service marks (the "Marks"), including but not limited to
the name "Jet's Pizza." Landlord disclaims any right it may have or may otherwise acquire under
the Lease or by law, to any signs, banners or other assets of Tenant or Franchisor bearing any of
Franchisor's Marks.

8.  Restrictive Covenant. If the Premises are located in a shopping center or mall,
Landlord shall not allow any tenant located in any other portion of the shopping center or mall to
engage in a business in which ten (10%) percent or more of the gross revenue is derived from the
sale of pizza.

9.  Compliance with Laws. Franchisor shall have no responsibility for the compliance
with any applicable federal, state or local law concerning the Premises, including but not limited
to the Americans with Disabilities Act, until such time as Franchisor receives an assignment of
or assumes the Lease and takes possession of the Premises.

10. Binding Effect. This Rider shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the
parties and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns.

LANDLORD: TENANT:

Signature Signature

Name of Person Signing Name of Person Signing
Position Position

Date Date

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



Jet’s Pizza Franchise Agreement

SCHEDULE 5
SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTRATIVE FEES FOR VARIOUS DEFAULTS

In addition to any other rights and remedies Franchisor may have under the Franchise

Agreement:
1. Purchase or use of equipment, goods or supplies from unapproved suppliers, or that do not

meet prescribed specifications:

1%t Offense: $2,500
Failure to cure within preseribed-cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 2" or subsequent
offense: $5,000

Use of unauthorized advertising materials: All print advertising and marketing materials
(EDDMs, flyers, Bob Toppers, Mailshark, local print, etc.) must be submitted and
approved by Jet’s Pizza Marketing Dept. to ensure compliance with Jet’s Pizza Brand
Standards.

1%t Offense: $2,500
Failure to cure within preseribed-cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 2" or subsequent
offense: $5,000

Failure to comply with Operations Manual with regard to preparation of menu items:

15t Offense: warning

Failure to cure 1% offense within prescribed-cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 2™
offense: $2,500

Failure to cure 2" offense within preseribed-cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 3" or
subsequent offense: $5,000

Failure to comply with Operations Manual with regard to store appearance:

1t Offense: warning

Failure to cure 1% offense within prescribed-cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 2™
offense: $2,500

Failure to cure 2" offense within preseribed-cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 3" or
subsequent offense: $5,000

Mistreatment, abuse of customers (both written and/or verbal), or failure to address
customer complaints to the reasonable satisfaction of Franchisor:

1t Offense: warning

Failure to cure 1% offense within preseribed-cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 2™
offense: $2,500

Failure to cure 2" offense within preseribed-cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or 3 or
subsequent offense: $5,000

Schedule 5 — Page 1
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Failure to obtain executed confidentiality agreements or agreements not to compete from
employees or other persons required under Franchise Agreement:

1t Offense: warning

Failure to cure 1%t offense within preseribed-cure period;-ané prescribed by Franchisor, or
2" offense: $2,500

Failure to cure and-2" offense within preseribed-cure period prescribed by Franchisor, or
3" or subsequent offense: $5,000

Sale or transfer of the Franchise, the Restaurant, or the franchised business, without the
prior written consent of Franchisor: $7,500

Late payment of royalties:

1%t Offense: $250
Failure to cure within prescribed cure period, and 2" or subsequent offense: $500

Unauthorized use of the Marks:

1st Offense: $2,500
Failure to cure within preseribed—cure period prescribed by Franchisor, and 2" or
subsequent offense: $5,000

Failure to submit required reports when due:

1st Offense: $250
Failure to cure within prescribed cure period, and 2" or subsequent offense: $500

Failure to comply with the Policy Against the Disparagement and Unauthorized Use or
Display of Jet’s Brand and Marks, as set forth in the Operations Manual’s Supplemental
Policies including but not limited to: social media posts (such as Facebook, Instagram,
TikTok, etc.) by employees, photos, texts, and/or interviews, on any platform that is
publicly accessible:

Each Offense: up to $20,000 (to be determined by Franchisor)

Failure to update in-store signage. All signage must be updated to current brand standards.
No other signage should be displayed at store level that is visible to customer.

15t Offense: Warning — to be given in writing (letter or email); thirty day period to correct.
Failure to cure within preseribed—cure period prescribed by Franchisor, and 2" or
subsequent offense: $5,000

Unauthorized social post(s) on any platform (including Facebook, Instagram, TikTok, etc.)
are not permitted.

Schedule 5 — Page 2
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14.

15.

16.

15t Offense: Warning — to be given in writing (letter or email); thirty day period to correct.
Failure to cure within preseribed—cure period prescribed by Franchisor, and 2" or
subsequent offense: $5,000

Unauthorized TV and Radio advertising is prohibited. All creative must be submitted and
approved by Jet’s Pizza Marketing Dept. to ensure compliance with Jet’s Pizza Brand
Standards.

1%t Offense: $2,500
Failure to cure within preseribed—cure period prescribed by Franchisor, and 2" or
subsequent offense: $5,000

Failure to comply with renewal requirements: in the event Franchisor decides in its
discretion to allow for a conditional renewal of a Franchise Agreement, Franchisee shall be
subject to pay the following fees for late compliance:

1%t Offense: $35,000
Failure to cure within preseribed—cure period_prescribed by Franchisor, and 2" or
subsequent offense: $610,000

Failure to adhere to mandatory operating hours as required under the Operations Manual:

Without approval by Franchisor: $500 per day
If Franchisee provides at least 24 hours’ notice to Franchisor, submits satisfactory evidence
of a bona fide reason, and obtains Franchisor’s approval: $250 per day

Information Technology Fees

17.

18.

19.

PCI Compliance Fee

1%t Offense: $51,000 per month until fixed. If fixed within 30 days the month’s fee may be
refunded.

Credit Card Breach Negligence Fine
1st Offense: $25,000

Only for use in cases of breach where Jet’s America finds the franchisee to be negligent
of maintaining PCI compliance.

Unapproved POS

1st Offense: $23,000 per month until fixed. If fixed within 30 days the month’s fee may
Schedule 5 — Page 3
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be refunded.
20. Unapproved or Unutilized (missing) Online Ordering platform

15t Offense: $13,000 per month until fixed. If fixed within 30 days the month’s fee may
be refunded.

21. Contracted Use of Unapproved Aggregator

15t Offense: $53,000 per month until fixed. If fixed within 30 days the month’s fee may be
refunded.

Schedule 5 - Page 4
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Tel: 614-488-3126 300 Spruce Street, Suite 100
Fax: 614-488-0095 Columbus, OH 43215

www.bdo.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Jet’s America, Inc.
Sterling Heights, Michigan

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jet’s America, Inc. (the Company),
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 and
the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted

BDO USA, P.C., a Virginia professional corporation, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
atters, the planned scope and timing gf the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
i d during the audit.

DO USA, F.C.

April 29, 2025
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Jet’s America, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2024 2023 2022
Assets
Current Assets
Cash 12,603,814 S 8,442,777 S 12,939,420
Short-term investments - 3,562,882 -
Accounts receivable 3,628,997 3,296,468 3,210,068
Inventory 46,501 9,392 15,201
Notes receivable 408,821 362,947 348,713
Related party receivable 250,000 . .
Prepaid expenses 747,249 299,770 64,953
Total Current Assets 17,685,382 15,974,236 16,578,355
Property and Equipment, Net 276,805 274,000 251,656
Operating Lease Asset, Net 238,551 423,860 610,530
Intangible Assets 453,423 451,014 445,116
Notes Receivable, net of current 1,174,018 1,464,004 1,826,949
Total Assets 19,828,179 S 18,587,114 § 19,712,606
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 2,903,809 S 1,754,486 S 2,798,675
Accrued and other current liabilities:
Accrued compensation 76,276 97,923 82,936
Distributions payable 150,000 108,600 108,600
Deferred franchise fees 364,849 503,176 405,074
Gift cards redeemable 681,967 621,815 469,345
Operating lease liability 190,592 188,621 186,873
Other accrued liabilities 105,422 247,988 92,808
Total Current Liabilities 4,472,915 3,522,609 4,144,311
Other Long-Term Liabilities
Deferred franchise fees, net of current 2,695,017 2,305,259 1,816,514
Operating lease liability, net of current 47,959 224,103 412,521
Total Liabilities 7,215,891 6,051,971 6,373,346
Stockholders’ Equity 12,612,288 12,535,143 13,339,260
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 19,828,179 S 18,587,114 S 19,712,606

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Jet’s America, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Income

Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022
Net Revenue
Royalty revenue S 13,172,520 11,928,077 12,498,259
Advertising revenue 12,504,007 10,950,515 10,904,073
Vendor rebates 4,670,643 4,373,483 4,538,269
Franchise revenues 374,069 385,653 404,055
Other revenues 71,265 193,560 121,573
Total Net Revenue 30,792,504 27,831,288 28,466,229
Cost of Revenue 12,926 119,661 74,490
Gross Profit 30,779,578 27,711,627 28,391,739
Operating Expenses 25,909,395 23,281,659 23,308,063
Operating Income 4,870,183 4,429,968 5,083,676
Non-Operating Income (Expense)
Interest income 347,633 161,376 75,366
Income tax expense (128,612) (335,487) (228,580)
Other income 270,697 227,509 77,876
Total Non-Operating Income (Expense) 489,718 53,398 (75,338)
Net Income S 5,359,901 4,483,366 S 5,008,338

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

Jet’s America, Inc.

Additional Retained
Common Stock Paid-in Capital Earnings Total
Balance, December 31, 2021 S 21,332 S 14,668 S 12,340,576 S 12,376,576
Net income - - 5,008,338 5,008,338
Distributions (4,045,654) (4,045,654)
Balance, December 31, 2022 21,332 14,668 13,303,260 13,339,260
Net income - - 4,483,366 4,483,366
Distributions (5,287,483) (5,287,483)
Balance, December 31, 2023 21,332 14,668 12,499,143 12,535,143
Net Income - - 5,359,901 5,359,901
Distributions (5,282,756) (5,282,756)
Balance, December 31, 2024 S 21,332 S 14,668 S 12,576,288 S 12,612,288

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Jet’s America, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income S 5,359,901 § 4,483,366 5,008,338
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 62,953 56,290 62,972
Loss on provision of note receivable - - 31,524
Non-cash lease expense 185,309 186,670 188,053
Gain on disposal of property and
equipment - - (6,230)
Interest on short-term investments - (62,882) -
Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:
Accounts receivable (332,529) (86,400) 297,944
Inventory (37,109) 5,809 (10,655)
Related party receivable (250,000) - -
Prepaid expenses (447,479) (234,817) (11,536)
Accounts payable 1,149,323 (1,044,189) 818,957
Deferred franchise fees 251,431 586,847 119,546
Accrued and other liabilities (164,213) 170,167 (54,838)
Gift card liabilities 60,152 152,470 (91,525)
Operating lease liability (174,173) (186,670) (199,189)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 5,663,566 4,026,661 6,153,361
Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment (65,758) (78,634) (99,392)
Proceeds from sale of property and
equipment - - 18,417
Issuance of notes receivable (145,000) - (2,384,143)
Payments on notes receivable 389,112 348,711 214,603
Maturity of short-term investments 3,562,882 - -
Purchase of short-term investments - (3,500,000) -
Cash paid for intangible assets (2,409) (5,898) (9,379)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing
Activities 3,738,827 (3,235,821) (2,259,894)
Financing Activities
Distributions to stockholders (5,241,356) (5,287,483) 4,045,654)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (5,241,356) (5,287,483) 4,045,654)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 4,161,037 (4,496,643) (152,187)
Cash, beginning of year 8,442,777 12,939,420 13,091,607
Cash, end of year S 12,603,814 § 8,442,777 S 12,939,420
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash
Information
Cash paid for income taxes S 291,539 S 119,987 § 228,580
Supplemental Non-Cash Transactions
Distributions payable ) 150,000 S 108,600 S 108,600

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Jet’s America, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Nature of Business

Jet’s America, Inc. is engaged in the franchising of Jet’s Pizza restaurants in the United States. The
Company was incorporated on June 8, 1990 in Michigan.

Jet’s America, Inc. executes franchise agreements that establish the terms of its arrangements with
franchisees. The franchise agreements require the franchisee to pay an initial franchise fee of
$25,000 to $30,000 excluding any discounts or promotions that may be offered. In addition to the
initial investment fee, the franchisee pays Jet’s America, Inc. a monthly royalty fee based on a
percent of acquired inventory as defined in the franchise agreements, depending on the year of
initial operation. Under the franchise agreements, Jet’s America, Inc. is obligated to provide certain
training and opening assistance to the franchisees.

The following chart represents the stores open:

December 31, 2024 2023 2022
Franchised stores 394 369 360
Company or Affiliate owned stores 56 53 47
Total Stores 450 422 407

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Jet’s America, Inc. and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the Company), which include Jet’s Pizza National Advertising Fund (JPNAF) and Jet’s
America Productions, Inc. (the Rebate Fund). Collectively, JPNAF and the Rebate Fund are referred
to as “the Ad Funds.” All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Company has elected to adopt certain
accounting alternatives for private companies, as developed by the Private Companies Council,
including leasing entities under common control.

Cash

The company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months of less
to be cash equivalents.

Short-Term Investments

The Company classifies its certificates of deposit as cash and cash equivalents or short-term
investments and reassesses the appropriateness of the classification of its investments at the end
of each reporting period. Certificates of deposit with an original maturity greater than three months
are reported as short-term investments on the consolidated balance sheets. The Company classified
its short-term investments at the time of purchase as “held-to-maturity” and re-evaluates its

)
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Jet’s America, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

classification each reporting period based in its intent and ability to hold until maturity. Short-term
investments are carried at amortized cost and approximate fair value.

As of December 31, 2023, the Company had $3,500,000 in certificates of deposit, plus $62,882 of
accrued interest, all of which was classified as short-term investments on its consolidated balance
sheets. During 2024, all of the Company’s short-term investments matured. The certificates of
deposit held as of December 31, 2023, earned interest at rates ranging from 4.10% to 4.88% per
annum and matured during 2024. The Company did not have any certificates of deposit as of
December 31, 2024 or December 31, 2022.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the invoice amounts and are primarily comprised of receivables
from franchisees and vendor rebates. The Company maintains an allowance for credit losses that is
calculated under the current expected credit loss (CECL) model. The CECL model applies to financial
assets measured at amortized cost and requires the Company to reflect expected credit losses over
the remaining contractual term of the asset. The Company uses an aging method to estimate
allowances for credit losses under the CECL model as the Company has determined that the aging
method adequately reflects expected credit losses, as corroborated by historical losses.
Management considers all accounts receivable collectible; therefore, an allowance for credit losses
has not been recorded at December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

Contract Balances

Following is an analysis of the activity in contract balances during the year. Contract assets arise
when the company transfers goods or services to a customer in advance of receiving consideration
from the customer. Contract liabilities represent the company's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer when consideration has already been received from the customer. Deferred
revenue is recorded as a component of accrued expenses and other liabilities on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,

2024 2023 2022 2021
Accounts receivable, net $ 3,628,997 S 3,296,468 S 3,210,068 S 3,508,012
Gift cards redeemable 681,967 621,815 469,345 560,870
Deferred franchise fees 3,059,866 2,808,435 2,221,588 2,102,042

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Both straight-line and accelerated methods are used
for computing depreciation and amortization. Assets are depreciated over their estimated useful
lives. Costs of maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
A 4

4 Al
Management reviews the carrying value of property and equipment, intangibles, and other long-lived
assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to result from the use of these assets. If the sum of the expected future net cash
flows is less than the carrying value, an impairment loss would be recognized.
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Jet’s America, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

An impairment loss would be measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets
exceeds the fair value of the assets. The Company’s estimate of future cash flows is based upon,
among other things, certain assumptions about expected future operating performance, growth
rates and other factors. The actual cash flows realized from these assets may vary significantly from
the Company’s estimates due to increased competition, fluctuation in customer visits, fluctuations
in cost of sales, increased wages, and reductions in average selling prices. Assumptions underlying
future cash flow estimates are therefore subject to significant risks and uncertainties. For the years
ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, management has determined no impairment of these
assets exists.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of capitalized trademark costs that are not subject to amortization and are
tested for impairment at least annually. No impairments were recognized in the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable are reported at original issue amount plus accrued interest, less principal repaid.
Interest is recognized according to terms of the specific notes. The company maintains an allowance
for credit losses that is calculated under the current expected credit loss (CECL) model. The CECL
model applies to financial assets measured at amortized costs and requires the company to reflect
expected credit losses over the remaining contractual term of the asset. Collections are
continuously monitored and an allowance for credit losses under the CECL model is maintained
based on historical experience adjusted for current conditions and reasonable forecasts taking into
account specific economic factors. The Company evaluates credit risk based on a variety of credit
quality factors including prior payment experience, borrower financial information, credit ratings,
probabilities of default, industry trends and other internal metrics. All amounts deemed to be
uncollectible are charged against the allowance for loan losses in the period that determination is
made.

At December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, notes receivable represents uncollateralized loans at the
terms _disclosed in Note 5. The notes receivable are classified as current or long term on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets depending on the maturity date. The Company considers
the notes receivable collectible; therefore, an allowance for loan losses has not been recorded at
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

Revenue Recognition

Rovalty Revenue

Franchise royalties, which are based on a percentage of acquired inventory, are recognized when
earned in accordance with the franchise agreement at the time they are incurred by the franchisees.
Royalty revenues are primarily related to the use of the license agreements and are recognized as
income in the same period in which the inventory purchases by the franchisees occur.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A 4
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Advertising Revenue
The Company has the following types of Advertising Revenue which are contributed to the Ad Funds:

e Box Revenue - Box fees are charged by the Company to franchisees using a volume-based
formula based on number of pizza boxes sold by the franchisee. Box revenues are recognized
when earned in the same period in which the sales by the franchisees occur in accordance
with the franchise agreement.

e Media Fees - The Company charges a fixed media fee to franchisees in certain regions.
Revenue recognized as a result of media fees are recognized as revenue at a fixed rate in
accordance with the franchise agreement.

e Volume Based - Additional franchisee contributions are not currently required to be
contributed, but franchisees may be required to contribute a percentage of acquired inventory
under the franchise agreement at the discretion of Jet’s America, Inc. There were no
volume-based advertising fees charged or collected during the years ended December 31, 2024,
2023, and 2022.

Vendor Rebates

Jet’s America, Inc. earns vendor rebates based on the volume of purchases by franchised locations.
These funds are contributed to the Ad Funds to support advertising costs and other administrative
costs that support the franchisee system as further discussed below in Note 2. Vendor rebate
revenues are recognized by the Company in the period in which the rebates are earned.

Franchise Revenue

The Company generates revenues from franchise agreements. In consideration for the payment of
an initial fixed franchise fee, a volume-based royalty fee, a usage-based advertising fee and other
amounts specified in the franchise agreement, the Company grants new franchisees the use of the
Jet’s trademarks, recipes, systems, trainings, and operation assistance.

The Company satisfies the performance obligation related to the franchise fee collected over the
term of the related agreement, which is typically ten years. The initial franchise fee, as determined
by the signed franchise agreement, is nonrefundable and due at the time the agreement is entered
into. Revenue related to these franchise agreements is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
respective term, which typically begins the date of the opening of the new franchise store.

Gift Card Liability

The Company acts as a clearinghouse for its franchisees’ gift card transactions. On a monthly basis,
franchisees are billed or paid for the amount of the gift card sales over or under gift card redemptions
at the respective franchisees’ store for the period. The gift card liability represents the amounts
owed to franchisees for unredeemed gift cards. The Company recorded a liability for unredeemed
gift cards, net of breakage, totaling $681,967, $621,815, and $469,345 at December 31, 2024, 2023,
and 2022, respectively.

In some cases, gift cards are not redeemed, or are not redeemed in full, and the unredeemed portion
is referred to as breakage. If the amount of gift card breakage and the estimated time period of
actual gift card redemption can be reasonably and objectively determined, then the Company will
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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recognize gift card breakage is recorded based on historical customer usage patterns, in accordance
with escheatment laws. Management assesses historical data to identify a reasonable and objective
time period of redemption. Gift card breakage recorded was approximately $44,570, $48,279, and
$45,000 during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively, and is included
in other revenues on the consolidated statements of income.

Leases

The Company accounts for leases in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 842, Leases. The standard establishes a right-of-use (ROU)
model that requires a lessee to record a ROU asset and a lease liability on the consolidated balance
sheets for all leases with terms longer than 12 months. Leases are classified as either finance or
operating, with classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the consolidated
statements of income.

The Company defines the lease term as the noncancellable term of the lease plus any renewal
options that are reasonably certain of exercise based on an assessment of economic factors. The
noncancellable term commences on the date the lessor makes the underlying asset available to the
lessee, irrespective of when lease payments begin.

The Company recognizes a ROU asset and lease liability at lease commencement, which are
measured by discounting lease payments using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

A lease ROU asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Interest on each lease
liability is determined as the amount that results in a constant periodic discount rate on the
remaining balance of the liability. Lease ROU assets are assessed for impairment in accordance with
the long-lived asset impairment policy.

The Company reassesses lease classification and remeasures ROU assets and lease liabilities when a
lease is modified, and that modification is not accounted for as a separate contract or upon certain
other events that require reassessment in accordance with ASC 842. Maintenance and property tax
expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis as variable lease costs.

JPNAF and Rebate Fund

The Rebate Fund is currently funded solely by supplier rebates. JPNAF is currently funded by supplier
rebates via the Rebate Fund and by franchisee contributions (box fees) using a volume-based
formula and media fees collected from franchisees. Additional franchisee contributions may be
required to contribute a percentage of acquired inventory under the franchise agreement at the
discretion of Jet’s America, Inc. The company required a 1% contribution for the year ended
December 31, 2024. No additional contributions were required for the years ended December 31,
2023 and 2022.

The Company may use the Ad Funds for advertising and promotional expenses, including production,
administrative costs, social media, advertising agency fees, and IT programs and enhancements
facilitating ordering, sales and promotions. The Company may also use the Ad Funds for media costs
only if reasonably intended to benefit Jet’s Pizza restaurants and the Franchise System generally,
such as a national radio or television advertising program.

14
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The Company has control of the Ad Funds and their activities. The expenditures are primarily
amounts paid to third parties but may also include personnel expenses and allocated costs.

Advertising Expense

Advertising expense is charged to income during the year in which it is incurred. Jet’s America, Inc.
directly incurred advertising expenses of $814,099, $816,594, and $918,309 for the years ending
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

In addition to the advertising expenses incurred directly by Jet’s America, Inc, advertising and media
expenses are also incurred by the Ad Funds. The Ad Funds incurred advertising expenses of
$15,481,635, $14,204,968, and $15,257,109 during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and
2022, respectively, and is included in operating expenses on the consolidated statements of income.

Income Taxes

Pursuant to provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, the Company has elected to be taxed as an
S corporation. Generally, the income of an S-corporation is not subject to federal income tax at the
corporate level, but rather the stockholders are required to include a pro rata share of the
corporation’s taxable income or loss in their personal income tax returns, irrespective of whether
dividends have been paid. Accordingly, no provision for federal income taxes has been made in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with GAAP, the Company follows ASC 740-10, Income Taxes, on accounting for
uncertain tax positions. The guidance clarifies the accounting for the recognition and measurement
of the benefits of individual tax positions in the consolidated financial statements. Tax positions
must meet a recognition threshold of more-likely-than-not in order for the benefit of those tax
positions to be recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The Company has
determined that it does not have any significant unrecognized tax benefits or obligations as of and
for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022. It is the Company’s policy to include any
penalties and interest related to income taxes in general and administrative expenses, however,
the Company has no penalties or interest related to income taxes during the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

2021 PA 135 of the Michigan Income Tax Act was signed into law in 2022, establishing an elective
pass-through entity tax regime in Michigan that is intended to address the state and local tax
deduction cap. Effective January 1, 2022, the Company made an election to be taxed at the entity
level for state taxes. The pass-through entity tax will be imposed on the electing entity’s qualifying
taxable income. As a result, the Company recorded state income tax expense of $128,612, $335,487,
and $228,580 for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively, which is
included in the consolidated statements of income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2023, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2023-01, Leases (Topic 842):
Common Control Arrangement, which addresses the accounting by private companies for common
control leases and leasehold improvements associated with such leases. Specifically, the new
guidance includes the following provisions: (a) nonpublic entities can elect a practical expedient to
use the written terms and conditions of their arrangements between entities under common control
to determine whether a lease exists and, if so, to classify and account for that lease, rather than
using legally enforceable terms and conditions as currently required and (b) all entities (public or
nonpublic) will be required to amortize leasehold improvements associated with leases between
entities under common control generally over the useful life of the leasehold improvements to the
common control group, rather than over the shorter of the useful life of those leasehold improvements
and the remaining lease term as currently required. The Company adopted the standard effective
January 1, 2024. There was no material impact to the consolidated statements of income,
statements of changes in stockholders’ equity, and no cumulative adjustment was recognized.

A d

| 4 A |
Subsequent Events

The financial statements and related disclosures include evaluation of events up through and
including April 29, 2025, which is the date the consolidated financial statements were available to
be issued.

3. Revenue Recognition

Disaggregation of Revenue

Years ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022
Revenues
Royalty revenue (point in time) $ 13,172,520 S 11,928,077 S 12,498,259
Advertising revenue (point in time) 12,504,007 10,950,515 10,904,073
Vendor rebates (point in time) 4,670,643 4,373,483 4,538,269
Franchise revenues (over-time) 374,069 385,653 404,055
Other revenues (point in time) 71,265 193,560 121,573
Total Revenues $ 30,792,504 S 27,831,288 S 28,466,229

Deferred Franchise Fees

The Company’s deferred franchise fees consist of fees from franchisees upon execution of their
franchise agreements. The amounts received are recorded as deferred revenue until the Company
satisfies requirements under the franchise agreement or upon cancellation of the agreement.
Revenue from franchise agreements is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
agreement as the underlying performance obligation is satisfied.

16
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Jet’s America, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

A summary of significant changes to the contract liability balance is shown below:

Balance, December 31, 2021 2,210,643
Deferred franchise fees as a result of new contracts 415,000
Current year revenue recognition (404,055)
Balance, December 31, 2022 2,221,588
Deferred franchise fees as a result of new contracts 972,500
Current year revenue recognition (385,653)
Balance, December 31, 2023 2,808,435
Deferred franchise fees as a result of new contracts 650,600
Refunded fees (25,000)
Current year revenue recognition (374,069)
Balance, December 31, 2024 3,059,866

The following table illustrates the estimated revenue to be recognized in the future related to

performance obligations that are unsatisfied as of December 31, 2024:

Year ending December 31,

2025 364,849
2026 415,323
2027 374,243
2028 342,354
2029 323,662
Thereafter 1,239,435
Total 3,059,866
4, Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are summarized as follows:

Depreciable
December 31, 2024 Life (Years)
Machinery and equipment $ 208,138 5-15
Transportation equipment 116,332 5-10
Furniture and fixtures 336,559 5-10
Computer equipment and software 689,695 3-5
Leasehold improvements 561,486 @)
Total Cost 1,912,210
Accumulated depreciation 1,635,405
Net Property and Equipment $ 276,805

(@) Depreciable life of leasehold improvements is determined to be the estimated useful lives of
the improvements or the life of the lease, whichever is shorter.

d
A

A 4
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Depreciation expense was $62,953, $56,290, and $62,972 during the years ended December 31, 2024,
2023, and 2022, respectively.

5. Notes Receivable

The Company’s note receivables consisted of the following:

December 31, 2024 2023 2022

Note with a franchisee for $144,200. The
note is unsecured and bears interest at
4.74% per annum. The note is due in 48
monthly installments of $3,304, including
interest, beginning April 1, 2022. The note
matures on March 1, 2026. $ 48,823 S 85,334 S 119,726

Note with a stockholder for $119,971. The
note is unsecured and bears interest at
6.00% per annum. The note is due in 48
monthly installments of $2,818, including
interest, beginning January 1, 2023. The
note matures on December 1, 2026. 60,115 89,360 119,971

Note with a stockholder for $119,971. The
note is unsecured and bears interest at
6.00% per annum. The note is due in 48
monthly installments of $2,818, including
interest, beginning January 1, 2023. The
note matures on December 1, 2026. 62,911 91,981 119,971

Note with a stockholder for $1,000,000. The
note is unsecured and bears interest at
4.74% per annum. The note is due in 84
monthly installments of $14,012, including
interest, beginning April 1, 2022. The note
matures on March 1, 2029. 646,084 780,138 907,997

Note with a stockholder for $1,000,000. The
note is unsecured and bears interest at
4.74% per annum. The note is due in 84
monthly installments of $14,012, including
interest, beginning April 1, 2022. The note
matures on March 1, 2029. 646,084 780,138 907,997

Note with a stockholder for $145,000. The
note is unsecured and bears interest at
7.00% per annum. The note is due in 58
monthly installments of $2,871, including
interest, beginning March 15, 2024. The

note matures on December 15, 2028. 118,822
Total 1,582,839 1,826,951 2,175,662
Less current portion 408,821 362,947 348,713
Long-Term Portion S 1,174,018 S 1,464,004 S 1,826,949
4 4
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6. Related Party Transactions
Interest

Interest income on the various related party notes listed above totaled $89,348, $98,319, and
$75,366 for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

Related Party Advances

The Company advanced the President of the Company $250,000 during 2024. As of December 31, 2024,
the company had a related party receivable totaling $250,000, which is included in the consolidated
balance sheets.

Royalties and Franchise Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Company recognized royalty and
franchise fee income from affiliates related through common ownership totaling $862,662, $757,491,
and $752,241, respectively. The Company’s accounts receivable balances related to royalties and
franchise fees from these affiliates totaled $105,923, $62,840, and $75,938 as of December 31,
2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Company received advertising fund
contributions income from affiliates related through common ownership totaling $2,029,952,
$1,719,449, and $1,439,612, respectively. The Company’s accounts receivable balances related to
advertising fund contributions from these affiliates totaled $158,901, $124,476, and $135,944 as of
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Company received income for providing
accounting services for affiliates related through common ownership totaling $225,450, $209,400,
and $193,350, respectively.

Lease Commitment

The Company conducts its operations from premises leased from an entity related through common
ownership. The lease agreement requires the Company to pay $16,000 per month, plus taxes,
insurance, and maintenance on the property. Annual cash rent expense was $192,000 for each of
the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022. The lease agreement expires in April 2026.

The Company has elected to apply the private company accounting alternative for common control
leasing arrangements, as developed by the Private Company Council. Under the accounting
alternative, the Company is not required to evaluate whether the leasing entity is a variable interest
entity subject to consolidation by the Company.

See Note 8 for future minimum annual commitments.
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7. Retirement Plans

The Company maintains a SIMPLE IRA plan for its employees. The plan provides for the Company to
make a discretionary matching contribution of 3% of participating employee wages, limited to the
amount of the employee contribution. Contributions to the plan totaled $101,509, $95,208, and
$87,274 for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

8. Operating Lease

The Company is obligated under an operating lease for the corporate headquarters (see Note 6),
which expires in 2026. The lease requires the Company to pay taxes, insurance, utilities, and
maintenance costs. The Company has elected the practical expedient not to separate lease and
non-lease components.

The Company recognized rent expense, which is included in operating expenses on the consolidated
statements of income, associated with the lease as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022
Operating lease cost:

Fixed rent expense S 192,000 S 192,000 S 192,000
Short-term lease cost 16,432 17,448 17,484
Total Lease Cost S 208,432 S 209,448 S 209,484

The Company had the following cash and non-cash activities associated with the lease:

Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022

Cash paid for amounts included in the
measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows from operating leases S 192,000 S 192,000 S 192,000

The following is a schedule of future minimum non-cancellable rental payments required under the
operating lease for each of the two years subsequent to December 31, 2024:

Year ending Total
2025 S 192,000
2026 48,000
Total Rent Payments 240,000
Less effects of discounting (1,449)
Lease Liabilities Recognized S 238,551

As of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, the weighted-average remaining lease term for the
operating lease is 1.27, 2.27, 3.27 years, respectively.

a
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The Company elected the practical expedient to utilize the risk-free rate as the discount rate. The
weighted average discount rate associated with the operating lease as of December 31, 2024, 2023
and 2022 is 1.03%.

9. Capital Stock

Jet’s America, Inc. common stock consists of 10,000 authorized shares of Capital A no par value
voting stock and 50,000 authorized shares of Capital B no par value nonvoting stock. As of
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, there were 2,000 Class A shares issued and outstanding and
20,000 Class B shares issued and outstanding.

10. Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may be a party to lawsuits and legal proceedings arising in the
ordinary course of business. In the opinion of the Company’s management, these matters,
individually and in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition
and results of future operations of the Company.
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Exhibit E

Store ID| Legal Entity City State| Business Notes
Phone

€0003FL | Rocky-MOUNTAINDTS PIZZA | AureraApopkal coFL | 7209906000321 Transfer
-024 NAPOLI LLcP 2032675
€0004FL | rRocky-MOUNTAIN-PIZZA GUYS| pParkerRoyal | €oFL | 7204407200561 Transfer
-032 OF SOUTHEAST FLORIDA | Palm Beach 5135387

INC+e
GACO-0 | ROCKY-MOUNTAIN- benverPeacht| coGA| 3037575387770 Transfer
071 PzZAMECHANEX HNC-+c ree City 6328559
GAFL-02 | Mi-bUPREECURRY LEGACY | bestinRoswell | £:GA | 857706549995 FransferClosed
04 GROUP LLC 3870
GAFL-03 | 6bB-RIZZA4J2K Ceral FLGA | 9543409999678 Transfer
05 ENTERPRISES LLC SpringsJohns 5845844
7 Creek
FLo38GA | #A2POWERS FERRY PIZZA | Benita- FLGA | 2393034800770 Transfer
-010 LLC SpringsMariett 9521711

a

1L#-0427) FRIPLEIJETS PIZZA ILLINOIS | dekietChicago | IL 8155775387773 Transfer

27 INLLC 3124445
IN#N-010| F2AKHOLBINGSSZAKACS MishawakaElK | IN 574272533333 Transfer
5 INVESTMENTS LLC hart 872
KYin-00 | #57DERBY DREAMS 2 LLINC | tndianapelisFt | iINKY | 3375774538859 Transfer
92 Wright 3444400
INOL2KY-| JHARRISFAMILY2BG PIZZA IndianapetisBo | INKY | 3175717070270 FransterClosed
009 LINC wling Green 9381001
Mi43MI-| CANTON TWOnNE PIZZA LLC| Canton MI 734414083197 Transfer
066 8700
MieseMI-| MooreRIZZABPVH GaylerdLambe| MI 9897319929734 Transfer
170 ENTERPRISES tINC rtville 5686300
bH0sD RIS Dby s 222 ae0n bmrasfor
Mig9SNY | B-sauAREBWNY SahineBuffalo | MINY | 734429916877| Franster—Ne-Name-
-001 ENTERPRISES, LLC 6700 changeClosed
Mi2e9TN| FossFHS3C HERMITAGE INC| RemutusHermi| MiTN | 734726158855 Transfer
-003 tage 387
6Ho09TN| LHP PIZZA 1o-¥ouU-LINC baytenGoodle| ©HTN| 9374344400615 Transfer
-014 ttsville 4486276
CHOLE | MLl o VoL LG Lepvorepock | OH | 2201l bmasfor
CHOZE | Ll oNOU s LG Soinchere OH | 93 iiBeses bmasfor
OHOZ2 | HRLLAONOU LIS HoberHeighs | ©H | D22284044 Lmasfor
CHOZE | HRLlr ool LIC Bepvorepock | OH | D244282232 bmasfor
APOSD | BREOSAALLE PLags NG lpeaille A gesse80450 bmasfor
APlO | SREERHLLC LA L O Blaghualle A sisania0ag Lmasfor
e e Becpidodet | S154244100 bmasfor
OS2 | SRS Leret A 0042825284 bmasfor
MAD03 | bslblLLc bopderdie s e bmrasfor

43627565.1/142853.00019
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EXHIBIT F
GUARANTY

In consideration of, and as an inducement to, Jet’s America, Inc., a Michigan corporation
(“Franchisor”), to execute that certain Franchise Agreement (as it may be amended, revised or
modified, the “Franchise Agreement”) with (“Franchisee”), dated on
or about , each of the undersigned (the “Guarantors”), jointly and
severally, agree as follows:

1. Each of the Guarantors, jointly and severally, unconditionally guarantees to Franchisor
and its successors and assigns, that all of Franchisee’s obligations under the Franchise
Agreement, as it may be amended, revised or modified, and under other agreements or
arrangements between Franchisee and Franchisor (collectively, “Franchisee Obligations™), will
be punctually paid and performed. Guarantors shall pay or cause to be paid all monies payable by
Franchisee to Franchisor and its affiliated and related entities, including but not limited to all
monies payable by Franchisee under the Franchise Agreement, without right of set-off, on the
date and in the manner required for payment.

2. Guarantors unconditionally guarantee full performance and discharge by Franchisee of all
Franchisee Obligations on the date and times and in the manner required.

3. Without limiting any of the foregoing, Guarantors agree to be personally bound by the
covenants set forth in the Franchise Agreement, including in Sections 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13,
14, 15 and 18.

4. Guarantors shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Franchisor and its affiliates, and
their respective shareholders, directors, employees, and agents, against and from all losses,
damages, costs, and expenses, including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and costs, which
Franchisor and its affiliates may sustain, incur, or become liable for by reason of: (a)
Franchisee’s failure to perform the Franchisee Obligations or to do and perform any other act,
matter, or thing required by the Franchise Agreement; or (b) any action by Franchisor to obtain
performance by Franchisee of any of the Franchisee Obligations. Guarantors agree that any
indemnification pursuant to this paragraph shall be subject to the same terms and conditions as
described in Section 9.5 of the Franchise Agreement.

5. Franchisor shall not be obligated to proceed against Franchisee or exhaust any security
from Franchisee or pursue or exhaust any remedy against Franchisee before proceeding to
enforce the obligations of the Guarantors herein set out, and the enforcement of such obligations
may take place before, after, or contemporaneously with enforcement of any debt or Franchisee
Obligations against Franchisee.

6. Without affecting the Guarantors’ obligations under this Guarantee, Franchisor, without
notice to the Guarantors, may extend, modify, or release any indebtedness or obligation of
Franchisee, or settle, adjust, or compromise any claims against Franchisee. Guarantors waive
notice of amendment of the Franchise Agreement and notice of demand for payment or
performance by Franchisee.

Jet’s Pizza (2024) 1



7. Guarantors acknowledge and represent that the undersigned Guarantors represent: all of
the owners of any interest in Franchisee.

8. All obligations and liabilities of the Guarantors arising from the Franchisee Obligations
shall remain in full force and effect until satisfied or discharged by Franchisee or the Guarantors.
The death of an individual Guarantor shall not affect the obligations of any other Guarantors,
which will continue in full force and effect. The estate of a deceased individual Guarantor shall
be bound by this Guarantee as to: (a) defaults and obligations existing hereunder at the time of
the Guarantor’s death, and (b) performance of Franchisee Obligations while the franchised
business is under the direction and control of the Guarantor’s executor.

9. The provisions of Section 18 of the Franchise Agreement shall govern the interpretation
and enforcement of this Guaranty.

10.  This Guaranty is fully assignable by Jet’s America, Inc.

11. This Guaranty may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which is an original,
and all of which together constitute one agreement between the parties. Execution and delivery
of an executed party’s signature page of this Guaranty by electronic signature, whether digital or
encrypted, is intended to authenticate this writing and to have the same force and effect as a
manual signature.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has signed this Guaranty as of the
date of the Franchise Agreement.

GUARANTOR(S) PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP
IN FRANCHISE

Signature: %

Print Name:

Signature: %

Print Name:

Signature: %

Print Name:

Acknowledged by:
Jet’s America, Inc.
By:

Name:
Title:

Jet’s Pizza (2024) 2
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EXHIBIT G
RELATED PARTY CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

[See attached]
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Jet's Pizza
RELATED PARTY CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT (*“Agreement”)

Check box that applies:

0 1 am an employee of the Jet's Pizza franchisee ("Franchisee™) listed below, and | am
entering into this Agreement in consideration for my employment or continued
employment with Franchisee.

LI 1 am an owner, officer, director or management personnel of the Jet's Pizza franchisee
("Franchisee™) listed below, or a trustee or beneficiary of a trust that owns an equity
interest in Franchisee, and | am entering into this Agreement with the awareness and
understanding that this agreement is an obligation of Franchisee under its Franchise
Agreement with Jet’s America, Inc.

I acknowledge that Jet's America, Inc. (“Franchisor") has developed and continues to
develop on an ongoing basis the Jet's Pizza Franchise System (the "Franchise System") that
includes unique recipes, processes, methods of operation and other trade secrets, and that such
trade secrets are the property of Franchisor, that the purpose of this Agreement is to help protect
such trade secrets, and that my execution of this Agreement is a requirement in order for
Franchisee to own and operate a Jet's Pizza franchise.

THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, | agree as follows:
| agree that the "Trade Secrets" (as defined below) are the property of Franchisor.

I agree not to use, divulge, disclose, disseminate or transfer any Trade Secrets, except as
necessary to perform my duties as an employee, owner, officer, director or manager with
Franchisee in connection with its Jet's Pizza franchise, without the prior written consent of the
Chairman of the Board, President, or a Vice President of Franchisor.

I agree that upon the termination of my employment or other relationship with Franchisee
or upon demand by Franchisor, whichever occurs first, I will immediately return all Trade
Secrets or documents or other media containing Trade Secrets to Franchisor, and will not keep
any copies, electronic or otherwise.

For purposes of this Agreement, "Trade Secrets” means, except as excluded below, all
information concerning Franchisor, its assets, business, franchisees or the Jet's Pizza Franchise
System, and all information integrally related to the goodwill attached to the trademarks or
service marks owned or used by Franchisor in connection with the Franchise System or the
goodwill or going concern value of the Franchise System. "Trade Secrets" may include
information disclosed to Franchisee orally, in writing, electronically or in any other way, and
may include information compiled or developed by Franchisee in the conduct of its Franchise
business. "Trade Secrets" specifically includes, but is not limited to, all or any part of
information concerning individual ingredients, combinations of ingredients, recipes and
procedures for the preparation of menu items; processes or procedures for the operation of a Jet's
Pizza franchise; training materials and methods concerning a Jet's Pizza franchise; the Jet's Pizza
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Jet's Pizza
Related Party Confidentiality Agreement Page 3

Operations Manual; the terms of contracts between Franchisor and third parties; advertising or
marketing plans or strategies; and information concerning Jet's Pizza customers, including
names, addresses, telephone numbers, e-mail addresses, and information concerning their
purchases of Jet's Pizza products. "Trade Secrets" do not include information that is public
knowledge (without unauthorized disclosure by any person), or information that was lawfully
obtained from a third party under no obligation of confidentiality to Franchisor.

| further acknowledge and agree that any unauthorized disclosure or use of Franchisor's
Trade Secrets may cause irreparable damage to Franchisor. In the event of my breach or
threatened breach of this agreement, in addition to any other rights or remedies Franchisor may
have, Franchisor shall be entitled to emergency relief, including an ex parte temporary
restraining order, or a temporary or permanent injunction to enforce this Agreement. | further
agree to pay all costs incurred by Franchisor to enforce its rights or remedies under this
Agreement, including reasonable attorney fees.

Signatory acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor is an intended third party beneficiary of
this agreement. Signatory further acknowledges and agrees that Franchisee is an independent
owner of the applicable Jet’s Pizza Franchise and not an agent of Franchisor.

This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute
an original Agreement, but all of which shall constitute only one Agreement. Execution and
delivery of an executed party’s signature page of this Agreement by electronic signature, whether
digital or encrypted, is intended to authenticate this writing and to have the same force and effect
as a manual signature.

IN WITNESS OF this Agreement, | have signed below.

FRANCHISEE: SIGNATORY:
Signature Signature

Name Name of Related Party
Its

Date Date

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



EXHIBITH

RELATED PARTY AGREEMENT NOT TO COMPETE

[See attached]
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Jet's Pizza
RELATED PARTY AGREEMENT NOT TO COMPETE

I am a "Related Party" (as defined below) with respect to the Jet's Pizza Franchisee
("Franchisee™) listed below. | understand that Franchisee has an obligation under its Jet's Pizza
Franchise Agreement (the "Franchise Agreement™) to obtain an executed Agreement Not to
Compete (“Agreement”) from me, as well as from other Related Parties. Therefore, I have
agreed to execute this Agreement.

Franchisee:

Location:

THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, | agree as follows:

1.  Restrictive Covenants. During the term of the Franchise and for a period of three (3)
years after the expiration or termination of the Franchise, I will not:

1.1 Compete with Franchisor or any Jet's Pizza restaurant;

1.2 Advertise in or solicit orders from the exclusive territory assigned to any other
Jet's Pizza restaurant, or otherwise divert or attempt to divert any business or customer away
from Franchisor or any Jet's Pizza restaurant; or

1.3 Employ or solicit any person who is or was at any time during the prior six (6)
months employed by Franchisor or any Jet's Pizza restaurant, or induce any such person to leave
his or her employment.

For purposes of this Agreement, the Franchise shall be deemed to have terminated
with respect to me at such time as | no longer fall within the definition of a "Related Party."

2.  Definitions. The following terms have the following meanings for purposes of this
Agreement:

2.1 To "compete" with Franchisor or any Jet's Pizza restaurant includes but is not
limited to direct or indirect, for compensation or otherwise, involvement as an owner,
stockholder, director, officer, member, manager, partner, employee, lender or consultant, or the
provision of any other type of assistance, with or to a business:

(@ More than fifty (50%) percent of the gross revenue of which is
attributable to the sale of pizza, submarine sandwiches and other items similar to those offered
by Jet's Pizza restaurants ("Competitive Restaurants™), and located within eight (8) miles of the
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Jet's Pizza
Related Party Agreement Not To Compete Page 3

Location stated above, or within five (5) miles of any other Jet's Pizza restaurant, other than at a
Jet's Pizza franchised restaurant licensed by Franchisor; or

(b) Engaged in the sale of franchises for Competitive Restaurants or the
ownership or operation of a system of franchised or licensed Competitive Restaurants.

2.2 "Franchise" means the Jet's Pizza franchise owned by Franchisee, its
successors and assigns.

2.3 "Related Party" means an owner, stockholder, director, officer, member,
manager, partner, restaurant manager or key employee of Franchisee, or a trustee or beneficiary
of a trust that owns an equity interest in Franchisee.

3. Judicial Modification. If any court or arbitration tribunal determines this Agreement
not to compete to be unenforceable because it is too broad, either in terms of the length of time,
or geographical area, or nature of activities covered, or otherwise, its scope shall be deemed to be
automatically restricted to the extent necessary to be enforceable.

4.  Third Party Beneficiary. | acknowledge and agree that Franchisor is an intended
third party beneficiary of this Agreement.

5. Equitable Remedies. | acknowledge that in the event of my breach of this
Agreement, Franchisor's damages may be irreparable or impossible to measure. Therefore, in
addition to any other rights or remedies Franchisor has or may have, in the event of any breach or
threatened breach of any of this Agreement by me, Franchisor shall be entitled to equitable relief,
including but not limited to an ex parte temporary restraining order, or a temporary or permanent
injunction, to enforce the terms of this Agreement.

6.  Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement is judged to be illegal or
unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

7. Independent Owner. | acknowledge and agree that Franchisee is an independent
owner of the applicable Jet’s Pizza Franchise and not an agent of Franchisor.

8.  Counterparts and Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original Agreement, but all of which
shall constitute only one Agreement. Execution and delivery of an executed party’s signature
page of this Agreement by electronic signature, whether digital or encrypted, is intended to
authenticate this writing and to have the same force and effect as a manual signature.

[Signatures on Following Page]
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Related Party Agreement Not To Compete

Page 4

FRANCHISEE: SIGNATORY:
Signature Signature
Name

Name of Related Party
Its

Date
Date
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EXHIBIT I

BUSINESS PURPOSE AFFIDAVIT

[See attached]
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Jet's Pizza
BUSINESS PURPOSE AFFIDAVIT

I,
state the following to be true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief:

1. I have entered into, or I am entering into, a Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise
Agreement”) with Jet's America, Inc., a Michigan corporation (“Franchisor”), under which
I will acquire an interest in a Jet's Pizza restaurant franchise.

2. Under the terms of the Franchise Agreement, | am or will be obligated to pay certain sums
of money to Franchisor, and in the event of a default in the payment of such obligations,
the obligations shall constitute an extension of credit and shall accrue interest.

3. The reason for any such extension of credit is for business purposes, i.e. the acquisition of
an interest in a Jet's Pizza franchise under the Franchise Agreement.

4. | acknowledge that this Affidavit is a condition precedent to my acquisition of an interest
in a Jet's Pizza franchise, and that Franchisor is relying on this Affidavit in agreeing to
enter into a Franchise Agreement.

Date:

'Signature

Printed Name

Franchise Location
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EXHIBIT J

OWNERSHIP CERTIFICATE

[See attached]
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Jet's Pizza
OWNERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATION

Franchisee:

Location:

| state the following to be true, to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, with

the intent that this information be relied upon by JET'S AMERICA, INC., a Michigan
corporation.

The franchisee named above ("Franchisee") is a--

[ ] Corporation; or
[ 1 Limited liability company;

formed in the state of

I am an owner, director, officer or manager of Franchisee, or a trustee or beneficiary of a
trust that owns an equity interest in Franchisee, and am authorized to submit this certification.
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Jet’s Pizza Ownership and Management Certification Page 3

If Franchisee is a Corporation:

SHAREHOLDERS: No. or % of Shares

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



Jet’s Pizza Ownership and Management Certification Page 4

Board of Directors:

Officers:
Chairperson:
President:
Vice President:
Treasurer:
Secretary:

Other Key Employees:

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



Jet’s Pizza Ownership and Management Certification Page 5

If Franchisee is a Limited Liability Company:

Members: % Ownership
Managers:

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



Jet’s Pizza Ownership and Management Certification Page 6

Officers (if any):
Chairperson:
President:

Vice President:
Treasurer:
Secretary:

Other Key Employees:

Date:

Signature

Name:

Title:

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



EXHIBIT K-1

SAMPLE FORMS OF TRANSFER AGREEMENTS

[The following are samples of forms used by Jet’s in approving the transfer of a
franchise. Please note that these are only samples, and some of the terms of the
agreements are subject to change based on the circumstances of the transfer.]

[See attached]
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Jet’s Pizza
AGREEMENT REGARDING TRANSFER OF FRANCHISE
(Stock Sale to Unrelated Third Party)

THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is between the following parties:
“Franchisor:”  JET’S AMERICA, INC., a Michigan corporation;

“Franchisee:” )

“Franchisee Owner(s):” ;

“Buyer:” ; and

“Buyer Owner(s):”

This Agreement shall be binding upon its execution by all parties.
BACKGROUND:

Franchisee owns a Jet’s Pizza franchise (the “Franchise”), located at
(the “Location”), pursuant to a Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise
Agreement”) with Franchisor dated . Franchisee Owner(s) own all of the
outstanding equity interests (stock or membership interests) of Franchisee (the “Shares”), and
desire to sell all or a portion of such Shares to Buyers, pursuant to the terms and conditions of a
purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) dated . This sale of such
Shares constitutes a transfer of the Franchise under the terms of the Franchise Agreement and
requires the consent of Franchisor. Franchisor agrees to consent to the transfer of the Franchise,
subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Consent to Transfer of Franchise. Franchisor consents to the transfer and assignment of
the Franchise by reason of the sale of the Shares of Franchisee to Buyer pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

2. Effective Date; Effectiveness. Provided that each of the covenants and conditions set
forth in this Agreement are satisfied in full on the date of this Agreement or such other date
expressly specified herein, the effective date (the “Effective Date”) of the transfer of the
Franchise shall be the later date of an authorized signatory of Franchisor executing this
Agreement or the date of closing of the transaction contemplated by the Purchase Agreement
(the “Closing”). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in the New Franchise
Agreement (defined below), in the event each condition is not satisfied on a timely basis,
Franchisor’s consent to transfer as set forth in Section 1 above and Franchisor’s release as stated
in Section 8.2 shall be deemed null and void and of no effect, and Franchisor has the right to
terminate the Franchise Agreement and the New Franchise Agreement immediately upon notice
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to the Franchisee, as a material breach of this Agreement, the Franchise Agreement and, if
applicable, the New Franchise Agreement.

3. Covenants and Conditions to Consent to Transfer. Each of the Franchisee, Franchisee
Owner(s), Buyer and Buyer Owner(s) covenants and agrees to fulfill each of the following
conditions on a timely basis (time is of the essence):

3.1 Franchisee and Buyer’s Owner(s) shall duly execute a New Franchise Agreement
(as defined in Section 9 below) and all ancillary documents related thereto, on Franchisor’s
standard forms, at or prior to the Closing.

3.2  Each beneficial owner of Buyer who owns a ten (10%) percent or greater interest
in Franchisee must, jointly and severally, personally guarantee Franchisee’s duties and
obligations by duly executing and delivering to Franchisor at or prior to the Closing a Personal
Guaranty on Franchisor’s standard guaranty form.

3.3  Buyer and Buyer’s Owners shall complete Franchisor’s ownership certification
form listing all owners and their percentage ownership prior to the Closing.

3.4 Buyer or Franchisee shall pay Franchisor a transfer fee of FourSix Thousand
Dollars ($46,000.00) concurrently with the execution of this Agreement.

3.5 and shall undergo Franchisor’s
initial training program at a time and place to be agreed upon, provided that the training program
is completed not later than :

3.6  The sale transaction described in the Purchase Agreement is closed and
consummated within sixty (60) days of the date hereof.

3.7 Franchisee agrees to complete the following remodeling requirements not later
than :

[Description of Remodeling Requirements]

4. Waiver by Franchisor. Franchisor waives any rights that it has related to the transfer of
the Shares described herein to purchase the Franchise or any assets related to the Franchise, or to
assume the lease for the Location, whether such rights arise under the Franchise Agreement or
otherwise.

5. Representations, Warranties and Covenants.

5.1  Buyer, Buyer’s Owners, Franchisee and Franchise Owner each hereby represent
and warrant that the Purchase Agreement has been executed, delivered, and is valid and binding
on each of the parties thereto, and that the purchase price of $ ) for the
Franchisee’s business and assets has been or shall be paid as provided therein.
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5.2  Franchisee and Franchisee Owner(s) hereby covenant, agree and represent and
warrant as follows:

@ None of Franchisee, Franchisee Owner(s) or any Related Party thereto, is
or will be a competitor of Franchisor or any Jet’s Pizza restaurant, or have or will misuse
the Marks or Proprietary Information (as defined in the Franchise Agreement and related
documents). As used in this Agreement, the term “Related Party” means any equity
owner, director or officer of a person or entity, or any immediate family member of a
director, officer, equity owner of such person, including parents, children, stepparents,
stepchildren, spouses, siblings and in-laws.

(b) None of the Buyer, Franchisee, Franchisee Owner(s) or any Related Party
thereto, is in breach or default under any contract with Franchisor or any of its affiliates.

5.3 % of Franchisee Owner(s)’ issued and outstanding Shares in Franchisee
have been transferred to Buyer.

54 Buyer and Buyer’s Owners acknowledge that they have received a complete copy
of Franchisor’s current franchise disclosure document and that they have had at least 14 days to
review such document prior to consummating the transactions described in the Purchase
Agreement and executing a New Franchise Agreement (as defined below).

6. Acknowledgment of Performance by Franchisee. Franchisor acknowledges that as of the
Effective Date, Franchisee has paid in full all royalty fees and other fees or amounts due
Franchisor under the Franchise Agreement or in connection with the Franchise. In reliance on
the representations, warranties and covenants set forth in Section 5 above, Franchisor further
acknowledges that as of the Effective Date, Franchisee has fully performed all of its other duties
and obligations under the Franchise Agreement, except to the extent that it has failed to pay any
amount due a third party, such as but not limited to suppliers, Franchisee’s landlord, taxing
authorities, or other creditors.

7. Franchisee Owners’ Continuing Obligations. As of the Effective Date the Franchise shall
terminate with respect to Franchisee Owner(s), and except as specifically provided otherwise in
this Agreement the consequences of termination shall be governed by the Franchise Agreement,
including but not limited to the following:

7.1 Franchisee Owner(s) shall immediately cease using the Marks, and any variations
which may confuse, deceive, or mislead the public, and shall file a certificate of termination of
assumed name with respect to any assumed name filing containing the words “Jet’s,” “Jet’s
Pizza” or any other Marks of Franchisor.

7.2 Franchisee Owner(s) shall immediately delete all electronic copies and destroy all
physical copies of the Jet’s Pizza Operations Manual or any parts thereof.
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7.3 Franchisee Owner(s) shall continue to be bound by the Franchise Agreement and
related documents with respect to provisions concerning trademarks, trade secrets, confidential
or proprietary information, intellectual property, and covenants not to compete.

8. Release.

8.1  Franchisee and each Franchise Owner releases the persons described below from
any and all claims that any of them has or may have related to the Franchise Agreement or the
Franchise, arising through the Effective Date, whether or not he, she, they or it is aware of any
such claim. The persons released are Franchisor, all businesses or entities related to Franchisor
through common ownership or control, and their respective members, managers, shareholders,
directors, officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns.

8.2  Subject to the following sentences in this section, Franchisor releases Franchisee
Owner(s) from the Personal Guaranty(ies) s/he or they executed dated
For clarification, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Franchisee and
each Franchisee Owner(s) shall continue to be bound by any Related Party Confidentiality
Agreement and Related Party Agreement Not to Compete the Franchise Agreement executed by
him/her, and by the any provision of the Franchise Agreement that by its terms survives
termination of the Franchise Agreement, including without limitation provisions concerning use
of trademarks and intellectual property, protection of trade secrets, confidential or proprietary
information, and covenants not to compete. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein,
Franchisee and Franchisee Owner shall continue to be bound by the indemnification obligations
related to any act or liability of the Franchisee arising under the Franchise Agreement prior to the
Effective Date.

9. New Franchise Agreement with Franchisee. Concurrently with this Agreement, Buyer is
required to enter into a new franchise agreement (the “New Franchise Agreement”) with
Franchisor concerning the Location, on Franchisor’s current standard form. In connection with
the New Franchise Agreement, and notwithstanding any provision of the New Franchise
Agreement to the contrary, the initial term under the New Franchise Agreement shall commence
as of the Effective Date and shall expire as of . Buyer acknowledges that its
rights to the Franchise and its rights to use the name “Jet’s Pizza” and other service marks
related to the Franchise are derived exclusively from the New Franchise Agreement.

10. Installment Obligation Subordination Agreement. The parties agree that Franchisee,
Buyer and/or Buyer Owner(s) may not make and that Franchisee or any Franchisee Owner may
not accept any payments with respect to the any promissory note or other installment obligation
related with the transfer of the Franchise to Buyer during any period of time after Franchisee and
Franchisee Owner have been notified that Buyer is in default under the New Franchise
Agreement with Franchisor and prior to cure of the default. Franchisee Owners and Franchisee
shall be obligated to pay Franchisor any amount received from Buyer and/or Buyer Owner(s) in
violation of this Section.

11. Miscellaneous.
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11.1  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by Michigan law.

11.2 Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and any
permitted assigns.

11.3 Assignment. Neither this Agreement, nor any rights or obligations under this
Agreement, may be assigned by any party.

11.4 Notices. Any notice under this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be
deemed sufficient if delivered personally, mailed by certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, or sent via facsimile. Notice shall be deemed to have been given when personally
delivered, two business days after having been mailed by certified or registered mail, return
receipt requested, or one business day after transmission via facsimile.

11.5 Attorney Fees. A party who substantially prevails with respect to any dispute
shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney fees and other costs from the other party.

11.6 Counterparts and Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original Agreement, but all of which
shall constitute only one Agreement. Execution and delivery of an executed party’s signature
page of this Agreement by electronic signature, whether digital or encrypted, is intended to
authenticate this writing and to have the same force and effect as a manual signature.

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:
JET’S AMERICA, INC.

(Name of company)

By: .

Name: John Jetts Eﬁme'

Title: President Title: '

Date: Date:

BUYER: FRANCHISEE OWNER(S):
By:

(Name of company) Print Name:
Date:

By:

Name: By:

Title: Print Name:

Date: Date:

BUYER OWNER(S):

By: By:

Print Name: Print Name:
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Date: Date:

By: By:
Print Name: Print Name:
Date: Date:
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Jet’s Pizza
AGREEMENT REGARDING TRANSFER OF FRANCHISE
(Asset Sale to Unrelated Third Party)

THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is between the following parties:
“Franchisor:”  JET’S AMERICA, INC., a Michigan corporation;

“Franchisee:” )

“Franchisee Owner(s):” ;

“Buyer:” ; and

“Buyer’s Owner(s):”

This Agreement shall be binding upon its execution by all parties.
BACKGROUND:

Franchisee owns a Jet’s Pizza franchise (the “Franchise”), located at
(the “Location™), pursuant to a Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise
Agreement”) with Franchisor dated . Franchisee now wishes to sell and
transfer the Franchise to Buyer, together with the business assets of Franchisee, subject to the
terms and conditions of a purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) dated
. Transfer of the Franchise and the business assets of Franchisee requires
the consent of Franchisor under the terms of the Franchise Agreement. Franchisor agrees to
consent to the transfer of the Franchise, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Assignment of Franchise. Franchisee assigns the Franchise and the Franchise Agreement
to Buyer, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

2. Consent to Transfer of Franchise. Franchisor consents to the transfer of the Franchise to
Buyer pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

3. Effective Date; Effectiveness. Provided that each of the conditions set forth in this
Agreement are satisfied in full on the date of this Agreement or such other date expressly
specified herein, the effective date (the “Effective Date”) of the transfer of the Franchise shall be
the later date of an authorized signatory of Franchisor executing this Agreement or the date of
closing of the transaction contemplated by the Purchase Agreement (the “Closing”).
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in the New Franchise Agreement (defined
below), in the event each condition is not satisfied on a timely basis, Franchisor’s consent to
transfer as set forth in Section 1 above and Franchisor’s release as stated in Section 9.2 shall be
deemed null and void and of no effect, and Franchisor has the right to terminate the Franchise
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Agreement and the New Franchise Agreement immediately upon notice to the Franchisee, as a
material breach of this Agreement, the Franchise Agreement and, if applicable, the New
Franchise Agreement.

4. Covenants and Conditions to Consent to Transfer. Each of the Franchisee, Franchisee
Owner(s) and Buyer(s) covenants and agrees to fulfill each of the following conditions on a
timely basis (time is of the essence):

4.1  Buyer and Buyer’s Owner(s) shall duly execute a New Franchise Agreement (as
defined in Section 10 below) and all ancillary documents related thereto, on Franchisor’s
standard forms, at or prior to the Closing.

4.2 Each beneficial owner of Buyer who owns an interest in Franchisee must, jointly
and severally, personally guarantee Franchisee’s duties and obligations by duly executing and
delivering to Franchisor at or prior to the Closing a Personal Guaranty on Franchisor’s standard
guaranty form.

4.3  Buyer and each of Buyer’s Owner(s) shall complete Franchisor’s ownership
certification form listing all owners and their percentage ownership prior to the Closing.

4.4 Buyer or Franchisee shall pay Franchisor a transfer fee of FeurSix Thousand
Dollars ($46,000.00) concurrently with the execution of this Agreement at or prior to the
Closing.

4.5 Buyer has completed the training program required by Franchisor as set forth
under the Franchise Agreement.

4.6  The sale transaction described in the Purchase Agreement is closed and
consummated within sixty (60) days of the date hereof.

4.7 Buyer agrees to complete the remodeling requirements not later than

4.8 Buyer is responsible for renewal under Sec. 3 of the Franchise Agreement, which
is due

5. Waiver by Franchisor. Franchisor waives any rights that it has to purchase the Franchise
or any assets related to the Franchise, or to assume the lease for the Location, whether such
rights arise under the Franchise Agreement or otherwise.

6. Representations, Warranties and Covenants.

6.1  Buyer, Buyer’s Owners, Franchisee and Franchise Owner each hereby represent
and warrant that the Purchase Agreement has been executed, delivered, and is valid and binding
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on each of the parties thereto, and that the purchase price of $ ) for the
Franchisee’s business and assets has been or shall be paid as provided therein.

6.2 Franchisee and Franchisee Owner(s) hereby covenant, agree and represent and
warrant as follows:

@) None of Franchisee, Franchisee Owner or any Related Party thereto, is or
will be a competitor of Franchisor or any Jet’s Pizza restaurant or have or will misuse the
Marks or Proprietary Information (as defined in and pursuant to the Franchise Agreement
and related documents). As used in this Agreement, the term “Related Party” means any
equity owner, director or officer of a person or entity, or any immediate family member
of a director, officer, equity owner of such person, including parents, children,
stepparents, stepchildren, spouses, siblings and in-laws).

(b) None of the Buyer, Franchisee, Franchisee Owner or any Related Parties
thereto, is in breach or default under any contract with Franchisor or any of its affiliates.

6.3  Buyer and Buyer’s Owners acknowledge that they have received a complete copy
of Franchisor’s current franchise disclosure document and that they have had at least 14 days to
review such document prior to consummating the transactions described in the Purchase
Agreement and executing a New Franchise Agreement (as defined below).

7. Acknowledgment of Performance by Franchisee. Franchisor acknowledges that as of the
Effective Date, Franchisee has paid in full all royalty fees and other fees or amounts due
Franchisor under the Franchise Agreement or in connection with the Franchise. In reliance on
the representations, warranties and covenants set forth in Section 6 above, Franchisor further
acknowledges that as of the Effective Date, Franchisee has fully performed all of its other duties
and obligations under the Franchise Agreement, except to the extent that it has failed to pay any
amount due a third party, such as but not limited to suppliers, Franchisee’s landlord, taxing
authorities, or other creditors.

8. Termination of Franchise. As of the Effective Date the Franchise shall terminate with
respect to Franchisee, and except as specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement the
consequences of termination shall be governed by the Franchise Agreement, including but not
limited to the following:

8.1  Franchisee and Franchisee Owner(s) shall immediately cease using the Marks,
and any variations which may confuse, deceive, or mislead the public, and shall file a certificate
of termination of assumed name with respect to any assumed name filing containing the words
“Jet’s,” “Jet’s Pizza” or any other Marks of Franchisor.

8.2  Franchisee shall immediately delete all electronic copies and destroy all physical
copies of the Jet’s Pizza Operations Manual or any parts thereof.

8.3  Franchisee and Franchisee Owner(s) shall continue to be bound by the Franchise
Agreement and related documents with respect to provisions concerning trademarks, trade
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secrets, confidential or proprietary information, intellectual property, and covenants not to
compete.

9. Release.

9.1  Franchisee and each Franchise Owner releases the persons described below from
any and all claims that any of them has or may have related to the Franchise Agreement or the
Franchise, arising through the Effective Date, whether or not he, she or it is aware of any such
claim. The persons released are Franchisor, all businesses or entities related to Franchisor
through common ownership or control, and their respective members, managers, shareholders,
directors, officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns.

9.2  Subject to the following sentences in this section, Franchisor releases Franchisee
Owner(s) from the Personal Guaranty(ies) s/he or they executed dated
For clarification, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Franchisee and
each Franchisee Owner(s) shall continue to be bound by any Related Party Confidentiality
Agreement and Related Party Agreement Not to Compete the Franchise Agreement executed by
him/her, and by the any provision of the Franchise Agreement that by its terms survives
termination of the Franchise Agreement, including without limitation provisions concerning use
of trademarks and intellectual property, protection of trade secrets, confidential or proprietary
information, and covenants not to compete. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein,
Franchisee and Franchisee Owner shall continue to be bound by the indemnification obligations
related to any act or liability of the Franchisee arising under the Franchise Agreement prior to the
Effective Date.

10. New Franchise Agreement with Franchisee. Concurrently with this Agreement, Buyer is
entering into a new franchise agreement (the “New Franchise Agreement”) with Franchisor
concerning the Location, on Franchisor’s current standard form. In connection with the New
Franchise Agreement, and notwithstanding any provision of the New Franchise Agreement to the
contrary, the initial term under the New Franchise Agreement shall commence as of the Effective
Date and shall expire as of . Buyer acknowledges that its rights to the
Franchise and its rights to use the name “Jet’s Pizza” and other service marks related to the
Franchise are derived exclusively from the New Franchise Agreement.

11. Installment Obligation Subordination Agreement. The parties agree that Buyer and
Buyer’s Owner(s) may not make and Franchisee and Franchisee Owner(s) may not accept any
payments with respect to any promissory note or other installment obligation related with the
sale of the Franchise to Buyer during any period of time after Franchisee and Franchisee
Owner(s) have been notified that Buyer and/or Buyer’s Owner(s) are in default under the New
Franchise Agreement with Franchisor and prior to cure of the default. Buyer and Buyer’s
Owner(s) shall be obligated to pay Franchisor any amount received from Buyer or Buyer’s
Owner(s) in violation of this Section.

12. Miscellaneous.
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12.1 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by Michigan law.

12.2 Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and any
permitted assigns.

12.3  Assignment. Neither this Agreement, nor any rights or obligations under this
Agreement, may be assigned by any party.

12.4 Notices. Any notice under this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be
deemed sufficient if delivered personally, mailed by certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, or sent via facsimile. Notice shall be deemed to have been given when personally
delivered, two business days after having been mailed by certified or registered mail, return
receipt requested, or one business day after transmission via facsimile.

12,5 Attorney Fees. A party who substantially prevails with respect to any dispute
shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney fees and other costs from the other party.

12.6  Counterparts and Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original Agreement, but all of which
shall constitute only one Agreement. Execution and delivery of an executed party’s signature
page of this Agreement by electronic signature, whether digital or encrypted, is intended to
authenticate this writing and to have the same force and effect as a manual signature.

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:
JET’S AMERICA, INC.

(Name of company)
By:

Name: John Jetts Ey: )
. ) ame:

Title: President Title:

Date: Date:

BUYER: FRANCHISEE OWNER(S):
By:

(Name of company) Print Name:
Date:

By:

Name: By:

Title: Print Name:

Date: Date:

BUYER OWNER(S):

By: By:

Print Name: Print Name:
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Date: Date:

By: By:
Print Name: Print Name:
Date: Date:
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Jet’s Pizza
AGREEMENT REGARDING TRANSFER OF FRANCHISE
(Transfer to Trust)

THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) dated as of , 2024, is between the
following parties:
“Franchisor”: JET’S AMERICA, INC., a Michigan corporation;
“Franchisee”: ;
“Assignor”: ;
“Trust™: ?
BACKGROUND

Franchisee owns a Jet’s Pizza franchise, pursuant to a Franchise Agreement (the
“Franchise Agreement”). Assignor now wishes to transfer all of his/her equity interests (i.e.,
shares or membership interests, “Equity Interests™) in Franchisee to the Trust, pursuant to duly
authorized and executed Assignments of Membership Interest or Assignments of Stock, as
applicable (the “Assignment”), dated as of , 2024,

THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Consent of Franchisor. Franchisor consents to the transfer of all of Assignor’s Equity
Interests in the Franchisee to the Trust, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

2. Consent of Franchisees. Franchisee and its owners consent to the transfer of all of
Assignor’s Equity Interests in Franchisee to the Trust.

3. Effective Date. The effective date (the “Effective Date”) of the transfer and assignment of
the Equity Interests shall be the date of the Assignment.

4, Limitations and Conditions as to Consent to Transfer. Each of the parties acknowledges
and agrees as follows, and Franchisor’s consent to the transfer of the equity interests in the
Franchisee is based upon and subject to each of the following:

4.1  Assignor shall continue to personally guarantee the duties, liabilities and
obligations of the Franchisee under the Franchise Agreement (as may be amended or
superseded). In addition, the Trust will execute a Personal Guaranty with respect to the
Franchise Agreement in Franchisor’s standard guaranty form and, as determined from time to
time by Franchisor in Franchisor’s sole discretion, any beneficiary of the Trust (each, a
“Beneficiary”) will execute a Personal Guaranty with respect to the Franchise Agreement.

4.2  Notwithstanding the transfer of ownership pursuant to the Assignment or
otherwise, Assignor and the Trust shall be personally responsible and jointly and severally liable
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under all confidentiality, non-compete agreements and covenants, and all other agreements and
covenants of a Franchise owner, under the Franchise Agreement or otherwise.

4.3  The Trust, Assignor and, as determined by Franchisor, each Beneficiary shall,
simultaneously with this Agreement, complete and execute the following documents in favor of
Franchisor: (a) Personal Guaranty; (b) Business Purpose Affidavit; (c) Agreement Not to
Compete; (d) Confidentiality Agreement; (e) General Release; (f) Ownership and Management
Certification; and (g) such other forms as reasonably requested by Franchisor.

4.4  Franchisor’s consent hereunder does not extend to, and does not permit, the
beneficial transfer or assignment of the equity interests to any person or entity outside the control
of the Trust and the individual Beneficiaries. In the event (a) of the termination of the Trust, (b)
that the Beneficiaries of the Trust are not the same persons as on the date hereof, (c) the present
Trustee ceases to control the Trust as its trustee, or (d) the death or disability of the Assignor,
then in any such case, applicable provisions of the Franchise Agreement regarding transfer of a
franchise to a third party shall govern, and the Trust, the Beneficiaries and/or the Franchisee
shall promptly inform Franchisor of such occurrence.

5. Miscellaneous.

5.1  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by Michigan law.

5.2  Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and any
permitted assigns.

5.3  Assignment. Neither this Agreement, nor any rights or obligations under this
Agreement, may be assigned by any party.

54  Counterparts and Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original Agreement, but all of which
shall constitute only one Agreement. Execution and delivery of an executed party’s signature
page of this Agreement by electronic signature, whether digital or encrypted, is intended to
authenticate this writing and to have the same force and effect as a manual signature.

[Signatures on following page]
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IN WITNESS OF this Agreement, the parties have signed below.

FRANCHISOR:
JET’S AMERICA, INC.

By:

Name: John Jetts
Title: President
Date:

THE TRUST:

(Name of Trust)

By:

Name:

Title: Trustee
Date:
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FRANCHISEE:

(Name of company)
By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

ASSIGNOR:
By:

Print Name:

Date:

By:

Print Name:

Date:




Jet’s Pizza
AGREEMENT REGARDING TRANSFER OF
MINORITY OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN FRANCHISE

THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is between the following parties:
“Franchisor:”  JET’S AMERICA, INC., a Michigan corporation;

“Franchisee:” )

“Transferor:” )

“Buyer(s):” :

This Agreement shall be binding upon its execution by all parties.
BACKGROUND:

Franchisee owns certain equity interests (stock or membership interests) in a Jet’s Pizza
franchise (the “Franchise”), located at (the “Location”), pursuant to a
Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) with Franchisor dated
Transferor seeks to transfer [all/part] of such equity interests, described as: [describe exact eqwty
interests] (the “Equity Interests”), to Buyer(s), pursuant to the terms and conditions of an
agreement (the “Transfer Agreement”) dated . This transfer of such
Equity Interests constitutes a transfer under the terms of the Franchise Agreement and requires
the consent of Franchisor. Franchisor agrees to consent to the transfer, subject to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Consent to Transfer of Franchise. Franchisor consents to the transfer of the Equity
Interests of Transferor to Buyer(s) pursuant to the Transfer Agreement, subject to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

2. Effective Date. Provided that each of the conditions set forth in this Agreement are
satisfied in full, the effective date (the “Effective Date”) of the transfer of the Equity Interests
shall be the later date of an authorized signatory of Franchisor and all other parties hereto
executing this Agreement or the date of closing of the transaction contemplated by the Transfer
Agreement (the “Closing”).

3. Conditions to Consent to Transfer. The parties acknowledge and agree as follows, and
Franchisor’s consent to the transfer of the Equity Interests is subject to the following:

3.1  Each Buyer must jointly and severally personally guarantee Franchisee’s duties
and obligations on Franchisor’s standard guaranty form.
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3.2 Buyer(s) shall complete Franchisor’s ownership certification form listing all
owners and their percentage ownership.

4, Representations, Warranties and Covenants.

4.1  Buyer(s), Franchisee and Transferor each hereby represent and warrant that the
Transfer Agreement has been executed, delivered, and fully performed by the parties thereto, and
that the purchase price for the Equity Interests, if any, shall be paid in full at Closing, and that
there shall be no further payment obligations or installments due thereon.

4.2 Transferor hereby covenants, agrees and represents and warrants as follows:

@ Transferor and any Related Party, is not and will not be a competitor of
Franchisor or any Jet’s Pizza restaurant or have misused or will misuse the Marks or
Proprietary Information (as defined in the Franchise Agreement and related documents).
As used in this Agreement, the term “Related Party” means any equity owner, director or
officer of a person or entity, or any immediate family member of a director, officer,
equity owner of such person, including parents, children, stepparents, stepchildren,
spouses, siblings and in-laws.

(b) None of the Buyer(s), Transferor or any respective Related Party thereto,
is in breach or default under any contract with Franchisor or any of its affiliates.

4.3  As of the Effective Date, the Equity Interests will have been transferred to
Buyer(s).

4.4  Buyer acknowledges that Buyer has received a complete copy of Franchisor’s
current franchise disclosure document and that they have had at least 14 days to review such
document prior to consummating the transactions described in the Transfer Agreement.

5. Transferor’s Continuing Obligations. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein,
Transferor shall continue to be bound by his or her Personal Guaranty and all covenants in the
Franchise Agreement and related documents with respect to provisions concerning Franchisor’s
trademarks, trade secrets, confidential or proprietary information, intellectual property, and
covenants not to compete.

6. Release.

6.1  Transferor represents and warrants that, upon the transfer of the Equity Interests
to Buyer, Transferor shall hold no equity in Franchisee. Conditioned upon such representation
and warranty, as well as Transferor’s other covenants, representations and warranties in this
Agreement, Franchisor releases Transferor from the Personal Guaranty s/he executed related to
the Franchise; provided, that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement,
Transferor shall continue to be bound by the Related Party Confidentiality Agreement and the
Related Party Agreement Not to Complete executed by Transferor related to the Franchise.

6.2  Transferor hereby releases the persons described below from any and all claims
that any of them has or may have related to the Franchise Agreement or the Franchise, arising
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through the Effective Date, whether or not he, she, they or it is aware of any such claim. The
persons released are Franchisor, all businesses or entities related to Franchisor through common
ownership or control, and their respective members, managers, shareholders, directors, officers,
employees, agents, successors and assigns.

7. Miscellaneous.

7.1  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by Michigan law.

7.2 Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and any
permitted assigns.

7.3  Assignment. Neither this Agreement, nor any rights or obligations under this
Agreement, may be assigned by any party.

7.4  Notices. Any notice under this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be
deemed sufficient if delivered personally, mailed by certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, or sent via facsimile. Notice shall be deemed to have been given when personally
delivered, two business days after having been mailed by certified or registered mail, return
receipt requested, or one business day after transmission via facsimile.

7.5  Attorney Fees. A party who substantially prevails with respect to any dispute
shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney fees and other costs from the other party.

7.6 Counterparts and Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original Agreement, but all of which
shall constitute only one Agreement. Execution and delivery of an executed party’s signature
page of this Agreement by electronic signature, whether digital or encrypted, is intended to
authenticate this writing and to have the same force and effect as a manual signature.

IN WITNESS OF this Agreement, the parties have signed below.

FRANCHISOR: TRANSFEROR:
JET’S AMERICA, INC.

(Name of transferring entity/person/trust)
By:

Name: John Jetts Ey: 5
. ) ame:
Title: President .
Date. Title:
ate. Date:
BUYER:

(Name of purchasing entity/person/trust)

By:
Name:
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Title:
Date:
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EXHIBIT K-2

ROYALTY ADDENDUM FOR TRANSFER - FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

[See attached]
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Jet's Pizza
ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Addendum shall become effective immediately once it has been signed by an
authorized officer or representative of Franchisor.

Addendum Regarding Royalties Pertaining to a Transfer

If the store transfers at the end of the month up to a week into the new month, the
transferor will be responsible for royalties for the entire month. Ex: If the transfer is official July
6™, the new owner will then be responsible for the royalties beginning July 1.

The transferee is responsible to pay the royalties for the previous month in full. If the
transfer doesn’t happen at the end of the month the transferee and transferor will be required to
settle the amounts owed to each other for royalties between each other, provided that, in the
event of a dispute, transferee and transferor shall be jointly and severally liable to Franchisor for
the full amount of the royalties due in the disputed month.

TRANSFEREE:

| UNDERSTAND | AM RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MONTH OF

Name:
Its:

Date:

TRANSFEROR:

| UNDERSTAND | AM RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MONTH OF

Name:
Its:

Date:

FRANCHISOR:
JET'S AMERICA, INC.

JOHN JETTS, PRESIDENT

Date:
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EXHIBIT L

RENEWAL ADDENDUM - REMODELING REQUIREMENTS

[See Attached]
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Jet’s Pizza
RENEWAL ADDENDUM
(RE. REMODELING REQUIREMENTS)
THIS ADDENDUM (the “Addendum?”) is between the following parties:
“Franchisor:”  JET’S AMERICA, INC., a Michigan corporation; and

“Franchisee:” ., a

This Addendum shall become effective immediately once it has been signed by Franchisee
and an authorized officer or representative of Franchisor.

BACKGROUND:

Franchisor and Franchisee entered into a Franchise Agreement (the “Initial Franchise
Agreement”) dated , concerning the ownership and operation of a Jet’s Pizza
franchise (the “Franchise”). Under the terms of the Initial Franchise Agreement, the term of the
Franchise will expire as of . Franchisee desires to renew the Franchise,
and therefore the parties are executing a new Franchise Agreement (the “Renewal Franchise
Agreement”) for the Franchise concurrently with this Addendum.

The purpose of this Addendum is to address certain issues related to the Franchise in
connection with its renewal and to amend the Renewal Franchise Agreement and the Initial
Franchise Agreement (if applicable) as provided herein.

THEREFORE, THE PARTIES agree as follows:

1.  Store Remodeling and Miscellaneous Requirements. Franchisee agrees to undertake
and complete the remodeling of the Restaurant and any other action set forth in the attached
Remodeling Schedule, by the dates specified in the Remodeling Schedule. This remodeling or
other action shall be subject to the approval of Franchisor and shall comply with specifications
issued by Franchisor in all respects.

2. Renewal Franchise Agreement Amendment. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary in the Renewal Franchise Agreement, in the event Franchisee does not fully complete
the remodeling of the Restaurant and any other action set forth in the attached Remodeling
Schedule, by the dates specified in the Remodeling Schedule, in Franchisor’s reasonable
determination, the Renewal Franchise Agreement shall expire at 11:59 p.m. on the date of the
[ | month anniversary of the Commencement Date (as defined in the Renewal Franchise
Agreement).

3. Construction of Addendum. Except as otherwise expressly defined in this
Addendum, capitalized terms used in this Addendum shall have the same meaning as in the
Renewal Franchise Agreement. This Addendum will become effective on the date first written
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Renewal Addendum Page 3

above. To the extent of any conflict, the provisions of this Addendum shall supersede those of
the Renewal Franchise Agreement and, if applicable, the Initial Franchise Agreement. The
Renewal Franchise Agreement and, if applicable, the Initial Franchise Agreement, shall be
deemed to include the terms and conditions of this Addendum. Without limiting the generality of
the foregoing, the amendments contained herein will not be construed as an amendment to or
waiver of any other provision of the Renewal Franchise Agreement and, if applicable, the Initial
Franchise Agreement, or as a waiver of or consent to any further or future action on the part of
either party that would require the waiver or consent of the other party. Except as otherwise
provided in this Addendum, the provisions of Section 18 of the Renewal Franchise Agreement
are incorporated herein.

4.  Counterparts and Electronic Signatures. This Addendum may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original agreement, but all of which shall
constitute only one agreement. Execution and delivery of an executed party’s signature page of
this Addendum by electronic signature, whether digital or encrypted, is intended to authenticate
this writing and to have the same force and effect as a manual signature.

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:
JET’S AMERICA, INC.

JOHN JETTS, PRESIDENT :

Date: Date:
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Renewal Addendum Page 4

REMODELING SCHEDULE

COMPLETED

ITEM REQUIREMENT BY

Any store that does not meet their renewal date will be assessed with a minimum administrative
fee and a breach and default by Franchisee. These fees will include:

1. 30 days after completion due date = $35,000

2. 60 days after completion due date = $610,000

3. 90 days after completion due date is a meeting with the Board.
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EXHIBIT M

GENERAL RELEASE UPON RENEWAL

[See Attached]
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GENERAL RELEASE

Background. (“Franchisee”) owns and operates a Jet’s
Pizza franchise, as a franchisee of JET’S AMERICA, INC., a Michigan corporation
(“Jet’s”), pursuant to a Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) dated
, . Franchisee’s Jet’s Pizza franchise is scheduled to
expire on , (the “Expiration Date”). Pursuant to
Section 3.2(a) of the Franchise Agreement, Franchisee desires to renew its franchise, and
Jet’s agrees to renew the franchise, subject to the terms and conditions of the Franchise
Agreement. One of the conditions to the renewal of the franchise, as set forth in Section
3.2(b)(vi) of the Franchise Agreement, is that Franchisee shall deliver to Jet’s a complete
release of any and all claims, causes of action, debts, covenants, contracts, claims and
demands arising out of the Franchise Agreement for the preceding term.

THEREFORE, FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, Franchisee releases Jet’s
and all of its affiliates, and each of their respective owners, officers, directors, managers,
employees and agents from any and all claims, causes of action, debts, losses, covenants,
contracts, and demands arising out of the Franchise Agreement for the term ending on the
Expiration Date.

Execution and delivery of an executed party’s signature page of this Release by
electronic signature, whether digital or encrypted, is intended to authenticate this writing
and to have the same force and effect as a manual signature.

FRANCHISEE:

Date:

By:
Print Name:
Its:
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EXHIBIT N
LIST OF ADMINISTRATORS

We intend to register this disclosure document as a "franchise" in some or possibly
all of the following states, in accordance with the applicable state laws. If and when we
pursue franchise registration (or otherwise comply with the franchise investment laws)
in these states, the following are the state administrators responsible for the review,
registration, and oversight of franchises in these states:

CALIFORNIA

Commissioner of Business Oversight
Department of Business Oversight
320 West Fourth Street, Suite 750
Los Angeles, CA 90013-2344

(213) 576-7500

(866) 275-2677 (toll free)

MINNESOTA

Minnesota Department of Commerce
85 7th Place East, Suite 280

Saint Paul, MN 55101

(651) 539-1500

FLORIDA

Florida Department of Agriculture &
Consumer Services

Division of Consumer Services

2005 Apalachee Parkway

Rhodes Building

Tallahassee, FL 32399-6500

(850) 922-2966

NEW YORK

NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty Street, 21st Floor
New York, NY 10005
212-416-8236

HAWAII

Commissioner of Securities of the State of
Hawaii

Department of Commerce & Consumer
Affairs

Business Registration Division

Securities Compliance Branch

335 Merchant Street, Room 205
Honolulu, HA 96813

(808) 586-2744

NORTH CAROLINA

North Carolina Department of the Secretary
of State

P.O. Box 29622

Raleigh, NC 27626-0622

Attention: Mary Kelly

(919) 807-2156

ILLINOIS

Illinois Attorney General’s Office
Franchise Bureau

500 South Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706

(217) 782-4465

NORTH DAKOTA

Commissioner

North Dakota Securities Department
State Capitol, 5th Floor

600 East Boulevard Avenue
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510

(701) 328-2910

MARYLAND

Office of the Attorney General
Maryland Division of Securities
200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, MD 21202-2020
(410) 576-6360

OHIO

Attorney General's Office
Consumer Protection Section
State Office Tower, 25" Floor
30 East Broad Street — 14" Floor
Columbus, OH 43215
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(614) 466-8831
(800) 282-0515

MICHIGAN

Michigan Attorney General’s Office
Corporate Oversight Division

Attn: Franchise Section

G. Mennen Williams Building, 1* Floor
525 W. Ottawa St.

Lansing, Michigan 48933

(517) 335-7567

OREGON

Division of Finance and Corporate
Securities

PO Box 14480

Salem, OR 97309-0405

(503) 378-4140

SOUTH DAKOTA

Division of Insurance

Securities Regulation

124 South Euclid Avenue, Suite 104
Pierre, South Dakota 57501

(605) 773-3563

RHODE ISLAND

Division of Securities

John O. Pastore Complex — Building 69-1
1511 Pontiac Avenue

Cranston, RI 02920

(401) 462-9500

(401) 462-9527-direct

TENNESSEE

Tennessee Department of Revenue
500 Deaderick Street

Andrew Jackson Building
Nashville, TN 37242

(615) 253-0600

(800) 342-1003 (toll free)

VIRGINIA

State Corporation Commission
Division of Securities and Retail
Franchising

1300 East Main Street, 9" Floor
Richmond, VA 23219

(804) 371-9051

(800) 552-7945

TEXAS

Texas Secretary of State
Corporation Section
1019 Brazos St.

Austin, TX 78701
(512) 463-5770

WASHINGTON

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

PO Box 9033

Olympia, WA 98501-9033

(360) 902-8760

INDIANA

Indiana Secretary of State
Franchise Section

Indiana Securities Commission

302 West Washington Street, E-111
Indianapolis, IN 46204

(317) 232-6681

WISCONSIN

Securities and Franchise Registration
Wisconsin Securities Commission
North Tower, 4th Floor

Hill Farms State Office Building

4822 Madison Yards Way

Madison, WI 53705-9100

(608) 266-1064
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EXHIBIT O
AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

We intend to register this disclosure document as a “franchise” in some of the
following states, in accordance with the applicable state law. If and when we pursue
franchise registration (or otherwise comply with the franchise investment laws) in these
states, we will designate the following state offices and/or officials as our agents for
service of process in these states:

CALIFORNIA NORTH DAKOTA

Commissioner of Business Oversight North Dakota Securities Department
Department of Business Oversight 600 East Boulevard Avenue, State Capitol
320 West Fourth Street, Suite 750 Fifth Floor, Dept. 414

Los Angeles, CA 90013-2344 Bismarck, ND 58505-0510

(213) 876-7500 (701) 328-4712

(866) 275-2677 (toll free)

HAWAII OREGON

Commissioner of Securities of the State of| Department of Consumer & Business
Hawaii Services

Department of Commerce and Consumer | Division of Finance and Corporate
Affairs Securities

Securities Compliance Branch 350 Winter St. NE, Rm. 410

335 Merchant Street, Room 205 Salem, OR 97301-3881

Honolulu, HA 96813 (503) 378-4140

(808) 586-2722

ILLINOIS RHODE ISLAND

Illinois Attorney General Director of Department of Business
Illinois Office of the Attorney General Regulation

Franchise Division Department of Business Regulation
500 South Second Street Securities Division, Building 69, 1% Floor
Springfield, Illinois 62706 1511 Pontiac Avenue

(217) 782-4465 John O. Pastore Complex — 69-1

Cranston, Rhode Island 02920
(401) 462-9500

INDIANA SOUTH DAKOTA
Indiana Secretary of State Department of Insurance
Franchise Section Director of Securities Regulation
302 West Washington Street, Room 124 South Euclid Avenue, Suite 104
E-111 Pierre, South Dakota 57501
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 (605) 773-3563
(317) 232-6681
MARYLAND VIRGINIA
Maryland Securities Commissioner Clerk of the State Corporation
200 St. Paul Place Commission
Baltimore, MA 21202-2020 1300 East Main Street, 9" Floor
(410) 576-6360 Richmond, Virginia 23219

(804) 371-9051
MICHIGAN WASHINGTON
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Michigan Attorney General’s Office
Corporate Oversight, Franchise Section
G. Mennan Williams Building, 1st Floor
525 West Ottawa Street

Lansing, M1 48913

(517) 335-7567

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

150 Israel Road, 3™ Floor
Tumwater, WA 98501

(360) 902-8760

MINNESOTA

Commissioner of Commerce
Minnesota Department of Commerce
85 7th Place East, Suite 280

Saint Paul, MN 55101

(651) 539-1500

WISCONSIN

Division of Securities

4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower
Madison, Wisconsin 53705

(608) 266-2139

NEW YORK

New York Secretary of State
New York Department of State
One Commerce Plaza

99 Washington Avenue, 6" Floor
Albany, NY 12231

(518) 473-2492
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EXHIBIT P

STATE-SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES AND CONTRACT ADDENDA
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FOR THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

1. The California Franchise Investment Law requires a copy of all proposed agreements relating
to the sale of the franchise be delivered together with the disclosure document.

2. In Item 2 of the FDD neither the franchisor nor any person in Item 2 is subject to any currently
effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined
in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or expelling such
persons from membership in such association or exchange.

3. California Business and Professions Code 20000 through 20043 provides rights to the
franchisees concerning termination, transfer or non-renewal of a franchise. If the franchise
agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control.

4. The franchise agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be
enforceable under federal bankruptcy law. (11. U.S.C.A. Sec. 101 et seq.).

5. The franchise agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the
termination of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.

6. Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to determine the
applicability of California and federal laws (such as Business and Professions Code Section
20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal Arbitration Act) to any
provisions of a franchise agreement restricting venue to a forum outside of the State of

California.
7. Certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable under California Civil Code Section
1671,
8. 7—The franchise agreement requires application of the laws of New-JerseyMichigan. This
~ provision may not be enforceable under California law.
9. &—Section 31125 of the California Corporations Code requires us to give you a disclosure

document, in a form containing the information that the commissioner may by rule or order
require, before a solicitation of a proposed material modification of an existing franchise.

10. 9—You must sign a general release if you renew or transfer your franchise. California
Corporations Code §31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law
(California Corporations Code §§31000 through 31516). Business and Professions Code
§20010 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Relations Act (Business and
Professions Code §§20000 through 20043).

11.+46—OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION. ANY
COMPLAINTS CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED
TO THE DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION AT
www.dfpi.ca.gov.
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Jet’s America, Inc. FRANCHISEE:

By: By:
Name: Name:
Its: Its:
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ILLINOIS ADDENDUM TO
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

This Addendum relates to franchises sold in the State of Illinois and is intended to
comply with Illinois statutes and regulations.

1.

Item 17. Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act (the “Act”) states that
any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring a
franchise to waive compliance with any provision of the Act or any other law of
Illinois is void.

Item 17. Section 4 of the Act states that any provision in the Franchise Agreement
that designates jurisdiction or venue for litigation in a forum outside of Illinois is
void with respect to any action which is otherwise enforceable in Illinois._
However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration in a venue outside of
Mlinois.

Item 17. Sections 19 and 20 of the Act affect the conditions under which your
Franchise Agreement can be terminated and your rights upon nonrenewal.

Item 17. Section 200.608 of the Illinois Franchise Regulations requires that
Illinois law govern Franchise Agreements entered into in Illinois.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a
franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship
shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise
law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on
behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any
document executed in connection with the franchise.



ILLINOIS ADDENDUM TO
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Addendum relates to franchises sold in Illinois and is intended to comply with Illinois
statutes and regulations. In consideration of the execution of the Franchise Agreement, Jet’s
America, Inc. and the undersigned Franchisee agree to amend the Franchise Agreement as
follows:

1. Renewal. Section 3.2 of the Franchise Agreement is amended by adding the following: If
anything in this Agreement concerning non-renewal is inconsistent with Section 20 of the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987 (the “Act”), then the Act shall apply.

2. Termination. Section 15.1 of the Franchise Agreement is amended by adding the
following: If anything in this Agreement concerning termination is inconsistent with Section 19
of the Act, then the Act shall apply.

3. Choice of Law. Section 18.3 of the Franchise Agreement is deleted and replaced with the
following:

The Illinois Franchise Regulations, Section 200.608, requires that Illinois law govern
Franchise Agreements entered into in Illinois.

4. Venue. Section 18.3 of the Franchise Agreement is further amended by adding the
following:

Section 4 of the Act states that any provision in the Franchise Agreement that designates
jurisdiction or venue for litigation in a forum outside of Illinois is void with respect to any
action which is otherwise enforceable in Illinois.

5. Limitation of Claims. Section 18.5 of the Franchise Agreement is amended by adding the
following:

Any claims arising under the Act shall be commenced within the period of limitation
established in Section 27 of the Act.

6. Section 41 of the Act states that any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to
bind any person acquiring a franchise to waive compliance with any provision of the Act or any
other law of Illinois is void. Section 41 will control over any inconsistent provisions in the
Franchise Agreement.

7. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i)
waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement,
or (i1) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other
person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any
document executed in connection with the franchise.



8. In all other respects, the Franchise Agreement will be construed and enforced in
accordance with its terms.

Jet’s America, Inc. FRANCHISEE:
By: By:
Name: Name:

Its: Its:




ILLINOIS ADDENDUM TO
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Addendum relates to franchises sold in Illinois and is intended to comply with Illinois
statutes and regulations. In consideration of the execution of the Area Development Agreement
(the “Agreement”), Jet’s America, Inc. and the undersigned Franchisee agree to amend the
Agreement as follows:

1. The provisions of the Franchise Agreement between the parties that are incorporated into
the Agreement will be the provisions as modified by the Addendum to the Jet’s Pizza®
Franchise Agreement required by the State of Illinois.

2. In all other respects, the Agreement will be construed and enforced in accordance with its
terms.
FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:
JET’S AMERICA, INC.
Company
John Jetts, President Signature
Name:
Date Title:

Date



MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Item 17: The following language is added to the end of the “summary” sections of Item 17(c),
entitled Requirements for franchisee to renew or extend, and Item 17(m), entitled Conditions
for Jet’s approval of transfer:

Pursuant to COMAR 02.02.08.16L, the general release required as a condition of renewal, sale,
and/or assignment or transfer will not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law.

Item 17: The following language is added to the end of the “summary” section of Item 17(h),
entitled “Cause” defined — defaults which cannot be cured:

The provision in the franchise agreement which provides for termination upon bankruptcy of the
franchisee may not be enforceable under Federal Bankruptcy Law (11 U.S.C. Section 1010 et

seq.)
Item 17: The following language is added to the end of the chart in Item 17:

You may sue in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and
Disclosure Law. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure
Law must be brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i)
waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement,
or (i1) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by a franchisor, franchise seller, or other
person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any
document executed in connection with the franchise.



MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Addendum relates to franchises sold in Maryland and is intended to comply with Maryland
statutes and regulations. In consideration of the execution of the Franchise Agreement, Jet’s America,
Inc. and the undersigned Franchisee agree to amend the Franchise Agreement as follows:

1. Background. Jet’s America, Inc. and Franchisee are parties to that certain Franchise
Agreement dated that has been signed concurrently with
signing this Addendum. This Addendum is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise
Agreement. This Addendum is being signed because (a) Franchisee is a resident of Maryland,
or (b) the Jet’s Pizza restaurant will be located or operated in Maryland.

2. Release. The following language is added to the end of Sections 3.2(a)(vi) and 13.2(c)(x):

; provided, however, that such general release shall not apply to any liability under the
Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

3. Bankruptcy. The following language is added to the end of Section 14.8:

; however, such provision might not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.
Section 1010 et. seq.), although Franchisor intends to enforce it to the extent enforceable.

4. Limitation of Claims. The following language is added to the end of Section 18.5:

Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, any limitations of claims provisions will not act to
reduce the 3-year statute of limitations afforded to Franchisee for bringing a claim arising under
Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. Call claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within 3 years after the grant of the
franchise to Franchisee.

5. Jurisdiction and Venue. The following language is added at the end of Section 18.3

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Franchisee may bring a lawsuit against
Franchisor in Maryland for any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and
Disclosure Law.

6. Acknowledgements and Representations. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to nor will it
act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law, including, but not limited to, any acknowledgements or
representations made by you which disclaim the occurrence and/or acknowledge the
non-occurrence of acts that would constitute a violation of the Maryland Franchise Registration
and Disclosure Law.

7. Effective Date. This Addendum is effective on the date of the Franchise agreement regardless
of the actual date of signature.



8. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i)
waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement,
or (i1) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by a franchisor, franchise seller, or other
person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any
document executed in connection with the franchise.

Jet’s America, Inc. FRANCHISEE:
By: By:
Name: Name:

Its: Its:




MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Addendum relates to franchises sold in Maryland and is intended to comply with Maryland
statutes and regulations. In consideration of the execution of the Area Development Agreement (the
“Agreement”), Jet’s America, Inc. and the undersigned Franchisee agree to amend the Agreement as
follows:

1. The provisions of the Franchise Agreement between the parties that are incorporated into the
Agreement will be the provisions as modified by the Addendum to the Jet’s Pizza Franchise
Agreement required by the State of Maryland.

2. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving
any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by a franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on
behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

3. In all other respects, the Agreement will be construed and enforced in accordance with its
terms.

Jet’s America, Inc. FRANCHISEE:

By: By:

Name: Name:

Its: Its:




MINNESOTA ADDENDUM TO
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

This Addendum relates to franchises sold in the State of Minnesota and is intended to comply
with Minnesota statutes and regulations.

THESE FRANCHISES HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE MINNESOTA
FRANCHISE ACT. REGISTRATION DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL,
RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE COMMISSIONER OF COMMERCE OF
MINNESOTA OR A FINDING BY THE COMMISSIONER THAT THE INFORMATION
PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING.

THE MINNESOTA FRANCHISE ACT MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL ANY
FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WHICH IS SUBJECT TO REGISTRATION WITHOUT FIRST
PROVIDING TO THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE, AT LEAST 7 DAYS PRIOR TO THE
EXECUTION BY THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE OF ANY BINDING FRANCHISE OR
OTHER AGREEMENT, OR AT LEAST 7 DAYS PRIOR TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY
CONSIDERATION, BY THE FRANCHISEE, WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF THIS
PUBLIC OFFERING STATEMENT, TOGETHER WITH A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED
AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE FRANCHISE. THIS PUBLIC OFFERING STATEMENT
CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED TO
FOR AN UNDERSTANDING OF ALL RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE
FRANCHISOR AND THE FRANCHISEE.

1. Item 17. Minnesota law provides franchisees with certain termination and non-renewal rights.
Minnesota Statutes Section 80C.14, subds. 3, 4 and 5 require, except in certain specified cases, that
you be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice for nonrenewal
of the Franchise Agreement.

2. Item 17. No condition, stipulations, or provisions in the Franchise Agreement can abrogate or
reduce any rights you have under the Minnesota Franchises Law, including (if applicable) the right to
submit matters to the jurisdiction of the courts of Minnesota and the right to any forum or remedies
provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction. Minnesota Statutes Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule
2860.4400] may prohibit us from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, from
requiring waiver of a jury trial, and from requiring you to pay liquidated damages, but do not bar an
exclusive arbitration clause.

3. Items 17 and 22. Any release required as a condition of renewal or transfer will not apply to
any liability imposed by Minn. Stat. Sections 80C.01-80C.022.

4. Items 17 and 22. Any release required as a condition of being granted a new Franchise
Agreement for an additional Restaurant will not apply to any liability imposed by Minn. Stat. 1973
Supplement Sections 80C.01-80C.622 in connection with granting the new Franchise Agreement.

5. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving
any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including, fraud in the inducement, or (ii)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting



on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed with
the franchise.



MINNESOTA ADDENDUM TO
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Addendum relates to franchises sold in Minnesota and is intended to comply with
Minnesota statutes and regulations. In consideration of the execution of the Franchise Agreement, Jet’s
America, Inc. and the undersigned Franchisee agree to amend the Franchise Agreement as follows:

1. Releases. Section 3.2(vi) of the Franchise Agreement is amended by adding the following:
The foregoing release does not apply to any claims that you may have under the Minnesota

Franchises Law or the Rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder by the Commissioner of
Commerce.

2. Renewal and Termination. Sections 3.2 and 15.1 of the Franchise Agreement are each amended
to add the following:

Minnesota law provides franchisees with certain termination and nonrenewal rights. Minnesota
Statutes Section 80C.14, subds. 3, 4 and 5 require, except in certain specified cases, that a
Franchisee be given 90 days notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days notice for
nonrenewal of the Franchise Agreement.

3. Venue. Section 18.3 of the Franchise Agreement is amended to add the following:

Under Minnesota Statutes Section 80C.21, this section will not in any way abrogate or reduce any
rights of the Franchisee as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, including the right to
submit matters to the jurisdiction of the courts in Minnesota. Minnesota Statutes Section 80C.21
and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400J prohibit Franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted
outside Minnesota.

4. Limitation of Claims. Section 18.5 is amended to add the following:

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section, any claim or action arising out of or
relating to the Minnesota Franchises Law must be commenced within three (3) years from the
occurrence of the facts giving rise to the claim or action, or the claim or action is barred.

5. Acknowledgments and Representations. Section 19 is amended by adding the following:

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 80C.21 and Minn. Rule Part 2860.4400J, nothing in the Agreement shall
in any way abrogate or reduce any of your rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter
80C.

7. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving
any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including, fraud in the inducement, or (ii)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting
on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed with
the franchise.



In all other respects, the Franchise Agreement will be construed and enforced in accordance with its
terms.

Jet’s America, Inc. FRANCHISEE:
By: By:
Name: Name:

Its: Its:




NEW YORK ADDENDUM TO
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

This Addendum relates to franchises sold in the State of New York and is intended to comply
with New York statutes and regulations.

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE STATE
ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IMMEDIATELY BELOW OR YOUR PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR
SOURCES OF INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW YORK STATE
DOES NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR HAS VERIFIED THE
INFORMATION IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. IF YOU LEARN THAT ANYTHING IN
THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE FEDERAL TRADE
COMMISSION AND THE NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF LAW BUREAU OF
INVESTOR PROTECTION AND SECURITIES, 28 LIBERTY STREET, 21ST FLOOR, NEW
YORK, NY 10005.

THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS
COVERED IN THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE FRANCHISOR CANNOT
USE THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON YOU TO ACCEPT TERMS WHICH
ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

THE FRANCHISOR REPRESENTS THAT THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT DOES NOT
KNOWINGLY OMIT ANY MATERIAL FACT OR CONTAIN ANY UNTRUE STATEMENT OF
MATERIAL FACT.

Item 3. Item 3 of the disclosure document is amended to add the following:

Other than as described in Item 3, neither we, our predecessor, a person identified in Item 2, nor an
affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor’s principal trademark:

A. Has an administrative, criminal or material civil action pending against that person alleging: a
felony; a violation of a franchise, antitrust or securities law; fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent
conversion, misappropriation of property; unfair or deceptive practices or comparable civil or
misdemeanor allegations. There are no pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to
the business, which are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size, nature
or financial condition of the franchise system or its business operations.

B. Has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge or, within the
ten-year period immediately preceding the application for registration, has been convicted of or
pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the subject of a civil action alleging:
violation of a franchise, antifraud or securities law; fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion or
misappropriation of property, or unfair or deceptive practices or comparable allegations.

C. Is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree relating to the
franchise, or under a federal, State or Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust, trade regulation or
trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending action or proceeding brought by a public
agency; or is subject to any currently effective order of any national securities association or
national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or
expelling such person from membership in such association or exchange; or is subject to a



currently effective injunctive or restrictive order relating to any other business activity as a result of
an action brought by a public agency or department, including, without limitation, actions affecting
a license as a real estate broker or sales agent.

Item 4. Item 4 of the disclosure document is amended to add the following:

Except as disclosed in Item 4 of the disclosure document, neither we, our affiliates, our
predecessor, officers, nor our general partner during the 10-year period immediately before the date
of the offering circular: (a) filed as debtor (or had filed against it) a petition to start an action under
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code; (b) obtained a discharge of its debts under the Bankruptcy Code; or (¢)
was a principal officer of a company or a general partner in a partnership that either filed as a
debtor (or had filed against it) a petition to start an action under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or that
obtained a discharge of its debts under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code during or within 1 year after the
officer or general partner of the franchisor held this position in the company or partnership.

Item 5. Item 5 of the disclosure document is amended to add the following:
The initial franchise fee may, in part, be profit to us, and is, in part used to pay our following
expenses or costs: (1) employee salaries and benefits; (2) sales, administrative and operation
expenses; (3) legal and accounting fees; (4) expenses of technical assistance, service and support;
(5) protection of our trademarks; and (6) other operational expenses incurred by us or our affiliates
relating to franchising.

Item 17. Item 17 of the disclosure document is amended to add the following:
All rights arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the Gen. Bus. Law of the State
of New York and the regulations issued thereunder will remain in force; it being the intent of this
proviso that the non-waiver provisions of Gen. Bus. Law sections 687.4 and 687.5 be satisfied.

Item 17. Item 17(c) of the disclosure document is amended to add the following:

You must sign a general release if you renew the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable
under New York law.

Item 17. Item 17(d) of the disclosure document is amended to add the following:
You may also terminate the Franchise Agreement on any grounds available by law.
Item 17. Item 17(j) of the disclosure document is amended to add the following:

No assignment will be made by us except to an assignee who, in our good faith judgment, is
willing and able to assume our obligations under the Franchise Agreement.

Item 17. Item 17(m) of the disclosure document is amended to add the following:
You must sign a general release if you transfer the franchise. This provision may not be
enforceable under New York law.



NEW YORK ADDENDUM TO
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Addendum relates to franchises sold in New York and is intended to comply with New

York statutes and regulations. In consideration of the execution of the Franchise Agreement, Jet’s
America, Inc. and the undersigned Franchisee agree to amend the Franchise Agreement as follows:

1. Releases. Section 3.2(vi) of the Franchise Agreement is amended by adding the following:

The foregoing release does not apply to any rights enjoyed by you and any causes of action
arising in your favor from the provisions of New York General Business Law Sections 680-695
and the regulations issued thereunder, it being the intent of this provision that the non-waiver
provisions of N.Y. Gen. Bus. Law Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be satisfied.

2. Transfer by Franchisor. The following is added to Section 18.9:

Franchisor will not assign its rights under this Agreement except to an assignee who in
Franchisor’s good faith judgment is willing and able to assume Franchisor’s obligations under
this Agreement.

3. Termination by Franchisee. The following is added to Section 13:

You may terminate this Agreement on any grounds available by law under the provisions of
Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York.

4. Choice of Law. The following is added to Section 18.3:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the New York Franchises Law shall govern any claim arising
under that law.

5. Acknowledgments and Representations. Section 19 is amended by adding the following:
Nothing in this Agreement should be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon
Franchisee by New York General Business Law, Sections 680-695.

6. In all other respects, the Franchise Agreement will be construed and enforced in accordance

with its terms.

Jet’s America, Inc. FRANCHISEE:

By: By:

Name: Name:

Its:

Its:




NORTH CAROLINA ADDENDUM TO
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Franchise Disclosure Document, the
following provisions shall supersede and apply to all Jet’s franchises offered and sold in the state of
North Carolina:

The North Carolina Addendum is only applicable if you are a resident of North Carolina and your
business will be located in North Carolina.

DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY NORTH CAROLINA LAW

2. Pursuant to § 66-95 of the North Carolina Business Opportunities Sales Act, the following
language is required to be disclosed in the Disclosure Document:

If Jet’s America, Inc. fails to deliver the product(s), equipment or supplies necessary to begin
substantial operation of the business within 45 days of the delivery date stated in your contract, you
may notify us in writing and demand that the contract be cancelled.



NORTH CAROLINA COVER SHEET TO
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

The State of North Carolina has not reviewed and does not approve, recommend, endorse or
sponsor any business opportunity. The information contained in this disclosure has not been verified
by the State. If you have any questions about this investment, see an attorney before you sign a
contract or agreement.



NORTH CAROLINA ADDENDUM TO
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Addendum relates to franchises sold in North Carolina and is intended to comply with
North Carolina statutes and regulations. In consideration of the execution of the Franchise Agreement,
Jet’s America, Inc. and the undersigned Franchisee agree to amend the Franchise Agreement as
follows:

1. Notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing Franchise Agreement and Franchise
Disclosure Document to the contrary, the following provisions of the North Carolina Business
Opportunities Act (the “Act”) shall apply to any franchise located in the State of North Carolina, which
shall control to the extent of any inconsistency:

2. Termination. With respect to franchises governed by North Carolina law, if the Franchise
Agreement contains a termination provision that is inconsistent with the Act, the Act will control.

3. In all other respects, the Franchise Agreement will be construed and enforced in accordance
with its terms.

Jet’s America, Inc. FRANCHISEE:
By: By:
Name: Name:

Its: Its:




VIRGINIA ADDENDUM TO
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

This Addendum relates to franchises sold in the Commonwealth of Virginia and is intended to
comply with Virginia statutes and regulations.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving
any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting
on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

The following language is added to the Franchise Disclosure Document:

1. Item 5. The Virginia State Corporation Commission’s Division of Securities and Retail
Franchising requires us to defer payment of the Initial Franchise Fee and other initial payments owed
by franchisees to the franchisor until the franchisor has completed its pre-opening obligations under the
Franchise Agreement. In addition, the Virginia State Corporation Commission’s Division of Securities
and Retail Franchising requires us to defer payment of the Territory Reservation Fee owed by
franchisees to the franchisor under the Territory Reservation Agreement in accordance with this
paragraph. Only after the franchisor has completed its pre-opening obligations under the Franchise
Agreement for a particular Restaurant being developed under the Territory Reservation Agreement
may the franchisor collect from the franchisee a pro-rata, per Restaurant share of the Territory
Reservation Fee. If the franchisor terminates the Territory Reservation Agreement pursuant to its terms
before the franchisee has developed all of the Restaurants it has the right to develop under the
Development Schedule attached to the Territory Reservation Agreement, however, the franchisee must
immediately pay to the franchisor the remaining balance of the Territory Reservation Fee.

2. Item 17. In recognition of the restrictions contained in Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail
Franchising Act, the following statements are added to Item 17:

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a
franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or
termination stated in the Franchise Agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that
term may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that
provision may not be enforceable. Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail
Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to use undue influence to induce a franchisee to
surrender any right given to him under the franchise. If any provision of the Franchise
Agreement involves the use of undue influence by the franchisor to induce a franchisee to
surrender any rights given to him under the franchise, that provision may not be enforceable.

3. Item 17. In recognition of the restrictions contained in Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia
Retail Franchising Act, the following statements are added to Item 17:

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a
franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or
termination stated in the Franchise Agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that



term may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that
provision may not be enforceable.

Jet’s America, Inc. FRANCHISEE:
By: By:
Name: Name:

Its: Its:




WISCONSIN ADDENDUM TO
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

The following provisions shall supersede and apply to all Jet’s franchises offered and sold in the state
of Wisconsin:

The Wisconsin Addendum is only applicable if you are a resident of Wisconsin and your business will
be located in Wisconsin.

The following paragraphs are added at the end of the chart in Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure
Document:

To the extent required by law, the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law supersedes any provisions
contained in the Franchise Agreement that are inconsistent with Wisconsin Fair Dealership
Law.

Chapter 135, Wis. Stats. may require that franchisor provide franchisee at least 90 days’ prior
written notice of termination, cancellation, nonrenewal or substantial change in competitive
circumstances. The notice shall state all the reasons for termination, cancellation, nonrenewal
or substantial change in competitive circumstances and shall provide that the franchisee has 60
days in which to rectify any claimed deficiency. If the deficiency is rectified within 60 days the
notice shall be void.



WISCONSIN ADDENDUM TO
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Addendum relates to franchises sold in Wisconsin and is intended to comply with
Wisconsin statutes and regulations. In consideration of the execution of the Franchise Agreement, Jet’s
America, Inc. and the undersigned Franchisee agree to amend the Franchise Agreement as follows:

1. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Franchise Agreement and Franchise Disclosure
Document to the contrary, the following provisions of the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law shall apply
to any franchise located in the State of Wisconsin, which shall control to the extent of any
inconsistency:

With respect to franchises governed by Wisconsin law, Franchisor will comply with Chapter
135, Wisconsin Statutes, which may require that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of
termination, cancellation, nonrenewal or substantial change in competitive circumstances (with
60 days to cure) and all reasons for such termination, cancellation, nonrenewal or substantial
change in competitive shall be included in such notice. To the extent required by law, Chapter
135 of the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law supersedes any provisions contained in the
Franchise Agreement that are inconsistent with that chapter.

2. In all other respects, the Franchise Agreement will be construed and enforced in accordance
with its terms.

Jet’s America, Inc. FRANCHISEE
By: By:
Name: Name:

Its: Its:




WASHINGTON ADDENDUM TO
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

This Addendum relates to franchises sold in Washington and is intended to comply with
Washington statutes and regulations

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment
Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor
including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court
decisions which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor
including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or
mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the
time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of
arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a
franchisee may bring an action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of
franchises, or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in
Washington.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when
executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties
are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or
limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the
Act such as a right to a jury trial, may not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated
or actual costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an
employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party
seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be
adjusted annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and
unenforceable against an independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless
the independent contractor’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized,
exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result,
any provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these
limitations are void and unenforceable in Washington.



Jet’s America, Inc. FRANCHISEE:

By: By:

Name: Name:

Its: Its:
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STATE EFFECTIVE DATES AND RECEIPT

Jet’s Pizza (20245)
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STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure
Document be registered or filed with the states, or be exempt from registration:
California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North
Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document
is filed, registered, or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:

State Effective Date
California April 269, 20245
Ilinois May-1;-2024Pending
Indiana April 269, 20245
Maryland Nevember-14April 29, 20245
Michigan April 269, 20245
Minnesota Juhy-24-2024Pending
New York April 269, 20245
Virginia June-242024Pending
Wisconsin April-26,2024
Washington April 269, 20245

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws,
such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted
marketing plans.

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



RECEIPT

This Franchise Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement and other
information in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Jet's offers you a franchise, Jet's must provide this disclosure document to you at least fourteen (14) calendar
days before the signing of a binding agreement or fourteen (14) calendar days before any payment to Jet's or an
affiliate, in connection with the proposed franchise sale. New York requires that Jet's give you this disclosure
document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or
other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. lowa requires that
we give you this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 14 days before the execution
of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.
Michigan requires that Jet’s give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution of
any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.

If Jet's does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a
material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal
Trade Commission at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW., Washington D.C. 20580 and the state agencies listed in
Exhibit N. The agent for service of process for your respective state is found in Exhibit O.

Issuance Date: April 269, 20235 (the effective dates of this disclosure document in states with franchise
registration laws are listed in the State Effective Dates page in Exhibit R.

John Jetts and James W. Galloway Jr. are the only persons authorized to offer or sell Jet's Pizza franchises in the
United States of America.

I acknowledge receipt of a Franchise Disclosure Document with an Issuance Date of April 269, 20245, including
the following exhibits:

1. Franchise Agreement, including Schedules 11. Sample Forms of Transfer Agreements
2. Financial Statements 12. Royalty Addendum for Transfer — Franchise
3. Jet's Pizza Operations Manual Table of Contents Agreement
4. List of Current Jet's Pizza, Inc. Franchisees and 13. Renewal Addendum — Remodeling Requirements
affiliates 14. General Release Upon Renewal
5. List of Former Jet's Pizza, Inc. Franchisees 15. List of State Administrators
6. Guaranty 16. Agents for Service of Process
7. Related Party Confidentiality Agreement 17. State-Specific Disclosures and Contract Addenda
8. Related Party Agreement Not to Compete 18. Area Development Agreement
9. Business Purpose Affidavit 19. State Effective Dates and Receipt
10. Ownership Certificate
Date:
(Do not leave blank) (Print Name of Prospective Franchisee — For Entity)
State: Signature:
Print
Name: Title:

(Print Name of Prospective Franchisee — For Individuals)
Signature:

The above individual(s) signs on behalf of the above entity and all other prospective franchisee entities (currently
in existence or formed in the future) of which the above individual(s) is an officer, partner or member.

[Copy for Jet’s]

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



[IF NEEDED, SEE NEXT PAGE FOR ADDITIONAL SIGNATURE SPACES]

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



Date: Signature:

(Do not leave blank) Print Name:

State:

Date: Signature:
(Do not leave blank) Print Name:

State:

Date: Signature:
(Do not leave blank) Print Name:

State:

Date: Signature:
(Do not leave blank) Print Name:

State:

Date: Signature:
(Do not leave blank) Print Name:

State:

Date: Signature:
(Do not leave blank) Print Name:

State:

The above individual(s) signs on behalf of the above entity and all other prospective franchisee entities (currently
in existence or formed in the future) of which the above individual(s) is an officer, partner or member.

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



RECEIPT

This Franchise Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement and other
information in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Jet's offers you a franchise, Jet's must provide this disclosure document to you at least fourteen (14) calendar
days before the signing of a binding agreement or fourteen (14) calendar days before any payment to Jet's or an
affiliate, in connection with the proposed franchise sale. New York requires that Jet's give you this disclosure
document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or
other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. lowa requires that
we give you this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 14 days before the execution
of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.
Michigan requires that Jet’s give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution of
any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.

If Jet's does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a
material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal
Trade Commission at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW., Washington D.C. 20580 and the state agencies listed in
Exhibit N. The agent for service of process for your respective state is found in Exhibit O.

Issuance Date: April 269, 20245 (the effective dates of this disclosure document in states with franchise
registration laws are listed in the State Effective Dates page in Exhibit R.

John Jetts and James W. Galloway Jr. are the only persons authorized to offer or sell Jet's Pizza franchises in the
United States of America.

I acknowledge receipt of a Franchise Disclosure Document with an Issuance Date of April 269, 20245, including
the following exhibits:

1. Franchise Agreement, including Schedules 11. Sample Forms of Transfer Agreements
2. Financial Statements 12. Royalty Addendum for Transfer — Franchise
3. Jet's Pizza Operations Manual Table of Contents Agreement
4. List of Current Jet's Pizza, Inc. Franchisees and 13. Renewal Addendum — Remodeling Requirements
affiliates 14. General Release Upon Renewal
5. List of Former Jet's Pizza, Inc. Franchisees 15. List of State Administrators
6. Guaranty 16. Agents for Service of Process
7. Related Party Confidentiality Agreement 17. State-Specific Disclosures and Contract Addenda
8. Related Party Agreement Not to Compete 18. Area Development Agreement
9. Business Purpose Affidavit 19. State Effective Dates and Receipt
10. Ownership Certificate
Date:
(Do not leave blank) (Print Name of Prospective Franchisee — For Entity)
State: Signature:
Print
Name: Title:

(Print Name of Prospective Franchisee — For Individuals)
Signature:

The above individual(s) signs on behalf of the above entity and all other prospective franchisee entities (currently
in existence or formed in the future) of which the above individual(s) is an officer, partner or member.

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



[IF NEEDED, SEE NEXT PAGE FOR ADDITIONAL SIGNATURE SPACES]

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



Date: Signature:

(Do not leave blank) Print Name:

State:

Date: Signature:
(Do not leave blank) Print Name:

State:

Date: Signature:
(Do not leave blank) Print Name:

State:

Date: Signature:
(Do not leave blank) Print Name:

State:

Date: Signature:
(Do not leave blank) Print Name:

State:

Date: Signature:
(Do not leave blank) Print Name:

State:

The above individual(s) signs on behalf of the above entity and all other prospective franchisee entities (currently
in existence or formed in the future) of which the above individual(s) is an officer, partner or member.
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Jet’s Pizza
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT is between JET’S AMERICA, INC., a
Michigan corporation (“Franchisor”), and the franchisee identified on the signature page
(“Franchisee™). The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date it is signed by an
authorized officer or representative of Franchisor (the “Effective Date”).

RECITALS:

Franchisor and Franchisee are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement(s), pursuant to
which Franchisor granted Franchisee a right to own and operate a Jet’s Pizza restaurant using
Franchisor’s system. Franchisee desires to acquire a number of additional Jet’s Pizza franchises,
subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Definitions. In addition to terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, for purposes of
this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

1.1  Agreement. “Agreement” means this Area Development Agreement.

1.2 Area Development Fee. The “Area Development Fee” is stated in Schedule 1 and
is payable in full upon execution of this Agreement.

1.3  Area Development Territory. The “Area Development Territory” means the
territory defined in Schedule 1.

14 Commencement Date. The “Commencement Date” means the day a Restaurant
opens for business.

1.5  Existing Franchise Agreement. An “Existing Franchise Agreement” means any
Franchise Agreement executed by Franchisee and Franchisor prior to the execution of this
Agreement.

1.6 Event of Default. An “Event of Default” is defined in Section 6.

1.7  First Franchise. A “First Franchise” means the right to own and operate the initial
Jet’s Pizza Restaurant pursuant to the terms and conditions of a Franchise Agreement and this
Agreement.

1.8 Franchise. A “Franchise” means the right to own and operate a Jet’s Pizza
Restaurant pursuant to the terms and conditions of a Franchise Agreement.

1.9 Franchise Agreement. A “Franchise Agreement” means an agreement between
Franchisor and a franchisee, under which the franchisee is granted a license to learn and use the
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Franchise System, and to own and operate a Restaurant under the name, “Jet’s Pizza,” and
identified with Franchisor’s trademarks, service marks, logos and/or commercial symbols.

1.10 FTC Rule. The “FTC Rule” means Federal Trade Commission Rule 436, as
amended from time to time.

1.11  Option. “Option” is defined in Section 2.1.

1.12  Second Franchise. A “Second Franchise” means the right to own and operate a
second Jet’s Pizza Restaurant pursuant to the terms and conditions of a Franchise Agreement and
this Agreement.

1.13  Third Franchise. A “Third Franchise” means the right to own and operate a third
Jet’s Pizza Restaurant pursuant to the terms and conditions of a Franchise Agreement and this
Agreement.

Any capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in
the applicable Franchise Agreement between the parties.

2. Option to Purchase Franchises.

2.1  Grant of Option. Subject to Section 2.8 below, Franchisor grants Franchisee an
option (the “Option”) to purchase the number of Franchises listed in Schedule 1, a Restaurant for
each of which shall be located within the Area Development Territory, upon the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

2.2  Development Schedule. Franchisee may exercise Options and open Restaurants
for business as quickly as Franchisee desires, subject to the other terms and conditions of this
Agreement and applicable Franchise Agreements, but at a minimum must open the First, Second
and Third Franchise no later than, and according to, the time period set forth in the Development
Schedule prescribed in Schedule 1. Franchisee has an Option to open the additional Franchises,
if any, as prescribed in Schedule 1 and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

2.3  Area Development Fee. Franchisee shall pay the Area Development Fee upon the
execution of this Agreement. The Area Development Fee is consideration for the Option and
rights Franchisor is granting Franchisee in this Agreement and fully earned by Franchisor upon
Franchisor and Franchisee signing this Agreement, and is not refundable under any
circumstances, even if Franchisee does not comply or attempt to comply with the Development
Schedule and even if Franchisor then terminates this Agreement for such reasons or if Franchisor
subsequently terminates any Franchise pursuant to the applicable Franchise Agreement. The
Area Development Fee is not refundable despite any provision contained in the Franchise
Agreement or other document to the contrary.
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2.4  Other Fees. Except as otherwise provided below, Franchisee shall pay all fees,
charges and costs in accordance with the terms of the Franchise Agreement executed for each
Franchise purchased under this Agreement.

@ Area Development Fee. Except as otherwise indicated in Schedule 1,
upon the exercise of each Option to purchase a Franchise under this Agreement, Franchisee must
pay the Area Development Fee prescribed in Schedule 1.

(b) Royalty Fees. For each Franchise purchased under this Agreement,
Franchisee shall pay royalties in accordance with the terms of the applicable Franchise
Agreement in effect at that time for the Franchise.

(c) Other Fees. For each Franchise purchased under this Agreement,
Franchisee shall pay all other fees and expenses in accordance with the terms of the applicable
Franchise Agreement in effect at that time for the Franchise.

2.5  Exercise of Option. Provided Franchisee is not in default under this Agreement,
Franchisee may exercise an Option to purchase a Franchise by written notice to Franchisor
pursuant to the Development Schedule set forth in Schedule 1. Promptly after such notice, but
subject to compliance with the other terms and conditions of this Agreement, Franchisor shall
grant the Franchise to Franchisee. Notwithstanding the above, Franchisee acknowledges that
Franchisor has absolute right not to accept any site that does not meet its criteria. Additionally,
Franchisor may delay Franchisee’s rights to develop additional Restaurants within the Area
Development Territory for the time period Franchisor deems reasonable, if Franchisor believes
that the Franchisee is not operationally or managerially prepared to develop, open and/or operate
additional Restaurants.

2.6 Duration of Option. Franchisee’s Option to purchase Franchises under this
Section shall expire pursuant to the Development Schedule prescribed in Schedule 1.
Franchisee’s Option may be terminated sooner pursuant to Section 7.1.

2.7  Territory. Notwithstanding Section 6.3 of the Franchise Agreement, as long as
this Option is in effect and Franchisee is not in material default, Franchisor shall not establish,
operate, or license anyone else to own or operate, a Restaurant in the Area Development
Territory during the terms set forth in the Development Schedule in Schedule 1, except as
specifically allowed under this Agreement. After this Agreement is terminated or expires,
regardless of the reason for termination, Franchisor has the right to establish and grant to others
the right to establish Franchises in the Area Development Territory. Additionally, Franchisor
reserves all rights not specifically granted to Franchisee, including but not limited to those set
forth below.

@ Franchisor reserves the right to supply “Special Events” in the Area
Development Territory. For purposes of this agreement, “Special Events” mean banquets,
receptions, picnics, parties, fairs, sporting events, or other events where the volume of the order
may be beyond an individual Franchisee’s normal capacity. Franchisee shall notify Franchisor of
any order it receives for a Special Event in the Territory. Franchisor shall use its reasonable
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discretion whether to allow Franchisee to accept the order, to coordinate with other franchisees
to fill the order, to fill the order itself, or to refuse the order.

(b) Franchisor reserves the right to open, operate and license others to own
and operate restaurants, facilities or outlets operating under one or more of the Marks, but using
a design, format or system materially different from the Franchise System, such as but not
limited to Non-Traditional Restaurants.

(© Franchisor reserves the right to distribute or sell goods bearing one or
more of the Marks at wholesale or retail, such as frozen pizza, canned pizza sauce, or other
ingredients.

(d) Franchisor reserves the right to open, operate and license others to own
and operate restaurants, stores or other facilities operating under one or more of the Marks, in
conjunction with one or more other trademarks, service marks or franchise systems.

2.8 Conditions to Grant of Option. Franchisor’s grant of the Option under this
Agreement is subject to:

@ Franchisee’s operation of a Restaurant under an EXxisting Franchise
Agreement for a minimum of one (1) year; and

(b) Each Restaurant currently operated by Franchisee must:

() be supervised by at least two (2) managers trained according to
Section 5.4 of the Franchise Agreement; and

(i) have been compliant with Jet’s operating standards as set forth
under the operations manual and the Existing Franchise Agreement; and

(iti)  have no outstanding issues with customer service; and

(iv)  have generated an average of gross revenues of at least eighteen
thousand USD ($18,000.00) (weekly) over the past 12 months.

(© Franchisor’s determination, in its sole discretion, that Franchisee is
operationally and managerially prepared to develop, open and/or operate additional Restaurants
under this Agreement.

2.9 Existing Franchise Agreement. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein,
no Existing Franchise Agreement is or will be subject to the terms of this Agreement.

3. Execution of Franchise Agreement and Related Agreements. For each Franchise
acquired under this Agreement, the parties shall execute a Franchise Agreement and any related
agreements or documents on Franchisor’s then current standard forms (except as specifically
provided otherwise in this Agreement), which may be materially different from Franchisor’s
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current standard forms. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, all terms
and conditions related to a Franchise shall be determined under the Franchise Agreement or
related agreement executed with respect to that Franchise, such as but not limited to site
selection, the exclusive territory, training, the appearance and operation of the Restaurant,
reporting requirements, and the payment of fees. Notwithstanding anything herein to the
contrary, in the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the terms of an
Existing Franchise Agreement, the terms of the most-recent Existing Franchise Agreement shall
govern, provided, however, that the provisions of Section 2.4 and Schedule 1, however, are
intended to supersede any conflicting terms of Franchisor’s standard Franchise Agreement;
provided that such provisions may be amended or superseded by a written agreement, signed by
the parties, that expressly refers to Section 2.4 and/or Schedule 1, and clearly expresses the intent
to amend or supersede such provisions.

4. Proprietary Information.

4.1  Acknowledgement of Ownership. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that
Proprietary Information is the exclusive property of Franchisor, and that Proprietary Information
is proprietary to and a valuable trade secret of Franchisor.

4.2  Restrictive Covenants. Franchisee agrees as follows:

@ Any unauthorized disclosure or use of Proprietary Information may cause
irreparable damage to Franchisor;

(b) To use Proprietary Information only for the purpose of owning and
operating a Franchise under the terms and conditions of a Franchise Agreement;

(©) To limit dissemination of Proprietary Information to its employees,
Related Parties, accountants, attorneys, and agents who have a reasonable need to know such
information;

(d) To require each of its employees, owners, officers, directors, members and
managers to execute a confidentiality agreement in a form prescribed by or satisfactory to
Franchisor;

(e Before disseminating any Proprietary Information to it accountants,
attorneys or any other third parties or Related Parties, to notify Franchisor, and if requested by
Franchisor, to obtain a confidentiality agreement from the third party before disclosing any
Proprietary Information to it, in a form prescribed by or satisfactory to Franchisor;

()] To provide Franchisor with fully executed originals of all confidentiality
agreements executed by such Related Parties or third parties;

(9) Upon the termination or expiration of the Franchise, to immediately return
all documents or other media containing Proprietary Information to Franchisor;
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(h) To adopt and implement reasonable procedures to prevent unauthorized
use or disclosure of Proprietary Information; and

Q) To adopt and implement reasonable procedures to prevent unauthorized
use or infringement of the Marks, or otherwise any actions that could damage or disparage the
image of Franchisee, Franchisor or the Franchise System.

5. Agreement Not to Compete.

5.1  Restrictive Covenants. Neither Franchisee, nor any Related Party, nor the spouse
of Franchisee or any Related Party, shall do any of the following, either while this Agreement is
in effect or for a period of three (3) years after the expiration or termination of the Franchise:

@ Compete with Franchisor or any Jet’s Pizza restaurant;

(b) Advertise in or solicit orders from the territory assigned to any other Jet’s
Pizza restaurant, or otherwise divert or attempt to divert any business or customer of the
Restaurant to any competitor by inducement or otherwise, or do or perform any other act
injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with the Marks and the Franchise System;

(© Employ or seek to employ, directly or indirectly, any person who is at the
time or was at any time during the prior six (6) months employed by Franchisor or its affiliates at
the level of restaurant general manager or above. A violation of this Section shall entitle
Franchisor to liquidated damages equal to twice the annual salary of the employee (while
employed by the prior employer), plus reimbursement of all costs and attorney fees incurred in
enforcing this provision;

(d) Perform services as director, manager, officer, employee or agent of a
Competitive Restaurant (defined below); or

(e) Engage in any activity that might injure the goodwill, the Marks, or the
image of the Franchisor, Franchisee or the Franchise System.

5.2  Definition of Compete. To compete with Franchisor or any Jet’s Pizza restaurant
includes but is not limited to involvement as an owner, stockholder, director, officer, member,
manager, partner, employee, lender or consultant, or the provision of any other type of
assistance, with or to a business:

@ More than fifty percent (50%) of the gross revenue of which is attributable
to the sale of pizza, calzones and other items similar to those offered by Jet’s Pizza restaurants
(“Competitive Restaurants”), and located within five (5) miles of the Territory, or within five (5)
miles of any Jet’s Pizza restaurant, other than at a Jet’s Pizza restaurant licensed by Franchisor;
or
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(b) Engaged in the sale of franchises for Competitive Restaurants or the
ownership or operation of a system of franchised or licensed Competitive Restaurants.

5.3  Related Parties. Franchisee shall obtain from each Related Party an executed
Agreement Not to Compete, substantially identical to the terms of this Section, in a form
prescribed by or satisfactory to Franchisor, and shall provide Franchisor with a fully executed
original Agreement Not to Compete. For purposes of this Section, the Franchise shall be deemed
to have terminated with respect to a Related Party upon the sale or disposition of his or her entire
interest in the Franchise and the Franchisee, and/or the termination of his or her status or position
as an owner, stockholder, director, officer, member, manager, partner, restaurant manager or key
employee of Franchisee. Franchisee is responsible for ensuring that all personnel of Franchisee,
including but not limited to owners, officers, and crew members, and Franchisee’s vendors,
service providers, professional advisors, and other persons associated with Franchisee keep
confidential all Proprietary Information. Any unauthorized use or disclosure of Proprietary
Information by such persons will constitute a default by Franchisee under this Agreement.

5.4  Judicial Modification. If any court or tribunal determines this agreement not to
compete to be unenforceable because it is too broad, either in terms of the length of time, or
geographical area, or nature of activities covered, or otherwise, its scope shall be deemed to be
automatically restricted to the extent necessary to be enforceable.

6. Default. For purposes of this Agreement, each of the following shall be deemed to be an
“Event of Default”:

6.1 Failure _to Meet Development Schedule.  Franchisee fails to meet the
Development Schedule prescribed in Schedule 1, or fails to pay any amount when due under this
Agreement;

6.2  Transfer to Third Party. Unless waived by Franchisor at the time, a “transfer”
(within the meaning of the Franchise Agreement) to an unrelated third party of any Franchise
owned by Franchisee or a Related Party, notwithstanding any right to do so under the Franchise
Agreement. It is the intent of the parties in entering into this Agreement that the Area
Development Territory be developed by Franchisee, and that Franchisee will continue to own
and operate the Franchises contemplated under this Agreement; not that Franchisee will engage
in a practice of opening Franchises under this Agreement and then selling them to unrelated
parties.

6.3  Other Default. Franchisee defaults in any other manner under this Agreement and
fails to cure the default within ten (10) days after written notice of the default;

6.4  Cross-Default. Any default by Franchisee or a Related Party under the Franchise
Agreement or any related agreement with respect to any Franchise owned by Franchisee or such
Related Party, or any default by the Franchisee or its owners under the Franchise Agreement, or
any related agreement, for any Franchise owned ten percent (10%) or more, directly or indirectly,
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by one or more persons who own, directly or indirectly, ten percent (10%) or more of Franchisee,
which is not cured within any applicable cure period,;

6.5  Court Judgments. The entry of any judgment against Franchisee or a Related
Party which it is reasonable to anticipate would adversely affect Franchisee’s or the Related
Party’s ability to own and operate a Franchise or Restaurant, or Franchisee’s ability to fulfill its
obligations under this Agreement, that is not satisfied or indemnified against to the satisfaction
of Franchisor within ten (10) days of its entry;

6.6 Insolvency or Bankruptcy. The insolvency of Franchisee, the commencement of
any proceedings under any federal bankruptcy or state insolvency law, the assignment of assets
for the benefit of creditors, or the appointment of a receiver, trustee, or similar person to oversee
the business or affairs of Franchisee or any of its business assets; or

6.7  Criminal Activity. Franchisee, or any person who owns a ten percent (10%) or
greater interest in Franchisee, commits or is convicted of, or pleads guilty to, any felony, or any
misdemeanor involving criminal sexual conduct, drug use or drug trafficking, assault, battery, or
physical violence toward any person, fraud, theft, embezzlement, or any crime involving
dishonesty or the taking of money or property of others, or any other misdemeanor relevant to the
operation of a Franchise.

7. Remedies.

7.1  Right to Cancel. In addition to any other rights or remedies Franchisor may have,
upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, Franchisor may cancel Franchisee’s Option to
acquire additional Franchises under this Agreement.

7.2 Adequate Assurance of Performance. In addition to any other rights or remedies
Franchisor may have, in the event of the bankruptcy or insolvency of Franchisee, in addition to
any other rights or remedies available to Franchisor, if federal or state law prohibits Franchisor
from terminating this Agreement or the Franchise, and Franchisee or the bankruptcy trustee
elects to affirm this Agreement, Franchisor shall be entitled to adequate assurance of
Franchisee’s performance of this Agreement. The parties agree that this may include but shall
not be limited to the full payment of all amounts then due or overdue, the cure of any other
default, and Franchisee’s deposit of a cash bond with Franchisor equal to the initial franchise
fees or Area Development Fee(s) for any Restaurants scheduled under Section 2.2 (and Schedule
1) to be opened for business during the next year, with the replenishment of the bond on a
regular basis.

7.3  Right to Enjoin. In addition to any other rights or remedies Franchisor may have,
Franchisee agrees that any improper disclosure of Proprietary Information or other violation of any
other term of this Agreement shall cause Franchisor serious and irreparable injury, that it shall be
difficult to adequately measure the damages to Franchisor from any breach by Franchisee of this
Agreement, rendering an award of monetary damages an inadequate remedy, and that, in the
absence of injunctive relief, the injury to Franchisor from any such breach would be incalculable.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Franchisee therefore agrees that, in the
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event of a breach or attempted breach by Franchisee of this Agreement, including (without
limitation) Sections 4 and 5, Franchisor shall be entitled to obtain temporary and permanent
injunctive relief from any court of competent jurisdiction, enforcing the terms of this Agreement
and prohibiting Franchisee from any further breaches of this Agreement. Nothing in this
Agreement shall be construed to limit or prevent Franchisor from pursuing any other remedies
available to it, either in law or in equity.

8. Miscellaneous.

8.1 Marks. Franchisee acknowledges that it acquires no ownership rights or rights to
use any of the Marks under or by reason of this Agreement, and that any such rights would be
granted only under a Franchise Agreement.

8.2  Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by
Michigan law without regard to its conflict of law principles, except that any Michigan law
regulating the sale of franchises or governing the relationship of a franchisor and its franchisees
will not apply unless its jurisdictional requirements are met independently without reference to
this Section 8.2. This Agreement shall be deemed to have been entered into in Michigan. Any
action brought by Franchisor and Franchisee shall be conducted through arbitration in
accordance with Section 8.3. The parties waive all questions of personal jurisdiction or venue for
the purpose of carrying out this provision. Franchisee and its Related Parties shall not dispute
jurisdiction or venue in any forum established under this Section and shall not attempt to change
venue established under this Section based on forum non conveniens or any other reason.

8.3  Arbitration. All controversies, disputes, or claims between Franchisee and
Franchisor or any of its Related Parties, affiliates, officers, directors and/or employees shall be
submitted for binding arbitration, on demand of either party, to the American Arbitration
Association. The arbitration proceedings are to be conducted by three (3) arbitrators, all of whom
are to be retired judges and are to be conducted according to then current commercial arbitration
rules of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”). All proceedings will be conducted at
the office of AAA located in Southfield, Michigan. All matters relating to arbitration will be
governed by the Federal Arbitration Act. Judgment upon the arbitrators’ award may be entered
into by any court of competent jurisdiction, provided that such award shall not be binding unless
granted pursuant to a written opinion containing findings of fact and conclusions of law. The
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney’s fees.

84  WAIVER OF TRIAL BY JURY. FRANCHISOR AND FRANCHISEE, AND
THEIR AFFILIATES AND PRINCIPALS, IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN
ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR IN
EQUITY, BROUGHT BY ANY OF THEM AGAINST THE OTHER, WHETHER OR NOT
THERE ARE OTHER PARTIES IN SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING.

8.5 LIMITATION OF CLAIMS. ALL CLAIMS ARISING UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT OR FROM THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES ARE BARRED
UNLESS AN ACTION IS FILED WITHIN ONE (1) YEAR FROM THE DATE THE PARTY
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KNEW OR SHOULD HAVE KNOWN OF THE FACTS CREATING THE CLAIM (AND
TIMELY SERVED ON THE OPPOSING PARTY), OR SUCH SHORTER PERIOD
REQUIRED BY ANY APPLICABLE LAW OR STATUTE, EXCEPT FOR CLAIMS
RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS OF FRANCHISEE OR FRANCHISEE’S
POST-TERM OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

8.6  WAIVER OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED
IN THIS AGREEMENT, FRANCHISOR AND FRANCHISEE, AND THEIR AFFILIATES
AND PRINCIPALS, WAIVE IN ANY JUDICIAL ACTION, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMITTED BY LAW, ANY RIGHT TO OR CLAIM OF ANY SPECIAL, PUNITIVE OR
EXEMPLARY DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHER AND AGREE THAT IN THE EVENT
OF A DISPUTE BETWEEN THEM, EACH WILL BE LIMITED TO THE RECOVERY OF
ANY ACTUAL DAMAGES SUSTAINED BY THAT PARTY.

8.7 NO CLASS ACTIONS. NEITHER FRANCHISEE NOR FRANCHISOR SHALL
SEEK TO LITIGATE AGAINST THE OTHER PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT OR SUCH
PARTY’S RELATED PARTIES, EITHER AS A REPRESENTATIVE OF, OR ON BEHALF
OF, ANY OTHER PERSON, CLASS, OR ENTITY IN ANY DISPUTE, CONTROVERSY, OR
CLAIM OF ANY KIND ARISING OUT OF, OR RELATING TO, THIS AGREEMENT, THE
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES, THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE, OR
OTHER CLAIMS OR CAUSES OF ACTION RELATING TO THE PERFORMANCE OF
EITHER PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT. NO ACTION OR PROCEEDING UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT SHALL ADD AS A PARTY, BY CONSOLIDATION, JOINDER, OR IN ANY
OTHER MANNER, ANY PERSON OR PARTY OTHER THAN FRANCHISEE AND
FRANCHISOR AND ANY PERSON IN PRIVITY WITH, OR CLAIMING THROUGH, IN
THE RIGHT OF, OR ON BEHALF OF, FRANCHISEE OR FRANCHISOR, UNLESS BOTH
FRANCHISEE AND FRANCHISOR CONSENT IN WRITING. FRANCHISOR HAS THE
ABSOLUTE RIGHT TO REFUSE SUCH CONSENT. FRANCHISEE AGREES AND
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT ANY JUDICIAL PROCEEDING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY
ARISING FROM OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE RELATIONSHIP
BETWEEN THE PARTIES, OR ANY AGREEMENT OR RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN
FRANCHISEE AND ANY AFFILIATE OF FRANCHISOR WILL BE CONSIDERED
UNIQUE ON ITS FACTS AND MAY NOT BE BROUGHT AS A CLASS OR GROUP
ACTION.

8.8  Costs and Legal Fees. In connection with any failure by Franchisee to comply
with this Agreement, regardless of whether there is any legal proceeding to enforce the terms of
this Agreement, Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor, upon demand, for the costs and expenses
incurred by Franchisor as a result of such failure and Franchisor ‘s enforcement of the terms of
this Agreement, including, without limitation, accountants’, attorneys’, attorneys’ assistants and
expert witness fees, cost of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other litigation expenses
and travel expenses. If Franchisee initiates a legal proceeding against Franchisor, and if
Franchisee does not prevail in obtaining the relief Franchisee was seeking in such legal
proceedings, then Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor for the costs and expenses incurred by
Franchisor as a result of such legal proceedings, including, without limitation, accountants’,

Jet’s Pizza (20245)



Area Development Agreement Page 11

attorneys’, attorneys’ assistants and expert witness fees, cost of investigation and proof of facts,
court costs, other litigation expenses and travel expenses, whether incurred prior to, in
preparation for, in contemplation of, or in connection with such legal proceedings.

8.9 Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns.

8.10 Assignment. Neither this Agreement, nor any rights or obligations under this
Agreement, may be assigned by Franchisee without the prior written consent of Franchisor.
Franchisor shall not unreasonably withhold its consent to an assignment of Franchisee’s right to
purchase a particular Franchise to a new corporation, limited liability company or other business
entity formed for the purpose of owning and operating a Franchise, a majority of which is owned
by or under common ownership with Franchisee, in which case references in this Agreement to
“Franchisee” shall be deemed to include such business entity.

8.11 Integration Clause. This Agreement, including the Schedule, represents the entire
agreement of the parties with respect to this subject matter, and supersedes any agreement or
understanding of the parties prior to entering into this Agreement. This integration clause is not,
however, intended to disclaim any statements or representations made in the Disclosure
Document.

8.12 Amendments. This Agreement may be modified or amended only in writing,
signed by the parties.

8.13 Notices. Any notice under this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be
deemed sufficient if delivered personally, mailed by certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, or sent via facsimile. Notice shall be deemed to have been given when personally
delivered, two (2) business days after having been mailed by certified or registered mail, return
receipt requested, or one business day after transmission via facsimile. Notice to Franchisee
shall be sent to its last known address on Franchisor’s books and records, or the address of any
Franchise or Restaurant owned by Franchisee, and notice to Franchisor shall be sent to its
registered address in the State of Michigan, unless notice as to another address has been given
pursuant to this Section.

8.14 Attorney Fees. A party who substantially prevails with respect to any dispute
shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney fees and other costs from the other party.

8.15 Waivers and Extensions. No waiver of any breach of any provision of this
Agreement shall constitute a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of the same
provision. No extension of the time for performance of any obligation or other act shall be
deemed to be an extension of the time for the performance of any other obligation or any other
act.

8.16 Counterparts and Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original Agreement, but all of which
shall constitute only one Agreement. Execution and delivery of an executed party’s signature
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page of this Agreement by electronic signature, whether digital or encrypted, is intended to
authenticate this writing and to have the same force and effect as a manual signature.

[Signatures on the Following Page]
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IN WITNESS OF this Area Development Agreement, the parties have signed below.

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:
JET’S AMERICA, INC.
Company
John Jetts, President Signature
Name:
Date Title:
Date
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SCHEDULE 1
Number of Franchises Subject
to Option
Area Development Territory
Area Development Fee The Area Development Fee for the Option to develop
Franchises is $ and is payable in full upon execution of this
Agreement.
The Area Development is allocated towards the Franchises as

follows:

$30,000.00 for the First Franchise.
$25,000.00 for the Second Franchise
$20,000.00 for the Third Franchise

$15,00 for the Fourth Franchise and each Franchise thereafter

Development Schedule First Franchise: Restaurant to be opened within 18 months after signing
this Area Development Agreement.

Second Franchise: Restaurant to be opened within 12 months of
opening the Restaurant for the First Franchise.

Third Franchise: Restaurant to be opened within 12 months of opening
the Restaurant for the Second Franchise.

FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE:
JET’S AMERICA, INC.
Company
John Jetts, President Signature
Name:
Date Title:
Date
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